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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-A
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141 OF CORPORATION
CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES
1. Forthe fiscal year ended December 31, 2024
2. SECidentification Number 21134
3. BIR Tax Identification No. 000-234-398

4. VITARICH CORPORATION
Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter

5. BULACAN
Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

6. POULTRY AND LIVESTOCK |:|

Industry Classification Code: (SEC Use Only)
7. MARILAO-SAN JOSE ROAD, STA. ROSA I, MARILAO, BULACAN 3019
Address of issuer's principal office Postal Code

8. (+632)8843-3033

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

9. N/A

Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report 10.Securities registered

pursuant to Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of each Class Number of shares of common
stock outstanding and amount of debt outstanding
Common Stock 3,054,334,014

11. Areany orall of the securities listed on a Stock Exchange? Yes [V]

No [ ]
If yes, state the name of such Stock Exchange and the class/es of securities listed therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. Common

12. Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:
(a) Has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule 17 thereunder or Sections 11
of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of the Corporation Code of the
Philippines, during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter period the registrant was required
to file such reports)

Yes [V] No [ ]

(b) Has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days. Yes [ ] No [V]

13. The aggregate market value of the voting stock by non-affiliates of the registrant total to P414,937,637.3 as of December 31,2024



APPLICABLE ONLY TO ISSUERS INVOLVED IN INSOLVENCY SUSPENSION OF PAYMENTS PROCEEDINGS DURING THE
PRECEDING FIVE YEARS

14. Check whether the issuer has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code subsequent to
the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a court or the Commission.

Yes [ ]No []

15. If any of the following documents are incorporated by reference, briefly describe them and identify the part of SEC Form 17-
Ainto which the document is incorporated

(@) Any annual report to security holders

(b) Any information statement filed pursuant to SRC Rule 20

(c) Any prospectus filed pursuant to SRC Rule 8.1
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PART | — BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. BUSINESS

HISTORY

Vitarich Corporation (“Corporation” or “Vitarich” or “Company”) was incorporated and registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on July 31, 1962 to engage primarily in manufacturing, preparing,
processing, mixing and dealing with feeds, foodstuffs, grains, and commodities of every description for poultry,
livestock and all kinds of animal feeding. Its shares of stock were registered with the Philippine Stock Exchange on
February 8, 1995. Vitarich’s authorized capital stock is P1,330,000,000.00 divided into 3.5 billion shares at P0.38/share
par value.

Over the years, Vitarich grew to become one of the Philippines’ leading integrators. It operates on plants nationwide
which produce hog, poultry, and other specialty feed requirements. It is an integrated poultry producer who oversees
every aspect of the poultry production. It is involved in breeding, hatching, growing, to sales and marketing of its
animals.

The Corporation’s registered principal place of business is at Marilao-San Jose Road, Sta. Rosa |, Marilao, Bulacan. It
also operates in Northern and Southern Luzon (Bicol and Isabela), Visayas (lloilo and Bacolod), and Mindanao (Davao,
General Santos City and Cagayan de Oro).

SUBSIDIARY
BARBATOS VENTURES CORPORATION

On October 27, 2021, Vitarich’s Board of Directors approved the terms of the Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”)
between Vitarich and Luzon Agriventure Inc. (“LAVI”) for the acquisition of shares owned and held by LAVI in Barbatos
Ventures Corporation (“BVC”), a private domestic corporation engaged in, among other activities, poultry production
as well as in the processing, raising, and breeding of chickens and similar stocks. After the execution of the MOU on
October 28, 2021, due diligence was conducted via external audit by MG Madrid & Company as of September 30, 2021,
upon which BVC'’s valuation was based. Based on said due diligence, BVC's actual results of operations in October and
November and the projections for December 2021 will result in a neutral Net Asset Valuation. As such, LAVI agreed to
absolutely, unconditionally, and irrevocably assign and transfer all its rights, title, and interest in BVC for a consideration
of P1.00 in favor of Vitarich. On December 16, 2021, the Corporation’s Board of Directors approved the acquisition of
100% of the outstanding capital stock of BVC from LAVI for a consideration of P1.00. Beginning January 1, 2022, BVC
operated as a wholly owned subsidiary of Vitarich. Issuance and transfer of BVC shares of stock were also duly
completed in January 2022.

BUSINESS OF ISSUER

Business Segments and Product Distribution

For management purposes, the Company is organized and managed separately according to the nature of products
and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and
serves different markets.

The industry segments where the Company operates are:

a. The Foods segment is engaged in the growing, production, and distribution of chicken broilers, either as live or
dressed chickens. Its products are distributed to hotels, restaurants, institutional clients, wet markets, and
supermarkets. Its dressed chicken products are distributed and sold under the Cook’s brand and under the
Fresh, Freshly Frozen, and Flavor Origins variants.



b. The Feeds segment caters to the feed requirement of the poultry growers and livestock raisers industry. The
Company manufactures and distributes animal feeds, animal health and nutritional products, and feed
supplements under several lines such as Premium, Advantage Plus, Premium Plus, Professional, and Poultry
Advantage. Each line has several brands and/or variants.

c. The Farms segment is involved in the production, sales, and distribution of day-old chicks.

The Corporate and Others segment includes general and corporate income and expense items of the Company which
are not specifically identifiable to a particular segment.

The relative contributions of each principal product to consolidated revenue for the years ended December 31, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022 are:

PHP millions
2024 2023 Change 2022 Change
Feeds 4,507 5,128 -12% 5,199 -1%
Foods 7,438 6,944 7% 6,241 11%
Farms 594 424 40% 528 -20%
12,539 | 12,496 0.35%| 11,968 1%

Competition

Although the Corporation is focused on the chicken and feeds industry, it faces competition from several sources by
virtue of its integrated operations. The Corporation continuously improves its objectives and strategic plans to
effectively compete with other integrators not only for consumers of its products but also for production resources
such as contract growers and contract breeders. The Corporation competes based on product performance.

Principal competitors of the Company are San Miguel Corporation (B-Meg), UNAHCO, Cargill, New Hope, CJ Feeds, CP
Feeds, Philmico, Uno Feeds, Excell, ADM, Sunjin, Vienovo and Inoza Feeds for the feed business. Key players in poultry
business are San Miguel Corporation (Magnolia), Bounty, Foster, Danway, CP, Sustamina, Gamma Foods, Chicken
Essential and Leong hup.

Sources of Raw Materials

The raw material components of feeds represent the most significant cost components of the Company’s operations. The
major raw materials of the Company’s feed business are corn, wheat, and soybean meal. The Company purchases these
materials directly from either local or foreign traders. Imported materials originate from USA , Pakistan, Indonesia,
Vietnam, Myanmar, and Japan. The Company is not dependent on, nor has any major existing supply contracts with, any
single or limited number of its suppliers for the purchase of essential raw materials.

Customers

Vitarich has various customers from all product lines and is not dependent on any single or few customers. The loss of
one or two of its customers does not have any adverse material effect on its operations. No customer of the Corporation
accounts for 20% of its sales. The Corporation has existing sales contracts with business partners and customers in
normal and regular business transactions.



Trademarks, Royalty, and Patents

As of 2024, the Company continued to use the following trademarks, devices, and logos, which were previously
registered with the Intellectual Property Office of the Philippines (“IPOPhil”) on the dates opposite to its names:
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The Company continues to use the above-mentioned marks and has filed the required Declaration of Actual Use
with the IPOPhil as the same falls due per trademark/mark. Company does not hold any other patent, trademark,

franchise, concession, or royalty agreement.

Certifications

In 2007, Vitarich further solidified its commitment to product quality and safety when its Company-owned feed
mill facilities in the Visayas and Mindanao received ISO 22000:2005 certification for Food Safety Management
System (FSMS). This certification, granted by the International Organization for Standardization (ISO), recognized
the company’s conforming feed safety management system. Vitarich has since adopted preventive measures to
address physical, chemical, and biological hazards throughout the feed manufacturing process, coupled with
rigorous product and process inspections. The company remains steadfast in maintaining the requirements of
these standards for its Iloilo and Davao feed mill plants. In 2021, both plants successfully received 1ISO
22000:2018 Food Safety Management System Certifications, which are still in effect and actively implemented

today.

Vitarich’s food business is equally dedicated to delivering safe, high-quality food products, adhering to the Codex
Alimentarius Commission’s General Principles on Food Hygiene and Guidelines on Hazard Analysis and Critical
Control Points (HACCP). In March 2024, the company successfully underwent a HACCP Surveillance Audit,
reaffirming its HACCP Certification for the verification and delivery of raw and frozen chicken, including giblets.
This certification, awarded by NQA Philippines, Inc., an accredited certifying body recognized by the United

Kingdom Accreditation Service (UKAS), demonstrates Vitarich’s unwavering commitment to food safety.



Looking forward, the company plans to level-up the established HACCP-based management system by adopting
the ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System, which will provide a more structured framework for policies,
processes, and procedures to consistently meet customer requirements and improve operational efficiency. As
an outcome of the combined Quality and Food Safety Management system we will be able to deliver quality and
safe products and services to consistently meet the highest standards.

Currently, Vitarich ensures that its company-owned dressing plants in Marilao and Tugbok are both GMP- and
HACCP-certified, while all its toll dressing plants hold GMP certification. Notably, the dressing plant in Tugbok,
Davao earned its first HACCP Certification in October 2024. In addition, Vitarich Corporation holds an FDA
License to Operate as a Food Trader, which was issued in October 2023 and remains valid until October 11, 2028.

Government Regulations and Approval

As an agri-business, the Corporation operates within a highly regulated environment governed by government
standards. Adherence to environmental laws not only fosters positive relationships within communities and industries
but also assures employees and the surrounding community of their health and safety. This commitment safeguards
the Corporation from potential violations and penalties.

In addition to environmental compliance, the Company prioritizes ensuring the delivery of safe and high-quality
products to consumers. This involves seeking government approval for its core products and services, as well as
securing registration for its feed mill, accreditation for its chemical laboratory, and certification for its meat plant and
cold storage facilities, in accordance with the standards set by the Bureau of Animal Industry (“BAl”), the Food and
Drug Administration (“FDA”) and the National Meat Inspection Services (“NMIS”). Furthermore, the Corporation
diligently acquires all necessary permits from the Environmental Management Bureau (“EMB”) under the Department
of Environment and Natural Resources (“DENR”) for its feed mill plants, dressing plants, and rendering plants.

The Company has successfully obtained all required permits, licenses, and government approvals to manufacture and
distribute its products. It remains vigilant regarding any potential legislative changes that may impact its operations
or financial standing, yet currently, there are no known recent or impending regulations that could significantly affect
its business or financial condition.

Research and Development

The Company’s research and development efforts are centrally organized under the Research and
Development Department to focus on the following core activities:

e Product Quality and Innovations
e Research and Development
e Advanced Animal Nutrition

A Research and Development Manager directs these activities, which include the following:

e Advanced Animal nutrition

e Diagnostic Laboratory Services

e Feeds and Feeds Quality Control

e Poultry Genetic Research

e New Product Development

e Technical Extension Services for contract breeders, growers, and sales clients

The inauguration of the Corporation’s renovated Research Center in 2001 upgraded its chemical laboratory
capability and further improved the analysis procedure. The acquisition of modern laboratory equipment
shortened the duration for analyzing products.



The Chemical Laboratory handles most of the laboratory services needed for feed processing, from raw material
analyses to finished products tests. The Diagnostic Laboratory handles all the laboratory support related to feed
and food safety as well as the surveillance, prevention, and diagnosis of diseases to ensure health maintenance of
livestock.

To ensure that its edge in the reliability and accuracy of its analysis is kept, it continuously upgrades its equipment,
e.g., the LECO protein analyzer, which is based on combustion, a faster way of analyzing crude protein in feedstuff;
the LECO Bomb Calorimeter, which is used to measure Gross Energy in Feedstuff; and the Atomic Absorption
Analyzer for macro and trace minerals, including heavy metals. The acquisition of the ICP (Inductively Coupled
Plasma) allows the Company to analyze complex minerals and heavy metals simultaneously. The Gas
Chromatograph is capable of accurately determining fatty acid as well as Volatile Fatty Acids and Hormones. The
NIR (Near InfraRed System) is capable of performing proximate analysis, including amino acids, in a very short
amount of time. The Company also upgraded its Fat Extractor, Kjel Dahl Protein Analyzer, and the Ankom Fiber
Analyzer Unit. Active Water and Moisture Analyzer units are used for the stability testing of the finished product
as well as the maintenance of quality for raw materials. UV-Vis equipment is used for mineral and enzyme analysis.
Additional serological tests, including for Avian Influenza virus and ELISA-based Swine serology, were instituted to
serve the growing expectations of the consumers.

To ensure food quality, HACCP-based quality system is being followed and adopted in the dressing plants as certified
by DA-NMIS. The Company adheres to HACCP principles by identifying and monitoring Critical Control Points (CCPs),
implementing corrective actions, and regularly assessing food safety hazards. Furthermore, through employee
training, GMP practices focus on personal hygiene, sanitation, pest control, equipment maintenance, proper handling,
supplier control, and infrastructure maintenance. Regular QA verifications and customer audits provide valuable
feedback for continuous improvement. Using data-driven decisions and internal audits helps optimize processes and
prevent potential issues, ensuring consistent product quality and safety. Material acceptance inspection, routine
environment and product testing, lot traceability, and fostering a culture of food safety and quality among employees
further support quality assurance. For research and development activities, the Corporation spent P10.8 million in
2024, P8.8 million in 2023, and P10.6 million in 2022.

Cost and Effects of Compliance with Environmental Laws

Vitarich complies with all environmental laws and regulations implemented by the EMB-DENR and invests
appropriately to ensure its compliance. To ensure that its facilities stay compliant with existing environmental
laws, the Company implemented the following activities:

1. Annual stack Emission Testing of boilers to ensure that all the gases being emitted during the operation
of boilers and power generators are within the Standards of the Clean Air Act of the Philippines. For the Davao
plant, a 3rd- party tester (Berksman) has been tapped for emissions testing of the 2 boiler units for Plant 1,
the 2 boiler units for Plant 2. The most recent test was conducted on October 22-25, 2024 at a cost of Two
Hundred Fifty-Seven Thousand Six Hundred Pesos (P257,600.00). The Vitarich Davao plant passed all the
parameters and earned a satisfactory rating. The result was submitted to EMB as compliance to conditions
for maintaining the Permit to Operate Air Pollution Sources and Control Installations (“POA”) last December
20,2024. The single-unit power generator for Plant 2 will be scheduled for emission test in the first quarter of
2025.

For lloilo, the Permit to Operate (“PTO”) for the boiler was issued on November 22, 2022, with five years of validity
until April 8, 2027. Annual Boiler Stack Emission Testing was done last April 08, 2024 and testing fee was Fifty Six
Thousand pesos (P56,000.00). All required parameters passed the EMB-DENR standards. Subsequent annual Boiler
Servicing and Emissions Testing will be carried out subject to inspection and approval by the DOLE and EMB-DENR.

2. Regular Monitoring of the final discharge of wastewater from the Corporation’s plants, ensuring that water
discharge from the operations is within the regulatory standards set by the Clean Water Act. The lloilo Plant’s



Wastewater Discharge Permit was issued on February 21, 2024 after passing all the test parameters for
Wastewater Discharges and after submission of all relevant documents. The cost of the Laboratory Analysis fee
amounted to Seven Thousand Five Hundred Pesos (P7,500.00) and the fee for the permit for processing Waste
Water Discharge was Two Thousand One Hundred Twenty Three & 05/100 Pesos (P2,123.05). For the Davao plant,
the Waste Water Discharge permit was issued in January 2021 with validity coverage of 5 years. The cost of
acquiring the permit was Fourteen Thousand Forty Pesos (P14,040.00).

3. In view of the warehouse expansion projects, for its lloilo warehouse, the Company sought an Environmental
Compliance Certificate (ECC-EPRMP) from the EMB of the DENR Region 6 on August 15, 2018. Processing cost was
Ten Thousand Pesos (P10,000.00). Meanwhile, the Davao plants were issued an ECC for Expansion (incorporating
the 2 existing ECCs of the Davao Feed Mill and the DSFC Feed Mill). The New ECC (#ECC-OL-R11-2020-0069) issued
on January 20, 2020 is still in effect and covers compliance with the Clean Air Act, Clean Water Act, Waste
Management Act, and all other regulatory compliance legislation. Processing cost incurred was around Ten
Thousand pesos (P10,000.00). Furthermore, the Corporation’s Dressing Plant in Marilao, Bulacan, was issued an
amended ECC on November 8, 2021. The cost for the amendment of the ECC was Fifty-Two Thousand Thirty pesos
(P52,030.00).

4. Regular Repair and Maintenance of all facilities, including attached pollution control facilities, ensure good
operating conditions and thereby prevent or control pollution coming from the plants.

5. Continuous Improvement of pollution control devices and/or equipment to meet regulatory standards.

6. Annual renewal of permits from DENR-EMB is secured. Cost varies for each plant ranging from One Thousand
Pesos (P1,000.00) to Ten Thousand Pesos (P10,000.00).

7. VDAP Certificate was not renewed as there is an existing transition for veterinary product certification from
BAIl to FDA. For lloilo Plant, it secured Online Hazardous Waste Generator Registration Certificate (OL-GR-R6-30-
045491 ) issued last May 28, 2024 transitioning from manually issued Hazardous Waste Generator ID last
January 5, 2017.

8. The Company had taken steps in 2023 to comply with RA 11898 or the Extended Producer Responsibility Act
of 2022 and incurred costs amounting to at least Two Hundred Eighty-Five Thousand One Hundred Twenty Pesos
(P285,120.00). It sought accreditation with Philippine Alliance for Recycling and Materials Sustainability. It had
already accredited a waste diverter in Davao in is now in the process of engaging a DENR-accredited third-party
auditor. Contract with waste diverter, Envirotech, was terminated last July 2024. We are now in contract with
Filemon Scrap Sack Dealer, a DENR accredited entity with CNC-R11-1408-007 accreditation.

Manpower Complement

As of December 31, 2024, total headcount was 1,472 employees, including 695 regulars and 777
contractual employees from reputable service provider.

The Federation of Free Workers - Vitarich Corporation Employees / Workers Union Chapter (FFW — VEWU) is the
duly authorized collective bargaining agent that represents all rank-and-file employees of the Corporation.

Pension Costs/Retirement Benefits

The Company has a partially funded, non-contributory post-employment defined benefit plan covering all of its
regular full-time employees. The defined benefit plan is being administered by a trustee bank which is responsible
for the administration of the plan asset. The Company’s retirement benefits are based on years of service and one
and one-fourth (1-1/4) month’s salary for every year of continuous service.

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk and changes in the life expectancy of qualified employees. The plan is not
exposed to significant concentrations of risk on the plan assets.



Actuarial valuations are made periodically to update the retirement liability and the amount of contributions. The
latest actuarial valuation of the plan is as of December 31, 2024.

Financial Risk Management

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash, trade and other receivables (excluding advances to officers
and employees), receivable from an insurance company, security deposits, trade and other payables (excluding
statutory payables), loans payable, lease liabilities and cash bond deposits.

It is the Company’s policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken. The main risks arising from
the Company’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The BOD and its Audit, Risk
Oversight, and Related Party Transactions Committee reviews and approves policies for managing these risks as
summarized below.

Credit Risk

The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from the failure of a counterparty to fulfill its financial commitments
to the Company under the prevailing contractual terms. Financial instruments that potentially subject the
Company to credit risk consist primarily of trade receivables and other financial assets at amortized cost. The
carrying amounts of these financial assets represent its maximum credit exposure.

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to settle its obligations as they fall due.

The Company monitors its risk to a shortage of funds through analyzing the maturity of its financial liabilities and
cash flows from operations. The Company monitors its cash position by a system of cash forecasting, wherein all

expected collections, check disbursements and other payments are determined on a timely basis to arrive at the
projected cash position to cover its obligations.

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility.
The Company addresses liquidity concerns primarily through cash flows from operations.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows from a financial instrument (cash flow interest rate risk) or its fair
value (fair value interest rate risk) will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s loans payable to local banks are subject to fixed interest rates and are exposed to fair value interest
rate risk. The re-pricing of these instruments is done on regular intervals. The Company regularly monitors interest
rate movements and on the basis of current and projected economic and monetary data, decides on the best
alternative to take. No sensitivity analysis is needed as management has assessed that future interest rate changes
are not expected to significantly affect the Company’s consolidated net income.

Foreign Currency Risk

To a certain extent, the Company has an exposure to foreign currency risks as some of its raw materials purchases
are sourced outside the Philippines and are therefore denominated in foreign currencies. However, the Company
has not yet experienced significant losses due to the effect of foreign currency fluctuations because purchases
denominated in foreign currency are kept at a minimum.

Financial and Other Risks Relating to Livestock

The Company is exposed to various risks affecting the food industry such as food spoilage and contamination,
thus, it is regulated by environmental, health and food safety organizations. The Company has processes
and systems in place to monitor food safety risks in all stages of manufacturing and processing to mitigate these



risks. In addition, the livestock industry is exposed to risks associated with supply and price volatility of its
inventories and livestock.

To mitigate this risk, the Company regularly monitors the supply and price of commodities and enters into
supply agreements at a reasonable price.

Item 2. PROPERTIES

The Corporation operates and/or leases numerous production facilities, which include feed mills, dressing plants,
and hatcheries. As of December 31, 2024, these facilities include:

Condition Remarks
Feed Mill
Luzon Good Toll
Visayas Good Owned
Mindanao Good Owned
Dressing Plant
Luzon Good Owned
Visayas Good Toll
Mindanao Good Owned
Hatchery
Luzon Good Toll
Visayas Good Toll
Mindanao Good Toll

The Corporation will only consider a project that is critical to its continued operations and that will likewise
generate substantial cost savings and higher returns on investment.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In 2014, Vitarich filed a case against Charter Ping An Insurance Corporation (“Charter Ping An”) before the Regional
Trial Court (“RTC”) of Malolos City, Bulacan, to claim insurance proceeds of Three Hundred Sixteen Million Five
Hundred Sixty One Thousand, One Hundred Fifty Eight and 81/100 Pesos (P316,561,158.81) as indemnity for the
damages and losses suffered by the Corporation due to typhoon Ondoy in 2009. The case was docketed as Civil
Case No. 662-M-2014 and was raffled to Branch 15 of the RTC of Malolos City. Vitarich was partially paid the
amount of about Fifty-Eight Million Nine Hundred Thousand Pesos (P58.9M) in 2016 when the court granted
Vitarich’s Motion for Summary Judgment concerning the amount admitted by Charter Ping An.

On May 31, 2023, the trial court granted Vitarich’s claim and ordered Charter Ping An to pay Vitarich, among
others, the amount of Two Hundred Forty Seven Million Six Hundred Twenty Thousand Five Hundred Fifty Five
Pesos (P247,620,555.00), representing the actual loss of the insurance claim. On June 7, 2023, Charter Ping An
appealed the case to the Court of Appeals Manila. On 02 December 2024, the Court of Appeals directed Charter
Ping An to file an Appellant’s Brief within 45 days from notice. On 10 February 2025, Charter Ping An sought an
additional period of 45 days or until 06 April 2025 within which to submit its brief.

Management and its legal counsel believe that the ongoing litigation on the remaining claims will not result in any
significant adverse impact on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS



There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the calendar year covered by this report
other than those made during the Annual General Meeting of the Stockholders held on June 28, 2024. The results
of the AGM were disclosed to the Philippine Stock Exchange via the PSE Edge portal on June 28, 2024 and posted
on the Company’s website. A copy of the draft of the Minutes of the meeting is also posted on the Company’s
website.

PART Il — OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 5. MARKET PRICE OF AND DIVIDENDS ON REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

Market Information

The Company’s common equity is principally traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). The high and low
sales prices for every quarter ended are:

2023 2024

High Low High Low
1st Quarter 0.64 0.61 0.495 0.49
2nd Quarter 0.63 0.6 0.475 0.475
3rd Quarter 0.57 0.54 0.73 0.69
4th Quarter 0.52 0.5 0.53 0.52

The closing price of the Corporation’s common shares as of the last trading date, November 05, 2024, was P0.67 per
share.

As of January 03, 2025 the latest trading date of the month prior to the completion of this annual report, price per
share of the common stock was P0.52/share.

No securities have been issued in connection with an acquisition, business combination, or other re-
organization within the last two fiscal years.

Holders

The Corporation has only one class of shares, i.e., common shares. The total number of stockholders as of
December 31, 2024 was 4,095 with the total number of shares outstanding on that date of three billion fifty-four
million three hundred and thirty-four thousand and fourteen shares (3,054,334,014).

Dec 2024 Dec 2023
Number of Issued & Outstanding Shares 3,054,334,014 3,054,334,014
Number of Stockholders 4,095 4,103
Number of Shareholders owning at least one board lot each 3,094 3,102

The Company’s foreign equity ownership as of December 31, 2024, is:



No. of Shares % Ownership

Shares owned by Filipinos 2,960,326,884 97%
Shares owned by Foreigners 94,007,130 3%
Total 3,054,334,014 100%

The top 20 stockholders of the Corporation as of December 31, 2024:

Rank Hame of Stockholders Number of Shares F'-:n:en'f ookt
. Lk Outstanding Shares

1 PCO MOMIMEE CORPORATION (FILIPMMNGO) 2,040 948 252 06.29%
2 PCD MOMINEE CORPORATION (NON-FILIPING 93,170,630 3,05%
3 YAZAR CORPORATION 1,402 520 0,050
4 MARIA CRISTINA GEMA ROXAS YUHICO 1,305,320 0.045%
5  JOSEM. SARMIENTO 1,305,320 0,048
B MA VICTORIA M, SARMIENTO 1,305,320 0,045
7 GLICERIA M. SARMIENTO GE0,000 0.029
B MELIACRLZ 527 Bh0 0.025%
2 ROGELIO M. SARMIENTD 280,000 0015
10  BETIMA ANGELIMNA | SABMIENTOS 228,510 0.015%
11 MNORBERTOT. HOFELENA 220,778 00785
12 GLADYY.LAD 215,000 0.01%
13 ANTONING 5. RAAGAS 210,000 0.01%
14 BERNAD SECURITIES, INC. 203,000 0.0154
15 DAMIEL ). ADVINCULA 200,000 0.01%
16  RUDY A VERANO 200,000 0.01%
17  ORLANDO P, CARVAJAL 175,000 0.015:
18 TERESITAY.SARMIENTD 164,000 0.01%
18 LORENZIO S, SABMIENTO 141 134 0,004
20 BIENVEMIDOD LIM 140,000 0,006
Others 11,291,380 0.37%

Total Shares Issued and Outstanding 3,054,334,014 100%:

Dividends

The Corporation has not declared dividends since 1996.

Sales of Unregistered Securities

The Corporation has not sold unregistered or exempt securities within the past three (3) years. Neither has it issued
securities within the past three (3) years.

Description of Shares

The securities of the Company consist entirely of common stock with a par value of P0.38 per share. All shares are
equally eligible to receive dividends and repayment of capital and each share is entitled to one vote at the
shareholders’ meeting of the Company.

Item 6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year 2024 compared to Fiscal Year 2023

The Company delivered record results in 2024 with revenues of #12.539 billion, net income of #216.6 million, and
earnings per share of #0.071.

“2024 was a banner year for VITA, marked by our highest annual profit and strong momentum in innovation,” said
Rocco Sarmiento, Chief Executive Officer. “We continue to enhance our competitiveness and profitability through a
balanced portfolio, improved cost efficiency, and more optimized supply chain. These efforts position us well for
sustained growth moving forward.”

Revenues were £12.539 billion, slightly exceeding the historical high achieved in 2023. Growth was led by the Foods
segment, benefiting from the ongoing business transformation towards modern trade and hotels, restaurants, and
institutional customers, along with favorable market movements that drove volume growth and a recovery in chicken
prices. This more than offset the lower revenues in the Feeds business, which remained challenged due to the reduced
hog population from the African Swine Fever outbreak.

Gross profit increased 66.2% to £1.504 billion as cost of goods declined 4.8% to #11.0 billion, reflecting lower raw
material prices which dropped by about 10%. As a result, gross profit margin expanded to 12.0% from 7.2% in 2023.

Operating profit rose 37 times to $397.8 million after administrative and selling and distribution expenses increased
23.7%, primarily due to higher costs from adding distribution channels and e-commerce. As a percentage of sales,
operating expenses including growth-related investments in personnel and marketing inched up to 8.8% of revenues
from 7.2% in 2023.

Net income surged 16 times to #216.6 million or earnings of £#0.071 a share, with profitability in all segments of the
business.

Segment highlights

¢ In Foods, revenues reached an all-time high of £7.438 billion, rising 7.1% year-on-year fueled by
improvements in volume of 4.3% and pricing of 2.3%. By geography, growth was driven by Visayas and Luzon.
Visayas drove volume growth with a strong double-digit increase. Luzon remained the largest market, gaining
from positive pricing and volume trends. Foods comprised 59.3% of revenues from 55.6% in 2023.

¢ In Feeds, revenues were #4.507 billion, 12.1% lower than in the previous year due to less favorable volumes
and prices, notably in Luzon and Mindanao. While total layer feed volumes rose sharply by 25.8%, the ongoing
negative impact of African Swine Fever led to a reduction in demand for hog feeds. Broiler feed sales also
slowed, tempered by weak farm gate chicken prices in the first four months of the year which stemmed from
an oversupply in the market. Feeds accounted for 35.9% of revenues from 41.0% in 2023.

¢ In Farms, revenues grew to #594.2 million, increasing 40.0% year-on-year mostly from a higher net gain on
the fair value of biological assets such as day-old chicks, in line with improved selling prices at the end of the
period. Farms represented 4.7% of revenues from 3.4% in 2023.

Environment and community-focused programs

Aligned with its environmental, social, and governance (ESG) strategy, VITA continued to promote shared value
creation and local impact by contributing to economic resilience across its value chain. For the year, the value
distributed to stakeholders amounted to #12.447 billion. Of this amount, #10.999 billion was payments to suppliers
including small- to large-scale farmers for operating costs, #371.4 million for employee wages and benefits, and #296.6
million for taxes, licenses, and fees to the national and local governments. Overall, VITA spent 95% of its total
procurement budget on domestic suppliers, enabling local economic development.
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Among recent highlights, VITA launched its Sagip Kalikasan initiative in Bulacan, a multi-year program that uses
bamboo as a solution for climate change mitigation, water purification, and community development. Subject to the
results of the baseline study, the program aims to (a) rehabilitate 600 meters of riverbanks to prevent erosion and
restore biodiversity, (b) sequester at least 10% of carbon dioxide by planting and maintaining bamboo groves; (c)
reduce toxic contaminants by 20% to improve water quality through bamboo’s natural phytoremediation capabilities,
(d) provide sustainability education to at least 1,500 learners to empower them to take climate action; (e) explore
opportunities to generate livelihoods for local families through the development of a bamboo-based industry; and (f)
strengthen the company’s sustainability efforts by integrating bamboo-based solutions into its corporate social
responsibility and ESG frameworks, in line with the UN Sustainable Development Goals.

2025 Outlook

To accelerate growth and improve market share, VITA remains committed to strengthening its Foods segment through
the Cook’s brand by scaling up its fresh and ready-to-cook chicken products and investing in marketing. The strategic
partnership with NOVOGEN, a French leader in layer genetics, also positions the Farms segment for further growth
and may generate potential benefits extending to other segments.

On a full-year basis, the company expects revenues to post double-digit growth and income to improve significantly,
developing throughout the year and over the medium term as the company continues to deliver on its growth plans.

Fiscal Year 2023 compared to Fiscal Year 2022

The Company reported revenues of #12.5 billion in 2023, an increase of 4% year-over-year, with the following
highlights:

e Foods segment was the largest contributor to revenues at 56%, growing 11% from last year to £6.9 billion.
There was continued momentum in the business with a 14% volume expansion led by demand in Luzon
and the Visayas. Pricing, however, was under pressure amid oversupply of chicken in the market.

e Feeds segment comprised 41% of revenues, which was down 1% versus the prior year to #5.1 billion.
Pricing climbed 16% while sales volume decreased 15%. This performance was due to multiple factors,
including the following: the continued gradual increase in selling prices which the Company implemented
since 2022 in response to high input cost inflation; the lower demand for hog feeds due to the continued
spread of African swine fever; and the depressed selling prices of chicken which dampened the demand
for broiler feeds among the commercial farms.

e Farms segment accounted for 3% of revenues, reflecting a 20% decrease to #424.4 million as a result of
overall market conditions. A fair value changes on biological assets amounting to a loss of $47.8 million
was recognized as part of revenues based on lower estimated selling price of chicken in the market.

Gross profit was £904.5 million, a 19% decline from the previous year, as cost of goods rose 6% to #11.6 billion on
higher production costs. Gross margin decreased to 7% from 9%.

Net income was #13.3 million with earnings per share of #0.004 compared with #89.6 million and #0.029 in 2022
largely due to the decline in gross profit combined with higher operating expenses mainly from increased labor
costs.

The Company is implementing efforts to strengthen a more resilient business model to deliver its long-term
business and financial goals. These initiatives include stronger marketing and brand support, capability
investment, and increased visibility in modern trade channels which are expected to drive top-line growth and
gross margin expansion.

Fiscal Year 2022 compared to Fiscal Year 2021

The Company achieved historic revenues of P12.0 billion, in 2022, an increase of 23% year-over-year, marking the
first time in the company’s 60-year history that annual revenues exceeded P10 billion. All business segments were
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profitable with strong momentum in the Foods segment.

Rocco Sarmiento, President and CEO, said, “2022 brought many challenges to families and businesses particularly
as inflation intensified and food prices rose by double digits. Despite this difficult environment, our team at VITA
worked tirelessly and delivered solid revenue growth and improved net income.”

Cost of goods accelerated 23% to P10.9 billion following higher sales volumes and input costs. Key raw materials
including wheat, soybean, and corn, which comprised about 70% of feed costs, soared an average of 25%. In
addition, price increases in fuel, energy, and labor exerted further pressure on handling costs and the return of
some post- pandemic operating costs, such as travel costs.

Gross profit grew 24% to P1.1 billion and operating profit increased 21% to P223.2 million. The impact of cost
inflation was partially offset by volume growth, pricing changes, and efficiencies.

Net income reached P129.0 million with earnings per share of P0.042, up 44% over the prior year.

Looking ahead, the company expects another year of strong revenue growth as well as better margins in 2023,
encouraged by an expansion in its sales channels and the positive reception of the recently launched value-added
products. At the same time, it remains alert in assessing the risks of persistent higher input costs and supply chain
disruptions.

Segment highlights
e Revenues from the Foods segment amounted to P6.2 billion, an all-time high on 48% growth, as the more
robust recovery in food services and restaurants lifted demand and the company’s value-added products that were
unveiled in November provided some additional support. Volume was up 22% led by demand in Luzon and
Mindanao while average prices increased 19%, reflecting significant cost inflation. The Foods segment
comprised 52% of overall revenues.

During the year, the segment widened its operations in various areas nationwide—in Luzon: Isabela and
Bicol; in Visayas: Samar and Leyte; in Mindanao: Zamboanga City, Bukidnon, Marawi, Sultan Kudarat, and
Saranggani. It also launched Cook’s Flavor Origins in November as part of its growth strategy at the retail
level. Product offering includes differentiated items such as French Roast, Mediterranean Roast, and South
African Roast.

e Feeds revenues grew 11% to P5.2 billion driven by pricing which increased 18% compared to the year-ago
period versus input costs of 23%. As expected, price actions had an unfavorable impact on volume which
declined 6%. The Feeds segment comprised 44% of revenues.

The segment made significant progress towards operational milestones by increasing the number of
distributors, megadealers, and retail feed outlets across Capiz, Aklan, and Central Negros over the course
of the year. It also began its multiyear campaign that will establish the brand as “The Specialist in Animal
Nutrition.” Another highlight of the year is the introduction of further initiatives that address sustainability
opportunities. This included the transition to reusable woven feed sacks from laminated bags in order to
manage its product design and lifecycle.

e Farms revenues were down 32% to P529.0 million due to the shortage of day-old chicks. A fair

value adjustment on biological assets amounting to P12.1 million was recognized as part of
revenues and P1.1 million as part of cost of goods. The Farms segment comprised 4% of revenues.

Fiscal Year 2021 compared to Fiscal Year 2020

Vitarich Hits Record High Revenues of P9.7 billion in 2021

The Company reports an all-time revenue record of P9.7 billion, up 23% year-over-year driven by growth in all
three business segments.
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“2021 not only delivered new revenue records across segments, but also pointed to higher long-term volume
growth,” said Rocco Sarmiento, President and CEO. “Our strategy to expand our capabilities has been validated
by market trends toward rising consumption of meat products and convenience food. This formed the basis of our
recent capital investments in the business, and as a result, we have good revenue visibility going into 2022.”

Cost of goods increased 21% to P8.9 billion in relation to higher sales volume and prices of raw materials such as
wheat, soybean, and corn which rose by an average of 12% compared to the prior year. The cost inflation was due
to several factors, including logistics challenges due to COVID-19, reimposed series of quarantine measures in the
third quarter, as well as supply disruptions for soybeans in the fourth quarter due to high demand from China,
increasing domestic use in the U.S., and lower output from Brazil and Argentina.

Gross profit was P856.3 million, up 50% from a year ago, while operating income more than doubled to P184.0
million.

Operating expenses were maintained at 7% of revenues even as administrative and selling and distribution costs
increased to ensure current and future market competitiveness and to support marketing activities for the
recently launched Freshly Frozen line.

Net income was P89.4 million and earnings per share was P0.029, higher by nearly 10 times from P9.3 million and
P0.003 in 2020, respectively.

Capital expenditure totaled P117.7 million, primarily for the construction of a new warehouse in Davao and for
additional machinery and equipment in Bulacan, lloilo, and Davao to meet strong volume demand and to upgrade
bagging lines for automation.

Segment Highlights

e Revenues from the Feeds segment, which accounted for 48% of total sales, were up 14% to P4.7 billion with
volumes reaching the highest levels ever for tie-up and commercial customers, such as distributors and direct
farms. Sales volume climbed 12% while average selling prices inched up modestly by 3%. Earlier in the fourth
quarter, Vitarich Poultry Advantage was launched to address the needs of backyard and general poultry
farmers. The new product line attracted an initial user base of over 100 retailers and farms.

Annual feed mill capacity increased 3% to 300,200 MT in 2021 from 290,800 MT in 2020, while production
grew 8% to 226,900 MT from 209,700 MT. As of December 31, 2021, utilization rate rose to 76% from 72%.

The Feeds segment produces and markets animal feeds, health and nutritional products, and supplements to
various distributors, dealers, and end users nationwide.

e Revenues from the Foods segment, which accounted for 44% of revenues, accelerated by 36% to P4.2 billion
due to a 21% increase in sales volume and 12% increase in average selling prices. During the year, the segment
further developed Cook’s portfolio by customizing Cook’s Premium Chicken products for hotels, restaurants,
and institutional (HRI) clients that now account for 55% of Foods’s revenue contribution up from 33% a year
ago. In addition, it also strengthened the branded retail business through Cook’s Freshly Frozen, which saw
total volume soar by 608%.

Annual dressing plant capacity increased 5% to 79,000 MT in 2021 from 75,500 MT in 2020, while production
expanded 21% to 35,700 MT from 29,500 MT. As of yearend 2021, the utilization rate reached 75% from 70%,
excluding dressing plant facilities owned by third parties.

The Foods segment sells chicken broilers, either as live or dressed, to HRI customers, supermarkets, and wet
markets.

e Revenues from the Farms segment, which accounted for the remaining 8%, registered a 19% increase to
P778.0 million. Fair value adjustments on biological assets amounting to P55.1 million was recognized as part
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of revenues and P78.0 million as part of cost of goods.
The Farms segment is involved in the production, sales and distribution of day-old chicks.
Outlook

The Company continues to execute on the factors it can control, including new products, improved customer
satisfaction scores, enhanced processes, and engaged stakeholder relationships.

Looking ahead, management expects revenues to stay robust, but the ongoing challenges will temper the full
impact of sales growth on Company earnings. Supply chain headwinds will persist and pressure the costs of raw
materials and transportation. In view of these elevated input costs, we will continuously reconfigure our
purchasing approach and explore new grain and protein sources to reduce dependency on corn, wheat, and
soybean meal. We are positive that higher volumes, cost efficiency, and responsible price increases will help us
meet our performance objectives while ensuring that our products remain affordable.

PHP millions, except per share data

4 4 4
2021 2020 | Change | 2019 | Change 20(211 ZOCZIO Change 20C119 Change
Revenues|9,704.28(7,881.92| 23% |[8,918.47| 9% [2,393.96(2,189.76] 9% |2,958.85| -19%
Operating
Income 183.99 | 79.01 133% | 158.58 16% (78.32) | 3145 | -349% | 171.59 | -146%

Net
income 89.44 9.29 863% 128.82 -31% (91.02) 5.68 -1701% | 234.42 | -139%

EPS 0.029 0.003 863% 0.042 -31% (0.030) | 0.002 | -1701% | 0.077 -139%
EBITDA 249.66 | 222.49 12% 385.53 -35% (71.03) | 58.27 -222% | 327.60 | -122%

Fiscal Year 2020 compared to Fiscal Year 2019

Consolidated sales of goods decreased by 9% to P7.7 billion in 2020 from P8.4 billion in 2019 mainly because of
unfavorable chicken prices in the market brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic and the spread of African Swine
Fever (ASF).

The Company recognized a fair value adjustment on biological assets of P199.5 million in 2020 from P479.6

million in 2019. Sales of goods per business segment:

e Foods sales dropped by 23% to P3.1 billion in 2020 from P4.0 billion in 2019 due to unfavorable selling
prices of chicken brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic starting April 2020 and towards the end of
the year.

e Feeds revenues increased by 4% to P4.1 billion in 2020 from P3.9 billion in 2019, despite the pandemic
and ASF, due to strong sales in Visayas and Mindanao as well as higher sales from the Feeds Tie-up
program in Luzon and some regions of Mindanao.

e Farms segment sales edged down by 2% to P455.0 million in 2020 from P466.1 million in 2019 as the
poultry industry was badly affected by the unfavorable chicken prices related to the pandemic.

Cost of Goods Sold decreased 8% to P7.1 billion in 2020 from P7.7 billion in 2019 versus lower sales volume and
lower raw material costs. There was a fair value adjustment on biological assets of P184.4 million in 2020 from
P471.4 million in 2019.

Gross profit for 2020 amounted to P571.8 million, lower by 20%, or P145 million, from P717.5 million in 2019.
Lower gross profits were mainly due to unfavorable selling prices for chicken brought about by the COVID-19
pandemic and the closure of HRI accounts.

Operating expenses decreased by 9% to P536.8 million in 2020 from P588.3 million in 2019 thanks to operational
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efficiency and cost reduction measures. Other operating income of P44 million in 2020 increased by 50% versus
2019 primarily due to rendered tolling services.

Other charges, which includes interest expenses, decreased by 67% to P57.8 million in 2020 from P176.6 million
in 2019 due to lower tax settlements, interest expenses, and provisions for impairment losses on receivables.
Other income recognized went down by 97% to P4.2 million in 2020 from P160.7 million in 2019 because of lower
gains on fair value changes of investment properties.

Tax expenses increased by 16% to P16.1 million in 2020 from P13.9 million in 2019.
The Company posted Net Income of P9.3 million, despite being adversely affected by the pandemic and the spread
of African Swine Fever in Luzon. This was down P119.5 million or 93% compared to 2019 Net Income of P128.8

million. First quarter performance provided ample buffer for net losses in the second and third quarters.

Financial Condition

As at December 31, 2024, total assets stood at £5.8 billion, reflecting an increase of #561.1 million from December
31, 2023. Current assets grew 17% to £3.2 billion, primarily driven by higher cash balances due delayed crediting of
December disbursements caused by holiday banking schedules, along with increases in trade receivables and
livestock inventories. Non-current assets rose 4% to £2.6 billion, mainly due to a revaluation increment on property,
plant and equipment, as well as the acquisition of additional transportation equipment.

Total liabilities were £3.5 billion, up #217.5 million from December 31, 2023. Current liabilities grew 4% to £3.1
billion, as payments to suppliers and business partners were deferred to January. Non-current liabilities rose 27% to
£409.8 million, driven by additional retirement obligations recognized from the latest actuarial valuation and higher
deferred tax liabilities related to revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment.

Stockholders’ equity increased by £343.6 million to #2.2 billion from December 31, 2023, mainly due to the
recognition of a record-high net income of #216.6 million for the year, along with a #127.0 million rise in other

comprehensive income, primarily from the revaluation increment on property, plant, and equipment.

Net cash provided by operating activities was #474.6 million, while net cash used in investing activities totaled £#80.2
million. Net cash used in financing activities reached #202.6 million.

The Corporation’s key performance indicators are described as follows:

2024 2023 2022
Revenue (R Million):
Sale of goods RP12,448 R12,544 P11,958
Fair value adjustment on biological assets 92 (48) 11
Cost Contribution (R Million):
11,036 11,591 10,900
Cost of Goods Sold
Gross Profit Rate (%) 12% 7% 9%
Operating Margin (B Million) 398 11 185

1) Sales Volumes, Price, and Revenue Growth

Consolidated revenue composed of feeds, day-old chicks, and chicken and animal health products sales including
fair value adjustment on biological assets, reached P12.539 billion, slightly surpassing the previous year’s level.

2) Cost Contribution

This measures the cost efficiency of the products and trends of raw materials prices, particularly importations,
which involve foreign exchange exposure. Costs are analyzed on a regular basis to assist strategic management
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decision making regarding cost reduction and efficiency measures.
3) Gross Profit Rate

Reviews are conducted on a regular basis to check if targets are being met based on the forecasted gross profit
rate and to ensure proper and immediate action can be taken.

4) Operating Margin

Operating margin is profit after operating expenses are deducted. Reviews of operating expenses are performed
on a regular basis. These are analyzed and compared against the budget, previous month, and previous years to
ensure that cost reduction measures are being met and implemented.

There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations),
or other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting
period.

There are no material commitments for capital expenditures.

There is no known trend, or any demand, commitments, events, or uncertainties that will result in or that are
reasonably likely to result in the Corporation’s liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material way.

There are no known and/or anticipated events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligations that are
material to the Corporation, including any defaults or acceleration of an obligation.

Item 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Audited Financial Statement of the Corporation for the year-ended December 31, 2024,
including the applicable schedules listed in the accompanying index to financial statements and supplementary
schedules are filed as part of this form 17-A. The Parent Audited Financial Statements for the year-ended
December 31, 2024 is likewise attached.

Item 8. INFORMATION ON INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS

External Audit Fees and Services

Audit and Audit-Related Fees

The work of Reyes Tacandong & Co. consisted of an audit of the financial statements of the Company to enable
them to express an opinion on the fair presentation, in all material respects, of the Company’s statement of
financial position, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, and statement of cash
flows in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. For the year 2024, audit fees amounted to
P3.75 million, exclusive of VAT and out of pocket expenses.

All Other Fees

For the year 2024, Vitarich engaged the services of Reyes Tacandong & Co. to do transfer pricing services.
The consideration for such services is P 0.5 million, exclusive of vat and out-of-pocket expenses.

There were no other services obtained from the external auditor other than those mentioned above.
Prior to the engagement of the external auditor, the Audit, Risk Oversight and Related Party Transactions

Committee reviewed and confirmed the terms of engagement and the scope of services of the external auditor as
endorsed by the management of the Company. Its approval policies and procedures for external auditors are:



1. Statutory audit of the Company’s annual financial statements

a. The Audit, Risk Oversight, and Related Party Committee ensures that the services of the external
auditor conform with the provision of the company’s manual of corporate governance specifically
articles 2.3.4.1,2.3.4.3and 2.3.4.4

b. The Audit, Risk Oversight, and Related Party Committee makes an assessment of the quality of
the prior year audit work services, scope, and deliverables and makes a determination of the
reasonableness of the audit fee based on the proposed audit plan for the current year.

2. For services other than annual F/S audit:

a. The Audit, Risk Oversight, and Related Party Committee evaluates the necessity of the proposed
services presented by management taking into consideration the following:

i The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and risk management
arrangements, systems and procedures, and management’s degree of compliance
ii. The effect and impact of new tax and accounting regulations and standards
iii. Cost benefit of the proposed undertaking

b. The Audit, Risk Oversight, and Related Party Committee approves and ensures that other services
provided by the external auditor shall not conflict with the functions of the external auditor for

the annual audit of its financial statements.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

For 2024, the Company’s independent public accountant was Reyes Tacandong & Co. The audit of the financial
statements of the Company was handled and certified by the engagement partner, Ms. Michelle R. Mendoza-Cruz.
The firm complied with the Revised SRC Rule 68, paragraph 3 (b) (iv) re: seven (7) years rotation requirement for
the external auditor.

Pursuant to SRC Rule 68.1 (Qualification and Reports of Independent Auditors), the Company engaged Reyes
Tacandong & Co. for the audit of the Company’s financial statements for the calendar year 2024. The engagement
of Reyes, Tacandong & Co. and the engagement partner was approved by the Board of Directors and the
stockholders of the Company.

There was no event in the last two fiscal years where the previous and current external auditors or previous and
current engagement partners had any disagreements regarding any matter relating to accounting principles or
practices, financial statement disclosures, or auditing scope or procedure. There were no disagreements with the
external auditor of the Company on any matter of accounting and financial disclosure.

PART Il - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 9. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Pursuant to the Company’s Amended Articles of Incorporation dated March 25, 2021, its Board of Directors has nine

(9) members, two (2) of whom are independent directors.

The directors of the Company are elected at the annual meeting of the stockholders to hold office for one (1) year
until the next succeeding annual meeting of the stockholders and until the respective successors have been
elected and qualified. Any vacancy shall be filled in accordance with the provisions of the Revised Corporation
Code of the Philippines.

Officers are elected by the newly elected Board of Directors at the organizational meeting held right after the
annual meeting of the stockholders. The Board also elects during its organizational meeting the chairman and
members of the Audit, Risk Oversight, and Related Party Transactions Committee as well as the chairman and
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members of the Nominations, Remunerations, and Corporate Governance Committee. The officers shall be
subject to removal at any time by the Board of Directors, but all officers, unless removed, shall hold office for a
term of one (1) year until their successors are appointed. If any vacancy shall occur among the officers of the
Corporation, such vacancy shall be filled by the Board of Directors.

Directors and Officers

The following are the directors and officers of the Corporation for the term of one (1) year from June 30, 2024 or
until their successors shall have been elected and qualified:

Jose Vicente C. Bengzon llI, Filipino, 67 years old
Director/Chairman of the Board

Mr. Bengzon has been Vitarich’s Chairman of the Board of Directors since 2012. He has been the President & CEO of
Torres Trading Company, Inc. since January 2021 to 2022 and an Independent Director of Upson International Corp.
since 2022. He has been the Vice Chairman & Chairman of the Executive Committee of Commtrend Construction Corp.
since 2014; Director and Treasurer of Inception Technology Philippines Corp. since 2019 to 2024 and Senior Adviser to
the Board of Malayan Bank since 2018. He was Director & Chairman of the Risk Management Committee of Rizal
Microbank from 2010 to 2020. He was a Consultant at SGV from 1982-1985 and Financial Planning and Projects
Manager for Reuters America from 1988 to 1990. From 1991 to 1996, he was with Dole Philippines and served in
various capacities as Assistant to the Country Manager, Manager in the Financial Planning Group, and Financial Analyst.
He was also an Entrepreneur of Westborough Food Corporation from 1993 to 2001. Mr. Bengzon was Director of the
Philippine Quality Awards Foundation from 1998 to 2011; on the Board of Trustees at the Philippine Quality and
Productivity Movement, Davao Chapter, from 1998 to 1999; on the Board of Trustees of the Davao City Chamber of
Commerce and Industry from 1999 to 2000; President of the Productivity Development Council in Mindanao from
1999 to 2000; and President of Abarti Artworks Corporation from 2001 to 2004. In 2005, Mr. Bengzon was the Chief
Privatization Officer of the Department of Finance and Director of Panaro Minerals Phils. and the Philippine Al Amanah
Islamic Bank. He was President of the Duma Group of Companies from 2006 to 2011; President of UPCC Holdings Corp
until 2020; acting Chairman at the Philippine National Construction Corp. from 2012 to 2013 and its Board Member
from 2005 to 2011; Director of Manila North Tollways Corp. from 2012 to 2013; Director of the South Luzon Tollways
Corp. from 2011 to 2012; an Independent Director of Bermaz Auto Phil's Inc. (2017); and Director & Chairman of the
Audit Committee of Century Peak Mining Corp. from 2016 to 2018. He is a Certified Public Accountant and a graduate
of De La Salle University having obtained his Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce and Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics in 1980 therefrom. He earned his Master of Business Administration at the J. L. Kellogg School of
Management at Northwestern University in 1988.

Ricardo Manuel M. Sarmiento, Filipino, 48 years
old Director/President & Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Sarmiento is the President and Chief Executive Officer of Vitarich Corporation. He brings with him almost two
decades of hands-on experience with the company. He is responsible for the overall success of the organization
with primary responsibilities in setting corporate objectives and strategy, driving growth, and managing company
operations towards achievement of goals.

He began his career with the company in 2005 as the Acting General Manager of Gromax and, eventually, as its
General Manager. He later became its President in 2010. This was followed by his role as Vitarich’s Sales and
Marketing Director and his eventual promotion to Executive Vice-President and Chief Operating Officer in 2012.
He is likewise the Treasurer of Precisione International Research and Diagnostic Laboratory, Inc., a position he has
held since 2008.

Mr. Sarmiento is an active member of the Rotary Club of Manila, Upsilon Sigma Phi, and the Young President’s
Organization (YPO Philippines Chapter). He has been a panelist in various business forums including the Philippine
Summit of The Asset and the Economic Forum of BusinessWorld. His team was recognized as the Executive
Leadership Team of the Year and a Circle of Excellence Awardee at the Asia CEO Awards 2022. Mr. Sarmiento holds
abachelor’s degree in tourism from the University of the Philippines, Diliman.
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Stephanie Nicole M. Sarmiento-Garcia, Filipino, 45 years old
Director/Executive Vice-President, Chief Sustainability Officer (CSO)/Corporate Management Services
Director/Treasurer

Ms. Garcia is the Executive Vice President - Chief Sustainability Officer and Corporate Management Services
Director of Vitarich Corporation. She carries with her more than two decades of solid hands-on experience in the
integrated feeds and foods businesses of the company. In addition to her integral role in the corporation, Ms.
Garcia also oversees the external activities of Vitarich Corporation and manages its various partnerships with key
stakeholders and the government. She is likewise the President of Precisione International Research & Diagnostic
Laboratory, Inc. Due to her deep knowledge in the poultry and feeds business, she is recognized by the Philippine
Department of Agriculture as a technical resource person and is often invited to share her expertise with the
government and private sector groups. She is one of the leaders of Pilipinas Kontra Gutom - a national and multi-
sectoral anti-hunger movement, which aims to bring public and private organizations together on various
programs with a common goal: 1 million fewer hunger Filipinos by 2022. Ms. Garcia served as the President of the
Philippine Association of Feed Millers, Inc. (PAFMI) from February 2020 to February 2021. She was also PAFMI’s
Board Secretary and Board Member, heading the Corn Reform and Policy Committee.

Prior to Vitarich, she was a Store Manager at Le Pain Quotidien, an international chain of café-style restaurants,
specializing in bakery items. Earlier on, she held a front desk position at the Ritz Carlton Hotel in San Francisco.
She holds a degree in International Hospitality Management from the Glion Institute of Higher Education (formerly
known as Glion Hotels School), a private, university-level Swiss hotel management school in Switzerland. Ms.
Garcia joined Vitarich in October 2003.

Rogelio M. Sarmiento, Filipino, 76 years old
Director

Mr. Sarmiento served the Corporation in different capacities as director (1982 to 1991; 2003 until April 29, 2021;
October 15, 2021 to present), President and Chief Executive Officer (2003 to June 24, 2016), and Chairman of the
Board of Directors (2003 to June 29, 2012). He was elected on October 15, 2021 as a director to fill in the vacancy that

resulted from the untimely demise of Mr. Jose M. Sarmiento. He was also the President of L.S. Sarmiento & Co., In

c.,

Sarmiento Industries, Inc., Fortuna Mariculture Corporation, and Sarphil Corporation from 1968 to 1981. He obtained

his Bachelor of Science in Business Administration degree from the University of San Francisco and his Master

of

Business Administration degree from the University of Santa Clara in the United States of America. He was President
of the Philippine Association of Feed Millers Inc. from 1990 to 1992 and Vice-President of the Philippine Chamber of

Commerce from 1988 to 1989. Formerly a member of the Interim Batasang Pambansa, he concurrently served

as

Minister of State for Transportation and Communications. He also served as Deputy Director General of the National
Economic and Development Authority. He was a member of the House of Representatives representing the First

District of the Province of Davao del Norte from 1992 to 2001.

Benjamin I. Sarmiento, Jr., Filipino, 55 years old
Director

Mr. Sarmiento was elected as Vitarich’s Director in 1998. He is a graduate of the University of San Francisco with a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics. He is the Chief Executive Officer of Sarmiento Pacific Holdings and Equities
(formerly Pacific Equities, Inc.) from 1989 to the present. He is also a Director of the following companies: M3
Ventures International, Inc. since 1991, and Ultra-Seer, Inc., Hillsdale Marketing Inc., Specialized Products &
Services, Inc., Escotek, Inc., and Diversified Industrial Technology, Inc. since 2002. He is the Chief Executive Officer
of Sarmiento Pacific Agribusiness.

Lorenzo Vito M. Sarmiento, lll, Filipino, 50 years
old Director

Mr. Sarmiento was elected as director on June 29, 2012. He is also the President of Lockbox Storage, Inc. He was
Co- founder and Chief Operating Officer of Advanced Environmental Soil Solutions, Inc. He was President of
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Davito Holdings Corporation, President of Speed Space Systems, Chairman of Emphasys Process Corporation,
Investor and co-founder at South Super Sports, Team Manager under contract with the Philippine Football
Federation, and Creative Director of Speed HKG. He graduated in 1999 from the University of San Francisco with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration with emphasis on Marketing and International Business. He
took up special courses in International Studies at the Richmond College in London, England, and Network
Engineering at Herald College, San Francisco, USA.

Atty. Juan Arturo lluminado C. De Castro, J.S.D., LL.M., Filipino, 44 years
old Director

Atty. De Castro is a practicing lawyer with a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines College
of Law, and is the first Filipino to obtain both a Doctorate in the Science of Law (J.5.D.) and a Master of Laws (LL.M.)
degree at the University of California Berkeley School of Law in the USA in 2011. He authored the book on Philippine
Energy Law (2012), which provides guidance for investing in the country’s electric power industry. He has extensive
experience in corporate rehabilitation, or Chapter 11, Bankruptcy, in the Philippines. He is also the managing
partner of the De Castro & Cagampang-De Castro Law Firm, a boutique law firm in Makati. Their law practice
includes civil and criminal litigation before various courts, appellate practice, real estate transactions, and cases
before the Sandiganbayan, among others. He is currently also an Assistant Professorial Lecturer at the De La Salle
University College of Law and a consultant at the Cybercrime Investigation and Coordinating Center (CICC).

Pierre Carlo C. Curay, Filipino, 46 years old
Independent Director

Mr. Curay was first elected as Independent Director on June 24, 2022. He has never been affiliated with the
Corporation prior to his nomination and election as Independent Director. He has been an entrepreneur for 23
years to date and has 17 years of experience in Logistics and Supply Chain Management, in addition to being a
technology professional. He is a Co-Founder and has been the CEO of Insight and Supply Chain Solutions (InsightSCS)
since March 2019, a technology logistics start-up. He is also the Director of XVC Logistics, a transport and freight
forwarding company serving multinational companies for their Philippine logistics needs. He concurrently serves
different organizations in various capacities — Former President and currently Vice President of the Supply Chain
Management Association of the Philippines; Co-Chair for Supply Chain Management of the Committee on Transport
and Logistics of the Philippine Chamber of Commerce and Industry (since February 2022); Technical Consultant for
the Regulatory Reform Support Program for National Development of the University of the Philippines Public
Administration and Extension Services Foundation, Inc. (since March 2020); Pioneer Mentor of ASEAN Mentorship
for Entrepreneurs Network (since November 2017); and Mentor for the Department of Trade and Industry (DTI)
and the Department of Agriculture (DA) at GoNegosyo (since June 2016). Mr. Curay earned his Bachelor of Science
degree in Management Information Systems, Information Technology from the Ateneo de Manila University in
1999. He also attended the Training Programs on Logistics Management for the Philippines and established the
Logistics Qualifications System of the Association of Overseas Technical Scholarships in Japan (2010-2012) and the
Entrepreneurship Acceleration Program at The Wharton School (2019).

Vicente Julian A. Sarza, Filipino, 72 years old
Independent Director

Mr. Sarza was first elected as Independent Director of the Corporation in 2016. He also serves as Independent Director
of HC Consumer Finance Phils, Inc. (Home Credit), the AIB Money Market Mutual Fund, Inc., Don Tim Development
Corp, and Servicio Filipino, Inc. He was a director and Chief Operating Officer of Mabuhay Capital until his retirement
therefrom in 2020. However, he remains a consultant of Mabuhay Capital. Prior to joining Mabuhay Capital, Mr. Sarza
was Senior Vice President, Head of institutional banking at Asia United Bank (AUB), a publicly listed company, which
operates as a universal bank. Before moving to AUB, Mr. Sarza was a Principal, Head of Advisory Services, in KPMG
Philippines. He was responsible for the significant expansion of market share and significant increase in recognition of
KPMG Advisory as an advisory services firm in key industries, such as financial institutions, energy, water,
infrastructure, insurance and in government and multilateral institutions.

Over the years, Mr. Sarza's extensive experience included successful engagements as Director to Chief Privatization
Officer, rank of Undersecretary in the Privatization and Management Office
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(an agency of the Department of Finance). Mr. Sarza was also a Director and Chairman of the Technical Committee on

Privatization and Office for Special Concerns for the Department of Finance (Republic of the Philippines). Mr. Sarza
had various roles in the successful privatization of Maynilad, International School Manila, Philippine
Telecommunications Investment Corp., Energy Development Corp., and lloilo Airport. Mr. Sarza spent more than 25
years in banking, his stints spanning corporate, middle market, and consumer banking with added responsibilities in
his last 8 years through involvement in senior functions such as Mancom, Asset and Liabilities Management, and Credit
Committee duties, among others. Prior to the Department of Finance, Mr. Sarza spent a total of 14 years at United
Coconut Planters Bank (UCPB) and UCPB Savings Banks as Manager to First Vice President-Head of the Commercial
Credit Division and President and COOQ, respectively. Mr. Sarza holds an A.B. degree in Economics from the Ateneo De
Manila University.

Executive Officers

Atty. Aison Benedict C. Velasco, Filipino, 47 years old
Corporate Secretary

Atty. Velasco was first appointed as Corporate Secretary of the Corporation last April 26, 2019. He is presently a
Partner of the Angara Abello Concepcion Regala & Cruz Law Office (ACCRALAW), the firm he joined in 2003. He
obtained his bachelor's degree from the Ateneo de Manila University in 1999 and his Juris Doctor law degree from
the same university in 2003 graduating with Second Honors. Presently, he acts as Corporate Secretary of several
companies, including AB Mauri Philippines, Inc., ELC Beauty, Inc., Smartmatic Philippines, Inc., UBS Securities
Philippines, Inc., UBS Investments Philippines, Inc., Grey Philippines, Inc., Shin Clark Power Holdings, Inc., Shin Clark
Power Corporation, Makesense, Inc., Commonssense Philippines, Inc. and other Philippine companies.

Atty. Mary Christine C. Dabu-Pepito, CCO, TCS, Filipino, 39 years old
Assistant Corporate Secretary/Compliance Officer/Corporate Information Officer

Atty. Dabu-Pepito was first appointed as the Corporation’s Assistant Corporate Secretary/Compliance
Officer/Corporate Information Officer on March 21, 2016. She obtained her Bachelor of Arts degree in Broadcast
Communication from the University of the Philippines-Diliman and graduated Cum Laude in 2006. She took up her
Bachelor of Laws degree at the San Beda University-Manila in 2011 and was admitted to the Bar on March 28, 2012.
She is a Partner at Dabu & Associates Law Office. Her areas of practice are litigation and corporate law. This includes
civil, family, criminal, commercial, administrative, employment, and labor law litigation as well as corporate and
commercial services, and corporate housekeeping. She is also one of the Corporation’s legal counsels. She is an
alumna of the 5th cohort of the Applied Sustainability Management in Asia Pacific (ASMAP 5) held on October 2019.
Organized by the Center for Social Responsibility of the University of Asia and the Pacific, ASMAP is an executive
training program for linking sustainability and business performance. She is a Certified Compliance Officer and
Certified Tax Compliance Specialist having completed and passed the qualifying examinations of the Certification
Course for Compliance Officers and Certification Course for Tax Compliance Specialist administered by the Center
for Global Best Practices on April 5, 2022 and September 22, 2023, respectively. She is also an accredited arbitrator
of the Philippine International Center for Conflict Resolution, Inc.

Other Executive Officers

Reynaldo D. Ortega, Filipino, 55 years old
Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

Dr. Ortega is a Doctor of Veterinary Science and Medicine who obtained his degree at the Central Luzon State
University in 1992. He also earned his degree in Bachelor of Science in Animal Husbandry in the same University in
1990. He completed his master’s degree at the University of Asia and the Pacific in the Agribusiness Executive Program
in 2018. Dr. Ortega started as Production Supervisor at Purefoods Corporation in Sto. Tomas, Batangas, and was later
assigned as Veterinary Supervisor at Purefood's JMT office in Ortigas, Pasig. He joined Vitarich in 1994 as an Extension
Veterinarian and, since then has handled various positions as Veterinary Services Group Head, Contract Growing
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Operations Head, Technical Head, and Poultry and Livestock Division Head, until his appointment as Senior Vice
President and General Manager for Poultry, Feeds, and Foods Sales Division sometime in March 2018. He was later on
appointed as Senior Vice President for Poultry and Food General Manager. On 04 November 2024, Dr. Ortega was
appointed as Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company. His training includes Poultry Tunnel
Ventilation Systems, Poultry Management in Cage Systems, Immunology and Virology, and Artificial Insemination in
Broiler Breeders. He attended various symposiums about Poultry production, processing, and marketing in the USA,
Europe and Asia.

Alicia G. Danque, Filipino, 51 years old
Senior Vice President — Chief Supply Chain Officer/Alternate Corporate Information Officer

Ms. Danque joined the company in 1995 and has held various positions such as Corporate Planning Manager, Chief of
Staff, and Assistant Vice President for Animal Health Care. She was promoted to Vice President & Supply Chain Director
on January 1, 2020, where she focuses on providing overall direction for the supply chain, enhancing productivity and
efficiency, and minimizing costs while ensuring the procurement of high-quality materials. Ms. Danque stepped into
her current role on October 1, 2022.

Her responsibilities include overseeing the procurement of raw materials and services, feed integrated planning,
warehousing and logistics operations. Additionally, Ms. Danque serves as a board member of the Philippine
Association of Feed Millers, Inc. (PAFMI) and is the Auditor and head of its Membership Committee. She holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Industrial Engineering from Mapua University and has completed postgraduate courses
at the Philippine Women’s University and the University of Asia and the Pacific.

Ms. Ma. Diana Mascardo Cuna, 66 years old
Senior Vice President — Chief Human Resource Officer (SVP-CHRO) & OD Director

Ms. Cuna was appointed to her current position on December 6, 2022. She is responsible for developing and executing
human resources strategy in support of the overall business plan and strategic direction of the organization,
specifically in the areas of succession planning, talent management, change management, organizational and
performance management, learning and development, talent acquisition and compensation. As the CHRO she
provides strategic leadership by articulating HR needs and plans to the leadership council.

Ms. Cuna was a management consultant in the areas of Human Resources and Corporate Risk Management, having
been a practicing professional for almost four decades. Prior to her appointment as SVP-CHRO, Ms. Cuna has been the
Corporation’s Executive Advisor/Human Resources and Organization Development (HR OD) since 2015.

Prior to Vitarich, Ms. Cuna provided HR consultancy to various local and international private companies as well as
local government institutions. She was the VP and HR/Communications Director for San Miguel Corporation food
group, HR and Risk Management expert for USAID and European Union (EU) Commission programs from 2003 to 2015.
She earned both her Master’s degree in Counseling and Bachelor of Science degree in Biology/FLCD from the University
of the Philippines, earned units in Doctor’s of Philosophy in Educational Psychology from the University of the
Philippines and completed her Organization Behaviour program from INSEAD (Singapore).

Elaine C. Nantes, Filipino, 61 years old
Vice President & Corporate Quality and Technical Services Director

Ms. Nantes brings over 30 years of managerial experience in the food industry, with expertise spanning food
processing, production, engineering, quality management, and food safety. She has held several key roles, including
Value-Added Operations Manager, Food Safety Manager, Plant Manager, and Project Manager, with a proven track
record in overseeing third-party tolling plant operations.

Known as the “Food Safety Guru” of San Miguel Pure Foods Co., Ms. Nantes played a critical role in establishing and

championing quality and food safety standards across the organization. She ensured that company-owned and third-
party manufacturing plants adhered to all regulatory, voluntary, and industry-leading food safety standards.

23



Her leadership was instrumental in developing and implementing robust quality management systems for food safety
and suitability. Under her direction, 43 food facilities earned GMP and HACCP certifications, while over 80 food
products received HACCP certification. Additionally, six food plants achieved ISO 22000 and ISO 9001 certifications.

Ms. Nantes was also pivotal in reducing the cost of non-conformities by spearheading quality and productivity
initiatives, both in her direct roles and as a consultant to industry clients.

In 2005, she served as the Chairperson of the National Meat Advisory Council of the Department of Agriculture
National Meat Inspection Service (Philippines). Her professional excellence was recognized by her alma mater,
University of Santo Tomas, with the prestigious Albertus Magnus Award for an alumna who excelled in the field of
Microbiology.

Emmanuel S. Manalang, Filipino, 60 years old
Vice President & Nutrition and Research & Development Manager

Dr. Emmanuel S. Manalang was appointed Vice President & Nutrition and Research & Development Manager on
August 1, 2019. He is a graduate of Veterinary Medicine from the University of the Philippines in 1985. He started
his career in Animal Nutrition working for ER Squibb and Sons Philippines as a Vitamin Mineral Specialist. He
developed his skills by enriching his experience working with Ciba Geigy Philippines, and Ajinomoto, Amino Acid
Department as a Technical Manager. He has been an Animal Nutritionist/Nutrition consultant for many
commercial feed mills and farm operations nationwide since 1989. Dr. Manalang has a vast experience in the field
of Swine and Poultry Nutrition, Aqua Nutrition and Pet Nutrition. He is also engaged in exotic bird breeding and
management.

Carmencita S. Policarpio, Filipino, 61 years old
Vice President & Director, Corporate Technical Services Directorate (Facilities & Project Management)

Ms. Policarpio is a Licensed Chemical Engineer and has been in the manufacturing industry for more than 30 years.
On Sept. 25, 2021, Engr. Policarpio was conferred & included in the roster of ASEAN Engineering Register (AER) as
ASEAN Engineer. This is under the AER Commission of the ASEAN Federation of Engineering Organizations (AFEO)
among ASEAN countries. On the following year, March 27, 2022, she also received the highest level in the Chemical
Engineering Profession as Internationally Recognized Chemical Engineer under PIChE (Philippine Institute of
Chemical Engineers) Chemical Engineer Registry. She has extensive work experience in developing and
implementing effective quality control processes, quality management, laboratory, and production/plant
management. She has been with the Corporation since 10 October 2016 and as such, has been assigned in the
Corporation’s feed mill plants, poultry dressing operations, commercial laboratory management, and
Facility/Project management. She has attended several trainings and conventions in Thailand, Malaysia, Singapore
and Indonesia. Throughout her leadership, the corporation’s feed mill plants experienced significant advancements
in food safety. They successfully implemented and transitioned to ISO 22000:2018 Food Safety Management
System, which was granted by Certification International, Philippines. This accomplishment ensures a higher level
of food safety for consumers. Moreover, the corporation received the HACCP (Hazard Analysis and Critical Control
Point) certification from NQA, a globally recognized Testing, Inspection, and Certification (TIC) provider, accredited
by UKAS (United Kingdom Accreditation Service). This certification was awarded to their poultry dressing plant.
Furthermore, the company obtained Halal Registration Certificate and Halal Dressing Plant Accreditation,
showcasing their dedication to maintaining a secure and safe food production process for its poultry dressing plant,
further demonstrating their commitment to maintaining a safe and secure food production process. Engr.
Policarpio is presently serving as Auditor & Technical Committee Head of the Philippine Institute of Chemical
Engineers - CAMANAVA Chapter. Prior to joining the Corporation, she worked as Plant Manager of Secret Recipes
Foods Corp. (Subsidiary of Robinson's Group of Companies), Assistant Manufacturing Manager of Plastic Container
Packaging Corp, a food packaging company, and QA Manager then promoted to Plant Manager of Vassar Industries
Inc. (Food Packaging company).

On July 1, 2023, Engr. Policarpio successfully finished her master’s degree in food safety management from the

School of Food Science and Technology at the Philippine Women’s University. She graduated with outstanding
academic performance, receiving an Excellent grade for her Food Safety Management Case Study Defense. This
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achievement showcases her dedication and expertise in the field of food safety.

Dilbert D. Tan, Filipino, 44 years old
Senior Vice President and Chief Finance Officer

Mr. Tan was first appointed on July 11, 2022 as the Corporation’s Vice President and Finance Operations Director.
He is responsible for the management of the corporation’s financial processes and risks. He held such position
until his appointment as the Company’s Senior Vice President and Chief Finance Officer effective November 4,
2024. Mr. Tan has almost 20 years of career experience, mostly in the banking and financial services industry as
well as technology software and services. He led operations and support services for corporate loans, trade
finance, fund transfer, treasury operations, and asset management for JP Morgan Chase Manila Corporate Center
(May 2019 to July 2022), East West Banking Corporation (August 2016 to December 2018), and Deutsche
Knowledge Services (January 2006 to September 2008). He has spearheaded system migration and business
process transformation initiatives to upgrade efficiency, quality, and controls. He developed and implemented
financial risk management policies for risk assessment, measurement, monitoring, and mitigation. In FIS (formerly
SunGard Financial Systems) [November 2009 to August 2016], he managed corporate liquidity client services,
market intelligence, and demand generation. Mr. Tan is a graduate of Ateneo de Manila University with a Bachelor
of Science degree Major in Management and Minor in Finance.

Xerxes Noel O. Ordanez, Filipino, 41 years old
Corporate Audit Manager

Mr. Ordanez serves as the Corporate Audit Manager of Vitarich since January 24, 2023. He has over 16 years of
audit and finance experience with exposure to hospitality, healthcare, manufacturing, sugar milling, banking,
water utilities, and shared services industries. He has covered reviews of major business process such as IT General
Controls, Revenue & Collection, Procure-to-Pay, Payroll, Construction Project Management and Operations &
Maintenance.

He completed his Bachelor of Science in Business Administration and Accountancy in 2006 at the University of
the Philippines-Diliman and passed the CPA licensure exam in the same year. He completed his MBA degree in the
same university in 2018. He holds various audit-related certifications as Certified Internal Auditor (CIA), Certified
Information Systems Auditor (CISA), and Certified in Risk and Information Systems and Controls (CRISC).

He started his career in SGV & Co as an IT Auditor under IT Audit and Advisory Services. Prior to joining Vitarich
Corporation, he worked for a major water utility company for 13 years heading the Internal Audit Department
and, subsequently, heading the Controllership & Analysis Department.

Carina Lourdes M. Fabian, Filipino, 52 years
old Vice President — Special Projects Director

Ms. Fabian was first appointed on January 2, 2024. She is a customer development professional with more than 2
decades of experience in growing multinational & family-owned corporations. Prior to her appointment with the
Company, she was National Sales Manager — Non-Traditional Channel at Century Pacific Food, Inc. for 5 years. Her
vast experience includes her employment stint with Pure Foods Corporation, San Miguel Corporation, and Digitel
Mobile Philippines, Inc., among other companies. She is a graduate of Bachelor of Science in Business
Administration at University of the Philippines, Diliman.

Significant Employees

The Corporation treats the contributions and services rendered of each employee as significant no matter how
small the contributions or the work performed are.

Family Relationships




Director Rogelio M. Sarmiento is the father of Directors Ricardo Manuel M. Sarmiento and Stephanie Nicole S.
Garcia.

Directors Benjamin I. Sarmiento Jr. and Lorenzo Vito M. Sarmiento Il are the cousins of Directors Ricardo Manuel
M. Sarmiento and Stephanie Nicole S. Garcia.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

The Company has no knowledge of any event during the past five (5) years up to the latest filing date, where any
of its directors or executive officers had been or are currently involved in any criminal or bankruptcy proceedings
or subject of any order or judgment of any court or quasi-judicial agency, whether local or foreign, effecting his/her
involvement in business, securities, commodities or banking activities.

Item 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Standard Arrangement

The members of the Board of Directors are entitled to a per diem of P10,000.00 for regular meetings whereas the
members of the Audit, Risk Oversight, and Related Party Transactions Committee, and Nominations, Remunerations
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee are entitled to a per diem of P5,000.00 for every meeting
participation. They are also given a transportation allowance of P5,000.00 for every meeting attended.

Arrangements with Directors & Officers

The Company does not extend or grant warrants or options to its executive officers and directors. Thus, it has no
obligation to disclose information pertaining to warrants and options. The market value of the shares of stock, if
any, received by the Company’s executives and officers approximate the compensation that they should have
received had the payment been made in other form of consideration at the grant date.

Executive Compensation

The compensation of key management personnel are as follows:

2024 2023 2022
Short-term employee benefits £69,911,760 £54,914,416 B55,480,527
Retirement benefits 4,656,828 5,238,557 5,010,571
Other employee benefits 24,276,904 19,521,032 17,133,565

£98,845,492 279,674,005 77,624,663

The aggregate compensation including other remunerations during the last two fiscal years, as well as those
estimated to be paid in the ensuing fiscal year to the Corporation’s Chief Executive Officer and Officers is as
follows: (in millions of Pesos)

Bonus
NAME & PRINCIPAL POSITION YEAR SALARY &
Others
1. RICARDO MANUEL M. SARMIENTO — CEO/President 2024
2. STEPHANIE NICOLE S. GARCIA- EVP, CSO/CMS Director 2024
/Treasurer
3. REYNALDO D. ORTEGA —-SVP & COO 2024
Sales Division
4. ALICIA G. DANQUE - SVP & Chief Supply Chain Officer/ 2024

Alternate Corporate Information Officer
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5. DILBERT D. TAN - SVP & CFO 2024

TOTA L (Estimated) 2025 19.8 -
2024 23.58 -
2023 19.91 -
ALL OTHER OFFICERS & DIRECTORS AS A COMPANY UNNAMED 2025 3.09 -
(Estimated)
2024 2.64 -
2023 3.17 -

The following are the five highest compensated officers of the Company:

Ricardo Manuel M. Sarmiento — CEO/President

Stephanie Nicole S. Garcia— EVP & CSO/CMS Director/ Treasurer

Reynaldo D. Ortega — Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

Diane M. Cuna — Chief Human Resource Officer (SVP-CHRO) & OD Director

Alicia G. Danque - Chief Supply Chain Officer/Alternate Corporate Information Officer

ok wnN e

Item 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

The following are the owners of record and beneficial owners of more than 5% of the Corporation’s
voting securities as of December 31, 2024 are as follows:

Hamn, addrais of Recoid Owees & Rilartknribig [ Adnirunil & Matuie ol | [
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Security Ownership of Management

The number of common shares beneficially owned by directors and executive officers as of December
31, 2024, is as follows:
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Item 12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Title of Class Marme of Beneticial Cwner ;:1:’:;:‘:’:::; Citipenship Percent of Class
Common lose Vicente &, Bengzon NI 10,00 Filipino 0,005
Comman Ricarda Manuel M, Samienta 55,240 B Filiplno 1.81%
Common Stephanle Nicole 5. Garcla 104,358 Filipinz 0.005
Comiman Fogello M. Sarmiento 6,386, 331 Filiping 0275
Common Banjamin L Saemianta b, 196 Filipino 0008
Commaon Laranm Vite M, Sarmienta (1 L Filipino 0,008
Comman Vicente Julian AL Sarza 1 Filkping (.00
Common Plarme Carlo C. Curay 1 Filiping 0.00%
Goimman Iuan &rtrd Qumingds G, de Casing 18,787,034 Filiping 0,654
Common Atty, Alson Benedict C. Velasco d Filiping .00
Common Atty, Marny Christine Dabu-Peplio [ Filiping 0,000
Lamman Haynabds 0. Oriega 1.219.874 Filipinm 0,043
Commuan Emmianuel 5. Manalang Q Fllipino 00004
Coammon Alicia G. Dangue 4, Filiping CLO0As
Comman Elaine C. Mantes 1 Filipdno 0,000
Common Carmencita 5, Policarpla q Filiping 0,004
Loammon Dilbert . Tan [0, Filiping 0L D0
Common Ma_ Diana M. Cuna a Fillpino 0.00ns
Comman Carina M, Fablan a Filipino 0.005%4

| Lommon  Rerxes Noel 0. Crdanes L Filipino 0,005

The Group, in its regular conduct of business, has transactions with its related parties. The following tables

summarize the transactions with the related parties and outstanding balance arising from these transactions.

Amount of Transactions

Outstanding Balance

Related Parties Note Nature of Transaction 2024 2023 2024 2023
Trade and Other Receivables 6
Entities under common control Sales R732,746,539 P623,194,605

Collections (630,384,269) (698,063,967) PR245,890,511 P143,528,241
Advances to Officers 6 Advances - net of
collections P3,760,765 24,199,062 PR26,963,331 23,202,566
Trade and Other Payables 14
Entities under common control Purchases R289,661,066 £745,005,211
Payments (277,883,199) (745,431,091) P15,685,403 23,907,536

The material related party transactions for 2024 were reported via SEC Form 17-C and Advisement Reports
submitted to the SEC and PSE and posted on the Corporation’s website. The list of the material related party
transactions will be attached to the Annual Integrated Corporate Governance Report to be filed on or before
30 May 2025.

Trade and Other Receivables

The Group sells animal feeds, raw materials, feed supplements and dressed chicken to related parties, which
are due within 90 days and are noninterest bearing. Outstanding balances of trade and other receivables from
related parties are unsecured and to be settled in cash. No allowance for ECL on trade and other receivables from
related parties was recognized as at December 31, 2024, and 2023 (see Note 6).

Trade and Other Payables
The Group buys raw materials and breeder flocks from related parties. These are noninterest-bearing,
generally on a 90-day credit term, unsecured and to be settled in cash (see Note 14).

Advances to Officers
The Group grants unsecured, noninterest-bearing advances to its officers which are normally collected within
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one year through salary deduction. The allowance for ECL on advances to officers as at December 31, 2024 and
2023 are disclosed in Note 6.

Compensation of Key Management Personnel
The compensation of key management personnel are as follows:

2024 2023 2022

Short-term employee benefits R69,911,760 B54,914,416 B55,480,527
Retirement benefits 4,656,828 5,238,557 5,010,571
Other employee benefits 24,276,904 19,521,032 17,133,565
PR98,845,492 R79,674,005 R77,624,663

Voting Trust Holders of 5% or more

The Company is not aware of any person holding more than 5% of its common shares under a voting trust
or similar agreement as there has been no voting trust agreement which has been filed with the Company
and the Securities and Exchange Commission, as required under the Corporation Code.

Description of any arrangement which may result in a change in control of the Corporation

There are no arrangements that will affect or change ownership.

PART IV — CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Item 13. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company complies and adheres to its Amended Manual on Corporate Governance. The Board of
Directors met at least once a month to oversee the Company’s operations and to assist in further
improving operational efficiencies. The Board of Directors and the management, from time to time, make
the necessary amendments to its policies and strategies to ensure business continuity while employing
the best practices in corporate governance. Internal audit reports were made to the Board to address gaps
in the Company’s processes and improve operational efficiencies. On December 18, 2024, the Board of
Directors approved the Revised Whistleblowing Policy of the Corporation. In addition, the members of the
Board of Directors disclose any potential or actual conflict of interest they may have in a transaction
presented for approval of the Board. They likewise inhibit from the discussions and voting of the said
transaction. The Company continues to improve its corporate governance practices. In line with UN
Sustainable Development Goal 8 (Decent Work and Economic Growth), the Company strengthened its
engagements with its employees, business partners, and customers. Sometime in September 2024, the
Company was named for the first time to the Institute of Corporate Directors’ Golden Arrow Awards for
good governance. Vitarich earned a 1-arrow recognition having scored between 80 to 89 points based on
the 2023 ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard assessment results.

Moreover, in order to ensure the attendance of all the members of the Board of Directors during its
monthly regular meetings, the Board of Directors set the schedule of its 2024 monthly regular meetings
during its regular meeting held on December 14, 2024. For the schedule of its 2025 monthly regular
meetings, the Board of Directors set the same during its regular meeting held on December 18, 2024. In
addition to this, the Board of Directors allowed directors to attend the meetings remotely through video
conference. Vitarich continues to commit to improve its corporate governance.



PART V — EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

Item 14. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON SEC FORM 17-C

Exhibits

The exhibits, as indicated in the Index to Exhibits, are neither applicable to the Company nor require an

answer.

(b) Reports on SEC Form 17-C

The following are the items reported under SEC Form 17-C for the year 2024:

Date of Report Remarks
0240216  Resignation of Ms, Mane Angelie B. Macatual as Vice Presigent - Marketing and Bussness Devetopment Derec tor
2024.01.02 Appointrmsent of Ms. Canna Fabian &5 Vice President - Special Progecis Deectar
JOM04 18 SEC 17-C MNobice of Antqisl Genses Mesting 2024
20740828  materlal Related Parly Transaction wiih Barbatos Ventures Corporation
20340828  Aeselrs of Mi24 Arnun Shareholders Meetng
202407.01 Aewulls of Orgamzaticnal Mesting of Board of Barectors
20340729  Pross Reless: Vitarich Corporation prgss rolgase entitled itarnich drves growth with expanded retad prasance
1074.08.10  Press Aetease: Varich Corporation Press Asleasa Entitled; Vitarnich first-natf net incoms rses fva times to P16 millicn
2024.08.23  Press Rolegse: Viarich recetvas fimst Golden Arrow Awd Tor commilmant 10 good corporate Eavemanca
e Promotion of Mr. Beynalde D, Onegs as Senbar Vice Preskdent and Chisf Oparsting OMcoaer gnd Mr. Dilben D.Tan as Senor Vice
President and Chiel Finance Ofcer
241108 Wilatich reports record el oo of #2539, 1 millicn in ning mantis 2004
2034,12.18  WHISTLEBLOWER REPORTING POLICY (Aevised on 18 December 2024)
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Pursuant to the requirements of Saction 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation Code (now Section 177 of
the Revised Corporation Code of the Philippings), this report ks signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned.
thereunto duly authorized, in the city of on 0 _

(L

EWE B Famtroller

EVi & FAS Directon Treasurer Corporate Secretany
{Principal Dperating Officer)

il

VP and Chief Finance Officer
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The Management of Vitarich Corporation and Subsidiaries {the Company) is responsible tor all
information and representations contained in the Annual Income Tax Return for the years ended
December 31, 2024, Management & likewise responsibie for all information and representations
contained in the financial statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax Return covering the
same reporting period. Furthermore, the Managemant fs responsible for all information and
representations contained in ali the ather tax returns filed for the reparting period, including, but
nat limited, to the value added tax and/or percentage tax relurns, withholding tas retums,
documentary stamp tax returns, and any and all gther tax returns

in this regard, the Management athirms that the attached audited financial statements for the
years ended December 31, 2024, and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Return are in
accordance with the books and recards of Vitarich Corporation and Subsidiaries, complete and
correct in all material respects. Management likewise affirms that:

[a) tha Anncal Income Tax Beturn has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of
the National internal Revenue Code, az amended, and pertinent tax regulations and other
eeuaneas of tha Department of Finance and the Bureau of Imernal Revenue;

ik any disparity of figures in the submitted repors arising from the preparation of financial
statements pursuant to Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and the preparation of
the income tax seturn pursuant (o tax accounting rules has been reported as reconciling
tems and maintained in the Company's books and récords in accordance with the
requirements of Revenue Regulations No, B-2007 and other relevant issuances;

[l Vitarich Corporation and Subsidiaries has fited all applicable tax returns, reports and
statements required to be filed under Philippine tax lnws for the reporting period, and all
taxes and other impositions shown thereon (o be dug and payable have been paid for the
reporting period, escept those contested in good faith.
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this ____ day & f MAR 2023
Affiant exhibited to me thelr respective government-issued |D's as competent proof of their
identities and acknowledged that they executed the same freely and voluntarily, to wit;

 Name Valid ID No. Date of Validity

lose Vicente C. Bengzon || a PH Passport No. P73614858 08-08-2031

Drivers License No. NO3-84-1589468 | 01-20-2032

Ricardo Manuel M. Sarmiento

‘Stephanie Nicole S. Garcla PH Passport No. PB5391758 12-28-2031

SV

ATTY. NENITA DC. TUAZON
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of Vitarich Corporation and Subsidiaries (the Company)] is responsible
far the preparation and fair pretentation of the financlal statements Inchuding the
schedules attached therein as at and for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 in
sccordance with Philipping Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal contral as
management determings i necessary to enable the preparation of fimancial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management i responsible for assessing the
Lompany s lﬂl|l!'||' Lo conmtinuwe &5 a8 gomg Concern, dﬁclﬂllﬂﬂ. s applicable matters related
to golng concern and using the poing conesrn Basis of accounting unless management
pither intends to lquidate the Company Or $0 cease operations. of has no reslistic
alternative but to do za

The Board of Directors Is responsible in overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements incleding the
schedules attached therem, and submids the same fo the dockholders

REYES, TACANDONG AND CO,, the independent auditer appointed by the stockholders,
has audited the financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on
the fairmess of presentation upon completion of such audit

[ETREAU OF MTERNAL R'E"F.HL'E
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By ROSE MARL AN
(1 o] AT SoeG A T AR 1]

Executive \rfe Prrsrdent & Chief Sustainablility Officer [CS0) /
Corporate Minahf'ner:t Services Diractor / Treasurer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Vitarich Corporation and a Subsidiary
Karilao - San Jose Road, 5ta. Rosa |

Marilao, Bulacan

Cpinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Vitarich Corporation and &
Subsidiary (the Group), which comprise the consofidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income,
consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for the years
then anded, and notes to consofidated financial statements, incleding a summary of material accounting
policy infarmaticn.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements pressnt fairly, In all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, and its consolidated
financial performance and Its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) Accounting Standards,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (P54). Dur responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors” Responsitulites for the Audit of the
Consoiidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the
ethical requirements that are refevant to the audit of the consolidated financial statements In the
Philippines, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obitained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Maiters

The following key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements af the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming gur gpinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate apinion on these matters,

Fair Valuation of Biological Assets - Livestock

The Group's biological assets - livestock, which are measured at fair value less costs to sell, amounted to
#313.7 million as at December 31, 2024. The Group recognized gain on the fair value changes of biological
assets - livestock amounting to P18 million In 2024 (see Note B).
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The assessment of the fair valuation of biological asset is significant to our audit because of the complexity
of the underlying methooologies and processes in determining the fair value. We focused our audit on
the management’s determination of the fair value because the process involves significant management
judgment and estimates when selecting the appropriate valuation technigues and inputs used.

By, Fit" FEE Mﬁ |.|'LH|'1
¥ 'mﬂmﬁmw LA

We obtained an understanding of the methodologies and processes developed by management in
measuring the fair value of the biological assets. We reviewed the reasonableness of the inputs and
assumptions used 1o estimate the fair value of the Group's biological assets by testing the key assumptions
for the fair value measurement such as most recent selling prices less cost to sell and growing costs,
hatchability and mortaiity rates and estimated valume of production, among others, on a sample basis
We alsa reviewed the appropriateness of management’s disclosures in the notes to consolidated financial
statements.

Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment at Revalued Amounts

Az at December 31, 2024, the Group's property, plant and eguipment [excluding transportation
equipment and construction in-progress) which are accounted for using the revaluation mode! amounted
to B1,014.4 million {see Note 11). The fair value measurement is significant to our audit as the property,
plant and equipment carried at revalued amounts account for 34.8% of the Group's total assets as at
December 31, 2024,

We focused our audit on the management's determination of the revalued amounts of property, plant
and equipment because the process involves significant management judgment when selecting the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs used to determine revalued amounts.

We have assessed the independence and competency of the appraiser engaged by the Group. We have
also reviewed the reasonableness of the assumptions used to estimate the revalued amounts of its
property, plant and equipment on a sample basis by: (1) testing land's value by referring to the value of
similar properties in the vicinity, (2) testing reproduction costs against current market prices, and
[3) verifying valuation inputs such as published market data, as applicable, to ascertain i these are
reasonably appropriate.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the infarmation
included in the SEC Form 20-I5 {Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Repart for
the year ended December 31, 2024, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors” report thereon. The SEC Form 20415 (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and
Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2024 are expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditors’ report.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In cenpection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility Is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes avaitable and, In doing so, consider whether the
other Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwice appears 1o be matarially misstated.



@ REYEs Tacannponc & Co,

PR A PRI TS WA MO NS

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2022 were audited
by another auditor whose report dated April 1, 2023 expressed an unmodified opinion on those
consolidated financial statements.

As part of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2023, we also awdited the adjustments described In Note 4 that were applied 10 restate the
consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2022, In our opinion,
such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. We were not engaged 1o audit, review,
or apply any procedure to the Group's consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2022 other than with respect to the adjustments and accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or any other farm of assurance on the consolidated financial statements as at and for the vear
ended December 31, 2022 taken as & whole,

Responsibilines of Manogement and Thase Chorged with Governance for the Consolidoted Finonciol
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with PFRS Accounting Standards, and for such Internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free fram
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Respansibilities for the Audit of the Conselidated Financigl Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consalidated financial statements
35 a whole are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantse
that an audit conducted in accordance with P5A will always detact a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considerad material If, individually or In the
aggregate, these could reasonably be expected to influgnce the economic decisions of users taken on the
hasis of these consalidated Anancial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audits, We also;

& |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consalidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and pearform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
ohtain audit evidence that is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the averride of
internal contral,

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the awdit in order to design awdit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Growp's ability to continue as a going concern. |f we
conciude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures in the conmsolidated financial statements or, i such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our oplnion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group (o cease
to continue as a going concemn,

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves falr presentation,

*  QObtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the fnancial information of the entities or
Business activites within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated Rnancial statements,
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit, We remain
solely responsible for our sudit opinion,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audits and significant audit findings. Including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audits.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on owr independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards,
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current peniod and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mafters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse coniequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors report s

Michelle B. Mendoza-Cruz

REYES TACANDONG & CO.

Partner E
P Certificata Mo, S7360
Tau |dentificaton Mo, $01-51-183-000
B0A Accreditathon Mo, 78LF-011; Valid gt lune &, 202E
HiR Accreditation No, 08-005144-012-2023
vinhid wrtdl fanuary 24, 2026
PTA Mo, 10457135
e langary X, 2025, Makat City

March 20, 2025
Makati City, Metro Manila

BUREAL OF INTERMAL HEuE,H E
LARGE TAXFAYEHS ﬁ

R

E'I" HUEE MARCAAND
7 CCUNENS PROUTSENG 4 QUL T AL e




VITARICH CORPORATION AND A SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
{With Comparative Figures as at December 31, 2022)

Decamber 31
a0
14y Restlated -
Npte 2024 2023 Mote 4}
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash 5 E530, 140,410 W398,265,061 F369,416. 726
Trade and other recelvables B 1,081,330,8%4 945,957,779 382,543,523
mwentories 7 843,784 267 934,634, 088 BE3 367 449
Biological assets - lvestock 8 313,675,626 139,354,755 116,118,755
Advances 1o uppliers 106,585,632 123,918,753 465 BTE, 004
Oither currenl isety | JB0, 763 743 33,863,215 156,311,704
Total Current Assets 3,206,286,572 2,750,032 650 2,855 034 161
Naoncurrent Assets
Recelvable from an insaranoe company 13 70,203,810 70,203 810 202 810
Praperty, plant and equipment: 11
Af revalued amounts 2,014,441 529 1,945,466, 138 1,842,877 963
At oost 63,360,624 45,583 723 126,640,633
Investmant propertes i 312,296,468 301,346,351 238 473,942
Right-of-use (ROU) assets 24 96,999,061 82,437,724 55,515,616
Other noncurrent assels 13 20,018,643 23,416,664 32,115,321
Total Noncurrent Assets 2,577,320,736 2472463409 2,365 841, 284
PS5, 783,607,308 FE 212,496 068 WG 220,875,445
UVIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 F2ITEATA.I03 B2, 086 852 350 ®2,001, 706,561
Current portions ot
Loans payable 15 752,815,730 B4B 476429 GE5.4TH 495
Lease labilines 24 31,063,007 22,4432 663 15,413,841
Cash bond deposits 16 66,449,820 60,503,957 o6, 200 B5Y
Total Current Liabllites 3,118,801, 760 2 998,275 394 3,058 Bo8 556
Noncurrent Liabilites
Loans payable - net of current portion 15 47,154,760 49 B42 BSh 49,641 B56
Lease iabdlithes - net of current portion 24 59,907,294 a1, 148 857 36, B85 GaF
ket renrement liabdity 23 200,959,043 TR0, 585,650 147 057,502
Net deferred tas labilities 25 91,788,482 31,501,233 55,355,145
Total Moncurrent Liabilitas 409,849,578 312878 596 288,941,505
Total Liahillities 3,538,652,338 3,321,153,850 3,347, 840,061
Equity
Capital stock i7 1,180,646, 925 L 160,646,975 1,160,646 925
Additional paid-in caplital 1470859 1.470 855 1,470,850
Retained sarmings 527,942 570 303,502 861 273,417,535
Sther comprehensive income 554,854,616 435721433 437 500,085
Total Equily 2,244 954 970 1901.342,0TE 1873035384
B 222 456,068 #5 220 075 445
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VITARICH CORPORATION AND A SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

[With Comparative Figures for 2022)
Years Ended December 31
2022
{Az Resiated -
Note 2024 2023 Mote 4]
REVEMNUES 1B
Met sale of goody F12.447.519.619 PL15431.694 175 B11 957515851
Fait walue changes on I:hulu]lr.l-l a55ets - lhvisstock B 91,769,612 (47.779,574) 10,936 438
12,539.289.231 1249551455 11568453 260
COST OF GDODS 50LD 19 IH,'.'EE.E-HéHI i1 lhﬁﬁl,ﬂﬂ.ﬁlﬁ (10,800 543 424
GROSS PROFIT 1,503,647 692 S04 473 628 1,068,808, 865
OPERATING EXPEMSES 20 {1,105 ,829,715) [BO3,B11,265| (83,361, B08)
OTHER INCOME [CHARGES]
Interost enpenie 15 {79.000,617) (75.B23.288) (20,001,976}
Met gain on fair value changes of imvestment
properiii 13 16,893,118 B4, 113,985 28,167,200
Interest icomie 5 1,139,715 1,536,781 2,358,459
Others - niet 23 {22,566, 455) 6,090,857 |32, 548,000)
(83,434,239} (4,081,665} {41,884 35T)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 314,383,734 6. 580 697 143 462, 700
PROVISHIN FOR [BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX a5
Current 79,840,368 22,130,788 51,302,707
Deferred 17,545 806 { 2B 854,508) 2525374
97,795,172 (6,724,214 53,428,086
NET INCOME 216,588,562 13,304 816 89,634,614
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Mot to be reclassified to profit or loss;
Met revalustion increment on property, plani and
equipment - net of deferred incame tax 11 125,470,897 25,194,607 97,372,482
H!ﬂ‘l!ilmn‘lhﬂlﬂliﬂ (kss) on net retirement
liabifity - net of deferred income tax k| 1,553,433 {10,193,829] 31,841,070
127,024,330 15,001,778 128,213,552
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ®343,612 892 HEI._S_EIE*E‘J'# B118 848 166
MDILLF!‘ED EARMNINGS PER SHARE a7 RFOO7L #0004 ROLO2e

#ee occompanying Metes to Comsalidated Faamchal Siotements
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VITARICH CORPORATION AND A SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

(With Comparative Figures for 2022)
Years Ended December 31
2022
(A& Restated -
Mate 2024 P PE] Mate 4]
CAPITAL STOCK 17 FL 160,646,925 #1,160646925 #1160 646925
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL 1,470,859 1470 859 L A7 RS
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of year, as previously
reported 303,502,861 275,775,940 135,021,722
Prior period adjustments 4 - {2,358 405} 36,867 910
Batance at beginning of yéar, as restated 303,502 861 273,417,535 171,889 632
Met incame 216,588,562 13,304,316 B9.534 614
Transfer from revaluation surplus to retained
eamings - net of defarred Income tax 11 ?,,.Iﬁ:l.L:l.-" 16, 7RO 410 11,893 289
Batance ot end of year 527,942,570 305,502,861 473,417 535
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT - Net of
deferred income tan
Balance at beginning of vear, ai previouissy
reperted 441,958,207 414,078,150 347,544,300
Prior period adjustments ] - 19,465,860 220,516
Balance at beginning of year, as restated 441,958,207 433,544,010 248,064,817
Met revalugtion Increment an property, plant and
equipment - net of deferred income tax 11 1254706597 25,194,607 9T AT AA2
Transfer from revaluation surplus to retaimned
earnings - net of deferred income tax il [7.851,147) (16, 780.410] {11 893 285
Balance at end of year 559,577,957 441,958 107 433,544,010
CUMULATIVE REMEASUREMENT GAIN [LOS5] ON
MET RETIREMENT LIABILITY - Not of
deferred Incorme tax 3
Balance at beginning of year |6, 238,774} 3,956,055 [27,885,015)
Remeasurement gain {loss) - net of
deferred income tax 1,553,433 [10,192.828] 31,841,070
Dalance st end of vear (4,683,341} (6,236, 774) 3,956,055
554,804,616 435,721,433 437,500,085
W1.244 954,970 F1,901328307V8 ®].E73,035364

See pocovmponng Notes fo Consolidated Fimancial Statements
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VITARICH CORPORATION AND A SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

(With Comparative Figures for 2022)
Years Ended December 31
1032
{4s Aestated
Note 2024 2023 hoted)

CASH FLOWS FROM DOPERATING ACTIVITIES
income befors Income tax F314,383. 734 6. 580,697 F143,461,700
Adjustrments for

Depreclation and amarfization 11 146 515 492 147,40 270 132,971,153

Fair vatue changes on biological assets -
[rvestock g8 (91,769.612) 47 7T9.5T% (10.936,.434]
Interast expense 15 79,000,617 75,823,288 40,001,976
Prowighh for expected cradit Ioss (ECL an
trade receivables B 41.051.404 3,535,062 1,704,635
Lesses on inventories and property, plant ond
equipmant damaged by the typhoon .11 26,408 870 = =
Retirement expensa 3 25,361,136 22122540 22,336,339
Gain on collection of previousky writien off
trade receivables ] (1B.152.087) - =
Net gain on falr value changes of investment
properties 12 (16,893,118} {54.113,985) [38,167,200)
Loss (gain) on disposal aff property, plient and
eguipment, Investment propertdes and
RO assets ad 1,599,142 {523,275 LO37, Faq
Intefest incoma 5 {1,238,715} (1,53, 781] 4. 398.455)
Operating mocome before working capltal changes 506,265,953 237411404 300012450
[recrease [Increase) in

Trade and other receivables (118,208,052} {70,553,318) (22 646 8ET)

inventories and biological assets - livestock [28.961,039)  (122.322.227)  (293,063,699)

Advances 1o suppliers 1733311 342,957 751 (290,531.9432)

Other current assatd [36,907,524) {&7,55(1,515) 16,457 385

Other noncurrent assets related to operations - 5,300,630 (15,705, 660)
InCreEnse b

Trade and ather payahbles 211,631,853 65,145 TRS IR7.936,590

Cash bond depasils 5,945 868 4,204 333 B.247 5710
Net cash generated from (used for] operabons 556,090,180 394 593 318 fo,299,172]
ifnc orme taxes paid (79,849, 368) (22,130 789} [51,302.787]
Retirament benefits paid L] {1,876, 500) (2,184.831) (8,134.310)
Interest received 1,238,715 1536, 781 104,855
Net cash prenvidied by (used in) operating activities 474,604,029 371,814,979 [6%,617,330)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions ta property, plant and equipment 1 (88,953, 768)  (113,415223)  (157.212.366)
Proceeds from sale of propenty, plant and

equipment, investment properties and

ROLF assats B, 795,703 3,597 483 200,000
Addinons 1o invesiment properties p - (1,712.208) -
Ket cash wsed in knvestin (80,158.065] (F111,529,949) (#357,012,366)
(Forward)
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Years Ended December 31
2033
{45 Restated -

Mote Fiire prid Tk | Mote d)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Fayments of loans 15 {¥1,057,031,995) (R1AB7T 235 724] [W1,819,489 528
fAvaliments of loans 15 958,583, 200 1, 740,233,658 1,349,559, 151
imterest paid {70,113,577) (G 308 882 135,735,576)
Payments of lease llabilites 24 {34,308,243) {26,125,747) [28.303,544)
Net cash provided by (used in} financing actvities {202,570,615)  (231,436,695) 466,030,503
NET INCREASE IN CASH 191,E75, 345 2B, B4R 335 139,200 BOT
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 398,265,061 365,416,726 230,015,919
CASH AT END OF YEAR -] 590,140,410 EIRA 265,061 #3653 416,716
NONCASH FINANCIAL INFORPATION
Hemln'rﬁ:rn of ROU assets and lease llabilities 24 Fa2 T84S Sh4 BiS 903,023 #34.331. 713

fer accumpanying Notes fo Cansalidated Fnmneial Sietements
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VITARICH CORPORATION AND A SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023
(With Comparative information for 2022)

1.

General Information

Corporate Information
Vitarich Corporation (the Parent Company) was incorporated and registered with the Philipping

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on July 31, 1962 to engage primarily in manufacturing,
préparing, processing, mixing and dealing with feeds, foodstuffs, grains, and commaodities of every
description for poultry, livestock and all kinds of animal feeding. The Parent Company's shares of stock
wiere listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange on February B, 1995,

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent Company and
Barbatos Ventures Corporation (BVC], a wholly-owned subsidiary engaged in the poultry dressing
business a5 at December 31, 2024 and 2023 [collectively referred herein as “the Group®]. BVC was
acquired by the Parent Company effective January 1, 2022 [see Note 33),

The registered principal place of business of the Parent Company is at Marllao-5an Jose Road,
5ta. Rosa |, Marilao, Bulacan. The Parent Company has operating offices in Luzon, linllo and Davao,
and maintains satellite offices in southern Philippines.

- T LIS LK LHFLL AL L 5| el LR TR RS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for the
years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 were approved and authorized for issue by the Board
of Directors (BOD) on March 20, 2025, as reviewed and recommended for approval by the Audit

Commities on the same date.

Summary of Material Accounting Policy information

The material accounting policy information used in the preparation of the financial statemeants have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial

Reporting Standards (PFRS) Accounting Standards. This financial reporting framework Includes
PFRS Accounting Standards, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretation from
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee {IFRIC) issued by the Philippine Financial
and Sustainability Reporting Standards Council and adopted by the SEC, including SEC
pronouncerments.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (Peso), the Group's functional
currency. All values are rounded to the nearest Peso, unless otherwise indicated.

MAR 27 2005
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The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for property, plant and equipment (excluding transportation equipment and construsction in-
progress) which are carried at revalued amounts, investment properties which are carried at falr
vafue, biological assets - livestock which are carried at falr value less costs to sell, agricultural produce
which are carried at fair value lsss costs to sell at paint of harvest, leass [labilities which are carried at
the present value of future lease payments, plan assets which are carried at fair value, and retirement
Hability which is carried at the present value of the defined benefit obligation. Historical cost is
generalty based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for an asset or fair value of
consideration received in exchange for incurring llability.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabifity in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
gither:

« in the principal market for the asset or Rability; or

= in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their aconomic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a marke! participant's ahbility 1o
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highast and best use.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market observable data to the
extent possible. If the fair value of an asset or a liability is not directly obsarvable, it is estimated by
the Group (working closely with external qualified valuers) using valuation technigues that maximize
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs (e.g. by use of the
market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar itemns, discounted cash
flow analysis, or option pricing models refined to reflect the issuer's specific circumstances).
Inputs used are consistent with the characteristics of the asset or lability that market participants
would take into account.

Further information about assumptions made in measuring fair values are included in the following:
Note 3 - Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions
Mate 8 - Biological Assets - Livestock

Note 11 - Property, Plant and Eguipment

Note 12 - Investment Properties

Nobe 31 = Fair Value Measurement




Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair valpe hierarchy based on the degree to which
the Inputs to the measurement are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety;

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilithes.

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than guoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (Le. as prices) or
indirectly {i.e. derived from prices),

s Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation technigues that include Inputs
for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data (unobservabie inputs).
Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognired by the Group at the end of the

reporting period during which the change occurred.,

The atmunﬂng puﬁr:hﬁ adﬂptad are :umlitmt wlth those of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of the following amended PFRS Accounting Standards effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2024

* Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cosh Flows and PFRS Accounting Standards 7, Financiol
instrument: Disclosures - Supplier Finance Arrangements = The amendments introduced new
disclosure requirements to enable users of the financial statements assess the effects of
supplier finance arrangements on the liabilives, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk.
The amendments also provide transitional relief on certain aspects, particularly on the disclosures
of comparative information. Earlier application is permitted.

The adoption of the foregoing amended PFRS Accounting Standards did not have any material effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group. Additional disclosures were included in the
consolidated financial statements, as applicable.

H!l!'ﬂnt rHE iﬂd nmendm:nr.-:. l:-n FFRSMWUTT‘H- Stlndlr:;h whllzh. are not yet effective as at
December 31, 2024 and have not been applied in preparing the consolidated financial statements,
are summariced bebow:

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Januasy 1, 2026;

* Amendments to PFRS Accounting Standards 9, Financial instruments, and PFRS Accounting
standards 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Classification and Measurement of Financial
Assets = The amendments clarify that a financial liability is derecognized when the related
obligation s discharged, cancelled, expires or otherwise gqualifies for derecognition
(e.g. seftlement date), and introduces a policy option to derecognize financial Habllities settied
through an electronic payment system befare settlement date if the required conditions are met.
The amendments also clarify the assessment of contractual cash flow characteristics of financial
assets, the treatment of non-recourse loans and contractually linked instruments, as well as
require additional disclosure requirements for financial assets and fiabilivies with contingent
features and equity instruments classified at fair value through other comprehensive income

(FVOCI). Earlier application ks permitted, BIREAD OF W TEFFIAL REVERUE
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* Annual Improvements to PFRS Accounting Standards Volume 11:

¢ Amendments to PFRS Accounting Standards 7, Financiol instruments: Disclosures —
The amendments update and remove some obsolete references related to the gain or lass on
derecognition on financial assets of an entity that has a continuing involvement and to the
disclosure requirements on deferred differences between fair value and transaction price
The amendments also clarify that the illustrative guidance does not necessarily illustrate all the
requirements for credit risk disclosure. Earlier application is permitted.

o Amendments 1o PFRS Accounting Standards 9, Finoncial Instruments — Transaction Price and
Lessee Derecognition of Lease Liabliities — The amendments clarify that when a lessee has
determined that a lease liabllity has been extinguished in accordance with PFRS Accounting
Standards 9, the lessee must apply the derecognition criteria for & financial [izhility which
requires recognition of a gain or loss In profit or loss. The amendments also replace the
reference to ‘tronsaction price as defined by PFRS Accounting Standards 15, Revenue from
Controcts with Customers’ to ‘the omount determined by applying PFRS Accounting Standards
15" to remove potential confusion. Earlier application Is permitted,

© Amendments to PFRS Accounting Standards 10, Consolidoted Finoncig! Statements -
Determination of o ‘de fotte agent” - The amendments remove Inconsistencies by clarifying
that an enftity must use judgment to determine whether other parties are acting as de facto
agents. Earlier application is permitted.

o Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows - Cost Method — The amendments replace the
term ‘cost method’ with “at cost” following the deletion of the definition of "cost method',
Earlier application is permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2027:

* PFRS Accounting Standards 1B, Presentotion ond Disclosure in Finonciol Statements —
This standard replaces PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Stotements, and sets out the requirements
for the presentation and disclosure of information to help ensure that the financial statements
provide relevant information that faithfully represents the entity’s assets, labilities, equity,
income and expenses, The standard introduces new categories and sub-totals in the statements
of comprehensive income, disclosures on management-defined performance measures, and new
principles for grouping of infarmation, which the entity needs to apply retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted.

Under prevalling circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amendments to
PFRS Accounting Standards is not expected 1o have any material effect on the consalidated financlal
statements of the Group. Additional disclosures will be included in the consolidated financial
statements, as applicable.

Basis of Consolldation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise the financial statements of the Parent
Company and its subsidiary. Control is achieved whan the Parent Company Is exposed, or has rights,
1o variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (l.e. existing rights that give it the ¢ h

BHEE &L OOF |~.|TEm.u.|. REVENLE
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When the Parent Company has less than majority of the voting or simitar rights of an investee,
the Parent Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investes, Including:

& The contraciual arrangement with the other vote holders aof the (mvestes;
= Hights arising from other contractual arrangement; ard
= The Parent Company™s voting rights and potential voting rights.

Thie Parent Company re-assessas whather or not it controls an Investee If facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or maore of the three elements of control. Consalidation of a
subsidiary begins when the Parent Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Parent Company loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, Income and espenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the date the Parent Company gains control until the date the Parent
Company ceases to control the subsidiary,

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OC1) are attributed 1o the equity
holders of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
nan-controlling interest having a deficit balance,

Non-controlling interest represents the portion of net results and net assets not held by the Parent
Company. These are presented in the consolidated statements of financial position within equity,
apart from equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company and are separately disclosed
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Parent Company. Consolidated financial statements are prepared using wniform accounting
policies for similar transactions and other events in similar circumstances. Intercompany balances
and transactions, including intercompany profits and losses, are sfiminatad.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, Is accounted for as an
equity transaction, If the Parent Company loses control over a subsidiary, it;

» Derecognizes the assets (including goodwhl) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

® Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests;

s [Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in eguity, if any;

= Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;

*  Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained;

* Recognizes surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and

« Reclassifies the Parent Company's share of component previously recognized in OCI to profit or

loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Parent Company had directly
disposed of the related assets or Habilides.




Financial |

Date of Recognition. The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial lability in the consolidated
statements of financial posiion when it becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of a financial
IAstrument,

initiol Recognition and Measurement. Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value,
which |5 the fair value of the consideration given {In case of an asset) or received {in case of a liability).
The initial measuremant of financial instruments includes transaction costs.

Financial Assets ot Amortized Cost. Financial assets shall be measured at amortized cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

# the financial asset Is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets In
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

# the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are
salely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment, if any. Amortized cost s
calculated by taking into account any discount oF premium on acguisition and fees that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. Gaing and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the financial
assets are derecognired or impaired or through the amortization process, Financial assets at
amaortized cost are included under current assets if realizability or collectability is within 12 months
after the reporting period, Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Group's cash, trade and other recelvables
{excluding advances to officers and employees), receivable from an insurance company and security
depasits (presentéd under “Other Noncurrent Assets” account) are classified under this category
{see Notes 5, 6, 10 and 13}

Financigl Liabilities at Amortized Cost. Financial liabilites are categorized as financial liabilities at
amortzed cost when the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Group having an
obligation gither to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to settle the obligation
other than by the exchange of a fived amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
its own eguity instruments.

These financial labilities are initlally recognkzed at falr value kess any directly attributable transaction
costs. After initial recognition, these financial liabifities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, Amortized cost 5 calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the efective interest rate. Gaing and
losses are recognized in profit or loss when the abilities are derecognized or through the amortization
process.

Az at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Group's trade and other payables {excluding statutory
payables), loans payable, cash bond deposits and lease liabilities are classified under this category
{see MNotes 14, 15, 16 and 24),



Impairment of Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

The Group records an allowance for expected credit loss (ECL) based on the difference between the
contractual cash NMows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
axpacts to recelve. The difference is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s ariginal

effective interest rate.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach and has calculated ECL based on
the lifetime ECL, The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
Environment,

For other financial assets measured at amortized cost, the ECL Is based on the 12-month ECL,
which pertains to the portion of lifetime ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months afier the reporting date. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the allowance will be based on the lifetime
ECL When determining whether the credit risk of a financial assat has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default ocourring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
imitial recognition and consider reasonable and supportable information, that is available without
undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initlal recagnition

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Assets. A inancial asset (or where applicable, a part of a Bnancial asset or part of a group of
similar fimancial assets)] s derecognized when:

#  the right to recelve cash flows from the asset has expired;

» the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

* 1he Group has transferred its right 1o receive cash flows fram the financlal asset and either
{a} has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantfally all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from a financial asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset nor transferred control of the financial asset,
the financial asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing imvolvement in the financial
asset. Continuing invelvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred financial asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the financial asset and the maximum
amount of consideranon that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability s derecognized when the obligation under the Hability Is
discharged, cancelled or has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the ariginal lkability and
the recognition of a new Hability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is rEcognized
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income,



Flnl-nml assets mct ﬁl'r-ll'lﬂll Illhiliuu are nﬂm and the net amouni reported in the consolidated
statements of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is intention to settle on a net basks, or to reslize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously, This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the
related assets and liabilihes are presented gross in the consolidated statements of financial position.

A I’lnam:hlt H'ls'lrument is classified as Hihilh“f if it pmvidﬁ furl :unlrlr.lual abligation ta;
# Deliver cash ar another financial asset ta another entity;

= Exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity wunder conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the Group; or

& Satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of & fixed amount of cash or another financial
assel for a fixed number of own equity shares,

if the Group does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial asset
to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial lability

Inventories
Inventories consist of feeds, raw materials and feed supplements, supplies and animal health

products, finished goods and hatching eggs. Cost is determined using the moving average method.
inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value [NRY),

Feeds, Feeds include costs of raw materials and costs of direct labor and manufacturing overhead.

Row Muaterials, Feed Supplements, Supplies ond Animol Health Products. For thess inventories,
all ¢osts directly attributable to acquisition such as the purchase price, import duties and other taxes
that are not subsequently recoverable from taxing authorities are included as part of costs.

Finished Gopdd. Finished goods, which include fresh and frozen chicken cut-ups, include costs of
direct materials, labor and averhead,

Hatching Eggs. Hatching eggs are initially measured at the fair value less estimated costs 1o sell at the
paoint of harvest,

The NRV of feeds, feed supplements, animal health products, finished goods and hatching eggs are
based on the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the cost of marketing and
distribution, while the NRY of raw materials and supplies are the currént replacement costs.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those Inventories is recognized as an expense in
profit or loss.

Biological Assets - Livestock

This consists of biological assets such as day-old chicks after undergoing the hatching process,
chicks which are grown as chicken brollers, and parent stock. These are measured on initial
recognition and at the end of each reporting period at fair value less costs to sell. The Group's fair
valuation takes into consideration inputs based on the hatchability rate of eggs, mortality of chicks
being grown as chicken brollers and parent stock, estimated future cash flows to be incurred in
hatching the eggs and growing the chicks and parent stock, among others.



Gain or koss arising on inifial recognition and any changes in the fairvalue less costs to sell of Hvestock
are recorded as part of "Revenues” account in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Advances o Suppliers

Advances to suppliers are amounts paid In advance for the purchase of goods and services.
These are carried in the consolidated statements of financial position at face amount and are
recognized as expense in profit or ioss or to the corresponding asset account when the services or
goods for which the advances were made are received by and delivered to the Group with reference
to percentage of completion, i any.

Advances to suppliers are classified as current assets since the corresponding goods or services are
expected to be delivered or performed for no more than 12 months after the financial reporting

pariod,

Other Current Assets
Other current assets consist of advances to contract growers and breeders, creditable withholding

taxes [OWT), prepayments and Input value-added taxes (VAT

Advances to Confroct Growers ond Breeders. Advances to contract growers and breeders pertain to
purchases of animal health products and feeds that are already paid in advance. These are expected
to be received by and deliverad to the Group for no more than 12 months after the financial reporting
period.

CWT. OWT represent the amounts withheld at source by the Group's customers in relation to its
income. These are recognized upon collection and are utilized as tax credits against Income tax due
as allowed by the Philippine taxation laws and regulations.

Prepoyments. Prepayments represeént expenses nol yet incurred but already paid In cash,
Prepayments are initially recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid. Subsegquently,

these are charged to expense as these are consumed in operations or expire with the passage of time.
Prepayments that are expected to be incurred no more than 12 months after the reporting date are
classified as current assets. Otherwise, these are classified as poncurrent assets,

Input VAT. Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT except in cases
where VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority,
in which case, VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item, as applicable, or receivable and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost, The cost of property, plant and
equipment consists of the purchase price, including iImport duthes and other costs directly attributable
to bring the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use, Cost also includes the cost
of replacing parts of such property, plant and equipment when the recognition criteria are met and
the present value of the estimated cost of dismantling and removing the asset and restaring the sits
where the asset is located.

Property, plant and equipment (except for transportation equipment and construction in-progress|
are stated atl revalued amounts as determined by an Independent appraiser. Transportation
equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment In value, if any.
Construction in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairmaent in value, if any.
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Expanditures incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged o operations in the year the
Costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have
resulted in an increase In the Tuture economic bensfits expected 1o be obtalned fram the use of an
item of property, plant and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance,
the expenditures are capitalized as additional costs of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, property, plant and equipment (sxcepl for land,
transportation equipment and construction in-progress] are carrled at revalued amounts less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation, amortization and any accumulated impalrment losses
Land is carmed at revalued amount less accumulated impairment losses, if any, Fair market value is
determined by reference to market-based evidence, which is the amount for which the assets could
be exchanged between a knowledgeable willing buyer and a knowledgeable willing seller in an
arm's length transaction as at the wvaluation date. Any revaluation surplus s credited to
"Revaluation Surplus” account presented under “Other Comprehensive income” section af the
consolidated statements of financial position. Any decrease in the revaluation surplus of the same
asset is charged to other comprehensive income (OC1) to the extent of any credit balance existing in
the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset and the remaining deciine, I any, Is recognized in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Annually, an amount from the "Revaluation Surplus™ account s transferred to “Retained Earnings”
under the “Equity” section in the consolidated statements of financial position for the depreciation
relating to the revaluation surplus, net of related taxes. Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus relating
to the particular asset soid is transferred to “Retained Earnings”, Revaluations are performed svery
one to two years 1o ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially fraom that which would
be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting pericd.

Depreciation and amortization are calculated on & straight-line basis over the following estimated
useful lives of the assets:

Assel Type Number of Years

Plant, machinery and equipment 10 to 20 years

Buildings 20 years

Leasehold and land improvemanis 2 to 5 years or kease term, whichever is shorter
Dffice furniture, fistures and equipment 310 10 years

Transportation equipment 4 to 5 years

The estimated useful lives and depreclation and amortization method are reviewed periodically to
ensure that the periods and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the
expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property, plant and equipment.

Fully depreciated and amortized assets are retained in the account until these are no longer In use
and no further charge for depreciation and amartization Is made |n respect to those assets.

Construction in-progress is stated at cost. This includes cost of construction and other direct costs.
Canstruction in-progress is not depreciated until such ime that the relevant assets are completed and
available for operational use.
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An itemn of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no fulure economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
[calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognized.

Investment Proparties
Investmient properties are properties held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or

both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business or for administrative purposes.

The Group uses fair value model Tor the accounting of its imvestment properties. Under this methad,
Investment properties are initally meascered at cost but are subseguently remeasured at falr value at
sach reporting date, which reflects market conditlons at the reporting date. Cost comprises the
purchase price and any directly attributable costs in developing and improving the properties. Cost
also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the tme that cost s
ihcurred if the recognition criteria are met. The fair value of investment properties ks determined using
sales companson approach by an independent real estate appraiser. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in profit or loss in the period In which
they arise, including the corresponding tax effect. For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, in order to avoid double counting, the fair value reportad in the consolidated fnancial
statements is reduced by the carrying amount of any accrued income resulting fram the spreading of
lease incentives and minimum lease payments, as applicable.

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced
by the ending of owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending
of the construction or development. Transfers are made from Investment property when, and only
when, there is a change In use, evidenced by the commencement of owner occupation or
commencement of development with a view ta sell,

Investment properties are derecognized when either those have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expectad
from Its disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income in the year of retirement or
dispasal,

Rental income and operating expenses from investment properties are reporied as part of
"Others - Net”™ and "Operating Expenses,” respectively, in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

Other Noncurrent Assets
Other noncurrent assets consist of project development costs, security deposits classified as financial
assets and computer software,

Project Development Costs. These represent costs directly attributable to the development of the
Parent Company’s aqua feeds and aqua culture projects. The capitalized development costs pertain
to the amount of cash paid or the fair value of the other considerations given to acguire an asset at
the time of its acquisition or production.



Computer Soffware. Computer software is measured at cost of acquisition less any accumulated
amortization and impairment losses, if any. Computer software is amortized on 3 straight-line basis
over the econamic useful life of three (3] years and &ssessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the computer software may be impaired. Amortization period and amortization
method for computer software are reviewed at sach reporting date. Any change in the sxpected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future ecanamic benefits embodied in the asset

is recognized prospectively,
Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's nonfinancial assets are reviewed at each reporting date 1o
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
net recoverable amount is estimated,

Any impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount af an asset or its cash-generating unit [CGU)
exceeds its net recoverable amount. A CGU Is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash
flows that are largely independent from other assets of the Group. Impairment losses are recognized
in prafit or loss in the period incurred,

The net recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use or its fair value less costs to
sell. Value in use is the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset while
fair value less cost 1o sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's length
transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties less costs of disposal. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset,

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists, An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
anly to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amaunt that would
have been determined, net of depreciabon or amortitation, if no impairment loss has been
recognized.

Leases
A contract is, or contains, a lease when it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset

for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time, the Group assesses whether, throughout
the period of use, the customers has both of the following:

* The right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset: and
=  The right to direct the use of the identified asset.

If the Group has the right to control the use of an Identified assst for only a portion of the term aof the
contract, the contract contains a lease for that portion of the tarm.

The Group also assesses whether a contract contains a lease for each potential separate lease
component.
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The Group as Lessee

The Group recognizes right-of-use (ROU) asset and lease liability for all leasss, except for leases with
lease terms of 12 months or less {short-term leases) and leases for which the underlying asset is of
low value, in which case the lease payments assoclated with those leases are recognized as an expense
on a straight-line basis.

ROU Assefs. At commencémant date, the Group measures the ROU assets at cost. The cost comprises:
*  The amount of the initial measurement of kease llabilites;

= Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any leass incentives
received;

* Any initlal direct costs incurred by the Group; and

= An estimation of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and removing the underlying
assel, when applicable,

After the commencement date, the ROU assets are carried at cost bess any accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the related lease
lrabilities. The ROU assets are amortized over the shorter of the lease terms or the useful lives of the
underlying assets ranging as follows:

Asset Type Number of Years
Building 2 ta 5 years
Transporiation equipment S yEars

Lease Liabilites. At commencement date, the Group measures lease labilities at the present value of
future lease payments using the Interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. Dtherwise, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of lease liabilities comprise the following:
»  Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

* \Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;

*  Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantes; and

® The exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period If the Group is reasonable certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease uniess the Group is reasonably certain not
1o terminate earky,

Lease liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Interest on the lease liabiiities and any
variable lease payments not included |n the measurement of lease liabilitles ars recognized In profit
or loss unless these are capltalized as costs of another asseL Variable lease payments not included in
the measurement of the lease liabilities are recognized in profit or loss when the event or condition
that triggers those payments occurs.
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The Group as a Lessor

Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownershig of the asset are
tlassified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operafing lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis a5
rental income.

Equity

Copital Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued and outstanding.

Additional Poid-in Caopital [APIC). APIC is the proceeds and/or fair value of considerations received In
excess of par value of the subscribed capital stock. Incremental costs incurred directly attriburable to
the issuance of new shares are recognized as deduction from equity, net of any tax.
Dtherwise, these are recognized 34 expense in profit or loss.

Retoined Eornings. Retalned sarnings represents the cumdlative balance of net income or loss,
net of any dividend declaration and prior period adjustments,

Ocl. OCl comprises of items of income and expense that are not recognized in profit or loss In
accordance with PFRS Accounting Standards. OCI of the Parent Company pertains to revaluation
sufplus on property, plant and equipment and cumulative remeasurement gains and losses on net
retiremant Nability.

Revenue Recognition
The Group is engaged in the manufacturing and distribution of animal feeds, animal health and

nutritional products, and feed supplements. The Group is also engaged in the production of day-old
chicks and in the growing. production and distribution of chicken brailers, either as live or dressed
chickens,

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the performance obligation in the contract
has been satisfied, either at a point in time or over time. Revenue Is recognized over time if one of the
following criteria is met: (a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits as the
Group performs its obligations; (b) the Group's performance creates of enhances an assat that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or (c) the Group's performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date. Otherwise, revenue Is recognized at a point in time.

The Group also assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it is acting as a principal or as an
agent. The Group has assessed that it acts as a principal in all of its revenua sources.

Revenue from the Group's sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control of the goods i
transferred to the customers, which is normally upon delivery,

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before other revenue items outside the
scope of PFRS Accounting Standards 15 are recognized:

Fair Volue Changes on Biological Assets - Livestock. Fair value changes on biclogical assets - lvestock
are recognized in profit or loss for the period in which it arises,

Rental Income. Rental income on leased property s recognized on a stralght-line basis over the lease
lermi,
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interest Income. Revenue is recognized as interast accrues, taking into consideration the effectve
yield on the asset. interest income from cash in banks are net of final tax.

Other income. Other income is recognized when eamed.

Cost and Expense Recognition
Cost and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of

outflows or depletions of assets or incurrence of liabilies that result in decreases in equity,
other than those relating to distributions to equity participants.

Cost of Goods Soid. Cost of goods sold are recognized as expense when the related goods are
delivered,

Operoting Expenses. Operating expenses constitute cost of adminisiering the business-and cost
incurred to sefl and market its products. These are expensed as incurred.

intérest Expense, These are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method.
Other Charges, Other charges are recognized when incurred.

Employee Benefits

Short-term Benefits. The Group recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an expense for
services rendered by employees during the accounting period. A liability Is also recognized for the
amount expected o be paid under short-lerm cash bonus or profit sharing plans if the Group has
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past sarvice provided by the
emploves, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Short-term employee benefit liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided.

Retirement Benefits. The Group has & partially funded, non-contributory defined benefit plan covering
all gualified employees. The retirement benefits cost i determined using the projectad unit credit
method which reflects services rendered by employees to the date of valuation and incorporates
assumiptions concerning employees’ projected salaries.

The Group recognizes service costs, comprising of current service costs, past service costs and net
inferest expense or incoma in profit or loss. Nat interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net retirement lability or asset.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earfier of the date of the plan amendment or
curtailment, and the date that the Group recognizes restructuring-related costs.

ARemeasurements pertaining 1o actuarial gains and losses and return on plan assets are recognized
immediately in OCl in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subseguent peripds.
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Plan assets are assets that are held in trust and managed by a trustee bank, Plan assets are not
available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid directly to the Group. The fair value of
the plan assets is based on the market price information. When no market price is available, the fair
value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash fows using a discount rate that
reflects both the risk assoclated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal date of
those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settiement of the related
pbligations]. If the fair value of the plan astets is higher than the present value of the retirement
liability, the measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the assat celling which is
the present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan.

The net retirement liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit abligation and
the fair value of plan assets against which the obligations are to be settied directly
The present value of the retfrement obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rate on government bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the
terms of the related retirernent Bability.

Actuarial valuations are made with sufficient regularity so that the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements do not differ materally from the amounts that would be
determined at the reporting date.

Income Taxes

Current Tax. Current tax assets and llabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the tax authority, The tax rates and tax laws used 1o compute the amount are those
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, Deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of unused net
operating loss carryover (NOLCO) and excess minlmum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular
corporate income tax (RCIT) to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and carryforward of unused NOLCO and excess
MEIT over ROIT can be wtilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tan asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed a1 each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
income will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are applicable to the year when
thie asset (s realized or the Hability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
foliow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover of
seftle the carrying amount of its assets and labilities. For putposes of measuring deferred tax Habilities
and delerred tax assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair value mode), the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unkess the
presumption is rebutted, that is, when the investment property Is depreciable and is held within the
business model whose objective is consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through sals.

Mast changes in deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in OC! or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectiviehy.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax llabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same tax authority.
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Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly and indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are considered to be related these are subject to common contral or common
significant influence. Key management persannel are also considered as related parties.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related parties,
regardiess of whather a price is charged. This is measured on an arm's-kength basis in a manner similar
to transactions with non-related parties.

segment Reporting

The Group's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according o the nature of
the products provided, with each segment reporting a strategic business unit that offers differemt
products and markets. Financial information on the Group's business segments is presented in
Note 32 1o the consolidated financial statements,

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of

a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benafits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the prasent obligation, based
on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period, Including risks and
uncertainties associated with the present obligation. If the effect of the tme value of mianey is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that refiects current marke1 assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the pravision due to the passage of
time s recognized as an interest expense. Provisions are reviewed at the end of sach reporting period
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.



.18 -

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net income for the period attributable to common egquity

holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of ssued, subscribed and
putstanding common shares during the period, with retroactive adjustment for any stock dividends
declared.

Diluted EF5 i= computed in the same manner, adjusted for the effects of any potentally dilutve
convertible securities.

Events After the Reporting Peripd

Any post-year-end event that provides additional infarmatian about the Group's financial position at
the end of the reporting period [adjusting event} is reflected in the consolidated financlal statements,
Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial
statements when material,

Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgments, accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets, llabilities,
income and expenses reporied In the consolldated FBnancial statements. These are based on
management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the consolidated
financial statements.

While the Group believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences
in the actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materiafly affect the estimated
amounts, Actual resufts could differ from such estimates.

The accounting estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis,
Changes in accounting estimates are recogrized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
change affects only that period or in the period of the change and future perlods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

ludgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements

Determining the Operating Segments. The Group's determination of the operating segments is based
on the information about the companents that management uses to make decisions about operating
matters, Operating segments use internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the Paremt
Company's BOD, In order to allocate resources to the segment and assess its performance.

The Group reports separate information about an operating segment that meets any of the following
quantitative thresholds:

* its reported revenue, Including both sales to external customers and intersegment sales or
transfers, is 10% or more of the combined revenue, Internal and external, of all operating
SEgments;
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s the absalute amount of its reported profit or loss is 10% or more of the greater, in absolute
amount, of (i) the combingd reported profit of all oparating segments thal did not report a loss
and {ii) the combined reported loss of all operating segments that reported a loss; and

* the assets of the segment are 10% or more of the combined assets of all operaring segments.

The Group has three reportable operating segments, which are Its foods, feeds and farms segments,
and one geographical segment as the Group’s operations are located in the Philippines
The Group operates and derives all its revenue from domestic operations

Determining the Highest and Best Use of Investment Properties. The Group determines the highest
and best use of its investment properties when measuring fair value, In making its judgment,
the Group takes into account the wse of the investment properties that is physically possible,
legally permissible and financially feasible.

The carrying amounts of investment properties as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are disclosed in
Note 12.

Determining the Lease Commitments = The Group as o Lessor. Leases where the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases
Initial direct costs incurred (n negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents, if any, are recognited as revenue in the period in which these are earned.

Rental income earmed in 2024, 2023 and 2022 ame disclosed in Note 24,

Determining the Leose Term and Incrémental Borrowing Rote. The lease term is & significam
component in the measurement of both the ROU assets and lease llabilites, Judgment is exercised in
detérmining whether there is reasonable cerlainty that an option to extend the lease or purchase the
undertying asset, if any, will be exercised, or an option to terminate the lease will not be exercised,
when ascertaining the periods to be included in the lease term. In determining the lease term, all facts
and circumstances that create an economical incentive to exercise an extansion option, or not to
exercise a termination option, are considened at the lease commencement date, Factors considersd
may inciude the importance of the assel to the Group's operations, comparison of terms and
condiions o prevalling market rates, incurrence of significant penalties. existence of significant
leasehold improvements, and the costs and disruption to replace the asset. The Group reassesses
whether it is reasonably certain 1o exercise an extension opton, or not exercise a termination option,
if there is a significant event or significant change in circumstances.

Where the interest rate implicit in a lease cannot be readily determined, an incremental borrowing
rate is estmated to discount future lease payments to measure the present value of the lease
liabilittes at the lease commencement date. Such a rate is based on what the Group estimates it would
have to pay a third party to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the
ROU assets, with similar terms, security and economic environment. The Group uses its general
borrowing rate adjusted for the lease terms, securities of an item with the underlying nature of the
leased assets and expectations of residual valus, amang others,

The carrying amounts of ROU assets and lease liabilities as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are
disclosed in Mate 24,
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Assessing Provisions and Contingencies. The Group evaluates legal and administrative proceedings to
which it is involved based on analysis of potential results. Management and its legal counsels do not
believe that any current proceedings will have material adverse effects on its consclidated financial
position and results of operations. It is possible, however, that future results of operations could be
materially affected by changes in estimates or in the effectivensss of strategies refating to these
proceedings.

The I‘ullnwln; are 1|-||.- hw Iﬂumpﬂum concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year:

Assessing the ECL on Trode Recefvobies. The Group Initially uses a provision matrix based on the
historical default rates for trade receivables. The provision matrix specifies provision rates depending
on the number of days that a receivable is past due. The Group then calibrates the provision matrix
to adjust historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current and forecasted economic conditions, as applicable

The Group adjusts historical default rates if forecasted economic conditions such as gross domestic
product are expected to deteriorate which can lead to increased number of defaults in the Industry.
The Group regularly reviews the methodology and assumptions used for estimating ECL to reduce any
differences between estimates and actual credit loss experienca,

The determination of the correfation between historical default rates and forecasted economic
conditions is a significant estimate. Accordingly, the provision for ECL of trade receivables is sensitive
to changes in assumptions about forecasted economic conditions.

The amount of provision for ECL and the carrying amount of the Group's trade recelvables as at
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 are
disclosed in Note 6.

Estimating the ECL of the Recelvable from an insurance Company. The Group is currently invalved in
lega! proceedings to pursue the coliechion of its remaining insurance claims for typhoon damages from
an insurance company, The determination of whether the insurance ciaims recevable is still realizable
requires consultations with legal counsel and management's estimate of the allowance for ECL based
on the probability-weighted estimate of the present value of all cash shortfalls over the expected
settlernent of the claims.

Management and its legal counsel believe that the ongoing liigation on the remaining claims will nat
result to any significant adverse iImpact on the Group's financial condition and results of operations.
Thus, ne-provision for ECL was recognized in 2024, 2023 and 2022,

The carrying amount of receivable from an insurance company and the allowance for ECL recognized
as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are disclosed in Mote 10.

Esttimating the Fair Value of Biological Assers - Livestock. The fair values of the Group's biological
assets are based on the most reliable estimate of market prices at the end of the reporting period,
The fair values of day-old chicks, growing brollers and parent stack were determined using the income
approach which considers the net cash flows expected to be generated from the sale of day-old chicks,
sale of fully-grown brollers as dressed chickens and net cash flows expected to be generated from
parent stock. These are measured as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.
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The cash flow projections include specific estimates of the hatching period, the hatchability and
mortality rates, and volume of harvest. in addition, the significant unobservable inputs also include
the estimated future sales price of day-old chicks, dressed chickens and parent stock, as well as the
estimated costs to be Incurred in the hatching, growing and dressing processes, as applicable.

Generally, the estimated fair value would increase (decrease] if the estimated future sales price, cash
infllows, hatchability rates or volume of production were higher [(lower). Meanwhile,
the estimated fair value would increase (decreasa) if the estimated costs to be incurred in the
hatching, growing and dressing processes or estimated mortality rates were lower (higher).

The gain or loss on fair value changes of biological assets recognized under “Revenues” in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income in 2024, 2023 and 2022 and the carrying amount
of biological assets as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are disclosed in Note 8.

Esmmating the Revolued Amounts of Property, Plont ond Equipment (Excluding Tronsportation
Eguipment and CiP). The Group measures its property, plant and equipment {excluding transportation
equipment and CIP] at revalued amounts with changes in fair value being recognized |n O€1,

In determining the revalued amounts of property, plant and equipment (excluding transportation
equipment and CIP), the Group hired independent firms of appraisers as at December 31, 2024 and
2023. In order to arrive al a reasonable valuation, the appraisers personatly inspected the properties,
requested information from reputable sources and considered the fallowing: (a) utility and market
value of the land; (b) cost of reproduction of the replaceable property; (c) current prices for similar-
usé property in the second-hand market; (d) age, condition, past malmenance, and present and
prospective serviceability in comparison with new assets of similar kind: (e] accumulated
depreciation; (f) lease rates; and [g] recent trends and development in the industry concerned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment at revalued amounis as at
December 31, 2024 and 2023 are disclosed in Note 11

Estimating the Useful Lives of Property, Plant ond Equipment. The Group reviews annually the
estimated useful lves of property, plant and equipment based on expected asset’'s utilizatian, marke!
demands and future technological development. it is possible that the factors mentioned may change
in the future, which could cause a change in estimated useful lives. A reduction in estimated useful
lives could cause a significant increase in depreciation and amortitation of property, plant and
equipment.

There were no changes in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment in 2024, 2023
and 2022, The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment as at December 31, 2024 and 2023
are disclosad in Note 11.

Estimating the Foir Value of Investment Properties. The Group's investment properties are measured
at fair values. The Group works closely with external gualified appraisers who performs the valuation
using appropriate valuation techniques. The Group estimates expected future cash Nows, vields, and
discownt rates.

The valuation techniques and inputs used In the fair value measurement of investment properties, as
well as the carrying amount of investment properties as at December 31, 2024 and 2021 are disclased
in MNote 12.
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Assessing the impofrment of Nonfinoncial Assets. The Group assestes impairment en nonfinancial
agtels whanever avents or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recaverable, In assessing whather there is any indication that an asset may be impaired,
the Group considers the external and internal sources of information. External sources of information
include but are not limited to unexpected significant decline in market value and any other significant
thanges with an adverse effect on the Group, whether it had taken place during pariod or will take
place in the near future in the market, economic or legal environment in which the entity operates or
In the market 1o which the asset s dedicated. Internal sources of information include evidence of
obsolescence or physical damage on an asset, significant changes with an adverse effect on the Group
whether it had taken place during the period, or are expected to take place in the near future, to the
extent to which, or in @ manneér in which, an asset is used or is expacted to be used, and any other
evidence that indicates that the economic performance of an asset is, or will be, worse than expected

Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is
recognized. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in
use. The falr value less cost to sell s the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's length
transaction while value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise
from the continuing use of an asset and from Hs disposal at the end of its useful lile.
The estimated cash flows are projected using growth rates based on historical experience and
business plans and are discounted using pretax discount rates that reflect the current assessment of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if not possible, for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Mo provision for Impairment loss an nonfinancial assets was recognized in 2024, 2023 and 2027

The carrying amounts of nonfinancial assets which consists of advances to officers and employees,
other current assets, property, plant and equipment, investment properties, other noncument assets
(excluding security deposits) and ROU assets are disclosad in Notes 6, 9, 11, 12, 13 and 24

Estmating Net Retirement Liobility. The determination of the Group's obligation and cost for pension
and other retirement benefits is dependent on selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in
calculating such amounts, Those assumptions are described in Note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements and Include among others, discount rate and salary increase rate. While the Group
believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in actual
experience or significant changes in assumptions matarially affect net retirement labiity,

The carrying amount of net retirement liability as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are disclosed in
Mote 23,

Assessing the Reolizability of Deferred Tox Assets. The Group's assessment on the recognition of
deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of unused NOLCO
5 based on the projected taxable income in the following periods, Based on the projection, not ail
future deductible temporary differences will be realized, therefore, only a portion of deferred tax
assets was recognized.

The carrying amounts of recognized and unrecognized deferred tax assets as at December 31, 2024
and 2023 are disclosed in Note 25.
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. Prior Period Adjustments

The consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2022 have been
restated (o reflect the reclassification to property, plant and equipment of the Parent Company's
investment properties which are being operated by Barbatos Ventures Corporation (BVC), as a result
of the consolidation of BVC's operafions 1o the Parent Company effective Jlanuary 1, 2022 (see Note
13). Accordingly, the adjustments also included reclassifications from gain on change in fair value of
investment properties in profit or lass to revaluation surplus in OCI, as well as the corresponding
recognition of depreciation charges of property, plant and eguipment in profit or loss, and other
restatements to deferred taxes as presented in the related notes to consolidated financial statemeants

The net effects of the prior period adjustments and reclassificabons on the Group's consolidated
financial statements as at December 31, 2022 which accounted for less than one percent of 1otal
equity are as follows [in milligns);

Fatained
Auvats Labilines Equity Earnings 0
A% previousty repneted 5 2047 B3 3923 F1.ERED BiThE iR G
Prior perod adpustments and
reciassifications (7.3} {d.4) 171 i2.4) 185
iy rettaded PR35 B3347 R F;‘E.l ¥2714 #4175
. Cash
This-account consists of:
2024 2023
Cash on hand #5,103,700 #6.663,187
Cash in banks 585,036,710 391,601,874
R590,140,410 FI198 265,061

iCash in banks sarn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates and are immediately available for use in
the current operations.

Total interest income recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income pertain to
the following:

Mote 2024 2023 2022
Cash in banks R205,324 #115.845 F108,860
Trade receivables b 1,034,391 1,420,936 2,289,599

1,239,715 ®1.536,781 P2,398,459
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6, Trade and Other Recelvables

This account consists of:

HNote 2024 2023

Trade receivables from:
Third parties FREEL 149,761 FE20.900,061
Related parties 26 245,850,511 143,528,241
Montrade recelvables 86,438,721 83,973,350
Recelvable from an insurance company 35,064,371 -
Advances 1o officers and employees 26 26,963,331 23,203,568
Other recevables 22,455,010 24,935 968
1,277,965,705  1,105541,186
Allowance for ECL 196,634,811 155,583,407

R1,081,330,894 349,957,779

Trade receivables arising mainly from the sale of feeds, foods and livestock are generally collectible
within 30 to 90 days. Overdue trade receivables bear interest ranging from 1.00% to 3.00% in 2024,
2023 and 2023. Interest income from overdue trade receivables amounted to B1L.O millkon in 2024,
F1.4 million in 2023 and #2.3 millkan [n 2022 {(see Note 5).

Nontrade receivables comprise mainly of receivables arising from the Group's incidental income.
These are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and are usually settled within 30 to 90 days.

In 2024, the Parent Company filed an insurance claim with an insurance company for the properties
damaged by Typhoon Carina. Losses from inventories and property, plant and equipment damaged
by the typhoon amounted to BY 3 million and 219.1 million, respectively (see Notes 7, 11 and 22},
The procesds from insurance were subsequently received in January 2025.

Advances to officers and employees include salary and other loans granted to emplovees which are
generally noninterest-bearing in nature and collectivle through salary deductions. This also includes
cash advances for business purposes that are subject to liguidation.

Other receivables mainly consist of short-term rental deposits and recewables from government
agencles.
Movements in the allowance for ECL account as at December 31 are shown below;

m2a
Advancey 1o
Offcers and
Hate Trade Mantrade Emplogyens Drthary Tedal
Halance st begaming of year BEE, 161339 974,341,523 91,303,512 13775217 FLS5.5E3.407
PFroviskan for ECL P A1.050.804 - - - aLo5L804
Balamte 5t snd of year Fi07.219.743 74,341 539 1303512 W13.775.077 Wi06EN4 011
4023
Advancen o
C¥ficers and
Mate Trade Montrade Emploeot Dhery Tiatal
Ralance &l Degnning of year PES0TE 15T  RBA, 156 768 W3.260.577 E13910.259 PI71.385241
Proviglan fer ECL o 5,559,062 = - - 539,083
Raciatsifcaricn {3404 878) (13814335 (1,556 5600 {135,033} (49, 340.006)

Halance ai #nd ol yaar BEL 162339  ETAIA192%  W1303913  BIRTTSIIT #LLL SED 407
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2022

Advshrces IB
Cfficars ang
Mote Trade Neotrade  Employees Cithari fotsl
Balance ot Beginming of yaar PG 323 50T WAD 1SR TLE F3 20591 W13 SE0I58 WIAG ASOAIR
Prowvigion for ECL ] 1,704,635 = - = 1,704,535
Batance at wnd of yeae NiE 008, 153 Fil-l-.il!fli._?ﬁ-l ILJ:EELEI-H B13 510255 W1rL38% 251

In 2024, the Group récognized gain on collection of written off accounts amounting to P1B.2 million
{see Note 22}

In 2023, management reclassified allowance for ECL of receivables aggregating #19.3 million to
allowance for impairment losses of advances to suppliers and other current assets, as a result of the
reclassification of the related gross receivables to advances to suppliers amounting to #10.9 million
and advances to contract growers and breeders amounting to B84 million (see Note 9),

o Inventories
This account consists of:
2024 2023
At NRY -
Feeds RZ19 873,500 #333,652,987
Al cost:
Raw materials and feeds supplements 314,682,466 324,370,311
Supplies and animal health products 128,408,276 132,401,598
Finishad goods 91,728,873 74,855,683
Hatching eggs 89,091,152 59,353,509

843,784,267  ®O24,634,088

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and NRV as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, The cost of the
feeds carried at NRV amounted to #220.8 million and #334.6 million as at December 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively. Inventories charged to cost of goods sold amounted to #9,218.0 million in 2024,
#9,865.3 million In 2023 and #9,525.9 million in 2022 (see Note 19).

In 2024, the Group recognized loss on inventories damaged by the typhoon amounting to
#7.3 million (see Mote 22). Allowance for inventory write-down amounted to RO.9 million as at
December 31, 2024 and 2023,

Biological Assets - Livestock

The Group's livestack consists of the fallowing:

2024 2023
Day-0ld chicks and growing brailers W45, 728,713 RES 607,344
Parent stock 77,946,903 38,787 415

#323,675,626 R129,394,759
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The movements on the Group's Ivestock are as follows:

Note 2024 2023
Balance al beginning of year P129,394,759 116,118,755
increase due to purchases and production 6,673,717,832  £,349.5921,100
Decrease due to sales, harvest and mortality (6,571,206,577) (6, 288,865517)
Gain (loss) on fair value changes 18 91,769,512 (47,779,579)
Balance at end of year R323,675,626 #129,394,759
O, Other Currént Assets
This aceount consists of:
Mote 2024 2023
Advances to contract growers and breedars a4 #130,132,144 FEG,981 480
CWT 596,487,243 112,120,283
Prepayments 52,649, 590 0,397 861
Input VAT 36,623,431 19,485,151
315,892 408 278,984, 884
Allpwance for impairment losses {55,122,665) (55,122 665}
R260,769,743 Fi23 862, 219

Movements in the allowance for impairment losses of advances to contract growers and breeders
a5 at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as Tollows:

Mole 2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year R55,122 665 BB, 748, 582
Reclassification 6 -~ 8,374,083
Balance at end of year P55,122 665 P55,122 665

10

Receivable from an Insurance Company

The Parent Company has an cutstanding insurance claim for typhoon damages fram Charter Fing An
Insurance Corporation (Charter Ping An). Pursuant to the Insurance Code, the Parent Company is
enfitled to interest on its claim at a rate twice the ceiling prescribed by the Monetary Board beginning
March 12, 2010, or 90 days from the date the Parent Company filed the claim.

On August 17, 2016, the Parent Company received RS89 million as partial settiement.
On May 31, 2023, the Regional Trial Court (RTC) of Bulacan granted the claim of the Parent Company
and ordered Charter Ping An to pay the insurance claim, to which Charter Ping An filed a Notice of
Appeal with the Court of Appeals (CA) in Manila City. As at December 31, 2024, the case records had
been transmitted to the CA. On December 2, 2024, the CA directed Charter Ping An to file an
Appellant’s Brief within 45 days from the date of notice. On February 10, 2025, Charter Ping An filed
a Motion for Extension of Time to File Appellant’s Brief with Manifestation seeking additianal 45 days,
of until April &, 2025, within which to subimit its Brisf,

Managament and its legal counsel believe that the ongoing litigation on the remaining claims will not
result in any significant adverse impact on the Group's financial condition and results of operations.
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The compasition of the recelvable as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Cost Pla],664,583
Allowance for ECL (71,460,773)
FI0203 810

Thee Parent Company continues to legally pursue the remaining balance of the insurance claim as at
December 31, 2024 and 2023, Mo provisions nor write-off of allowanca for ECL of the receivable were
recognized in 2024, 2023 and 2022,

1L

Property, Plant and Equipment

At Revalued Amounts
The compasition and movements of the Group's property, plant and equipment carried at revalued
amaunts are as follows:

HH4a
Laminfwsld ang (e Femmeg.
Plisl, Sachrey L Flabuias arsdl
sl and Exquigment Buldeg:  mpmvemen Eguiimam Tatal
Cawl
Ralarce 0 egrrirng ol year FULLAAREIN  WLOEE Q10188 R4 BA RS AR FRRSLETE BT RAT ER4 D0
RS = faltif ) - P EAE T4 14,071, 800G SLIMLESE
Bprufaitaibe = Di223 Tl (hE Bk pEE LT [is T RLL]] T340, i
o T - (el BFTRE T 11BET 856 - [umn, i) (TN, PR}
Nat revwusson WALILED  EOGEEN  LGINAGD  IGINRORS  WISGE 167294
flalmice ot ens of e LOSRSGLEND  BYLMLAI  ARLANTAM ST LMLINGEN 3 ELLASAGM
Ecdsmulatml Degreciesn anid
Argrmranan
Hala=rm @ Emgremyg of pes - ARe Nan par 0N, INS, L3N SR EMRER] FLI1A. D FILSITAE
Ceprecianon asd amertpamss i T4, 1EZN55 19,050, k63 18 Pl (e TALLELY 115, LER, TS
Diugaeal J iia, s amz} {TRE.DSK| - a8 LS, 570
Aachani e 2 b s 2481 = 7L 1Ly
Ealatuin i1 il =¥ poas LY 14105078 11,047 TELDGRLETY
mm T T 1
EJ!
Lamiatetl® gl PP B miaim
Flam, Magniseny Lang Frauer and
Lwail vl Esidegi  mprowemenn Eauisrem Fortai
Cor
Balanie &l hegmmng of vear DA 1SAOS e OO IS0 BRILNIG NS mELIs I UL ERE OR ELAMY A jaE
A - Th A8, = L% T e ¥ 31T ha2 BLI81 TIT
Aechimarfoatisng = i ain L1651 00 LELam A3T NS PORLARL RN
Loy pangmis - [Firre b NE] = = L% ELH LR TFIN]
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Wet revaluation increment on property, plant and equipment, net of deferred income fax,
amounted to P125.5 million in 2024, #25.2 million in 2023 and P97.4 million in 2022,

In 2024, the Grouwp recorded loss on property, plant and equipment damaged by the typhoon
amounting to #19.1 million (see Nate 22), net of a receivable from an Insurance company amounting
to P35,1 millian [see Mote &),
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Had the above property, plant and equipment bean measured using the cost model, the carrying
amounts would have heen as follaws

2024 2023
Land #355,331,190 #355,331,190
Plant, machingry snd squipment 549,431,325 £49,213,180
Buildings 287,633,800 308,661,367
Leasehald and land improvements 57,682,415 35219777
Office furniture, fixtures and eguipment 18,259,256 11,763,016

P1,268,337,986 R1 360,188 530

The transfer from revaluation surplus to retained earnings, net of deferred income tax, amounted to
F7.8 million in 2024, P16.8 miltlon in 2023 and #11.9 millicn in 2022,

The Group's property, plant and equipment at revalued amounts were sppraised by an independent
firm of appraisers as at December 31, 2024 and 2023,

Details of the valuation techniques used in measuring fair values of property, plant and equipmem
classified under Levels 2 and 3 af the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Fl.:nl!:
Class of Property Valuation Technigues _Significant Inputs 1024 02
Price pef Square mefes
Sales comparison {sam} F2.000 - B10,.000 BE891 - i3, 500
Lamd spproach alue adjustmants 5B - A5 G - 359
Depraciated
Mant machirery teplacement cost Replacement ol w1 3004 million #0654 millian
s equinment method  Bemaining economic life 3- 35 years 3 75 year
11.01%
Decounted cash Naw Discownt rate Bl & millign -
(OCF] approach Par manthhy rent - #4.0 millign
Depruciated
repiacement cofl Regplacemant coit BE13.T milllon FL7E T emuillipn
Bullgtings mathod Asmabning econamic iife 1= 30 yeary T- 15 v
11.09%
Discount rate P02 million -
DCF approach Per mpnthly rent - B2 rnillion
Depreciated
Lmasshold and replacemsant cost A=plecement cost RE4 3 milllipn #2010 mwillian
land improvermeanty method Remaining econamic fife 123 yaars -4 yeary
[Hkcaiend fate 11.01%
OCF approach Per manthly rent - BT million
Depreciates
Qffice furniture, Axtures replacemant cost Repiacement cost P14.5 million #12.7 mifllip:n
and aguipment mathod  Remaining economic iife 2 -4 years 3 =4 yeate
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The description of the valuation technigques and inputs used In the fair value measuremen! are as
fallcwss:

Sales Comparison Approach
Sales comparison approach involves the comparison of the Group's land o those that are more or

l#ss located within the vicinity of the appraised properties and are subject of recent sales and
offerings. Adjustments were made to arrive at the market value by considering the location, she,
shape, utility, desirabliity and time slement.

The inputs to fair valuation are as follows:

= Price per sgm - estimated value prevailing in the real estate market depending on the location,
areq, shapa and time elemani

= Volue odjustments - adjustments are made 1o bring the comparative values in approximatian to
the property taking into account the lacation, size and architectural features among others.

Deprecioted Replocement Cast Method

Depreciated replacement cost method is used to estimate valuation of plant, machinery and
equipment, buildings, leasehold and land Improvements and office furniture, fixtures and equipment
by computing for the replacement cost of the assets and applying appropriate adjustments for
physical deterioration and functional and economic obsolescence.

Generally, significant increases (decreases) in depreciated replacement cost in isolation would result
in-a significantly higher [lower) fair value measuremeant.

Discounted Cosh Flow Approoch

Under the DCF approach, a property’s fair value is estimated using explicit assumptions regarding the
benefits and liabilities of ownership over the asset's estimated useful life including an exit or terminal
valug, As an accepted method within the income approach to valuation, the DCF approach involes
the projection of a series of cash flows on a real property interest. An appropriate, market-derived
discount rate s applied to projected cash flow series to establish the present value of the income
stream associated with the property, plant and eguipment.

Periodic cash flows of investment properties are typically estimated as gross income less vacancy and
operating expenses. The series of periodic net operating income, along with an estimate of the
terminal value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then discounted.

The frequency of inflows and outflows are contract and market-derived. The DCF approach assumes
that cash autflows occur in the same period that expenses are recorded.

Generally, significant increases (decreases) in monthly rental rate per bullding, leasehold and land
Improvements and machinery and equipment in isolation would result in a significantly higher (lower)
tair value measurement. Significant increases (decreases) in discount rate in isalation would result in
 significantly lower [higher) fair value measurement.

In 2024, the Group changed its valuation technigue on determining the fair value of its plant,
machinery and equipment, bulldings, and leasehald and land improvements fram DCF approach to
depreciated replacement cost method.



=30 -

The reconciliation of the balances of property, plant and equipment classified according to level in the

fair value higrarchy s as Tollows:

2034
Sagnificant Sgnificant
Observable inputs Unobservabis
fLevel )  Inputs |Lewvel 3] Tatal
Aalanee 5l beginning of year #3932 448,310 #1.007.017.828 01,545 a5 138
Additiony and reclasificanons - 10071 AR 10,071,838
Deprecianon and amartization = (115,158,739 {115,168 733
Disposah - {57.221,829] {57.223.825]
Met reviluation indmment 150,118,520 17,176,011 167,284,531
Hadanee a1 end of yesr #1083 566,630 Pi31 875089 F1.004, 441935
ford]
Significant Significam
Chservable inputs Unobservable
{Level 3] inputs {Level 3| Tatal
Balance a1 beginning of year Pl 156 050 T R B W1 540 BT 7 962
Addétnn end reclassifications - 181,852 BTS 191850 675
Depreciation and amortization = {118 758 S85) (118, 738.585)
Crisporsals - {58,921 {58,923
et revaliabion mcrement 28,292 360 5 300,545 33,592,809
w af el 8537 448 310 FLAOLT 047 B2 W1 A5 AR 1R
There are no transfers between the levels of fair value hierarchy in 2024, 2023 and 2022.
At Cost
The following transportation eguipment and construction in-progress (CIP) are carried at cost:
2024
Transportation
Equipment P Tatal
Ciost
Balance at beginning of yoar A5 137,170 F43.674,517 k89 BO1 GET
Addibpni i 6,720,916 26,710,906
Hectasudicarions (475,627 [?4E5,269) {7,540, BE6]
Digosal (436,964] = 436,964
Balance ai end of year 45,214,579 62 164 143,743
Accumuisted Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year #4108, 965 - dd, 208, 965
D praciation 1,056,505 - 1,056,505
Reclassifcation (101,930) - (191,920
Dy pyal [379,631) - (379,501}
Balance at end of year 14,783,515 = 44 783,919
mmm #4300, 660 BAZ, 930,161 HI_F‘HILIH
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2133
Transportation

Equaprnant L* 2 L
ot
Balanie a1 beginning of year Was 017,504 F1Z2, 736, 640 F171,754,573
Additions G234 480 R, S5 508 31,313,986
Reclassifications = 109,661, 638) 1109661, 638}
Dizposai {3,515.214] - (3,515,234}
Balancs ot end of yeir 44,127,170 43 674 517 B9 501,687
Accurmulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 45,119 840 - 4%, 113,540
Crepreciation 1,548,758 = 4,548,752
Diposal {3.453.734] - {3,453, 734)
Aalapre ar end of yess 44,308 965 - b, 2 DS
Carrying Amaunt #L51E 205 Ba3ET4517 H!‘,_.i_nnz

CIP represents cost of raw materials, general construction works and installation costs incurred in the
construction of the Group’s offices, cabling installation, piping, bagging system installation and other
developments. Completed construction costs amounting to 87,5 million in 2024, PF109.7 million in
2023 and P6.3 million in 2022, were reclassified to the appropriate property, plant and equipment
accounts. As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, there are no significant contractual commitments
enterad into by the Group.

The Group sold property, plant and eguipment, investment properties and ROU assets for o cash
consideration resulting to a gain (loss) on disposal amounting to (R1.6 million] in 2024, #0.5 million in
2023 and (P1.0 million] in 2022 [see Note 22).

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, fully depreciated property, plant and equipment that are still
being used by the Group amounted to #453.2 million and #383.5 million, respectively.

Depreciation and amartization expense recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income are as follows:

2022
(&5 resigied -
Nota 2024 <023 o8 Note d)
Property, plant and egulgment:
At revaluated amounts Pl15,168,739 #118,798.585 105418 387
At cost 1,056,505 2,548,759 4,033,571
ROU assets 24 26,892,227 22,994.914 17,723,733
Computer software 13 3,388,021 3,398,021 5,795,513
P146,515.492 R147.740,275 F132,971,153
Depreciation and amortization expense were charged to the following:
2022
(A3 restated -
2024 023 see Note 4)
Cost of poods sold P103,513,052 #105,338,143 FS5,998 634
Operating expenses:
Selling and distribution 24,183,391 26,754,216 21,642 518
Administrative expenses 18,319,049 15,647,920 15,330,001
42,602,440 42,402,136 36972519
146515492 ®147,740.279 F132,071,153
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12 Investment Properties

This consists of the Group's parcels of land arising from the foreciosure of properties as settlement of
its customers’ llabilities to the Group, and properties which are held aither to sarn rental incomie or
for capital appreciation or both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business or for
administrative purposes.

Investment properties are measured wsing the fair value model. The composition and movements in
this account are summarized below;

024

Land Busilding Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year 177,161,882 F15,567, 585 ®192,729.477
Disposals {5.343,000) = |5.943,000)
Balance at end of year 171,218,852 15,567,585 185,786,477
Cumulative Gain on Changes in

Fair Value
Balance at beginning of year 10%.431.064 (B14,190] 108,616,874
Gan on changes in falr value 12,236,238 4,566 850 16,853,118
Balance at end of year 131,657,302 3,852,690 125,509,992
Carrylng Amount P207.E76,194 #19.420,27% F312.256,069
2023

Land Eulldln‘ Taral
Corst
Balance at beginning of year PLTE 403 468 ®15 567 SE5 #193.571,053
Addithans i.71d.208 - LFEZ 209
Disposat [2,553, 785) = [2,%53,785)
Balance at end of year 177,161 892 15,567 585 192,729,477
Cumulstive Gain [Loss} on Changes in

Falr Valse

Balance at beginning of year 45,127 474 {615, 585] 44 507 BRG
Gain [loss} on changes in fair value 64,308,590 {194,605 B4, 113,985
Balance at and of year 109,431, 064 (14,150 108,616,874
Carrying Amgunt P86 552 555 W14,753 395 #3001, 346,351

The Group's Investment properties were appraised by an Independent firm of appraisers as at
December 31, 2024 and 2023. Net galn on change in fair value amounted to #16.9 million in 2024,
B64.1 milllon In 2023 and F28.2 million in 20232,

The Group recognized revenue from leasing operations amounting to P5.3 million in 2024,
R5.2 million in 2023 and 7.8 million in 2022 (see Note 24). Direct costs related (o the laase of
investment properties amounted to #3.2 million in 2024, P1.0 million in 2023 and P11 millicn in 20232,

Details of the valuation techniques used in measuring fair values of classified under Level 2 and 2
of the fair value hierarchy are as follows;

Range
Class of Property Valsanon Techniguas Significant irpuits x4 LT
Lars Sales comparaon approach  Price per square mater [1gm) AT - B15,599 845 - P17 000
Value adjustmenis 5% - TON %-TO0%
Buldings DCF appronch DHicoian iale L% 11%

Par monthly rent {sqm) mio. P14 BA3-#T7)
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Sales comparison approach invalves the comparison of the Group's land o those that are more or
less located within the vicinity of the appraised properties and are subject of recent sales and
offerings. Adjustments were made to arrive at the market value by considering the location, size,
shape, utility, desirability and time slement,

The significant inputs to fair valuation are as follows:

= Price per sgm - estimated value prevalling in the real estate market depending oh the location,
area, shape and time element.

» Volue adjustments - adjustments are made 10 bring the comparative vaiues in approximation to
the investrment property taking into account the location, size and architectural features among
others,

Meanwhile, bullding was valued using DCF approach (Level 3) and utilized discount rate and monthly
rental rates as significant inputs. Under the DCF approach, a property's fair value (s estimated using
explicit assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of ownership over the asset’s estimated
useful life including an exit or terminal value. As an accepted method within the income approach to
waluation, the DCF approach involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a real property
interest. An appropriate, market-derived discount rate is appfied to projected cash flow series to
establish the present value of the income stream associated with the investment property.

Peripdic cash flows of investment properties are typically estimated as gross income less vacancy and
operating expenses. The series of periodic net operating Income, along with an estimate of the
terminal value anticipated at the end of the prajection pericd, is then discounted.

The frequency of inflows and outflows are contract and market-derived. The DCF approach assumes
that cash outflows occur in the same period that expenses are recorded.

Generally, significant increases |(decreases) in the discount rate in isolation would result in a
significantly lower [higher] fair value measurement. Significant increases (decreases) in rental rate in
tsolathon would result in a significantly higher [lower) fair value measurement.

. Other Noncurrent Assets
This account consists of;
Miote 2024 20023
Project development costs #31,368,395 #31,368,395
Security deposits 24 12,928,688 12,928,685
Computer software 7,089,955 10,487,976
51,387,038 G4, 785,059
Allowance for impairment losses {31,368,395) 131,368,395)

®20,01B,643 ¥23,416,664

Project development costs represent expenses incurred on the Group's aqua feeds and agua culture
projects. These were already fully provided with valuation allowance as at December 31, 2024 and
2023 since based on management's evaluation, these costs may no longer be recoverable,
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The balance and movemeants in computer softwars are as follows:

Note 2024 2023
Cost
Balance at beginning and end of year P43,365,131 #43,365,131
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 32,877,155 29,479,134
Amortization 11 3,398,021 3,398,021
Balance at end of year 36,275,176 32,877,155
m Amount . 7,089,955 R10 487,976
14, Trade and Other Payables
This account consists of:
Nate 2024 2023

Trade payables:

Third parties P1,638 983,161 @#1,642893 750

Related parties 26 15,685,403 3,907,536
Nontrade payables 201,332,195 148,419,428
Accrued expenses;

Selling and administrative 281,754,674 189,328 480

Cutside services 59,620,661 25,503,169

Dihers 41 428,536 14,830,005
Statutory payables 34,653,434 27,729,615
Customers’ deposits 5,016,139 14,240,358

P1,278,474,203 #1,066,852,350

Trade payables consist of llabilities arising from purchases of inventories In the normal course of
business. These are noninterest-bearing and are generally setthed within 30 to 90 days.

Nontrade payables are Habilities arising from purchases of goods other than inventories and various
services giving rise to expenses such as trucking fees, utilities, security services and inspection fess,
among others. These are normally settled within one year.

Accrued expenses mainly pertain to selling and administrative expenses, outside services, salaries and
wages, freight and handling, outside services, taxes and licenses, commission and supplies, amang
athers, These are normally settied within one year

statutory payables consist of liabilines to government agencies. These are normally settled within a
manth,

Custemers’ deposits include amounts advanced by the customers to the Group, These are normally
apphied within one year,
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15. Loans Payable

The Group's outstanding loans payable to focal banks amounted to PB00.0 million and
FEEE.1 million as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectvely, The Groug's short-term and
long-term loans are not subject to any debt covenants.

2024 2023
Shart-term lpans P634,494,3001  RE23,655,000
Current partian of long-term loans 58,321,429 24,621,429
Current portion of [oans payable 752 B15,730 B48 476,429
Noncurrent portion of lpans payable 47,154,760 49,642 856

F759.570490  ®©BEO8, 119,285

short-term Loans Payable

In 2024 and 2023, the Group obtained unsecured, Peso-denominated short-term loans from local
banks to finance its working capital requirements. The Group's short-term loans mature within 90
days and bear annual interest rates ranging from 6.00% to 6.50%. Outstanding balznce amounted 1o
B634.5 million and B223.7 million as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Long-term Loans Pavable
The following are the Group's long-term loans payable:

& FBB.9 millhon promissary note

On October 31, 2018, the Parent Company entered into an eight-year lpan agreement with China
Bank Savings, Inc. ("CBS") amounting to PBE.9 million, payable in 28 guarterly installments starting
January 31, 2020 and bearing an interest rate of 7.875% per annum, repriced annually. Repriced
Interest rate is 7.875% in 2024 and 7.750% in 2023, Quistanding balance amounted to
F14.8 million and B37.2 million as 2t December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

b. PB6.9 million promissary note

On December &, 2018, the Parent Company entered into another sight-year loan agreement with
CBS amounting to ®86.9 million, payable in 28 quarterly Installments, starting March 6, 2020 and
bearing an interest rate of 8.125% per annum, repriced annually. Repriced interest rate is 8.125%
In 2024 and 7.750% in 2023. Outstanding balance amounted to #24.8 million and #37.2 million as
at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

€. #67.0 million promissory note

On August 12, 2024, the Parent Company entered into a two-year loan agreament with
Asia United Bank ("AUB") amounting to #67.0 milllon, payable in 24 monthly installments, starting
september 23, 2024 and bearing an interest rate of 7.75% per annum, repriced annually,
Cutstanding balance amounted to PS5.8 million as at December 31, 2024,

Total availments of loans payable amounted to B958.9 million In 2024, #1,740.2 milllon and 2023 and
P2,349.6 in 2022. Total payments of loans payable amounted to P1,057.0 million in 2024,
F1,877.2 million in 2023 and #1,819.5 million In 2022 (see Note 28,
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Total interest expense recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income consists
of the following;

Mote 2024 2023 2022
Loans payable #70,113,577 RGE, 308,882 P35,735,576
Accretion of Interest an
lease liabilines 24 8.E87,040 7,514,406 4,266,400
B9.000.617 F75. 823 288 #40,001,576
. Cash Bond Deposits

Cash bond deposits amounting to B66.4 million and #50.5 million as at December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively, mainly pertains to surety bond deposits from contract growers, contract breeders. and
salesmean.

These are generally renewed on an annual basis and cash bond deposits will be refunded upon
terminatan of the contract.

Equity

Capital S1ock
As of December 11, 2024 and 2023, the Parent Company has lssued and outstanding common shares of

3,054.334,014 common shares at #0.38 par value equivalent to ®1,160.6 million. Detads of the
authorized, issued and outstanding common shares as at December 31 are as follows:

2024 2023
Authorized 3,500,000,000 3,500,000 000
Issued and outstanding 3,054 334,014 3054334014
Capital stock ®1,160,646,925 F1.160,646925
The details and movements of the commaon shares listed with PSE follows:
Authorized Ma. of
Date of 3EC Approval Shares Ehares Issusd
October 2, 1972 5,000,000 5,000,000
May 2, 1573 10,800,000 10,000,000
October 31, 1974 7,000,000 7,000,000
December §, 1877 45,000,000 45,000,000
December 5, 1982 33,000,000 33,000,000
August 11, 1986 200,000,000 200,000,000
February 9, 1989 200,000,000 200,000,000
October 16, 2013 3,500,000,000  2.286,497,301
December 22, 2017 3,500,000,000 267,836,113
3,054,333,014

The Parent Company has 4095 and 4,113 stockholders as at December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.
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18, Revenues
This account consksts of:
Haote 2024 023 2023
Mot salos from:
Foods FTA37 937490 ®E59534T7055%8 R6,241,334.413
Faeids 4507,108,706 5.124.051,947 5199285802
Farms 502473423 472171275 516895636
12,447,519,619 12 543,604,175 11,957,515 851
Fair value changes on biclogical
assats - livestock 8 91,769,612 (47,779,579) 10,936,438

#11,539,289,231 F12,455914,506 W11 968,452,289

19. Cost of Goods Sold

This account consists of the following:

2022

[A5 restated -

ot 2024 2023 Lee Note d)

inventories sold T ¥3,217,853.017 #9.BG5346,415 #0505 944 014
Dutshde services 24 1.224,430,993 1,125 872 634 A58 830,177
Contractusl parvices 413,314,388 426,291 117 317,362 806
Depreciation and amortizabion 11 103,913,052 105,238, 143 QE GO8 534
Lalaries and employee benefits b5 | 36,860,823 35,854 006 45 814,819
Others 18,169,266 32,738,549 60,792,974

P11,035,641,539 F11,591 440 968 P108%% 643 424

Others composed of communication, light, water and repairs and maintenance.

20, Operating Expenses

This account consists of the following:

2022
[As restated -
2024 2023 e Note 4)

Administrative expenie
Selling and distribution expenues

PGO2,028,637 RSS2 140,873 PSE0.014,678
413,801,082 341,670,393 323,347,130

#1,105,829,719 F833,811.268 REE. 361808
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The details of operating expenses are as follows:

2133
(A5 restated

Biote 2024 2023 jee Note d)

Salaries ahd employes benefits 21 F334,547 988 #116,880.371 #2178, 702,032
Fraight and handling 160,632,260 151,760,387 146,985 180
Transpartation and travel 138,269 694 133,116,282 145,865,608
Contractun services B3.224,292 38,187 855 26,600,604
Advertising and promotions 56,113 494 19,578 SE& 24,540 BT
Professiona! feas 44,575,917 27845 526 34,746 562
Depreciation snd smartization 11 42,602 440 42,402 136 34,872,519
Representation and entertalnmaent 42,467,984 15,475,272 36,605 488
Prawiskan far ECL on trade recenables ] 41,051,404 3,539,063 1,704,635
Publications and subscriptions 40,083,480 40,088 581 39313375
Compulerization project 36,607,108 28263514 28826178
Taxes and Hcenses 28,763,181 23,245,952 26, 719,345
Supplies 11,720,939 6,543,415 6,398,714
Communications, light and water 10,761,575 8,768,320 0687486
Trainings and seminars 10,679,903 5,548,565 1,455,007
Rentals 4 7,169,531 10.24% 091 B, 269477
IRdrance 5,333,738 & 701, 150 039 437
Repairs and maintenance 4,197 702 5,336,929 1,897 165
Others 7,026,689 5,173,004 22,217,948

F1.105 829,719 PFES3.B11.266 FERY 361,804

Other expenses include bank charges, association dues and inspection fees, among others.

11. Salaries and Employee Benafits

This account pertains to the following:

Nate 2024 023 2022
Salaries and wages R303,528,235 R297 188485 B259,7331525
Retirement benefits 23 25,361,136 22,122 540 12,336,339
Commissions 18,360,786 16,550,520 27,560,525
Other short-term benefits 24,158,654 16,872,832 14,886,462

F371,408,811 #352,734,377 #324,516,85]

Safaries and employes benafits are allocated as follows:

Note 2024 2023 2022

Cost of goods sold 19 #36,860823  WISB54006 R45E14.819
Operating expenses: 20

Administrative 235,785,106 211,849,889 176,820,010

Selling and distribution 98,762,882 105,030,482 101,882,022

334,547,988 316,880,371 278,702,032
P171,408,811 362734377 H324 516851




12. Others - net
This account consists of
Mote 2024 2023 2022

Losses an inventories and

property, plant and eguipment

damaged by the typhoon 7,11 (#26,408,870) B LR
Gain on collection of previously

written off trade receivables B 18,152,087 - -
Tax settlement (14,493,4585) (5,290,291) (10.,696,915)
Piscellaneous revenues 7,722,672 6,217,895 054,147
Rental income 24 5,321,071 5255468 7837 805
Gain (loss) on disposal of property,

plant and equipment,

imiestmient properties and

ROL assets 11 (1,599,242) 523,275 (1,037,744)
Met foreign exchange gain (loss) 265,283 (615,490) (28,701,581)
Others (11,525,971) - (903,842}

(P22,566,455) #6,090,857  [R32,548,040)

Misceilaneous revenues pertain to sale of used operating supplies and other wastes from production.

Others pertain to digitalirzation and other miscallaneous expenses.

23. Net Retirement Linbility

The Group has a partially funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering all of its
qualified employees. The defined benefit plan is being administerad by a trustee bank which is
responsible for the administration of the plan asset. The Group's retirernent benefits are based on
years of service and one and one-fourth month's salary for every year of continuous service

The plan is exposed to interest rate risks and changes In the life expectancy of qualified employees.
The plan is not exposed to significant concentrations of risk on the plan assets.

There are no unusual or significant risks to which the retirement liability exposes the Group.
However, in the event a benefit claim arises under the retirement liability, the benefit shall
immediately be due and payable from the Group.

The following tables summarize the components of retirement benefit costs recognized In the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income based on the report of an independant actuary as
&t December 31, 2024,

Details of retirement expense is as follows (see Note 21):

2024 1023 2022
Current service costs R14,345.412 ®11,519.694 #13 896,753
Net interest cost 11,015,724 10,602,846 8,439 586

B25.361,136 #21.122 540 2,335,335




The amounts of net retirement liability recognired in the consolidated statements of financial position
are determined as follows:

2034 023

Present value of DBOD F105 478,854 F1B4, 617,101
Fair value of plan assets (2,479,812) (4,031.451)
B200,999 042 B180,.585.650

While there are no minimum funding requirements in the country, any size of underfunding may pose
a cash flow risk in the future when a significant number of employees s expected to retire.

The movements in the present value of DBO are as follows:

2024 2023

Balance at beginning of year R184.617,101 #150,989,435
Current service costs 14,345,412 11,519,654
Interest expense 11,261,643 10,886,338
Benefits paid (2,876,500) (2,184,831}
Remeasurement loss (gain) [1,B868,802) 13,408 465
Balance at end of year R205478,854  #184,617,101

The movements in the fairvalue of plan atsets are as follows:

2024 2023

Balance at beginning of year #4,031,451 #3031.933
Interest income 245,919 283 492
Remeasurement gain (loss) 202,442 {183,974)
Balance at end of year R4,479,812 #4,031,451

The Group’s plan assets are comprised of the following:

2024 2023

Cash and cash equivalents Fi13,643 F156 803
Equity instruments 693,475 502,722
Debt instruments - government bonds 3,646,567 3,257,815
Others 15,127 14,110
#4479, 812 Ba,031451

There are no expected contributions to the Group’s retirement plan in the fallowing year

The cumulative net remeasuremant gains {losses] on net retirament liability recognized in OCl as at
December 11 are as follows:

2034
Cumulative
Rameasurement Defarred Tax
Loss [s=e Note 25 Net
Balance at beginning of year (R8,315.699) F1,078,925 #6236, 774)
Remeasuremaent gain 2,071,244 (517 811) 1,553,433
Balance at end of year (#6,244 455) #1561 114 (94 BE3,341)
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2023
Cumulative
Remgasuremant Deferred Tax
Galn {Loss) (see Note 25) Het
Balance at beginning of year RS, 274, 7AD [M1,318,685) #3855 055
Rermeasurement loss (13,550,439 3.357.610 (10,193,829}
Balance at end ol year {PE 315 6GY) #2,078,925 {RG,236,774]
2022
Comulative
Remeasurament Oeferrad Tox
Gain (Loss) (see Mote 25) Mt
Balance at beginning of vaar (RIT,180,020) RO, 295,005 (RI7T.BES, 018)
Remeasurement gain 42,454, 760 | 10,613,690} 31,841,070
Balance at end of year #5. 274,740 [l 31E 685} B3 656,055
The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuation are as follows:
2024 2023
Discount rate 6.10% 8. 10%
Salary increase projection rate 5.00% 5.00%
AVEFage Memaining senvice years 21.9 12.4

The sensitivity analysis based on reasonable possible changes of assumptions as at December 31, 2024
and 2023 are presented below:

Effect on Present Value of
Retirement Liability (in thousands)
Salany Increasa

Change in Assumption Discount Rate  Projection Rate
December 31, 2024 +100 bps (R15,241) 17,497
-100 bps 17,479 {15,529]
December 31, 2023 +100 bps (P13,861) F15,904
-100 bps 15,888 {14.122)
The expected future benefit payments of the Group are as fallows:
2024 2023
Less than one year RP17,284,824 RP26.011.557
Between one and five years 83,788,844 55,006,165
Beyond five years 782,323,993 737,372,323
#893,397,661 FE1E 390,045

The weighted average duration of the present value of retirement benefit obligation as at
December 31, 2024 and 2023 are 8.0 years and 8.1 ysars, respectively,
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24. Significant Agreements

Operating Leases - The Group as a Lessor

The Group entered into cancellable leases covering certain production plants (Le., dressing, rendering
and ice production) which have lease terms of around two to three years and are renewable upon
mutual agreement of the parties.

Total rent income from these operating leases amounted to P53 millon in 2024, #5.3 million In 2023
and B7 8 million in 2022 and are shown as part of "Others - Net” account in the consalidated statements
of comprehensive income {see Note 22).

it i s X
The Group leases certain warehouses under operating lease agreements for a period of one year and
are renewabbe upon mutual agreement by thie parties, Rent expanse amounted to #7.2 million in 2024,
B10:2 million in 2023 and BE.3 million in 2022 (see Mote 20),

Security deposits amounted to P11.9 million as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respactively
{see Note 13),

The Group as a Lessee - Long-term Leases

The Group entered into lease agreements of an office space in a buliding and finance lease agreements
for its transportation equipment for a period of more than a year. The Group recognired ROU assets and
lease liabilities on these transactions using the Interest rates implicit in the leases which are fixed at the
contract date. The average effective interast rate approximates 7.875% to 8.125% per annum in 2024,
2023 and 2022,

ROU Assgts
The movements in ROU assets are a5 follows:
2024
Transportation
MNote Bullding Equipment Total

Cost
Balance at beginning of year F21,838,157 169,050,075  #190,888,232
Additions = 42,799,984 42,799 954
Derecognition - (2,801,047) (2,801,047)
Balance at end of year 21,638,157 209,045,012 230,887,169
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 14,737,521 94,212,987 108 450,508
Amortization 11 3,257,415 23,634 812 26,892,227
Derecognition - (1,454,627} (1,454,627)
Balance at end of year 17,494,936 116,393,172 133, E88,108

Carrying Amount B3,343,221  P92,655,840 96,999,061
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2023
Transportation
Note Building Equipment Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year r12.065912 F128,919.298 140,985,210
Additlons 9,771,245 40,130,777 49 903,032
Balance a2t end of year 21,838,157 169,050,075 190,888,232
Accumulated Amaortization
Balance at beginning of year 11,341,957 74,113,637 85,455,594
Amortization 11 2,805 564 20,099,350 22,994 914
Balance at end of year 14,237,521 04,212 987 108,450 508
Carrying Amount ¥7.600,636 #74,837,088 B2 437,724
Lease Liabilities
The balance and movements in lease liabilities are as follows:
MNote 2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year F83,591,520 B52,299,839
Additions 42,799,984 48,903,022
Accrotion of interest 15 B, BET 040 7,514,406
Payments (34,308,243) [26,125.747)
Balance at end of year 100,970,301 B31,591.520
Less current portion 31,063,007 22,442 663
Noncurrent portion FE60,907 294 PE1,148 B57
The amounts recognized in profit or loss related to leases follow:
Nate 2024 2023 2022
Amortization of ROU assets #16,892,227 RI20ad 914 F17.723.732
Accretion of interest on lease
liabilities 8,BET7.040 7,514,406 4,266,400
Short-term leases 20 7,169,531 10,249,001 B.269.477
Ra2 948,798 R0, TOE.411 R30,259,609

The gross minimum lease payments and present value of future minimum lease payments as at

December 3] are as follows:

2024 2023

Minimum Bindrmum

Lease Lease
Fayments Present Value Payments Present Value
Mot later than one year P37,043,196 ®31.,063,007 R29.1GE306 W22.442 661

Later than one year but niot

more than five years 80,797,963 69,907,294 69,585,536 61,148,857
P117,841,159 P100,970,301 #O8 753842 #83,591 520
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Agreements with Contract Growers and Breeders
The Group has entered into various agreements with growers and breeders for the growing and
breeding of Hivestock. These are generally renswed on an annual basis. The carrying amount of related
advances to contract growers and bréeders amounted to B75.0 milion and #31.9 million as at
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, The advances 1o contract growers and breeders are seftied
upon delivery of gooads to the Group (see Note 9),

Talling Agreements
The Group has also entered into various toll arrangements, mainly for the manufacture of its feeds,
hatching of eggs and dressing of poultry Ivestock whose services are payable through fised amounts

per unit of output.

Total services incurred from ftolling arrangements amounted to R1,224.4 million In 2024,
#1,125.9 million in 2023 and P858.8 million in 2022 and are recorded as part of "Outside Services”
account under “Cost of Goods Sald” account in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
[s2a Note 19),

. Income Tax

The components of provision for income tax are as follows:

1022
(A= restated -
2024 2023 see Note 4)
Reported in profit or loss:
Current:
RCIT ¥79,849,366 #21.935,240 #51.302,707
MCIT - 195,044 -
79,849 366 221,130,289 51.302,707
Deferred 17,945,806 {28 854 508) 2,545,379
#97,795,172 {PE,724,219) P53 828 066
Reparted in OCH -
Deferred Ra2,341 444 5,000,592 {R43,071,184)




The components of the Group's net deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

2024 2023
Deferred tax assets:
Retiremant liability R50,249,. 761 F45,146 413
Allowance for ECL on trade and other receivables 43,250,950 32,988,004
NOLCD 16,231,570 16,231,570
Allowance for impairment loss on advances to
contract growers and breaders 13,780,666 13,7B0 666
Allpwanee for inventory write-down 224,079 224,079
Unrealized loss on foreign exchanges 25,109 -
Fair value changes of biological assets - livestock - 11,944 895
123,762,135 120,315,722
Deferred tax liabilites:
Revaluation surplus on property,
plant and equipment (186,525,986)  (147,319,402)
Falr value changes of biological assets - Ivestock (22,942,403) -
Cumulative gain on fair value changes of
investment properties [5,265,173) (3,636,703)
Excess of lease labilities over ROU assets (B17.055) (B48.147)
Unrealized gain on foreign exchange = {12,703)
(215,550,617)  (151.816.955)
Net deferred tax liabilities (P91,788,482)  (F31.501,233)

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Group did not recognize deferred tax assets relating to the
following as management has assessed that these may not be realized in the future:

pitrd) 2023
Allowance far ECL an:
Receivable from an insurance caompany F17.B65,153 R17 865,193
Trade and other recelvables 5,907,753 5,907,753
NOLCD 14,056,520 -
Allownnce for impairment loss on;
Project development cosis T.842,09% 7,842 099
Advances to suppliers 1,721,080 2.331.080
Eucess MCIT owver RCIT 195,049 1895 D49

48,587,703 #34.531174

The Graup's NOLCO pertain to operating losses incurred by BVC are as foliows:

Yaar Balance as 8} Applied/  Balance as at December
Incufred  Valbd Until lanuary 1, 2024 Inourred Expired 31, 2624
2024 2027 - W55,226,116 - BSE, 206,116
2023 2026 17,939,073 - - 17,939,074
2023 2025 36,448,314 - - 36,488 314
2021 2026 10,498 BBG - - 10,498, BB
54,926,279 W56,226,116 B- #131.152,395

On September 30, 2020, the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) issued Revenue Regulations No, 25-
2020 to implernent Section 4 {bbbb) of Republic Act No, 11494 [Bayanihan Act to Recover as One Act),
allowing the Group's net operating losses for taxable years 2021 to be carried over for the next five
consecutive taxable years immediately following the year of such loss.



- 46 -

The Group's excess MCIT over RCIT amounting to R195,049 was incurred in 2023 and will expire
I 2026.

The reconcillation between the income tax based on statutory income tax rate and provision for
(benefit from) income tax reported in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income is as
follows:

2024 2023 202
Provision fior income 3 computed at the statutory
income [as rate 25.0% A5.0% 25.0%
Income tax effects of
Nondeductible sipenses, change In unrecognized
deferred tax assets and other adjustmants 6.1% [1Z7.2%) 125%
income already subjectad to final tax 0.0% 0.0% .05
Effective income tax rates 31.1% {102.2%] 37.5%

The RCIT used in preparing the consolidated financial statements as a1 and for the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 is 25%. The MCIT rate used is 2.00%, 1.50% and 1.00% for the
years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively,

6.

Related Party Transactions

The Group, in its regular conduct of business, has transactions with its related parties. The following
tables summarize the transactions with the related parties and outstanding balance arising from these
transactions.

Amaunt of Trampsctiony Qurstisdeg Balante
Mature ol
MElited Farbesy ol Traniactan Io2s ELFE] 1024 a3
Traids wnd Dakes Daceivihles £
Jales  WIYRPA6538 WEDS 164 605
Infities under cummon contral Laollechione GON.0OE S5  WIMEE00.501  #i43 i1
Adnoe - ol of
Advances to Officen & cabacHioas B3 760,965 L e WIE 563,351 B30, 200. S5
Trade amd Other Payabies L]
Emtithed gnder cormmon coninal Purthates  MIBABELOBE  FYAS 008 711
favmeni pi-':-.-allm} (745431000 WIS E85803 LR

The Group sells animal feeds, raw materials, feed supplements and dressed chicken to related parties,
which are due within 30 days and are noninterest-bearing. Outstanding balances of trade and other
receivables from related parties are unsecured and to be settled in cash. No allowance for ECL an
trade and other receivables from related parties was recognized as at December 31, 2024 and 7023
isee Note ),

Trade and Other Payables
The Group buys raw materials and breeder flocks from related parties. These are noninterest-bearing,
generally on a 30-day credit term, unsecurad and to be settled in cash (see Note 14).



Advances to Officers

o 1 8

The Group grants unsecured, noninterest-bearing advances to its officers which are normally coflected
within one year through salary deduction. The allowance for ECL on advances to officers as at
December 31, 2024 and 2023 are disciosed in Note 6,

Compensation of Key Management Personng|

The compensation of key management persannel are as follows:

2024 2023 2022
Short-term amployes benefits FES,911,760 F54,814,416 B55 480,527
Retirement benafits 4,656,828 5438557 5,010,571
Other employee benehits 24,276,904 19.521.032 17,133,565
F98.845,492 B79,674,005 #77.624,663
27 Earnings Per Share
Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed as follows:

<023
(A% restated -
Mote 2024 2023 see Note 4)
Wit income Fili6,588,562 #13,3048.936 FE%.634.614

Divided by the weighted average

number of outstanding

commaon shares 17 3,054,334 014 3,054,334 014 3,054, 334 014
Bagic and diluted sarnings per share R.OTL FO.OD4 RL029

Basic earnings per share ks computed by dividing net income for the year attributable to comman BryLity
holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of common shares issued and

outstanding during the year,

The Parent Company does nat have any dilutive commaon shares guistanding, thus, the basic and diluted
earmnings per share as at December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 are the same.

28.

Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

The tables below detall the changes In the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities, including

both cash and non-cash changes:

lanuary 1, Financing Cash Flaws Mar-cath  Decembser 31,

Mote 2034 Availments P 024

Loars payable 15 FE38,119.285  WOSE.RE3.200 (W1,057,031,995) [ = RTS9.970,.450
Lmasw lisbilities 24 3,591,520 - (34,308.243] 5167024 100,970,301
Intérest mxpense 15 - - {70,113,577) 70,113,577 -
P981710.805  PUSEBE3.200  (1161453.E1%5) P121.B00,601  WS00,940,791
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January 1, Financing Cash Flows Mon-cmah  Decamber 31,

Mots J023 Availments Faymants Changes 2023

Loans payable 15 FLO35,121,351 #1,740.233,658 |R1,B77,2357%4) B-  REGE119.28%
Legze liabilivies 24 52,299,830 = (26,125, 747) 57417428 B3.581.520
Interest axpense 15 - - {68,30E.862)  6H,508 882 -
k107,421,190 B1740.233.658  (M1971670,353) R125.726,310  W9EL 710,805

29,

Contingencies

The Group, in the ordinary course of business, has pending legal claims and assessments which are in
vanous stages of discussions, protests and appeal with relevant third parties. Management, in
consultation with its legal counsel, believes that the ultimate resclution of these legal claims and
assessments would not have a material impact on the Group's financial position and results of
operations based upon an analysis of potential results. Thus, no provision for contingencies was
recognized in 2024, 2023 and 2022

. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Paolicies

The Group's financial instruments consists of cash, trade and other receivables (excluding advances
to officers and employees), receivable from an insurance company, security deposits, trade and other
payables (excluding statutory payables), loans payable, lease liabilities and cash bond deposits.

It is the Group's policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken. The main risks
arising from the Group's financial Instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate fisk.
The BOD reviews and approves policies for managing these risks as summarized below.

Credit Risk

The Group's exposure 1o credit risk arises from the failure of a counterparty to fulfill its financial
commitments 1o the Group under the prevailing contractual terms. Financial instruments that
potentially subject the Group to credit risk consist primarily of trade receivables and other financial
assets at amortized cost. The carrying amounts of these financial assets represent its maximum credit
EXHELITE,

Trode Receivables, Management has established a credit policy under which each new custamer is
analyzed Individually for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard payment and delkvery terms,
and conditions are offered. The Group's credit poilcy Includes available external ratings, financial
statements, credit agency information, industry information and, in some cases, bank references.
Credit limits are established for each custemer and reviewed on a regular basis. Any sales on credit
exceading those limits require specific approval from upper level of management. The Group limits
its exposure to credit risk by transacting mainly with recognized and creditworthy customers that have
undergane its credit evaluation and approval process. Historically, trade receivables are substantiailly
collected within one (1) year, Trade receivables are closely monitored on aging of the account.

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, there were no significant credit concentrations. The Group also
requires collateral which are generally land and real estate from its customers to minimize cradit risk

Financlal Assets Other than Trode Receivobles. The Group's other financial assets at amortized cost
are mostly composed of cash in banks, other receivables (excluding advances to officers and
employees), receivable from an insurance company and security deposits.
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For cash in banks, the Group limits its exposure 1o credit risk by investing only with banks that have
goad credit standing and reputation in the local and international banking industry. These instruments
ate graded in the top category by an acceptable credit rating agency and, therefore, are considered
o be low cradit risk invastments,

For receivable from an insurance company, management and its legal counsel believe that the
ongoing litigation on the remaining clalms will not resuft to additional allowance for ECL
[t2e Nate 10),

For the other financial assets, credit risk is low since the Group only transacts with reputable
companies and individuals with respect to this financial asset.

itisthe Group's policy to measure ECL on the above instruments on a 12-month basis. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since orgination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECL. When determining If there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort and
that is relevant for the particular financial instrument being assessed such as, but not limited to, the
following factors:

*  Actual or expected external and internal credit rating downgrade;
*  Existing or forecasted adverse changes in business, fimancial or economic conditions; and
* Actual or expected significant adverse changes in the operating results of the borrower,

The Group also considers financial assets that are more than 120 days past due to be the latest point
at which fifetime ECL should be recognized unless it can demonstrate that this does not represent
significant credit risk such as when non-payment arising from administrative oversight rather than
resulting from financial difficulty of the borrower,

The tables below show the credit gquality by class of financial assets based on the Group's credit rating
system as al December 31:

1004
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
iCash in banks #5E5,006,710 = b PSE5. 006,710
Trade and other recsivitiles® 040,711,117 173,056,529 137,114,718 1,251.002,374
Recenvable from an insurence company - 141,664,583 = 141 B&4 553
Security deposts 12.528.648 ) - 129688
F1,.538, P314,721,112  RIST.224.718  W1.990.632 355
*Eephafng msatir 0 ofewn and rmpiapeen
2034
Simplified Approach
Stage 1 Sage 2 Stage 3 Tistal
Cash in banks 351 601574 B e FIOLE01 B74
Trade gnd ather recaivalbim® 1,085,120,118 - 5,210 500 1,082 338 E20
Racahvable fram an inurance company - 141,654,583 = BE SR ERE
Security deposits 12,978,688 - - 12928 658

BLAZ0ESO.ER0  Wi4] f64,543 B66, 116,502 91628533 765

" e dfeiraie e afioen ang pmpan e
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For trade and other receivables, "Stage 1" pertains to those recefvables from customers that always pay
on time or even bafore the maturity date. “Stage 2" includes receivables that are collected on their due
dates provided that they were reminded or followed wp by the Group, Thase receivables which are
collected consistently beyond thelr due dates and require persistent effort from the Group are included

under “Stage 3",

et out below is the infarmation about the credit risk axposure on the Group's trade receivables using
2 provision matrix as at December 31:

aza
Papt Due BCCouRm
Less than -0 E1-30 #1130 Mgre than writh full
Currsmt 00 136 deyn Total OIS Fosal
fepecied credil iois rate 0.0a% 0.0 RALs 08w T.66% SOUNEM
EsEimated fofal grom
COFPYING ameasL il
defae jin malliang| PRS0 MRELOE  PIESD4 BATTR FLLEA Bla5.98 W11AI. 4% FiTES  FI250L00
Expeshed credit lomn
fin midlions] P00l BOSS  MOTE _ MOAT  BO41  NUISHE  BLITTE PE7SS  PISS3D
fiaki]
Diays Fast T Agoounta
Leds bhian 0Bl B 9113 Mo than with helt
Curtei 30 diyy days Hwn Hoys 110 gy Tatai BTN HIERA Toisd
inpected credif o re 00w 01N o3 RSN Gl D%
Letirated 1odal groms
CalTysg artrunt a9
dedaili [im milipn) FTA0E  MEARSE O MAEE  WIIeE a3 ITAD e BB EETRAD
Lapected credit inss
[ nlllami | BOLO0 atirt ] [ e BLGE lﬂ.ﬂ_ Flii W1 BE (] i1
Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to settie its obligations as they fall due.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the financial liabilities of the Group based on
remaining contractual undiscounted cash flows as at December 31:

2024
Within Later than
€ Months 6 to 12 Manths 1105 Years 5 Years Total

Trade and othar payabilas® #2.243.830. 769 [ 33 - W= F1.743 B30 TER

Lodng payubis G0 854 301 58,311,429 47,154,760 - 799,570,450

Lease liabilities 18,373 409 1B426 281 Bl.041 469 = 117,841,159

Ciash band deposits - 6,445 830 - - 6 4485 &30
Futurg interest an long-term

loans payable 3836225 1921754 1,371,525 - 7,131,504

1,560,524, 04 P145.121 284 F129,567,754 B #3235.213 742

*Ewcluding staTuloy papaties -
2033
Within Later than

& Mpnihs & to 12 Marths 1to5 Yea 5 Yean Total

Trade and other payalblss® 12,039, 123,735 LS L - B2039,122,79%

Laans payadis §23, 655,000 24821 439 48 84T BRE - EOR 119285

Lease liabiliHes 14,675,411 14 4578555 65 50% 536 - 98 753 84)

Cash bond depesity - 50,503,952 - - 50503 857
Futufe iftberest on long-tesm

laans payabie 3,045,405 3 0EA DET 11,1 e - 17,352,728

P1E80.499.55L #1027 858 343 #3130 454 F48 B #3113 852 547

*Extluting ifatsitory popniies,
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The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds through analyzing the maturity of its financlal
liabllittes and cash flows from operations. The Group monitors its cash position by a system of cash
forecasting, wherein all expected collections, check disbursements and other payments are
determined on a timely basis to arrive at the projected cash position 1o cover its obligations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and Aexibility. The Group
addresses liquidity concerns primarily through cash flows from operations.

interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows from a financial instrument (cash flow interest rate
risk) or its fair value (fair value interest rate risk) will fluctuate because of changes In market interest
rates,

The Group's loans payable to local banks are subject to fixed interest rates and are exposed to fair
value intarest rate risk. The re-pricing of these instruments is done on regular intervals. The Group
regularly monitors interest rate movements and on the basis of current and projected economic and
monetary data, decides on the best alternative to take. No sensitivity analysis is needed as
management has assessed that fulure interest rate changes are not expected to significantly affect
the Group's consolidated net income.

Binancial and Other Risks Relating to Livestock

The Group is exposed to varlous risks affecting the food industry such as food spoilage and
contamination, thus, it is regulated by environmental, health and food safety organizations. The
Group has processes and systems in place to monitor food safety risks in all stages of manufacturing
and processing to mitigate these risks, In addition, the livestock industry is exposed to risks associated
with supply and price volatility of its inventories and livestock.

To mitigate this risk, the Group regularly monitors the supply and price of commaodities and enters
into supply agreements at a reasonable price.

Capital Management

The Group's capital management objectives are to ensure the Group’s ability 1o continue as a going
concern and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services
commensurate with the level of risk.

The Group monitors capital an the basis of the carrying amount of equity as presented in the

consolidated statements of financial position. Capital for the reporting periods i summarized as
Follows:

2024 2023
Total liahilities P3,538,652,338 #3,321,153 990
Total equity 2,244,954970  15901,342.078
Debt-to-equity ratio 1.58 1.75

The Group is not subject 1o externally imposed restrictions.
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11, Falr Value Measurement

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's assets and liabilities
measured at fair value and for which fair values are disclosed, and the corresponding fair value
hierarchy as at December 31:

024 2023
Carrying Amount Fair Walue  Carrying Amount Fair Value
Fimapcial Assety at
Amortized Cost
Cash RSSO0 140410 #550,140,410 #396.265,061 B0 2ES 061
Trade and other receivabies® 1,055,671.475 1,085,671.475 320,058,115 98,059,125
Recevabie from an naEanon
pampity 70,203,810 70,203,810 T, 203,850 70,203,810
Secutity depoits 12,928,688 12,528 684 12,928,588 11,928,688
#1.728.944.383 #1.728,544.383 B A0D 456 684 WL A0 456 654
Financial Liabilities at
Amortized Cost
Trade and other payables®* F2.245,820, 768 #2,243.820,76% F2039,122 735 #3,0%5, 132,735
Loars payable 700,970,400 799,970,490 898,119, 28% 54,119,785
Lease labalities 100,570,311 100,970,301 83,581,520 83,591,520
Cash bond deposits b6 ka9, 820 66,440,820 E0,503, 957 60,503,852
¥3,211,211,380 P3IIL21L380 #3061327.453 W3,001 3397 492

‘Ewtiatiry ddfvaaten ho afficers ond emplerers

“*farjuding statuiney popiide

The following methods and assumptions were used in estimating the fair value of the Group's financial

assets and liabilites:

Cash, Trode and Other Receivables {Excluding Advances to Officers ond Employees), Trade and Other
Payables (Excluding Stetutory Payobles) ond Cosh Bond Deposits. The carrying amounts of these
financial assets and llabilities approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of these

financial instruments.

Recelvable from an Insurance Company, Security Deposits, Lease Liabilities and Loans Payable,
Management believes that the differences between falr values and carrying amounts are not

significant.

There have been no transfers between the fair value hisrarchy in 2024 and 2023
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31 Dperating Segment Information

The Group is organized and managaed separately according to the nature of products and services
provided, with each segment representing a strategic husiness unit that offers different products and
serves different markets,

Busingss Segments
The Group mainly operates under the Foods, Feeds and Farms segments:

2. The Foods segment s engaged in the growing, production and distribution of chicken broilers,
either as live or dressed chickens, Its products are distributed to hotels, restaurants, Institstional
clients, wet markets and supermarkets.

b. The Feeds segment caters to the feed requirement of the poultry growers’ industry. It ls engaged
In the manufacture and distribution of animal feeds, animal health and nutritional products, and
feed supplements sold to various distributors, dealers and end users.

€. The Farms segment is invalved in the production, sale and distribution of day-old chicks.

The Corporate and Others segment Includes general and corporate income and expense items which
are not specifically identifiable to a particular segment.

All of the assets relating to the Group's operating segments are located in the Philippines. Accordingly,
reporting operating segments per geographical business operation is not required.

Segment assets, liabilities and revenue and expenses are measured In accordance with
PFRS Accounting Standards. The presentation and classification of segment revenue and expenses are
cansistent with the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. The presentation and
classification of segment assets and liabllithes are consistent with the consolidated statements of
financial position.
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The following tables present revenues and expenses informatian and certain sssets and labllities
information regarding the different business segments as at and for the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 {in millions):
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Coeporaie
Foods Famidi iarmi wod ifere Fiminanor  Cosaalidated
REVERLRES
Hek sale ol goody ¥, 3E3.52 B4 50711 fay.ar B #IE5.58 Wi1447.52
Fairvirlse changes on
binlagical svbels - ivesinci = - §1.T7 - - BLTT
B3A1.53 458711 53438 - L il ] 12,539.28
COrSES AND OTHER OPERATING
ENFEMSES
Coomi o grwds sold, sscludng
deprecianon asd amortgsticon 7.907.58 3471 v - 91122 10.#1.m
Ope=ating sxpenses, sucluding
deprociaton and smortirathos L0 a4 1Ay mrry - Bl ] ]
Dggirptiation and amarisation ELE T LS5 11,58 - - 14B.53
H,035.81 1,800 A% 51904 T LEEN T B2.141 48
SEGRENT OFERATEG FROFIT
{Lods] 33790 L] FaL. L |®ra7.77) |®5.6| a7 L
Cribpt ineame (charpes) - met . | IR
SCOME BEFORT iMODME TaX 31408
Fronision fgr impormes iy E ik ]
BT ACOME TR ]
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33. Business Combination

On December 16, 2021, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the acquisition of 100% of the
outstanding capital stock of BVC from Luzon Agriventure, Inc. (LAVY) for & consideration of P1.00,
BVC is a private domestic corporation engaged, among athers, in poultry production as well as in the
processing, raising and breeding of chickens and similar stocks. The registered principal place of business
of the BVC is located at Marilag-5an Jose Road, Sta. Rosa |, Marilao, Bulacan,

BVC operated as the Parent Company's wholly-owned subsidiary starting January 1, 2022. The assets
acquired and liabilities assumed from the business combination are as follows:

Assets Acquired:
Cash B2.751,245
Trade recevables 11,887,011
Prepayments B,5315,805
Property and eguipmeant B, 739,713
Deferred tax assets 2,200,796
F30,124.570
Liabilities Assumed:
Trade and other payables ¥30,232,590
Deposits 177,040

#30,409,630
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES FOR FILING WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Vitarich Corporation and a Subsidiary
Marilac - San Jose Road, Sta. Rosa |

Marilac, Bulacan

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial statements
of vitarich Corporation (the Parent Company) and a Subsidiary as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for the
years then ended included in this Form 17-A and have Bsved our report thereon dated March 20, 2025. Our
sudits were made lor the purpose of forming an opinion on the consalidated financial statements taken as a
whale, The accompanying supplementary schedules are the responsibility of the Group’s management, These
supplementary schedules include the fallpwing:

® Srhedule on Financial Soundness indicators
# Schedules as Reguired by Part 1T of the Revized Securities Regulation Code [SRC) Rule 63

= Conglomerate Map

* Reconciliation of the Parent Company's Retained Eamings Available for Dividend Declaration

The schedule on financial soundness indicators, including thelr definitions, formulas, calculation, and their
appropriateness or usefulness to the intended users, are the responsibility of the Group's management. These
financial soundness indicators are not measures of operating performance defined by Philipping Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS) Accounting Standards and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures
presented by other companies. The companents of these financial soundness indicators have been traced to
the Group's consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for the years then ended
and no material exceptions were noted.

The other supplementary schedules are presented for purposes of complying with the Revised Securities
Aegulation Code Rule 68 and are not part of the consolidated financial statements, The information in these
schedules has besn subjecied to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic consolidated Anancial
statements, and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the financial data required 1o be set forth
therain in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken aL a whaole.

REYES TACANDONG & CO.

Mol &, W{l
MICHELLE R. ME ]
Fartnar
CPA Cortificate Mo, 97380
Taun [dentification No. 201-892-183-000
B Azcradtation Mo, 4TELP011; Vald unhl lune &, 2026
HiR Acoreditation Mo, O-005144-002- 2023
Vialid urtil lanweary 24, 2026
FTR Mo, 104ET L35
Isgued lanuary 2, 2025, Makat City

March 20, 2025
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VITARICH CORPORATION AND A SUBSIDIARY

FINANCIAL RATIOS

A5 AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 and 2023

Below is a schedule showing the financial soundness indicators in the years 2024 and 2023

Formula 2024 2023
Current Ratio

Current assets #3,206,286,572 B2.750,032.659

Divided by Current liabilines 3,128 B02,760 2,998 275,354

Current Eato 1.025 0917
Debt-to-Equity Ratio

Total labilities F3,538,652,338 #3,321,153,5990

Divided by: Total equity 2,244,954,970 1.901,324,078

Debt-to-Equity Ratio 1.57T6 1.747
Asset-to-Equity Ratio

Total assets W5, 783,607,308 #5,2122.496,068

Divided by: Total equity 2,244,954 970 1,901 342 078

Asset-to-Equity Ratio 2.576 2.747
Solvency Ratio

Met income before depreciation

and amortization F363,104,054 P161,045,195

Divided by: Total liabilities 3,538,652,338 3,321 1539490

Solvency Ratio 0.103 0.048
Interest Rate

Coverage Ratio

Pretax income before interest R3593,384,351 FBZ 403,985

Divided by: Interast expanse 79,000,617 75,823 148

Interest Rate I:mreriie Ratio 4.980 1.087
Profitability Ratio

Met income P116,588,562 F13,304 916

Divided by: Total equity 2,244,954,970 1,901,342,078

Profitability Ratio 0.096 0.007




Farmula 2024 2023
Gross Profit Margin
Gross profit P1,503,647,692 Fo04. 473,628
Divided by: Net sales 12,447 519,619 12,543 6594 175
Gross Profit Margin 12.080% 7.211%
Ne=t Profit Margin Mét incoms F216, 588,562 13304916
Divided by MNet sales 12,4a7,519,619 12.543,694,175
Met Profit Margin 1.740% 0.106%
Earmnings before
Interest, Tax, Mat incoma R216, 588,562 F13,304.916
Depreciation & Add:
Amortization Interest expense 73,000,617 75,823,288
(EBITDA) Taxes 97,795,172 i6,724.219)
Depreciation and amortization 146,515,492 147,740,279
ERITDA F53%, 899,843 P30, 144,264
EBITDA Margin
EBITDA B535, 899,843 F230, 144 264
Divided by: Net sales 12.447.519,619 12,543,694, 175
EBITDA Margin 4.337% 1.835%
Price Earnings Rakio
Market value per share D.540 0.510
Divided by: Earnings per share 0.071 000
Price Eamnings Ratio 7.606 127,500
Return on Average
Equity
Net income P216,588,562 #13,304,916
Divided by Average total equity 2,073,148,524 1,BA7 188 731
Return on Average Equity 10.847% 0.705%




Formula 2024 2023
Quick Ratio
Culek assets F1,671,471,304 #1348 221 840
Divided by: Current labilities 1,128,802, 760 2. 998,275,394
Quick Ratio 0.534 0.450
Debt-to-EBITDA
Total liabilities #3,538,652,338 #3,321,153 990
Divided by: EBITDA 539,899,843 230,144,264
Debt-to-EBITDA 6.554 14.431
Receivable Days
Turmower
Average accounts receivable F589.173,162 EBH52 695,286
(multiplied by 365 days and
divided by net sales)
Receivable Days Turnover 29 a5
Inventory Days
Turnover
Average inventories and biclogical
assels - livestock #1,110,744,370 P1,006,757 526
(multiplied by 365 days and
divided by cost of goods soid)
Inventory Days Turnover 37 32
Accounts Payable
Days
AVErage accounts payable F1.570,679,698 #1647 612,886
{multiplied by 365 days and
divided by credit purchases
Accounts Payable Days 51 52
Cash Conversion Cycle
Diays inventory outstanding 37 32
Add: Days sales outstanding 29 5
Less: Days payable
outstanding {51) (52
Cash Eumrﬂﬂ Cycle 15 5




VITARICH CORPORATION AND A SUBSIDIARY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR FEE-RELATED INFORMATION
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023

Total Audit Fees P3,750,000 #3, 450,000
Mon-audit services fees:

Transfer pricing services 500,000 -

Tax compliance review - 1,100,000

Total Non-audit Fees 500,000 1,100,000

Total Audit and Non-audit Fees B4, 250,000 Wi, 550,000
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PARENT COMPANY’'S RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR

DIVIDEND DECLARATION

FOR THE REPORTING PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

VITARICH CORPORATION
Marilao - San Jose Road, 5ta. Aosa |

Marilao, Bulacan

Amount

Deficit as at the beginning of reporting pericd
Add: Category A° Items that are directly credited to
unappropriated retained sarnings
Transfer from revaluation surplus 1o retained sarmings - net
of deferred income tax

{(P216,530.997)

7,851,147

Deficit, as adjusted
Add: Net income for the current year
Less: Category C.1! Unrealized income recognized in the profit or
loss during the reporting period - net of deferred
incoma tax
Falr value changes an biological assets - livestock
Gain on fair value changes of investment properties

275,757,188

(68,827,209)
(15,264 648)

|208.679,850)

Adjusted net income
Add/Less: Category F: Other items that should be excluded from
the determination of the amount of available for dividend
distribution
Unrealized fair value changes on biological assets - livestock
in 2023, realized in 2024 - net of deferred Income tax
Met movement of unrealized foreign exchange
- net of deferred income tax
Mel movement on set-up of ROU assets and lease liabilities
 net of deferrad income tax
Met movement of deferred tax assets not considered in the
reconciling items under the previous categories

[35,834,624)
113,433
93,275

(3,446,413)

151,665.431

{39,074, 389)

utﬁdtantﬂu-minfﬂgptﬂml

(#56,088,808)
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FORGING Mariao-San Jose Road
'"{ LIVELIHOOD, Bulacan, Philippines 3019

Tel: (+632) 88433033

NOURISHING Fax!(+632) 68433033

VITARIEH leEsm Website: www.vitarich.coi

P& Fmigow

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of Viterich Corporation {the Company) it responsible for the
preparation and falr presentation of the financial statements including the schedules
stiached therein as at and for the vear ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standerds, and for such internal -control as
management determines (§ apcestary to enable the prepacastion of financlal statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, management {4 respondible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disciosing, as applicable matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basls of accounting unless management
gither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, of has no realistic
alternative but to do so

The Board of Directors s responsible in overseeing the Compamy's financial reparting
ProCess.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders

REYES, TACANDONG AND CO., the independent auditor appointed by the stockhalders,
has audited the financial statements of the Company in accordance with Phillppine
standards on Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders. has expressed its opinion on
the fairmess of presentation upon completion of such audit
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Affiant exhibited to me thair respective government-issued 10" as competent proaf of thair
identities and acknowledged that they executed the same freely and voluntarily, to wit:

Name Valid ID Ne. Date of Validity
Josa Vicenta C. Bangzon |1 PH Passport No. P73614858 0a-06-2031
Ricardo Manuel M, Sarmiento Drivers License No. NO3-94-158946 01-20-2032
Stephanie Nicole 5. Garcia PH Passport No. PE5991758 12-28-2031 |
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LIVELIHOOD, Bulacan, Philippines 3019
NOURISHING Fox- (+632) 88433033

Website: www. witarich.coi

““*F LIVES™

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The Management of Vitarich Corporation [the Company] ts responsible for all information and
representations contained in the Annual Income Tax Return for the years ended
December 31, 2024. Management is likgwise responsible for &ll information and representathons
contained in the financial statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax Return covering the
same reporting period, Furthermore, the Managemenl & responsible for all information and
representations contained in all the other tax returns filed for the reporting period, including, but
not limited. to the value added tax and/or percentage iax returns, withholding tax refurns,
documentary stamp tax returns, and any and all other tax returns

in this regard, the Management affirms that the attached audited financial statements for the
years ended December 31, 2024, and the accompanying Annual income Tax Return arg in
sccordance with the books and records of Vitarich Corporation, complete and correct in all
material respects. Management lkewise affirms that:

ial the Annual Income Tax Return has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of
the National Internal Revenue Code, as a mended, and pertinent tax regulations and other
issuances of the Department of Finance and the Bureau of Internal Revenue;

ib) any disparity of figures in the submitted reports ansing from the greparatbon of financial
ctatements pursuant to Philippine Financial Reparting Standards and the preparation of
the Income tax return pursuant to tax accounting rules has been reported as reconciling
items and maintained in the Company’s books and records In accordance with the
requirements of Revenue Regulations No, #-2007 and other relevant issuances;

fch Vitarich Corporation has filed all applicable tax returns, reports and statements required
to be filed under Philippine tax laws for the reporting period, and all taxes and other
impositions shown thereon (o be due and payable have been paid for the reposting
pariod, except those comtested in good faith

SUREAL OF MTEAAL REVENUE
LARGE TAXPAYERS SERVICE
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MAR 27 20625

AY: ROSE MARCIANU
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STEPHAMIE
ExecutiverVice President S Chief Sustainability Officer (C50) f
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Subscribed and sworn to befora me this dayo at MARILAC. ;
Affiant exhibited to me their respectiva government-issued |D's as competent proot of their
identities and acknowladgad that they executad the same freely and voluntarily, to wit:

Name Valid 1D No. Date of Validity
Jose Vicente C. Bengzon 1| PH Passport No, P73614858 08-06-2031
Ricardo Manuel M, Sarmiento Drivers License No, NO3-94-158946 | 01-20-2032
Stephania Micola 5. Garcla PH Passport No. PB5S091758 12-28-2031

{(SUITY

ATTY. NENITA LC. TUAZON
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE
BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE

The Stockhalders and the Board of Directors
Vitarich Corporation

Mariflap — San Jose Road, Sta. Rosa |
Maritao, Bulacan

We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of Vitarich Corporation (the Company),
as at and for the years ended December 11, 2024 and 2023, on which we have rendered our report dated

March 20, 2025,

in compliance with the Revenue Regulations V-20, we are stating that no partner of our Firm is refated by
consanguinity or affinity to the president, manager or principal stockholders of the Company.

REYES TacANDONG & CO.

By Lodes,
Partner

CPA Certifcate Mo, 97380
Tax idantification Mo 301-852-183.000
BOA Apcreditztion Mo, 4TH2P-011; Valld untl june 8, 3025
BIR Accreditation Mo, DE-0057448-002-2027
Valid until lanuary 24, 2026
FTR Mo, 10457105
tssued lanuary 2, 2015, Makati City

March 20, 2025
Makati City, Metro Manila
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INDEPEMDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directars
Vitarich Corparation
Maritao - 5an Jose Road, 5ta. Aosa |

Maritso, Bulacan {B-Li_hﬁﬁﬁﬂ';ﬁ——————
LARGE T B FNAL REVENUE

TERE SERVICE

Report on the Audit of the Separate Financial Statements

o By , R,
We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of Vitarich Corparation (the Company),
which comprise the separate statements of financial position as at December 31, 2024 snd 2023,
and the separate statements of comprehensive income, separate statements of changes in equity and
separate statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the separate financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policy information,

In our opinion, the separate financial statements present falrdy, In all material respects,
the separate financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, and its separate
financial performance and its separate cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) Accounting Standards,

Basis for Opinfon

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing {PSA). Dur responsibilities
under thosa standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Seporote
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to the audit of the separate financial statements in the Philippines,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilites in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Motter

The separate financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended December 11, 2022 were
audited by another auditor whose report dated April 1, 2023 expressed an unmodified opinion on those
separate financial statements,

As part of our audit of the separate financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2023,
we also audited the adjustments described in Note 4 that were applied to restate the separate financial
staternents as at and for the year ended December 31, 2022. In our opinion, such adjustments are
appropriate and have been properly applied. We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any
procedure to the Company's separate financial statements as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2022 other than with respect to the adjustments and accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or any other form of assurance on the separate financial statements as at and for the year ended
Decembar 31, 2022 taken as a whale,

THE PEARALI O BT AR S | O Lk s
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Responsibilities of Monogement and Those Chorged with Governonce for the Seporote Finonciol
Stotements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the separate financial statements
In accordance with PFES Accounting Standards, and for such internal contrel as management determines
is necessary 1o enable the preparation of separate financial statements that are free from materal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermor,

In preparing the separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basls of accounting unkess management either intends to iquidate the Company or to
cEasE operations, or has no realistc alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversesing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Separote Financigl Statements

Our objechives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate financial statements as a
whaole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance s a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that
an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstaterments can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the
aggregate, these could reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these separate financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audits. We also:

» identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the separate financial statements,
whether due to fraud or arrar, detign and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting @ material misstatement resulting from fraud s higher than for ane resulting

from error, as fraud may invole collusion, forgery, intentional omisskons, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in arder to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinien an the
effectiveness of the Campany’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management,
[RUREAL ?F INTERMAL HEVENUE
ARG PAYER RVICE
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* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenal uncertainty exists related 1o events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability o continue as a going concern, If
we conclude that & materlal uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures In the separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
ceass to continue as a going concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the separate fnanclal statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the separate financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in 3 manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and fiming of the audits and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audits.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required under Revenue Regulations Neo. 15-2010 of the
Bureau of Internal Revenue

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic separate financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information on taxes and licenses in Mote 33 to the
separate financial statements is presented for purposas of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and
is not a required part of the basic separate financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
the management of Vitarich Corporation. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in our audits of the basic separate financial statements and in our opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic separate financial statements taken as a whole.

REYES TACANDONG & CoO.

[BUREAL OF INTERNAL REVERNUE
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VITARICH CORPORATION

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
{With Comparative Figures as at December 31, 2022)

December 31
2022
Ay Restated -
Moie 2024 2023 Hote 4)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cagh 5 F585,037,297 #1932, 412 466 351 660,834
Trade and other receivablas (] 1,300, 708,139 1,041,593,956 952,123,442
Inventories 7 B37,228,253 918,860,166 858 665,135
Biological assets - llvestock B 323,675,626 129,394,758 116,118,785
Advances to suppliers 105,768,440 120,429,865 466,415,711
her current asaets 9@ 201,271,396 180,785 580 138,566,046
Total Cufrent Assels 3,353,689,151 2,793,476,792 2,893,553.938
Maoncurrent Assets
Recer/able from an insurence carmpany 10 70,203,810 70,203 810 70,203,810
Property, plant and eguipment: 12
At revalued amounts 1,993.673.918 1837 800,517 1,833,943 49]
AR EDEL 63,360,824 45 535 309 126, 4%3 818
Imvestment propertes 13 312,296,469 301,246, 351 23R,473 042
Right-of-use [ROL] assats 25 96,200,061 B2437.TM 5,529,614
Other noncurrent asiets 14 20,018,643 23,416, 664 X115 331
Total Nonwcurrent Assets 2,556,552, 725 2.460,740,455 1,356,759 208
B5.010, 241,876 W5 254,217,247 5 150,313,926
LIABILITEES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 #2280 890,155 PI1042 463,639 #1,993, 164,255
Current portions of
Leans payahle 16 752,815,730 BB 476,429 SA5. 478 495
Lease fiahifites Lt ¥1,063,007 12,442,663 15,413,841
Cash bond deposits 17 66,192,780 60,306,513 56,102,618
Total Current Liabilities 3,139,961.672 2.873,689.643 3,050,159, 209
Moncurrent Liabilities
Loans payable - net of current partion 16 47,154,760 49,642 856 43,642 856
Lease labifities - net of current portion 5 69,907,154 ol 148857 36,805,998
Met renirement lisbility 24 200,999,042 180,585,650 147,057,500
Met deferred tax liabilites 26 112,754,975 521.467,726 68,714,629
Total Nencurrent Liabilities 430,816,071 343,845,089 302,300,985
Total Liabilities 1,570,777,743 3,317,534, 732 3,352.460,194
Equity
Capital stock 18 1,160,546, 925 1L 160,646,525 1,160,648 925
Additional pald-in capital 1,470,859 1,470,859 1,470 454
Retained sarnings 612,451,733 33E.843.298 68,235 B3
Other comprehensive income 554,804 616 435,721,433 437,500 065
Total Eguity = 2.339 464,133 1,536,682 515 1 .B47 853,732
RUE TAXPAYTRS SERVICEN 910,241,876  §S.254.217,247  #5.250.313,926
Sev accampanying Nores

BY. ROSE MARCLIANL
L1 SOk i A G T SR s e




VITARICH CORPORATION

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

[With Comparative Figures for 2022)
Years Ended December 31
Hxy
(As Restated -
Note 2024 2023 Note 4)
REVENUES i9

Wet sale of goods F11.353,842,318 ®12.485249,526 W11.884,005954

Fair value changes on biclogical assets - livestock 8 51,769,612 (47,779.579) 10,936,438
12 445.611.930 12437 469547 11294947 397
COST OF GOODS S0LD 30 |10,922,169,428) (11,548 866,805) (10,821 832.970)
GROSS FROFIT 1,523,442 502 889,003,142 1073, 109 4322
OPFERATING EXPENSES 1 (1,065,693,310) (B63,572.662)  [B62,597.511)
OTHER INCOME [CHARGES)
Interest expense 16 (77,724,143} {75,823, 268) [40,001.576]
Mot giin on fair value changes of imvestment
phoperties 13 16,893,118 64,113,985 IR, 167,200
Interes income 5 1,234,208 1,531,588 2,394 045
Otthers - net 23 {24,599,916) 9,261,984 (18,626, 195)
(64,196,732} (915,731} [ 20,066, 025)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 373,551,460 24,514,743 175,445 BES
PROVISION FOR [BENEFIT FROM]) INCOME TAX L]
Carrrant 79,849,366 21,935, 240 51,302,873
Deferred 17,545 806 (21,247 436) 9,722,003
97,795,172 BET, 744 1,024, 8596
NET INCOME 115, 757 258 23,877,005 118,400,989
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Not to be reclassified to profit or loss:
Het revaluation incremaent on property, plant and
eguipment - net of deferred income tax 12 125 470,897 25,194,607 87.372.482
Remeasurement gain (koss) on net retirement
lizbility - nat of deferred income tax 24 1,553,433 [10,153,525) 31841070
127,024,330 15,001,778 129,213 552
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Ra0Z, 781,614 W38, 828.TE3 R247,634 541
wﬂﬂﬂﬁh EARNINGS PER SHARE 28 PO.030 Fi.008 #0385

See ocompaaying Notes fo Sepovote Fnanciod Shofemenis

NTERNAL REVENUE
TAXPA r v_~. SEF.: fj.‘E

GE T
MAR 27 2005 |D
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VITARICH CORPORATION

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

(with Comparative Figures for 2022)
Yoars Ended December 31
022
{As Restatied -
Mot 2024 2023 hiote d)
CAPITAL STOCK 18 #1160 8325 #1 160,640,525 W1 160646925
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL 1,470,859 1,470, 855 1,470,859
RETAINED EARNIMGS
Balance at beginning of year, as previously
reported 338,843,198 304,556,328 135,015,735
Prior pariod adjustments A = {6.320,445) 32,905,870
Balance at beginning af yesr, 41 redtated 338,843,298 298, 235,883 167,921,605
Mat incoms 175,757,288 23 BI7T 0GOS 11B,420,583
Transfer from revaluation surplus to retamed
earnings - net of deferred income tax 12 7,851,147 16,780,410 11,893,289
Balance at end of year 622,451,733 338,843,298 298,235,EE83
DOTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPEATY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT - Net of deferred
Emcame Lax 12
Balance at beginning of vear, a& previously
reported 231,558,207 414 078,148 347 844 301
Prior period adjustmants 4 - 19,465,862 220,516
Badance at beginning of year, as restated 441,558,207 433,544,010 348 0G4 01T
ket revaluation increment on property, plant and
eguipment - net of deferred income T 125,470, 897 25,194,607 o7, 372 483
Transfer from revaluation surplus to retalned
eamings - net of deferred income tax (7,851,147} (16,780,410 {11,853 285)
Batance at end of year 558,577,957 441,958,207 433,544,000
CUMULATIVE REMEASUREMENT GAIN (LOSS) ON
MET RETIREMENT LIABILITY - Met of
deferred Income Lax 24
Balance ot beginning of year [B,236,774) 3,885,065 [27,885,015]
Remeaturerment gain [loss) - net of
deferred Income taw 1,553,433 (10,152,829} 31841070
Balance at and of year [4,683,341) 16, 236,774) 1956 055
554,894,616 435,721,433 437,500,065
#2,335,464,133 ®1.5936,682515 BI1.H97.B53 732

e pecompinyiig Mates to Separate Fingnciad Shatemanis
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VITARICH CORPORATION

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

[With Comparative Figures for 2022)
Years Ended December 31
2023
[As Rastated -
Noke 2024 2023 Note £)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
income befars income tax W373,552,.460 F14,514, 749 R179 445 BES
Adjustmants for
Depreciation and amortization 12 137,921,568 140,777,962 128 BBG,512
Fair value changes on biological assets - llvesteck 8 [51,769,612) 47,778,578 110,036,438)
interest expense 15 71,724,142 75,823,2E8 40,001,976
Provasion for espected credit loss (ECL) an trade
receivables & 41,051 404 3,539,062 1,704,635
Lodses on inventories and property, plant and
eguipment damaged by the typhoon T.12 26,408,E70 - s
Retiramant expense 4 25,361,136 22,122,540 22,336,339
Gain on collection of previausly written ofl irade
receivables f (18,152.087] = =
MNet gain on falr value changes of investment
propertied 13 (16,893,118) {64,113 985) (28, 167.200]
Loss [gain) on dispasal of property, plant and
eguipment and investment properties and ROU
asget 23 1,559,243 1412275} 1,037,744
PSR iRcamiE 5 {1,234, 208) (1,551,588) [2,394,545)
Operating income befare working capital changes 555,565,787 248,499,332 331,914, 508
Decrease [increase] in
Trade and other receivables [2d6,949,121) {93,008.575) (91.829,373)
Inventories and biological assets - livestock [ZB,178.947)  |121,250,613) {288.361.346)
Advances (o suppliers 14,661,415 345,989, B46 (290,075,648}
Othier current assets {10,485 818) {5L.219.534] S 5LL5A0
Other noncurrent assets related to operations - 5,300,636 W7 773611}
Increase in:
Trade and other payables 247,426,516 49,289 384 281,595,074
Cash band depodits 5,885,868 4,204 294 8,050,529
Met cash gengrated from [used for} operations 537,529,712 386, E12. 770 (21,968,327
income tanes paid (79,849,366) (21,935,240} [51,302.873)
Retirement benefits paid 24 (2.876,500) {2,184 831) (9,124,310
interest recened 1,234,208 1,531,588 107.932
Net cash provided by [used in) operating activities ﬁi-,-lll_t!lsi 364,225,287 (B2, 287 578)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions To property, plant and equipmsni il (71,257,453 (103,811,238 {251,978 491)
Froceeds from sale of property, plant and
eguipment; investment properties arnd ROU
assels 8,738,370 3,286,483 200,000
Additions to investment properties 13 - {1,712,209) -
Net cash used In Investing activiti 19,083} [#102,036964) [M251,778.401)
1 TEFNAL
(Forward) Lﬁ.F!EETI-F'r'Ié;’J.ESE'I.'IEE

BY; RCSE MARCIANG
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Years Ended Decembar 31
2022
|As Restated -
Nate 2024 2023 Note 4}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Fayments of loans 16 (™1,057,031,995) (W1.877,235724) (W1 819 459 528)
Avallments of loans 16 QL8 ARSI 1,740, 333,658 £,3458 559,181
Interest paid (68,837,102) (6B, 308, 852) (35,735 576}
Payments of lease liabidines 15 (34,308,243) [26,125,747) (28.303 544}
Net cash provided by [used in) financing activities {201,294,180) (231,436,665 466,030,503
NET INCREASE IN CASH 192,624, 831 30,751,638 131,564 434
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 332,412 466 361660638 429 656, 404
CASH AT END OF YEAR 5 R5ES,037, 297 #3507 417 AGE R361,660,838
HONCASH FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Recognithon of ROU assets and lease liabilities 25 a2, 799,384 #43.903,022 #3d,331.713

h‘l‘mmﬂ Nodes o Sepmrgie Fimancil Srafsments.
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VITARICH CORPORATION

NOTES TO SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023
[With Comparative Infarmation far 2022)

1. General Information

Corporate Information
Vitarich Corporation (the Company) was incorporated and registered with the Philippine Securitias

and Exchange Commission (S5EC) on July 31, 1962 to engage primarily in manufacturing, preparing,
processing, miking and dealing with feeds, foodstuls, graing, and commaodities of every description
for poultry, livestock and all kinds of animal feeding. The Company's shares of stock were listed with
the Philippine Stock Exchange on February 8, 1995,

The registered principal place of business of the Company is at Marilao-San Jose HRoad,
5ta. Rosa |, Marilao, Bulacan. The Company has operating offices in Luron, lloila and Davao and
maintains satellite offices in southern Philippines.

Fin I
The separate financial statements as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for the vears ended
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 were approved and authorized for lssue by the Board of Directors
[BOD) on March 20, 2025, as reviewed and recommended for approval by the Audit Committes on
the same date,

4. Summary of Material Accounting Policy Information

The material accounting policy information used in the preparation of the separate financial
statements have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation

The separate financial siatements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporfing Standards (PFRS} Accounting Standards. This financial reporting framework includes
PFRS Accounting Standards, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretation from
international Finmncial Reporting Interpretations Committes issued by the Philippine Financial and
Sustainability Reporting Standards Council and adopted by the SEC, including SEC pronouncements

The Company also prepares consolidated financial statements for the same year in accordance with
PFRS Accounting Standards for the Company and its Subsidiary (collectively referred to as the Group).
sers of these separate financial statements should read them together with the consolidated
financial statements in order to obtain full information on the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Group as & whole. The consolidated financial statements may be obtained at
the registered office address of the Company or at the SEC.

The separate financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (Pesa), the Company's functional
currency. All values are rounded to the nearest Peso, unless otherwise indicated.

UBEAL OF INTERNAL HEVENUE
LARGE T IF’A‘rF”IS__StE RVICE
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The separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for property, plant and equipment (exciuding transportation equipment and construction
in-progress) which are carried at revalued amounts, investment properties which are carried at fair
value, biclogical assets - livestock which are carried at fair value less costs to sall, agricultural produce
which are carried at fair value less costs to sell at point of harvest, lease labilities which are carried at
the present value of future lease payments, plan assets which are carried at fair value, and retirement
liability which is carried at the present value of the defined benefit obligation. Historical cost Is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for an asset or fair value of
consideration received in exchange for incurring lability.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability In an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement |s
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
gither,;

* |nthe principal market for the asset or lability; or
= in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Hability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measurad using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of 3 nonfinanclal asset takes into account a market participant's ability 1o
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to ancther
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a llability, the Company uses market ahservable data to
the extent possible. If the fair value of an asset or a liability is not directly observable, it is estimated
by the Company (working closely with external gualified valuers) using valuation techniques that
maximize the use of relevant cbservable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs
(#.8- by use of the market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar
items, discounted cash flow analysis, or option pricing models refined to reflect the issuer's specific
circumstances). Inputs used are consistent with the characteristics of the asset ar lability that market
parficipants would take into account.

Further information about assumgtions made in measuring fair values are included in the following:
Note 3 - Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

Note 8 - Biological Assets - Livestock

ﬁIrnEm ff“.» INTERNAL REVENUE]

Note 12 - Property and Equipment LARGE

Note 13 - Investment Properties MAR 27 2025 =L|
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Note 32 - Fair Value Measurement
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Fair values are categorired into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the degree to which
the inputs to the measurement are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
maasurement In its entinety:

o  Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices [unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or llabilites,

* Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or Hability, either directly (l.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

o Level 3 fair valoe measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on abservable market data (unobservable inputs).

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognized by the Company at the end of the
reporting period during which the change occurred.

AdopDion of A ged Friy Accounting Stang
The accounting policies adopted are consistent
the adoption of the following amended PFRS Accounting Standards effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2024:

*  Amendments to PAS 7, Stotement of Cosh Flows and PFRS Accounting Standards 7, Financial
Instrument: Disclosures - Supplier Finance Arrangements — The amendments introduced new
disclosure requirements to enable users of the financial statements assess the effects of
supplier Hnance arrangements on the liabllittes, cash Nlows and exposure to lquidity risk.
The amendments also provide transitional relief on certain aspects, particularly on the disclosures
of comparative information. Earfier application s permitted.

The adoption of the foregoing amended PFRS Accounting Standards did not have any material effect
an the separate financial statements of the Company. Additional disclosures were included in the
separate financial statements, as applicable.

B AN FrRs Accounfing standard e o :

Relevant new and amendments to PFRS Accounting Standards, which are not yet effective as at
December 31, 2024 and have not been applied in preparing the separate financial statements, are
summarized below:

LLEL L BA LLLL A

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after lanuary 1, 2026 -

* Amendments to PFRS Accounting Standards 9, Financigl Instruments, and PFRS Accounting
standards 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Clossification ond Meosurement of Financial
Asgsets = The amendments clarify that a financial liability is derecognized when the related
obligation is discharged, cancelled, expires or otherwise gualifies for derecognition
(e.g. settlement date), and introduces a policy option to derecognize financial liabilities settied
through an electronic payment system before settlement date if the required conditions are met.
The amendments also clarify the assessment of contractual cash flow characteristics of financial
assets, the treatment of non-recourse loans and contractually linked instruments, as well as
require additional disclosure requirements for financial assets and liabilitles with contingent
features and equity instruments classified at fair value .

{FVOCI). Earlier application is permitted,
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s« Annual Improvement to PFRS Accounting Standards Valume 11:

& Amendments to PFRS Accounting Standards 7, Financigl festruments: Disclosures —
The amendments update and remove some obsoiete referances related to the gain or loss
on derecognition on financlal assets of an entity that has a continuing Involvement and to
the disclosure requirements on deferred differences between fair value and transaction
price. The amendments also clarify that the illustrative guidance does not necessarily
Mustrate all the requirements for credit risk disclosure, Earlier application | permitted.

o Amendments 1o PFRS Accounting Standards 9, Slnancial Instruments = Transaction Price ong
Lessee Derecognition of Lease Liobifities = The amendments clarify that when a lessee has
determined that a lease Hability has been extinguished in accordance with PFRS Accounting
Standards 9, the lessee must apply the derecognition criteria for a financial liahility which
requires recognition of a gain ar loss in prafit or loss. The amendmants also replace the
reference to ‘transoction price ot defined by PFRS Accounting Stondards 15, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers’ to ‘the omount determined by applying PFRS Accounting
Standards 15" to remaove potential confusion. Earlier application is permitted

o

Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cosh Flows - Cost Method — The amendments replace
the term “cost mathod” with ‘at cost’ following the delation of the definition of ‘cost method’,
Earlier application is permitted,

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after lanuary 1, 2027 -

« PFRS Accounting Standards 18, Presentotion ond Disclosure fn Flnencial Statements -
This standard replaces PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, and sets out the reguirements
for the presentation and disclosure of information to help ensure that the financial statements
provide refevant information that faithfully represents the entity's assets, llabilities, equity,
income and éxpenses. The standard introduces new categories and sub-totals in the statements
of comprehensive income, disclosures on management-defined performance measures, and new
principles for grouping of information, which the entity needs to apply retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted.

Under prevalling circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amendments to
PFRS Accounting Standards s not expected to have any material effect on the separate Francial
statements of the Company. Additional disclosures will be included In the separate financial
statements, as applicable.

Financial Assets and Liabllities

Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the Separate

statements of financial position when It becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument.

initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial instruments are recognized Initially at fair value,
which s the fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability),
The initfal measurement of financial Instruments includes transaction costs.




Financial Assets ar Amortized Cost. Financial assets shail be measured at amortized cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

s the financial asset is held within a business model whase objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

¢ the confractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment, if any, Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into eccount any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the financial
#ssets are derecognired or impaired or through the amortization process. Financial assets at
amortized cost are included under current assats if realizability or collectability is within 12 months
after the reporting period. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets,

Az at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company’s cash, trade and other receivabies
(excluding advances 1o officers and employees), receivable from an insurance company and security
deposits (presented under “Other Noncurrent Assets” account) are classified under this category
[sme Notes 5, 6, 10 and 14).

Financia! Liobilities ot Amortized Cost. Financial liabilites are categorized as financial liabilities at
amortized cost when the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Company having an
abligation gither to deliver cash ar another financial asset to the holder, or to settle the obligation
other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
ts own equity instruments.

These financial liabilines are initally recognized at fair value less any diractly attributable transaction
costs, After inittal recognition, these financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Amortized cost s calculated by taking into account sny discount
or premium on the ssue and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Gains and
losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized or through the amortization
process.

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company's trade and other payables {excluding statutory

payables), loans payable, lease labilities and cash bond deposits are classified under this category
[see Notes 15, 16, 17 and 25).

Impairment of Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
The Company records an allowance for expected credit loss (ECL) based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the

Company expects to receive. The difference is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s
griginal effective interest rate.

For trade receivables, the Company has applied the simplified approach and has calculated ECL based
on the lifetime ECL. The Company has established a provision matrix that s based on its historical

credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-tooking factors specific to the debtors and the econpmic
environment



For other financial assets measured at amortized cost, the ECL is based on the 12-month ECL, which
pertains to the portion of lifetime ECL that result from default events on a financial Instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. However, when there has been a significant
increass in credin risk since initial recognition, the allowance will be based an the lifedime ECL
When determining whether tha credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since Initial
recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default eccurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
imittal recognition and consider reasonable and supportable information, that s available without
unidwe cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in cradit risk since initlal recognition.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financiol Assets. A financial asset {or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

& {he right to receive cash Nlows from the asset has expired:

* the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay 10 & third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

s the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the financial asset and either
(&) has transferred substantially ail the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred Its right to recelve cash flows from a financial asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset nor transferred control of the financial asset,
the financial asset is recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing invelvement in the
financial asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
financial asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the financial asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay,

Fingncia! Liabilites. A financial lability is derecognized when the obligation under the Hability is
discharged, cancelled or has expired. When an existing financial llability Is replaced by anather from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new llability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized
in the separate statements of comprehensive intome.

statements of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right 1o offset the
recognized amounts and there is intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with masier netting agreements, and the
related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the separate statements of financial position.



A financial instrument I.: :I-iiilﬂed @5 Iiihlllw ifin prm.-l:lu-s fnr a :nnml:tual obligabon to:
« Deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity;

= Exchange fnancial assets or financial liabilites with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavaorable to the Company; or

# Satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for & fived number of own equity shares,

if the Company does not have an unconditional right to avaid delivering cash or another financial asset
to settie its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial liability.

Inventories
Inventories consist of feeds, raw materiais and feed supplements, supplies and animal heaith

products, finished goods and hatching eggs. Cost is determined using the moving average method
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV),

Feeds. Feeds include costs of raw materials and costs of direct labor and manufacturing overhead.

Row Muoteriols, Feed Supplements, Supplies and Animal Health Products. For these inventories,
all costs directly attributable to acquisition such as the purchase price, import duties and other taxes
that are not subsequently recoverable from taxing authorities are included as part of costs.

Finished Goods. Finished goods, which include fresh and frozen chicken cut-ups, include costs of
direct materials, labor and overhead.

Hatching Eggs. Hatching eggs are initially measured at the fair value less estimated costs to sell at the
paint of harvest.

The NRV of feeds, feed supplements, animal health products, finished goods and hatching eggs are
based on the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the cost of marketing and
distribution, while the NRV of raw materials and supplies are the current replacement costs.,

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those Inventories is recognized as an eipense in
profit or loss.

Biological Assets - Livestock

This consists of biological assets such as day-old chicks after undergoing the hatching process,
chicks which are grown as chicken broilers, and parent stock. These are measured on inftial
recognition and at the end of each reporting period at fair value less costs to sell, The Company's fair
valuanion takes into consideration inputs based on the hatchability rate of egge, martality of chicks
being grown as chicken brollers and parent stock, estimated future cash flows to be incurred in
hatching the eges and growing the chicks and parent stock, among others,

Gain or loss arising on Initial recognition and any changes in the fair value less costs 1o seil of lvestock
are recorded as part of "Revenues” in the separate statements of comprehensive income.



Advances to Suppliers

Advances to suppliers are amounts paid in advance for the purchase of goods and services.
These are carried in the separate statements of financial position at face amount and are recognized
as pxpanse in profit or loss or to the corresponding asset account when the services or goods for which
the advances were made are récefved by and dalivered to the Company with reference to percentage

of completion, if any,

Advances 1o suppliers ciassified as current assets since the corresponding goods or services are
expected to be deilvered or performed for no more than 12 months after the financial reporting
period.

Other Current Assets
Other current assets consist of advances to contract growers and breeders, creditable withholding

taxes (CWT), prepayments and Input value-added taxes (VAT).

Advances to Controct Growers ond Breeders, Advances to contract growers and bresders pertaln to
purchases of animal health products and feeds that are already paid in advance. These are expécted
to be recebved by and delivered to the Company for no more than 12 months after the financial

reporting period,

CWT. CWT represent the amounts withheld at source by the Company's customers in relation to its
income. These ara recognized upon colfection and are utilized as tax credits against income tax due
a5 allowed by the Philippine taxation laws and regulations.

Prepoyments. Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred but afready paid in cash,
Prepayments are initlally recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid, Subsequently,
these are charged to expense as these are consumed in operations or expire with the passage of time,
Prepayments that are expected to be incurred no more than 12 months after the reporting date are
classified as current assets. Otherwise, these are classified &5 noncurrent assets

input VAT. Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT except in cases
where VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authaority,
in which case, VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item, as applicable, or receivable and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT Included

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. The cost of property, plant and
equipment consists of the purchase price, including import duties and other costs directly attributable
to bring the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Cost also includes the cost
of replacing parts of such property, plant and equipment when the recognition criteria are met and
the present value of the estimated cost of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site
where the assel is located.

Property, plant and equipment (except for transportation eguipment and construction in-progress)
are stated ot revalued amounts as determined by an independent appraiser. Transporiation
equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in value, if any.
Construction in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment in value, if any,



Expenditures incurred afier the properiy, plant and eguipment have been put Inlo operation,
such as repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to operations in the year the
costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demanstrated that the expenditures have
resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits axpected to be obtained from the use of an
item of property, plant and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance,
the expenditures are capltalized as addifional costs of property, plant and equipment,

Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, property, plant and equipment (except for land,
transportation equipment and construction in-progress] are carried at revalued amounts less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation, amortization and any accumulated mpairment losses.
Land is carried at revalued amount less accumulated impairment losses; if any, Fair market value is
determined by reference to market-based evidence, which s the amount for which the assets could
be exchanged between a knowledgeable willing buyer and a knowledgeable willing seller in an arm's
length ftransaction as at the valuation date. Any revaluation surplus is credited to
“Revaluation Surplus” account presented under “Other Comprehensive Income® section af the
separate statements of financial position. Any decrease in the revaluation surplus of the same ssse1
is charged to other comprehensive income (OCI) to the extent of any credit balance existing in the
revaluation surplus in respect of that asset and the remaining decline, if any, is recognized in the
separate statements of comprehensive income.

Annually, an amount from the "Revaluation Surplus™ account is transferred 1o “Retained Earnings”
under the “Equity” section in the separate statements of financial position for the depreciation
relating to the revaluation surplus, net of related taxes. Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus relating
to the particular asset sold is transferred to "Retained Earnings”. Revaluations are performed avery
ong to two years to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period,

Depreciation and amortization are calculated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated
useful lives of the assets:

Asset Type MNumber of Years

Plant, machinery and equipment 10 to 20 years

Buildings 20 years

Leasehold and land improvements 2 10 5 years or lease term, whichever is shorter
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 o 10 years

Transportation equipment 4 to 5 years

The estimated useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed periodically to
ensure that the periods and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the
expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property, plant and equipment.

Fully depreciated and amortized assets are retained in the account until these are no langer in use
and no further charge for depreciation and amortization is made in respact to thase assets,

Construction in-progress is stated at cost. This includes cost of construction and other direct costs.
Construction in-progress is not depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are completed and
available for operational use.
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An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognited upon disposal or when no future econamic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
s included in profit or loss in the year the asast is derecognized.

Investment Properties
Investment properties are properties held either to earn rental income ar for capital appreciation or
bath, but not for sale in the ardinary course of business or for administrative purposes.

The Compary uses falr value model for the accounting of its investment properties. Under this
method, investment properties are initially measured at cost but are subsequently remeasured at fair
value at each reporting date, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. Cost comprises
the purchase price and any directly attributable costs in developing and improving the properties.
Cost also Includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost
is incurred If the recognition criteria are met. The fair value of investment properties s determined
using sales comparison approach by an independent real estate appraiser. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair values of investment properties are included In profit or loss in the period in which
they arise, including the corresponding tax effect. For the purposes of these separate financial
statements, In order to avoid double counting, the Tair value reported in the separaie financial
statements is reduced by the carrying amount of any accrued income resulting from the spreading of
lease incentives and minimum lease payments, as applicable.

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced
by the ending of owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending
of the construction or development. Transfers are made from Investment property when, and only
when, there is a change in use, evidenced by the commencement of owner occupation or
commencement of development with a view ta sell,

Investment properties are derecognized when either those have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit s expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognized in the separate statements of comprehensive income in the year of retirement or disposal.

Rental income and operating expenses from investment properties are reporied as part of
"Others - net” and “Operating Expenses,” respectively, in the separate statements of comprehensive
income

Other Noncurrent Assets
Other noncurrent assets consist of project development costs, security deposits classified as financial
assets and computer software,

Project Development Costs. These represent costs directly attributable to the development of the
Company’s aqua feeds and agqua culture projects. The capitalized development costs pertain to the
amount of cash paid or the fair value of the other considerations given to acquire an asset at the time
of its acquisition or production.
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Computer Software. Computer software is measured at cost of acquisition less any accumulated
amartization and impairment losses, if any. Computer software (s amortized on a straight-line basis
over the economic useful life of three (3) years and assessed Tor Impairment whenesver there |5 an
indication that the computer soffware may be Impaired. amortization period and amortization
méethod for computer software are reviewed at each reporting date. Any change in the expected
uselul life ar the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset
is recognized prospectively.

im M

The carrying amounts of the Company’s nonfinancial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
net recoverable amount is estimated.

Any impalrment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit (CGU)
exceeds its net recoverable amount. A CGU is the smallest identifiable asset Company that generates
cash flows that are largely independent from other agsets of the Company. Impairment losses are
fecognized In profit or loss In the period incurred.

The net recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use or its fair value less costs to
sell. Value in use is the present value of future cash Nows expected to be derived from an asset while
fair vatue less cost 1o sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's length
transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties less costs of disposal. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset,

Impairment losses recognized in prior peériods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss & reversed IF there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss has been
recognized.

Leases
A-contract is, or contains, a lease when it conveys the rght to contral the use of an identified asset

for a period of time in exchange for consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time, the Company assesses whether, throughout
the period of use, the customers has both of the following:

& The right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset: and
» The right to direct the use of the identified asset

If the Company has the right to control the use of an identified asset for only a portion of the term of
thee contract, the contract contains a bease for that portion of the term,

The Company also assesses whether a contract contains a lease for each potential separste |sase
component,
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The Company as Lessee

The Company recognizes right-of-use (ROU) asset and lease fability for all leases, except for leases
with izase terms of 12 months or lass (short-term leases) and leases for which the underlying asset is
of low value, in which case the lease payments associated with those leases are recognized as an
expense on a straight-line bases.

ROU Assets. At commencement date, the Company measures the ROU assets at cost, The cost
COmprises:

The amount of the initial measurement of lease liabilites;
Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

= Any initial direct costs incurred by the Company; and

s Anestimation of costs to be incurred by the Company in dismantling and removing the underlying
assel, when applicable.

After the commencement date, the ROU assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the related lease
linbilities. The ROU assets are amortized over the shorter of the lease terms or the useful lives of the
underlying assets ranging as fallows:

Asset Type Mumber of Years
Burlding 2 1o 5 vears
Transportation equipment 5 yEars

Lease Liohilifies. At commencemant date, the Company measures leass liabilities a1 the present value
of future lease payments using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. Otherwise, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of lease liabilities comprise the following:

Fiied payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;

Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

The exgrcise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise,
lease payments in an optional renewal periad if the Company is reasonable certain to exercise an
extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably
Certain not to terminate early.

Lease liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Interest on the lease labilities and any
variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities are recognized in profit
or loss unless these are capitalized as costs of another asset. Variable lzase payments not Included In
the measurement of the lease liabilities are recognized in profit or loss when the event or condition
that triggers those payments ocours.

The Company as a Lessor

Leases where the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
are classified as operating leases. Initlal direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the leass term on the same
basis as réntal Income.
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Eguity
Capitol Stock. Capital stock is measured at par vaiue for all shares issued and outstanding.

Adgitonol Poid-in Copital (APIC), APIC is the procesds and/or falr value of considerations recened in
excess of par value of the subscribed capital stock. Incremental costs incurred diractly sttributable to
the issuance of new shares are recognized as deduction from equity, net of any tax. Otherwise,
these are recognized as expense in profit or koss,

Retained Eornings. Retained earnings represents the cumulative balance of net income or loss,
net of any dividend declaration and prior period ad justments.

OCL OC! comprises of items of income and expense that are not recognited In profit or loss in
accordance with PFRS Accounting Standards. OC of the Company pertains to revalustion surplus on
property, plant and equipment and cumulative remeasurement gains and losses on net retirement
fiability.

Revenue Recognition
The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and distribution of animal fesds, animal health and

nutritional products, and feeds supplements. The Company is also engaged in the production of
day-ohd chicks and In the growing, production and distribution of chicken broilers, elther as live or
dressed chickens,

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the performance obligation in the contract
has been satisfied, either at a point in time or over time. Revenue is recognized aver time if ane of the
following criteria is met: (a) the customer simultaneouwsly recelves and consumes the benefits as the
Company performs its obligations; (b) the Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or [c) the Company’s performance does
not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the Company has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date. Otherwise, revenue |5 recognized at a point in time.

The Company also assesses its revenug arrangements to determine if it is acting as a principal or as
an agent, The Company has assessed that it acts as a principal in all of its revenue sources

Revenue from the Company’s sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control of the goods
is transferred 1o the customers, which is normally upon delivery.

The following specific recognition critéria must also be met before other revenue items outside the
scope of PFRS Accounting Standards 15 are recognized:

Fair Value Changes on Biologicel Assets - Livestock. Fair value changes on biological assets - livestock
are recognized in profit or loss for the periad in which it arises.

Rental Income., Rental income on leased property is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease
term;

interest Income. Revenie is recognized as Interest accrues, taking into consideration the effective
yleld on the asset, Interest income from cash in banks are net of inal tax.

Qther income. Dther income is recognized when earned.
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Cost and Expense Recognition

Cost and expenses are decreases in economic benefits duning the accounting perind in the form of
outflows or depletions of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decreases In sguity,
other than those relating to distributions to equity participants

Cost of Goods Sold, Cost of goods sold are recognized as expense when the related goods are
delwered.

Operating Expenses. Operating expenses constitute cost of administering the business and cost
incurred to sell and market its products, These are expensed as incurred,

Interest Expense. These are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method,
Other Charges. Other charges are recognized when incurred.

Employee Benefits

Short-term Benefits, The Company recognizes a llability net of amounts already paid and an expense
for services rendered by employees during the accounting period. A fiability is also recognized for the
amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Company has
a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amaunt as a result of past service provided by
the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Short-term employee benefit liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the redated service is provided.,

fenrement Benefits, The Company has a partially funded, non-contributory defined benefit plan
covering all qualified employees. The retirement benefits cost is determined using the projecied unit
credit method which reflects services rendered by employees to the date of valuation and
incorporates assumptions concerning employees’ projected salaries.

The Company recognizes service costs, comprising of current service costs, past service costs and
net interest axpense or income in profit or loss, Met interest is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net retirement liability or asset.

Past service costs are recognized In profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan amendment or
curtailment, and the date that the Company recognizes restructuring-related costs.

Remeasurements pertaining to actuarial gains and losses and return on plan assets are recognized
immediately in OCl in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent perlods.

Plan assets are assets that are held in trust and managed by a trustes bank. Plan assets are not
avallable to the creditors of the Company, nor can they be paid directly to the Company. The fair value
of the plan assets (s based on the market price information. When no market price Is available,
the fair value of plan assets Is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount
rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal
date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of the
related obligations). I the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the
retirement liability, the measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to tha assat
teiling which Is the present value of economic benefits avaitable in the farm of refunds from the plan
ar reductions in future contributions to the plan.
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The net retirement lability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and
the fair value of plan assets against which the obligations are to be seftled directly,
The present value of the retirement obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rate on government bonds that have terms to maturity approwimating the
terms of the related retiremant liability,

Actuarial valuations are made with sufficient regularity so that the amounts recognized in the separate
financial statements do not differ materially from the amounts that would be determined at the
reportng date.

Income Taxes

Current Tox, Current tax assets and liabilites are measured at the amount sxpectad to be recovered
from or paid Lo the tax authority. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, Deferred tax asssts are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that tasable
income will be avallable against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available 1o allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized (o the extent that it has become probable that future taxabie
income will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are applicable to the yvear when
the asset Is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the reparting date.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilites and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reparting period, to recover
or seftle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. For purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilivies and deferred tax assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair value
madel, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recoverad entirely through sale,
uniess the presumption is rebutted, that is, when the investment property is depreciable and s held
within the business model whose objective Is consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather than through sate.

Most changes in deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expensa in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in OC or directly in
equity, In this case, the tax Is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilivies are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to offset

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and deferred taxes refate to the same taxable entity
and the same tax authority,
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Related Party Relationships and Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly and indirectly, to contral the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are considered to be related these are subject 10 common control or comman
significant influence. Key management personnel are also considered as related parties.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related parties,
regardless of whether a price is charged. This is measured on an arm's-length basis in @ manner
similar to transactions with non-related parties,

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company hasa present legal or constructive obligation as a result

of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required 1o settle the obligation and a refiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settie the present obligation,
based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period, including risks and
uncertainties associated with the present obligation. IF the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriste, the risks
specific to the lability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognized as an interest expense. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (EPS)
Basic EP5 is computed by dividing the net income for the period attributable to common equity

halders of the Company by the weighted average number of imsued, subscribed and outstanding
common shares during the period, with retroactive adjustment for any stock dividends declared.

Diluted EPS is computed in the same manner, adjusted for the effects of any potentially dilutive
convertible securities,

Events After the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Company's Ainancial positicn
at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in the separate financial statements.
Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to separate financial
statements when material

Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company's separate financial statements reguires management to make
judgments, accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets, labllites,
income and expenses reported in the separate financial statements. These are based on
management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the separate financial
statements,

While the Company believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant
differences in the actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect
the estimated amounts, Actual results could differ from such estimates.
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The accounting estimates and underlying assumptions aré reviewed on an on-going basis.
Changes in accounting estimates are recognized in the perkad in which the estimate is revised if the
change affects only that period or in the period of the change and Tuture periods if the revision affects
both current and future perfods.

ludgments

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant affect on the
amounts recognized in the separate financial statements.

Determining the Highest and Best Use of Investment Properties. The Company determines the highest
and best use of its investment properties when measuring fair value. In making Its judgment,
the Company takes into account the use of the investment properties that is physically possible,
legalty permissible and Rnancially feasible,

The carrying amounts of investment properties as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are disclosad In
MNote 13.

Determining the Legse Commitments — The Company as o Lessor, Leases where the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases.
Imitial direct costs incurred in negotiating an ocperating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognized over the lease term an the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents,
if any, are recognized as revenue in the period in which these are sarnad.

Rental iIncome eamed in 2024, 2023 and 2022 are disclosed in Naote 25

Determining the Lease Term ond Incremental Borrowing Bote. The lease term s a significant
component in the measurement of both the ROU assets and lease fiabilities. Judgment is exercised in
determining whather thera is reasonable certainty that an option to extend the lease or purchase the
underlying asset, if any, will be exercised, or an option 1o terminate the lease will not be exercised,
when ascertaining the periods to be included in the lease term. In determining the lease term,
all facts and circumstances that create an economical incentive to exercise an extension option,
or not to exercise a termination option, are considered at the lease commencement date. Factors
considered may Include the importance of the asset to the Company's operations, comparison of
terms and conditions to prevailing market rates, incurrence of significant penalties, existence of
significant leasehold improvements, and the costs and disruption 1o replace the asset. The Company
reassesses whether It s reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, of not exercise a
termination option, if there is a significant event or significant change In circumstances.

Where the interest rate implicit in @ lease cannot be readily detarmined, an incremantal borrowing
rate is estimated to discount future lease payments to measure the present value of the leass
liabilities at the lease commencement date. Such a rate is based on what the Company estimates it
would have to pay a third party to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the ROU assets, with similar terms, security and economic environment. The Company uses its general
borrowing rate adjusted for the lease terms, securities of an [tem with the underlying nature of the
leased assets and expectations of residual value, among others.

The carrying amounts of ROU assets and lease fabilities as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are
disclosed in Mote 25.



- 18-

Assessing Provisions and Contingencies. The Company evaluates legal and administrative proceedings
ta which it is involved based on analysis of potential results, Management and its legal counsels do
not befieve that any current proceedings will have material adverse effects on its separate financial
position and results of operations, It ks possible, however, that future results of operations could be
materially affacted by changes in estimates or in the effectiveness of strategies relabing to these
proceedings.

Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a matertal adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year:

Asspseing the ECL on Trode Receivables. The Company initially uses a provision matrix based on the
historical default rates for trade receivables, The provision matrix specifies proviskon rates depending
on the number of days that a recefvable is past due. The Company then calibrates the provision matrix
to adjust historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information on the basis af current
ohservable data to reflect the effects of current and forecasted economic conditions, as applicable,

Thie Company adjusts historical default rates if forecasted economic conditions such az gross domestic
product are expected to deteriorate which can lead to increased number of defaults in the industry
The Company regularly reviews the methodology and assumptions used for estimating ECL to reduce
any differences between estimates and actual credit loss experience,

The determination of the correlation between historical default rates and forecasted economic
conditions is a significant estimate. Accordingly, the provision for ECL of trade receivables is sensitive
1o changes in assumptions about forecasted economic conditions.

The amount of provision for ECL and the carrying amount of the Company's trade recelvables as at
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 are
disclosed in Note 6.

Estimaoting the ECL of Receivable from on Insuronce Compeny. The Company is currently invalved in
legal proceedings 1o pursue the collection of its remaining insurance claims for typhoon darmages from
an insurance company, The determination of whether the Insurance claims recelvable fsstll realizable
requires consultations with legal counsel and management's estimate of the allowance for ECL based
on the probability-weighted estimate of the present value of all cash shortfalis over the expected
settiament of the claims.

Management and Its legal counsel believe that the ongolng litigaticn on the remaining claims will not
result to any significant adverse impact on the Company’s financial condition and results of
operations. Thus, no provision far ECL was recognized in 2034, 2023 and 2022,

The carrying amount of receivable from an insurance company and the allowance for ECL recognized
as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are disclosed in Note 10,

Esrimating the Falr Value of Biological Assets - Livestock. The fair values of the Company's biological
assets are based on the most reliable estimate of market prices at the end of the reporting period.
The fair values of day-old chicks, growing broilers and parent stock were determined using the income
approach which considers the net cash flows expected to be generated from the sale of day-old chicks,
sale of fully-grown broilers as dressed chickens and cash flows expected to be generated from parent
stock. These ara measured as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.
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The cash Mow projections include specific estimates of the hatching pericd, the hatchability and
mortality rates, and volume of harvest. In addition, the significont unobservable inputs also include
the estimated future sales price of day-old chicks, dressed chickens and parent stock, as well as the
estimated costs 1o be Incurred in the hatching, growing and dressing processes, as applicable.

Generally, the estimated fair value would increase (decrease) If the estimated future sabes price, cash
inflows, hatchability rates or volume of production were higher (lower), Meanwhile, the astimated
fair value would increase (decrease) if the estimated costs to be incurred In the hatching, growing and
dressing processes or estimated mortality rates were lower (higher],

The gain or loss on falr value changes of biological assets recognized under "Revenues” in the separate
statements of comprehensive income In 2024, 2023 and 2022 and the carrying amount of biological
assets as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are presanted in Note 8.

Estimating the Revolued Amounts of Property, Plant and Eguipment (Excluding Tronsportofion
Equipment and CIP]. The Company measures Its property, plant and equipment (exciuding
transportation equipment and CIP} at revalued amounts with changes in falr vafue being recognized
in OCL.

In determining the revalued amounts of property, plant and eguipment {excluding transportation
equipment and CIP), the Company hired independent firms of appraisers as at December 11, 2024
and 1023, In order to arrive at a reasonable valuation, the appraisers personally inspected the
properties, requesited information from reputable sources and considered the following:
{a] wtility and market value of the land; (b) cost of reproduction of the replaceable property;
i) current prices for similar-use property in the second-hand market; (d) age, condition, past
maintenance, and present and prospective serviceability in comparison with new assets of similar
kind; (] accumulated depreciation; (f) lease rates; and (g} recent trends and development in the
industry concerned.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at revalued amounts as at December 31, 2024
and 2023 are disclosed in Note 12.

Estimafing the Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Eguipment. The Company reviews annually the
estimated useful fives of property, plant and equipment based on expected asset’s utilization,
miarket demands and future technological development. It s possible that the factors mentioned may
change in the future, which could cause a change in estimated wseful lives. A reduction in estimated
useful lives could cause a significant increase in depreciation and amortization of property, plant and
egpuipamEnt.

There wera no changes in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment in 2024, 2023
and 2022, The carrying amounts of property, plant and equlpment as at December 31, 2024 and 2023
are disclosed in Note 12

Esnmating the Foir Valug of investment Properties. The Company's Investment properties are
measured at fair values. The Company works closely with extemnal qualified appraisers who performs
the valuation using appropriate valuation technigues. The Company astimates expected future cash
flows, yields, and discount rates.

The valuation technigues and inputs used in the fair value measurement of investment properties, as

well as the carrying amounts of investment properties as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are
disclosed in Mobe 13,



Assessing the impairment of Nanfinanciol Assets. The Company assesses impairment on nonfinancial
assais whenever evenis or changes In circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an assei
miay not be recoverable. In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired,
the Company considers the external and internal sources of Information, External sources of
information include but are not limited to unexpected significant decline in market value and any
other significant changes with an adverse effect on the Company, whether it had taken place during
period or will take place in the near future in the market, sconomic or legal environment in which the
entity operates or in the market to which the asset is dedicated. Internal sources of information
include evidence of ohsolescence or physical damage on an asset, significant changes with an adverse
effect on the Company whether it had taken place during the pericd, or are expected to take place in
the near future, to the extent to which, or in a manner in which, an asset is used or is expected to be
used, and any other evidence that indicates that the economic performance of an asset is, or will be,
worse than expected.

Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is
recognized. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to seli and value in
use, The fair value less cost to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset inan arm's length
transaction while value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise
from the continuing use of an asset and fram its disposal at the end of its useful life. The estimated
cash Mows are projected using growth rates based on historical experience-and business plans and are
discounted using pretax discount rates that reflect the current assessment of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it s not possible, for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

No provision for impairment loss on nonfinancial assets was recognized in 2024, 2023 and 2022

The carrying amounts of nonfinancial assets which consists of advances to officers and employess,
other current assets, investment in a subsidiary, property, plant and eguipment, imwestment
properties, other noncurrent assets (excluding security deposits), and ROU assets are disclosed in
Notes 6, 9, 11, 12, 13, 14 and 25.

Estimating Net Retirement Ligbility. The determination of the Company's obligation and cost for
pension and other retirement benefits is dependent on selection of certain assumptions used by
actuaries in calculating such amounts. Those assumptions are described in Note 24 to the separate
financial statements and include among others, discount rate and salary increase rate. While the
Company believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in
actual experience or significant changes in assumptions materially affect net retiremeant llability.

The carrying amounts of net retirement liability as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are disclosed in
Note 24,

Assessing the Realirobility of Deferred Tax Assets. The Company's assessment on the recognition of
deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of unused NOLCD
is based on the projected taxable Income in the following periods. Based on the projection, not all
future deductible temporary differences will be realized, therefore, only a portion of deferred tax
assets was recognized

The carrying amounts of recognized and unrecognized deferred tax assets as at December 31, 2024
and 2023 are disclosed in Note 26.
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4. Prior Period Adjustment

The separate fnancial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2022 have been restated
to reflect the reclassification to property, plant and equipment of the Company's investment
properties which are being operated by Barbatos Ventures Corporation (BVC), as a résult of the
consolidation of BVC's operations to the Company effectve January 1, 2022 ([see Note 12).
Accordingly, the adjustments also included reclassifications fram gain on change in falr value of
investment properties in profit or foss to revaluation surplus in OCI, as well as the corresponding
recognition of depreciation charges of property, plant and equipment in profit or loss, and other
restatements 1o deferred taxes as presented in the related notes to separate financial statements.

The niet effects of the prior period adjustments and reclassifications on the Company’s separate
fnancial statements as at December 31, 2022 which accounted for less than ane percent of total
equity are as follows {in millions):

Retsined
Assets  Lisbiligies Equity Earnings oLl
As previously reported P52776  B13929  RLEB4T Ba04.5 RAIA0
Frior perind adjustments and
reclagsifications (27.3) (404} 13.2 {6.3] 19.5
As restated #5.250.3 #3,3525 #1837 .3 ¥298.2 B43T5
5. Cash
This account consists of:
2024 2023
Cash on hand B4,793,448 P6,434,159
Cash in banks 580,243,849 385,978,307

585,037,297  W3192.412.466

Cash in banks @arn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates and are immediately available for use
in current operations,

Total interest income recognized in the separate statements of comprehensive income pertain to the
following:

Nate 2024 2023 2022
Cash in banks R199 817 #110,652 #107,932
Trade receivables & 1,034,391 1,420,836 2,287,013

R1,234,208 #1,531,588 #31,384,945
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b, Trade and Other Recehvables

This account consists of:

Mote 2024 2023
Trade recevables from:

Third parties R351,151,057 #7T6,988.988
Related parties 27 240,722,831 143,528 241

Montrade receivables from:
Related parties 7 241,309,205 145,089,993
Third parties 79,534 584 82,960,117
Receivable from an insurance comparny 35,064,371 =
Advances to officers and employees 26,380,471 22,856,692
Other receivables 7,332,172 9,905,173
1,481 494,791 1,181,329,204
Less allowance for ECL (180,786,652) {139,735 248)

#1,300,708,139 #1,041,593,956

Trade recelvables arising mainly from the sale of feeds, food and livestock are generally collectible
within 30 to 90 days. Overdue trade receivables bear interest ranging from 1.00% to 3.00% in 2024,
2023 and 2022. Interest income eamed from overdue trade recelvables amounted to #1.0 million in
2024, R1.4 million in 2023 and #2.3 million in 2022 {see Note 5],

Nontrade receivables comprise mainly of receivables arising from the Company’s incidental income.
These are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and are usually settled within 30 to 90 days.

In 2024, the Company filed an insurance claim with an insurance company for the properties damaged
by Typhoon Carina. Losses from inventories and property, plant and equipment damaged by the
typhoon amounted to R?.3 million and R19.1 million, respectively (see Notes 7, 12 and 23).
The proceeds from insurance were subsequently received in January 2025,

Advances 1o officers and employees include satary and other loans granted to employess which are
generally noninterest-bearing in nature and collectible through salary deductions. This also includes
cash advances for business purposes that are subject to liquidation.

Other receivables mainly consist of short-term rental deposits and receivables from government
BEENCIES.

Movements in the allowance for ECL a5 at December 31 are shown balow:

2024
Adwances (o
Difficers and
Mote Trade __ Montrade  Employees Others Totad
Balarce at beginnang of year FI6754,714 PT4.3A1929  PII03512 97,004,691 N139735 748

Provision for ECL il 41,051,404 - - = 1053804
Balanca-af ard of yuar FETAOL I8  F74341539  #1303501  F7334.693 PIGO.TEEG52
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2023
Advances ta
Gffipery and
Note Trade Mortrade  Emoloyess Othery Tatal
Balance at beginning of ywae P5ESI0577 FRALSEI6N MR IEDETR W AEE TG WIRL 50T DRI
Provisian far ECL 11 3 535 062 = - - 3,539,068
Aeclasiication {1404 875) (13834390) (1956660)  [135033) |49.310.908|
Balanza af and of yeae RLE, 754,714  BT4.341.529  RLA0ZOLY AT 334633 R119.735 148
1022
dgvances 1o
Officers and
fatn: Tradan Montrade Emplovess Othery Total
Belance at beginning of year FEA515 RS RERISEIGN  FIZEOSTY  BYEEDTIT WiRRAODANF
Pronésion far BCL n 1,704,635 - r -  LTBE3s
Bakancn at and of yoar PS6.610,517 BRE156.768 B3 260STI  BT.460.735 W1S5.507.062
In 2024, the Company recognized gain on collection of written off accounts amounting to #15.2 million

{zee Note 23).

In 2023, management reclassified allowance for ECL of receivables aggregating #19.3 million to
aflowance for impairment losses of advances to suppliers and other current assets, as a result of the
reclassification of the related gross receivables to advances to suppliers amounting to B10.9 million
and advances to contract growers and breeders amounting to PB.4 million (see Note 9),

7. Inventories
This account consists of:

2024 2023

At NRY -
Feeds R219.873.500  P333,652,987

At cost:

Raw materials and feed supplements 314 G682 466 324,370,311
Supplies and animal health products 121,852,262 126,627,676
Finlshed goods 91,728,873 74,855,683
Hatching eges 89,091,152 59,353 509
P837,228,253 #918.860,166

inventories are valued at the lower of cost and NRY as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, The cost of
feeds carried at NRY amounted to B220.8 million-and P334.6 million as at December 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively. Inventories charged to cost of goods sold amounted to P2,112,7 million in 2024,
#9,828.7 million in 2023 and #9,451.5 milllon in 2022, respectively [see Note 20).

In 2024, the Company recognized loss on Inventories damaged by the typhoon amounting to
#7.3 million {see Note 23). Allowance for inventory write-down amounted to B0.9 million ag at
December 31, 2024 and 2023,
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E. Biological Assets - Livestock

This Company's Ivestock consists of the following:

2024 2023
Day-old chicks and growing broilers B245,728,723 P29 607,344
Parent stock 77,946,903 39,787,415
R323.675,626 #129,394,759
Movements of the Company's livestock are as follows:
MNote 2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year 129,394,759 P116,118,755
Increase due to purchases and production 6,673,717,832  6.349,921,100
Decrease due to sales, harvest and maortality (6,571,206,577) (6,288.B65.517)
Gain (loss] on fair value changes 19 91,769,612 (47,779,579)
Balance at end of year #323,675,626  R129 304, 750
8. Dther Current Assets
This account consists of:
Mote 2024 2023
Advances to contract growers and breeders 25 133 468,144 FEE,9E1 489
CWT 69,420,671 98,857,610
Prepayments 48,736,834 56,550,210
Input VAT 1,676,880 417.404
153,302,529 242,816,713
Allowance for impairment losses (52,031,133) (52,031,133)
P201,271,396 #190,785,580

Movements in the allowance for impalrment losses of advances to contract growers and breeders

as al December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Mote 2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year 52,031,133 R43,657,050
Reclassification ] - 8,374,083
Balance at end of year #52,031,133 F52,031,133
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101 Receivable from an Insurance Company

The Company has an outstanding inserance claim for typhoon damages from Charter Ping An
Insurance Corporation (Charter Ping An), Pursuant to the Insursnce Cade, the Company is entitled 1o
intarest on its claim at a rate twice the celling prescribed by the Monetary Board beginning
March 12, 2010, or 30 days from the date the Company filed the claim.

On August 17, 2016, the Company received B58.9 million as partial setilement. On May 31, 2023
the Reglonal Trial Court (RTC) of Bulacan granted the claim of the Company and ordered Charter Ping
&n to pay the insurance claim, to which Charter Ping An filed a Notice of Appeal with the Court of
Appeals (CA] in Manila City. As at December 31, 2024, the case records had been transmitted ta
the CA. On December 2, 2024, the CA directed Charter Ping An to file an Appellant’s Brief within 45
days from the date of notice, On February 10, 2025, Charter Ping An filed a Motion for Extension of
Time to File Appeltant’s Brief with Manifestation seeking additional 45 days, or until April &, 2025,
within which to submit its Brief,

Management and its legal counsel believe that the ongoing litigation on the remaining claims will not
result in any significant adverse impact on the Company’s financlal condition and results of operations.

The composition of the receivable as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Cost 9141 664 583
Allowance for ECL (71,460.773)
Balance at end of year ¥70,.203,810

The Company continues to legally pursue the remaining balance of the Insurance claim as at
December 31, 2024 and 2023, No provisions nor write-off of allowance for ECL of the receivable were
recognized in 2024, 2023 and 2022.

11.

Investment in a Subsidiary

On December 16, 2021, the Company’s BOD approved the acquisition of 100% of the outstanding
capital stock of BVC from Luzon Agriventure, Inc, (LAVI] for a consideration of #1.00. BVC is a private
domestic corporation engaged, among others, in poultry production as well as in the processing,
raising and breeding of chickens and similar stocks, The registered principal place of business of the
Company is located at Marilao-5an Jose Road, 5ta. Rosa |, Marilao, Bulacan.

Beginning January 1, 2022, BVC operated as the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary.

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the investment in BVC accounted wsing the cost method has been
provided with full allowance as BVC is in a deficit position.
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12. Property, Plant and Equipment

At Revalued Amounts
The composition and movements of the Company’s property, plant and equipment carried at revalued
amounts are as follows:
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Net revaluation increment on property, plant and equipment, net of deferred income tax,

amounted to #1255 million in 2024, B25.2 million in 2023 and P97.4 millien in

2022

in 2024, the Company recorded loss on property, plant and equipment damaged by the typhoon
amounting to #19.1 million {see Note 23], net of a receivable from an insurance company amounting

to F35.1 million [see Note B).

Had the above property, plant and equipment been measured using the cost model, the carrying

amolnts would have been as follows:

2024 2023

Land ®355,331,190 ®355,331,190
Plant, machinery and equipment 537,075,397 641,377,588
Bulldings 287,633,800 308,661,367
Leasehold and land improvements 50,927,829 32357696
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment 16,601,759 10,795,068
B1,247.568,975 P1,348522.905
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The transfer from revaluation surplus to retained earnings, net of deferred income tax, amounted to
7.9 million in 2024, P16.8 million in 2023 and B11.9 millign in 2022

The Company's property, plant and eguipment al revalued amounts were appraised by an
independent firm of appraisers as at December 31, 2024 and 2023

Details of the valuation techniques used in measuring fair values of property, plant and equipment
classified under Levels 2 and 3 of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Range

Class of Property Vakiation Technigues Sign#cant Inputs 23 2023

Land Suhes campanian Price per square mater (spm| FLO0D - 10,000 #2905 - #10,500

approath Valus agjustrmants 5% - B9 N -10%

Plant, machinery and Depreciated Regplacement cost PL3004 million #3064 millicn

efgulprment replacement coit  Memairing economic life 3+ 75 years 3 - 25 yewrs
method

Discountad cashflow  Déscount rate 11.01%

[DECF) approach Per manthly rent B4 milliomn -

- B 0 muillizn

Buildings Depraciated Replacement cost 15T millllon  B1TE 7 mallion

replacemant cost  Remaining scanemic lile 1- 30 ywars T - 15 yEans
method

BCF approach Dscount rate 11.00%

Per monthly rent 0.2 millign -

- 1.2 millsan

Leasahiold and Depraciated Replacernent cost FE4.3 millisn #2018 millian

I i e EEREL meplacement coit  Remaining econarmss He 1-23 years 2 - yEary
rmsthod

OCF approwch Discount rate 11.01%

#gr mpnthily rent - PO millian

Office furnitune, fiatures and  Depreciated Aeplacement cost W14.9 millign ®11.3 millian

eguipmant replacement cost  Fiemaining economic e 2-4 yeary 2 -4 yean
rrathaad

The description of the valuation techniques and inputs used In the fair value measurement are as
follows:

Sales Comparison Approach

Sales comparison approach involves the comparison of the Company’s land to those that are more or
less located within the vicinity of the appraised properties and are subject of recent sales and
offerings. Adjustments were made to arrive at the market value by tonsidering the location, size,
shape, uftility, desirability and time element,

The inputs to fair valuation are as follows:

® Price per sgm - astimated value prevaliing in the real estate market depending on the location,
area, shape and time element.

* Volue adjustments - adjustments are made to bring the comparative values in approximation to
the property taking into account the location, size and architectural features among others.
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Depreciated Replocement Cost Method

Depreciated replacement cost method is used to estimate valuation of plant, machinery and
equipment, buildings, leasehold and land improvemeants and office furniture, fixtures and equipment
by computing lor the replacement cost of the assets and applying appropriate adjustments for
physical deterloration and functional and economic obsolescence.

Generally, significant increases (decreases) in depreciated replacement cost in isolation would result
im & significantly higher [lower) fair value measuremeant.

Discounted Cash Flow Approach

Under the DCF approach, a property’s fair value is estimated using expliclt assumptions regarding the
benefits and liabilites of ownership over the asset's estimated useful life including an exit or terminal
value. As an accepted method within the Income approach to valuation, the DCF approach involves
the projection of a series of cash flows on & real property Interest. An appropriate market-derived
discount rate is applied to projected cash flow serfes to establish the present value of the Income
stream associated with the property, plant and equipment,

Peripdic cash flows of investment properties are typlcally estimated as gross income less vacancy and
operating expenses. The series of periodic net operating income, along with an estimate of the
terminal vaiue anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then discounted.

The frequency of inflows and outflows are contract and market-derived. The DCF approach assumes
that cash outflows occur in the same period that expenses are recorded,

Generally, significant increases (decreases) in monthly rental rate per building, leasehold and land
improvements and machinery and equipment in isclation would result in a significantly higher (lower)
fair value measurement. Significant increases [decreases) in discount rate in isolation would result in
a significantly lowser [higher) fair value measurement.

In 2024, the Company changed Its valuation technigue on determining the fair value of its plant,
machinery and equipment, buildings, and leasehold and land improvements from DCF approach to
depreciated replacement cost method.

The reconciliation of the balances of property, plant and equipment classified according to level in the
falr value hierarchy is as follows:

2024
Significant
Observable Significant
Inputs  Unobservable
(Level 2]  Inputs [Level 3) Total
Balance at beginning of year #5932, 448,310 ®1,005,352,207 #1,937,800,517
Additions and reclassifications - 52,375,514 52,375,514
Depreciation and amortization - (1D6,574,815)  (106,574,815)
Disposals - (57,221,829) (57,221,829)
Net revaluation increment 150,118,520 17,176,011 167,294,531

Balance at end of year P1,082,566,830 #911,107,088 #1,993,673,918
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2023
Significant

Qbservable Significant

Inputs Unobservable
(Level 2)  Inputs [Level 3} Tatal
Balance at beginning of year RO04, 156,050 #O29 THT. 441 #1,833,943491
Additions and reclassifications - 182,248,890 182,248,830
Depreciation and amortization - (111,925,750}  (111,925,750)
Disposals - (58,923) (58,923)
Net revaluation increment 28,292,260 5,300,549 33,592 B09
Balamce at end of year #9312 448,310 #1,005,352,207 #1,937,800,517

There are no transfers between the levels of fair value hierarchy in 2024, 2023 and 2022.

At Cost
The following transportation eguipment and construction in-progress [(CIP) are carried at cost;

J02a
Transportation

Equipment CIP Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year #45,690,206 R43.674,517 FED. 364,723
Additions - 26,720,916 26,720,916
Reclassifications (475,627) {7,465,269) {7,940,896)
Balance at end of year 45,214,579 62,930,164 108,144,743
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 43,829,334 - 43,829,334
Depreciation 1,056,505 - 1,056,505
Reclassification {101,920) - {101,920)
Balance ot end of year 44,783 919 - 44,783,819
Carrying Amount 430,660 #62,930,164 #63,360,824

2023
Transporiation

Equipment CIP Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P4E. 580,960 #1722, 736,649 171,317,600
Additions 624,480 30,599,506 31.223,986
Reclassifications - (109,661,638)  (109,661,638)
Disposals (3,515,234) - 13.515,234)
Balance at end of year 45 690, 206 43674517 89 364,723
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 44,B23,791 - 44,813,791
Depreclation 2,459 277 - 2,459,277
Disposal (3,453,734) - (3,453 734)
Balance at end of year 43,829,334 - 43,839,334
Carrying Amount P1,860.872 ®B43.674,517 #45,535,389
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CIP represents cost of raw materials, general construction works and installation costs incurred in the
construction of the Company's offices, cabiing installation, piping, bagging system Installation and
other developments. Completed construction costs amounting to #7.5 million in 2024, P109.7 million
in 2023 and #6.3 million in 2022, were reclassified to the approprlate property, plant and equipment
accounts. As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, there are no significant contractual commitments
entered into by the Company,

The Company sold property, plant and equipment, investment properties and ROLU assets for a cash
consideration resulting to a gain (loss) on disposal amounting ta (P16 million) in 2024, #0.4 million n
2023 and [F1.0 million) i 2022 (ses Note 23],

As at December 11, 2024 and 2023, fully depreciated property, plant and equipment that are still
being used by the Company amounted to B216.2 million and #351.9 million, respectively.

Depreciation and amortization expense recognized In the separate statements of comprehensive
income are as follows:

Mote paird 2023 022

Property, plant and equipment:
AL revaluated amounts 106,574,815 ¥111,925,750 B101,423,228
At cost 1,056, 505 2459277 3,944 039
RO assets 25 26 Bo2 227 42994914 17,723,752
Computer software 14 3,356,021 3,398,021 5,795,513

¥137,921,568 #140,777,962 #128 886,512

Depreciation and amortization expense were charged to the following:

Note 2024 2023 2022

Cost of goods sold 0 P95,659,467 #98.961.312 WB2,613.365
Ciperating expenses: 21

Selling and distribution 16,625,124 26,384,795 21,733,128

Agminisirative expenses 15,636,977 15,431 855 15,040,019

42,762,101 41 B16,650 36,173,147

137,921, 568 P140,777,962 P128B,386,512

13.

Investment Properties

This consists of the Company's parcels of land arising from the foreclosure of properties as settlement
of its customers’ llabilitles to the Company, and properties which are held either to earn rental income
or for capital appreciation or both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business or for
administrative purposes.
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Investment properties are measured using the fafr value model, The composition and movements in

this acoount are summarized balow:

1024

Land Building Total
Cost
Balance at beginning ol year #177,161.892 F155E67 585 P152, 726,477
Dispasals (5,943,000 = (5,943,000]
Balance at end of year 171,218,892 15557, 585 186,786,477
Cumulative Gain on Changss in

Falr Value
Balance at beginning of year 105,431,064 (B14,190) 108 515,874
Gain on changes in fair value 10,379,238 6,511,880 16,893 118
Baignce atend of year 119,810,302 5,699,650 125,509,992
Carrying Amount #291,029,194 21,267,275 ®112,296,468
2023

Land Buiiding Tatal
Cioat
Balance af begmning of year F178,403, 4968 15567 585 B193.571,053
Additians 1,712,208 - 1711208
Disposals {2,953,785) - {2,953, 785)
Balance 4t end of year 177,161,852 1% 567,585 192, 739477
Cumulative Gain |Loss] on Changes n

Falr Value

Balance at beginning of year 45,122 474 [B19,585) &4 500 BED
Gain {loss) on changes in fair value B4,308,590 {1594, 605) B4,113.985
Balance at end of year 105,431 064 {814, 190} 108616874
Carrying Amount 286,592,956 B14,753,395  #301,346.351

The Company’s investment properties were appraised by an independant firm of appraisers as at
December 31, 2024 and 2023, Net gain on change in fair value amounted to 16,9 million in 2024,
BE4. 1 million in 2023 and B28.2 million in 2022,

The Company recognized revenue from leasing cperations amounting to #10.8 million in 2024,
#14.1 million In 2023 and P19.9 million in 2022 (see Note 25). Direct costs related to the lease of
investment properties amounted to #3.2 million in 2024, #1.0 million in 2023 and #1.1 million in 2022,

Details of the valuation techniques used in measuring fair values of classified under Level 2 (land) and
Level 3 (buildings) of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Ran{ﬂ'
Class of Property. Vabuation Technigues Sagnificant Inputs 2024 2013
Land Sales comparison Price per square mater (sgm] W67 - M19,598 845 . §17,000
approach Value adjustments 5% - 0% 5N - 70%
Buildings DCF approach Giscount rafe 1% 11%
Per monthly rent {sgm | P30 - w114 RBo3 - #77

=ales comparison approach involves the comparison of the Company land to those that are more or
less located within the vicinity of the appraised properties and are subject of recent sales and
offerings. Adjustments were made to arrive at the market value by considering the location, size,
shape, utlity, deslirability and fime slement,
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The significant inputs to falr valuation are as follows:

& Price per sqm - estimatad value prevailing in the real estate market depending on the location,
area, shaps and time element.

«  Volue adjustments - adjustments are made to bring the compararive values in approximation 1o
the investment property taking into account the location, size and architectural features AMOng
others,

Meanwhile, building was valued using DCF approach (Level 3) and utilized discount rate and monthly
rental rates as significant inputs. Under the DCF approach, a property’s fair value is estimated using
explicit assumptions regarding the benefits and fiabilities of ownership over the asset's estimated
wseful life including an exit or terminal value. As an accepted method within the income approach to
valuation, the DCF approach involves the prajection of a series of cash flows on a real property
intérest. An appropriate, market-derived discount rate is applied to projactad cash flow series to
establish the present value of the income stream associated with the investment property,

Periodic cash flows of investment properties are typically estimated as gross income less vacancy and
operating expenses. The series of perindic net operating income, along with an estimate of the
terminal value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then discounted.

The frequency of inflows and outflows are contract and market-derived. The DCF approach assumes
that cash outflows ootur in the same period that expenses are reconded.,

Generally, significant increases (decreases) in the discount rate in isolation would result in &
significantly lower (higher) fair value measurement. Significant increases (decreasas) in rental rate In
isolation would result in & significantly higher (lower) fair value measuremant

14

Other Noncurrent Assers
Thi= account consists af:

Mote 2024 2023
Project development costs ®31,368,395 #i11,368,395
security deposits 25 12,928,688 12,928 6EE
Computer software 7,089,955 10487976
51,387,038 54,785,059
Allowance for impairment losses (31,368,395) (31.368,395)

R20,018,643 H23,416,664

Project development costs represent expenses incurred on the Company's agua feeds and aqua
culture projects. These were already fully provided with valuation allowance as at December 31, 2024
and 2023 since based on management's evaluation, these costs may no longer be recoverable.
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The balance and movemants in computer software are as follows:

MNote 2024 2023
Cost
Balance at beginning and end of year R43,365,131 R43,.365,131
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 32,877,155 29479134
Amortization 12 3,398,021 3,398,021
Balance at end of year 36,275,176 32 BT7.155
Carrying Amount P7,089.955 R10.487,976
15. Trade and Other Payables
The account consists of the following:
Mote 2024 2023

Trade payables;

Third parties P1,523,892.950 ®1,572615,025

Related parties 7 B9.804,756 41,902,024
Nontrade payables 261,374,486 158,419,428
Accrued expenses:

Selling and administrative 281,701,186 185, 328 480

Outside services 39,620,661 25,503,169

Others 41,383,995 14,785,463
Statutory pavables 27,095,982 25,758 B4
Customers’ deposits 5,016,139 14,150,358

#2,289,890,155 W2,042,463,639

Trade payables consist of liabllittes arising from purchases of inventories in the normal course of
business. These are noninterest-bearing and are generally setthed within 30 to 90 days.

Nontrade payables are liabllitles arising from purchases of goods other than Inventories and various
Senices giving rise to expenses such as trucking fees, utilities, security services and inspection fees,
among others. These are normally settled within one year.

Accrued expenses mainly pertain to selling and administrative expenses, outside services, salaries and
wages, freight and handling. outside services, taxes and licenses, commissions and supplies, among
others. These are normally seftled within one year.

Statutory payables consist of liabilities to government agencies. These are normally setthed within a
month.

Customers’ deposits include amounts advanced by customers to the Company. These are normally
applied within one year.



16. Loans Payable

The Company's outstanding loans payable to local banks amounted to PBDO.0 million and
#8981 million as a1 December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The Company’s short-term and
leng-term loans are not subject to any debt covenants,

2024 2023
Short-barm loans P54 454 301 RE23, 655,000
Current portion of lang-term loans 58,321,429 24,821,439
Current portion of loans payable 752 E15,730 B4B 476,429
Noncurrent portion of loans payable 47,154,760 43 642 B56

799,970,490  #E98,119,285

ahort-term Loans Payable

In 2024 and 2023, the Company obtained unsecured, Peso-denominated short-term loans from local
banks to finance its working capital requirements. The Company’s short-term loans mature within
90 days and bear annual interest rates ranging from 6.00% to 6.50%. Outstanding balance amountad
to B634.5 million and #B23.7 million as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively

Long-term Loans Payable
The following are the Company’s long-term loans payable:

REB.S million promissory note

On October 31, 2018, the Company enfered into an eight-year loan agreement with China Bank
Savings, Inc. [“CBS") amounting to P86.9 million, payable in 28 quarterly instaliments starting
fanuary 31, 2020 and bearing an interest rate of 7.875% per annum that s repriced annually,
Repriced interest rate is 7.875% in 2024 and 7.750% in 2023. Outstanding balance amounted to
#24.8 million and B37.2 million as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively,

. PBE.9 million pramissory note

On December 6, 2018, the Company entered Into another eight-year loan agreement with CBS
amounting to #B6.9 million, payable in 28 quarterly installments, starting March 6, 2020 and
bearing an interest rate of 8.125% per annum that is repriced annually, Repriced interest rate is
8.125% in 2024 and 7.750% in 2023. Qutstanding balance amounted to #24.8 million and
#37.2million as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectivaly,

. B67.0 million promissory nots

On August 22, 2024, the Company entered into another two-year loan agreement with Asian
United Bank ("AUB") amounting to R&7.0 million, payable in 24 monthly installments, starting
september 23, 2024 and bearing an Interest rate of 7.75% per annum, repriced annually.
Outstanding balance amounted to #55.8 million as at December 31, 2024,

Tetal avaliments of loans payable amounted to PI58.9 million in 2024 and #1,740.2 million In 2023
and B2,349.6 in 2022. Total payments of loans payable amounted to B1,057.0 million in 2024,
#1,877.2 million in 2023 and R1,819.5 million In 2022 {see Note 29),
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Tatal interest expense recognired in the separate statements of comprehensive income consists of
the following:

Hote 2024 2023 2022

Loans payable F5B.837,102 FGE, 308, 882 B35, 735.576
Accretion of Interest on lease 15

liabilities 8,887,040 7,514,406 4,266,400

P77,724,142  #75813288  R40,00L976

. Cash Bond Depasits

Cash bond deposits amounting to #66.2 million and P60_3 million as at December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively, mainly pertains to surety bond deposits from contract growers, contract breeders, and
salesmen,

These are generally renewed on an annual basis and cash bond depasits will be refunded upon
termination of the contract.

- Equity

Capital Slock

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company has issued and outstanding common shares of
3,054,334,014 common shares at PO.38 par value egquivalent to #1,160.6 milllon, Details of the
authorized, issued and outstanding commaon shares as at December 31 are as follows:

2024 2023

Authorized 3,500,000,000 3 500,000,000
Issued and outstanding 3,054,334,014  31,054,334.014
Capital stock P1,160,646,925 F1,160.646,525

The details and movements of the common shares listed with PSE follows:

Authorized Mo, of

Date of SEC Approval Shares Shares lssued
October 2, 1971 5,000,000 5,000,000
May 2, 15973 10,000,000 10,000,000
October 31, 1974 7,000,000 7,000,000
December 5, 1977 45,000,000 a5 000,000
December 5, 1982 33,000,000 33,000,000
August 11, 1986 200,000,000 200,000,000
February 9, 1989 200,000,000 200,000,000
October 16, 2013 3,500,000,000  2,286,497.901
December 22, 2017 3,500,000,000 267,836,113

31.054,334,014

The Company has 4,025 and 4,113 stockholders as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively,
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19, Revenues
This account consists of-
Mata 2024 2023 2022
Met sales from:

Foods #7,344,260,189 F6BRES,026,308 M6 167,824,514
Feeds 4,507,108,706  5,128,051,943 5,199 285 504
Farms 502,473,423 472,171,275 516,895 636
12,353,842 318 11485249526 11 884,005,554

Fair wvalue changes on
biological assets - fivestock 8 91,769,612 (47.779,5749) 10,936,438
P12.445611930 P12 437469947 R11,894947 392

20 Cost of Goods Sold

This account consists of the following:

2022

{As restabed -
MNate 2024 2023 see Note 4]

Invenbories sald T PO112. 734,452 F9RI 745087 2 F9451518.879
Dutside sarvices 5 1,224,430,993 1,125472,634 A358.830,177
Contractual services 473,314,388 426,291 217 312,262 806
Depreciation and amortization 12 95,659,467 598,961,312 92 613,365
Salaries and employee benefits 22 36,860,823 35,854,006 45.814,819
Others 29,168 265 33,738,549 ﬁﬂ,?&éﬂn
P10,922,169,428 P11 543 466,805 ®10,821,E32.970

Others is composed of communication, light and water and repairs and maintenance.

11 Operating Expenses

This account consists of the following:

2022

{Az resfated -

2024 2023 sea Note 4]

Adminkstrative expenses R&T1,386,785 F533,461,340 540,091,031
Selling and marketing 394,306,525 330,111,313 324,506,480
#1,065,693,310 863,572,662 RB64,5597 511




The datails of operating expenses are as follows:

022
1AS restated -
Note 2024 2023 see Note 4)
Salaries and employee benefits 27 F313,5928 242 #3038, 581992 272,738,179
Freight and handiing 154, 767,048 148,731,728 146,844 467
Transportation and travel 137,230,191 132,325 449 144,431,202
Contractual services 75,043,755 ii401.421 21,765,540
Advertising and promotions 56,113,454 19,578 566 24, 540,837
Frofesskonal fees 42,782,835 25,25E 863 34,081,084
Representation and enfertainment 42,513,698 15,144,162 36,233,011
Depreciation and amortization 12 42,267,101 41,816,650 36,273,147
Prowvision for ECL on trade recehqalbiles B 41,051 404 3,539,062 1,704,635
Publications and subscriptions 40,083 480 40,088,931 39323376
Computerization project 36,562,175 18,263 914 2B B6 1TE
Taxes and licenses 24,995 810 14,433 892 25,266,950
Trainings and zeminar 10,467,495 5343021 1.455.007
Communications, Hght and water 8,976,368 9,108,521 9,205,522
Rentals 25 7,169,531 10,249,091 8,269,477
Supplies 5,246,668 i 488 954 4,496,766
Insurance 5,215,068 4,701,190 4,157 408
Repairs and maintenance 4,148,153 5.336,923 2.897.165
Others 6,131,790 5,140,881 232 085,760
#1,065,693,310 #E863,572,662 REB4, 597 511

Other expenses include bank charges, assoclation dues and inspection fees, among others.

42

This account pertaing to the following:

Note 2024 2023 2032
Salaries and wages #294,635,366 P2ER,E90,106 #253,870,375
Retirement benefits 24 25,361,136 22,122,540 £2.336,338
Commissions 18,360,786 16,550,520 27,560,525
Other short-term benefits 22,431,777 16,872,832 14,785,755
F360, 789,065 #3144 435 998 PF318.552,998

Salaries and employee benefits is allocated as follows:
Note 2024 2023 2022
Cost of goods sold 20 ®36,860,823 #35,854,006 R45. 814819

Operating expenses: 21

ddministratve 217,031,922 205,996,289 176,820,010
selling and distribution 106,896,320 102,585,703 95918 160
323,928,242 108,581,592 272,738,179
F360,TE9,065 #344 435998 P3118.552 958




-38-

23, Others - net
This account consists of
Mot 2024 2043 2022
Losses on inventories and
property, plant and eguipment
damaged by the typhoon 7.12 (R26,408,870) #- CH
Gain on collection of previously
written off trade recevables & 18,152,097 - -
Tax settlement (14,493,495) (4.586,382) (10,696,915)
Rental income 25 10,786,031 14,051,581 19,877,100
Gain (loss) on disposal of property,
plant and eguipment,
imfestment praperties and
ROU assets 12 (1,599,242) 412,275 (1,037,744)
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) 265,283 {615,490) (28,701,581}
Others {11,301,720) - 932,945
(#24,599,916) #9,261,984  (F19,626,195)
Others pertain to digitalization expenses and other miscellaneous income.
24, Met Retirement Liabiity

The Company has a partially funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering all of
its gualified employees. The defined benefit plan s being administered by a trustee bank which is
responsible for the administration of the plan asset. The Company's retirement benefits are based on
years of service and one and one-fourth month’s salary for every year of continuous service.

The pian is exposed to interest rate risks and changes in the life expectancy of qualified emplovees.
The plan is not exposed 1o significant concentrations of risk on the plan assets.

There are no unusual or significant risks to which the retirement liability exposes the Company.
However, in the event a benefit claim arises under the retirement liability, the benefit shall
immediately be due and payable from the Company.

The following tables summarize the components of retirement benefit costs recognized in the
separate statements of comprehensive income based on the report of an indepandent actuary as at
December 31, 2024,

Detalls of retirement expense is as follows (see Note 22);

2024 2023 2092
Current service cosis 14,345,412 R11,519,694 P13.B96.753
et Interest cost 11,015,724 10,602, B46 8,439 586

P25,361,136 R2l,122,540 P12,336,339
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The amounts of net retirement liability recognized In the separate statements of Rnancial position are
determined as follows:

2024 2023

Present value of DBO P05 478,854 F184,617,101
Fair valug of plan assets [2479,812) (4,031,451}
#200,599,042 F180,585 650

While there are no minimum funding requirements In the country, any size of underfunding may pose
a cash flow risk in the future when a significant number of employees is expected to retire

The movements in the present value of DBO are as follows:

2024 2023

Balarce at beginning of year F184,617.101 F150,989.435
Current service costs 14,345 413 11,519,694
interest expense 11,261 643 10,886,338
Benefits paid {2.876,500) [2,184,831)
Remeasurement loss (gain] (1,868,802) 13,406,465
Balance at end of year R205478 854 #184,617,101

The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

2024 2023

Balance at beginning of year F4,031,451 #3,931,933
Interest income 245,919 283 497
Remeasurement gain {loss) 202,442 {183,974)
Balance at end of year #4.479,812 P4,031.451

The Company’s plan assets are comprised of the following:

2024 2023

Cash and cash equivalents F123,643 F256,803
Equity Instruments 693,475 502,722
Debt instruments - government bonds 3,646,567 3,157,816
Others 16,127 14,110
R4,479,812 #4,031451

There are no eéxpected contributions to the Company’s retirement plan in the following year,

The cumulative net remeasurement gains (losses) on net retirement fability recognized in OCI as at

December 31 are as follows:

2024
Cumulative
Remeasurement Deferred Tax
Loss (see Mote 26) Net
Balance at beginning of year (®8,315,699) ®2,078,925 (6,236,774)
Remeasurement gain 2,071,244 (517,811) 1,553,433
Balance at end of year (PG,244 455) n.mim (®4,683,341)




2023
Cumulative
Remeasuremeant Deferred Tax
Gain [Loss) {see Mote 26) Met
Balance at beginning of year 5,274,740 (R1,318 685) P3,955,055
Remeasurement |oss (13,590,439} 3,397,610 (10,192 829)
Balance at end of year (#8,315,699) #2078 925 (P6,236,774)
2022
Cumulative
Hemeasurement Deferred Tax
Gain [Loss) {582 Note 16) et
Balance at beginning of year {P37,180,020) P9, 295,005 [R27 BB5,015)
Remeasurement gain 42,454,760 {10,613,690) 31,841,070
Balance at end of year #5274, 740 {P1,318,685) B3,956,055
The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuation are as follows:
2024 2023
Discount rate 6. 10% 6.10%
Salary increase projection rate 5.00% 5.00%
AVEFAgE remMaining service years Z1.9 214

The sensitivity analysis based on reasonable possible changes of assumptions as at December 31, 2024

gnd 2023 are presenied below:

Effact on Prasant Value of

Retirement Liability (in thousands)
Salary Increase

Change in Assumption Discount Rate Frojection Rate

December 31, 2024 +100 bps (P15.241) B17,497
=100 bps 17,479 {15,529)

December 31, 2023 +100 bps (P13 861) F15,504
1080 bps 15,888 (14,122)
The expected future benefit payments of the Company are as foflows:

2024 2023

Less than ong year P27 28B4 B34 F16,011,557
Between one and five years 83,788,844 55,006,165
Beyond five years 782,313.993 737372323
#893,397,661  PB18B 390,045

The weighted average duration of the present value of retirement benefit obligation as at

Decembear 31, 2024 and 2023 are 8.0 years and 8.1 years, respectively
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25, Significant Agreements

Operating Leases - The Company a5 a Lessor

The Company entered into cancellable leases coverng certain production plants [ilLe, dressing,
rendering and ice production) which have lease terms of around two to three years and are renewabls
upon miutual agreement of the parties.

Total rent income from these operating leases amounted to R10.8 million In 2024, R14.1 million in 2023
and F159.9 million in 2022 and are shown as part of "Others - net” account in the separate stataments
of comprehensive income (ses Note 23]

T Company leases certain warehouses under operating lease agreements for a period of one yvear
and are renewable upon mutual agreement by the parties. Bent expense amounted to #7.2 million in
2024, P10,2 million in 2023 and BE.3 milllon in 2022, respectively (see Note 21),

Security deposits amounted to R12.9 million as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively
isee Note 14).

The Company 35 a Lessee - Long-term Leases

The Company entered into lease agreements of an office space in a bullding and finance lease
agreements for its transportation equipment for a period of more than a year. The Company recognized
ROU assets and lease [Eabilities on these transactions using the interest rates implicit in the leases which
are fived at the contract date. The average effective interest rate approximates 7.875% to B.125% per
annum n 2024, 2023 and 2022

ROU Assets

The movements in ROU assets are as follows:

2024
Transportation

Mate Building Egquipment Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year ®21,8318,157 ¥169,050,075 R190 E8E 232
Additions - 42,799,984 42,799,984
Derecognition - [2,801,047) (2,801,047}
Balance at end of year 21,838,157 209,049,012 230,887,169
Actumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 14237511 94,212,987 108,450,508
Amortizabion 12 3,257,415 23,634,812 26,892 277
Derecognition - (1,454,627} (1,454,627)
Balance at end of year 17,494,936 116,383,172 133,888,108

Carrying Amount 4,343,221 #92,655,840 B56,999 061




i

2023
Transportation
MNots Building Equipment Tatal
Cost
Baiance at beginning of year ®12,065912 R1Z2E 915 298 #140,985. 210
Additions 9,772,245 40,130,777 49,903,022
Balance at end of yvear 21,838 157 169,050,075 190888232
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 11,341,957 74,113,637 B5.455,594
Amortization 12 2,895 564 201,099,350 22,904 914
Balance at end of year 14,237 521 84,212,987 108,450,508
Carrying Amount #7,600,636 ®74 837 088 RE2.437,724
Lease Liabilities
The balance and movements in lease liabilities are as follows:
Mote 2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year FE3 551,520 B52,299, 639
Additions 42,799,984 49 903,022
Accretion of interest 16 B,887,040 7,514,406
Payments {34,308,243) (26,125,747)
Balance at end of year 100,970,301 B3,591,520
Less current portion 31,063,007 22,447 B&3
Moncurrent portian B65,907,294 FEl1,148,B57
The amounts recognized In profit or loss related to leases follow:
Mate 2024 2023 2022
Amortization of ROU assets P26.892,227 PR22,994914 R17.713.732
Accretion of intarest on lease
llabllives B,B87,040 7,514,406 4. 266,400
Short-term leases 21 7,169,531 10.249.091 B.269.477
R42.948.,798 #a0,758,411 30259609

The gross minimum lease payments and present value of future minimum lease payments as at
December 31 are as follows:

2024 2023
Minimum Lease Minimum Lease
Payments  Present Value Payments Aresent Value
Mot later than one
yar RB37.041,196 F31,063,007 #19,158,306 B22.447 663
Later than oné year
but not mare than
five years 80,797 963 69,907,294 69,585,536 £1,148.857
F117.841,159 R100,970,301 F58,753.842 PB3.591.520
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Thr Eurnpln'.r has :nmrud into wriuui a:rtemen:u- with growers and breeders for the growing and
breeding of livestock. These are generally renewed on an annual basis. The carrying amount of related
advances to contract growers and breeders amounted (o RPE1.4 milllon and ®35.0 million as at
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, The advances to contract growers and breeders are settled
upon delivery of goods ta the Company [5es Note 9).

Tolling Agre¢ments
The Company has also entered into various toll arrangemants, mainly for the manufacture of its feeds,

hatching of eggs and dressing of poultry livestock whose services are payable through fixed amounts
per unit of output.

Total services incurred from tolling arrangements amounted to B1.224.4 million in 2024,
¥1,125.9 million in 2023 and #858.8 million in 2022 and are recorded as part of "Outside Services™
account under “Cost of Goods Sold” account in the separate statements of comprehensive income
{see Note 20).

£,

Income Tax

The components of provision for income tax are as follows:

2022
[As restated -
2024 2023 see Note 4]

Reported in profit or loss:
Current 79,848 366 F31.935,240 F51,302,873
Deferred 17,945,806 (21,247 496] 9,722,023
R97,795,172 FoB7, 744 FE1,024 806

Reported in GCI -

Deferred F42,341 444 B5,000,592 (R23,071.184)




-l =

The components of the Company's net deferred tax labilities are as follows:

2024 2023
Deferred tax sssets:
Retirement Hability #50,249,761 Pa5,146.413
Allowance for ECL on trade and other receivabie 35,288,910 29,026,059
Allowance for impairment loss on advances to
contract growers and breeders 13,007,783 13,007,783
Allowance for inventory write-down 224,079 224079
Unrealized loss on foreign exchange 25,109 -
Fair value changes of blological assets « livestock - 11,944 895
102,795,642 90,349 220
Dieferred tax liabilities:
Revaluation surplus on property,
plant and equipment (186,525986)  (147.319.402)
Fair value changes of blological assets - livestock (22,942,403} -
Cumulative gain on fair value changes of investment
properties (5,265,173) (3,636,703)
Excess of lease llabilines over ROLU assets (817,055) (B48.147)
Unrealized gain on foreign exchange - [12.703)
{215,550,617) (151816 955)
(P112,754,975)  (R52.467,.726)

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company did not recognize deferred tax assets relating 1o
the following as management has assessed that these may not be realized in the future:

2024 2023
Allowance for ECL on:

Recelvable from an Insurance company 17,865,193 P17,865,193
Trade and other receivables 5,907,753 5007, 753

Allowance for impairment loss on:
Project development costs 7.B42, 099 7.Ba2, 099
Advances to suppliers 2,743,206 2,734,206
_ #34,358,251 B34, 349,251

The reconciliation between the income tax based on statutory Income tax rate and provision for

{benefit from) income tax reported in the separate statements of comprehensive income is as follows:

2024 2023 2022
Provision for income tax computed at the
statutory income @x rate 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%
income tax effects of:
Nondeductible expenses and other
adjustments 1.71% (32 0% 9.0%
Income already subjected to
final ta 0.0% (0.0%) (0.0r)
Change in unrecognized deferred
[ax assely 0.0% 10.75% -
26.1% 2.8% 34.0%




The RCIT used in preparing the separate financial statements as at and for the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 is 25%. The MCIT rate used 5 2.00%, 1.50% and 1.00% for the
years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respactively,
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Related Party Transactions

The Company, In its regular conduct of business, has transactions with its related parpes.
The following tables summarize the transactions with the related parties and outstanding balance
arising from these transactons.

Mature of Amount al Traniscan Ourstanding Halies s
Relabed Partes feote Trasuacrian J02a 023 J024 033
Trade and Othar
Aeceivablies L1
Enbitiey umder dommaon
comirnl Salei FTRITAE.508  FTOL 1R AR5
Coilectiong (BR0384, 260 (69080 SGE] E245E90.50 w40 50E 24l
Sutmidiary ey 118,541 550 BT HS1512
Coilecsions [T8ABO018)  (I0TIOITE]  XBAIALSIS 144 080063
Sales PFEE1TERDBE  PUESOOL ATH
Coll=ctions PESEETA FREN (TR TE4 Jid] MR DID 006 BIEEHIRIM
Trade and Other Payalies 15
Sl lary Purchassi FLOITSMEEIZ  RUTS 120210
Fargrmareis (WELAGHLS4T) [RES0O05473]  WRL11N.BSE Y7 G aas
Enmiihd under comimen
CoRTird Furnchaem 289,461,068 G5, 154, ki
Faymeris [ZT7.R83. 099  [T14.T10.H13] 15 685 403 5807.518
Purehaies F1.507 60T TR 1531284 A04

Faymeitii iﬁ,&ﬂ (3,593 716 766) _ WRY.804, TS6 410072 074

& Advande - net of
Advancei o Officer roilections W [ EW LERAT 2 T W33 B G

Trade and Other Receivables

The Company sells animal feeds, raw materials, feed supplements and dressed chicken to related
parties, which are due within 90 days and are noninterest-bearing. Outstanding balances of trade and
other receivables from related parties are unsecured and to be settled In cash. No allowance for ECL
on trade and other receivables from related parties was recognized as at December 31, 2024 and 2023
[see Note &).

Trade and Other Payables
The Company buys raw materials and breeder flocks from related parties. These are poninterest-

bearing, generally on a 30 to 90-day credit term, unsecured and to be settled in cash (see Mote 15),

Advances 1g Officers

The Company granls unsecured, noninterest-bearing advances to Its officers which are narmaliy
collected within one year through salary deduction. The allowance for ECL on advances to officers as
at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are disclosed in Note 6.
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Compensation of Key Management Personnel

The compensation of key management personnel are as Tollows:

2024 2023 022
Short-term employee benefits RE9,5911,760 #54,914 416 #55, 480,527
Retirement benefits 4,656,828 5,238,557 5010571
COther employee banefits 24,276,904 19.521,032 17,133,565
W38, 845,492 BT9,674,005 77,624,663
18. Earnings Per Share
Basic and diluted sarnings per share were computed a5 follows:

Mote 2024 2023 2082
Nat income B275,757,288 ¥73,827,005 F118.420,989

Divided by the weighted average

number of autstanding

comman shares 18 3,054,334,004 3054334014  3,054,334014
Basic and diluted marnings per share RO, 050 PO.00H ®0.035

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income for the year attributabie to commaon egquity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of commaon chares lssusd and outstanding

during the year.

The Company does nat have any dilutive common shares outstanding as at December 31, 2024, 2023

and 2021,

29

Reconciliation of Liabilites Arising from Financing Activities

The tables below detail the changes in the Company's llabilities arising from financing activities,

including both cash and non-cash changes:

January 1, Financing Cash Flows Non-cash  December 31,

HNuots 2024 Availments Cha 2024

Loars payable 16 FEDE, 119 785 MOSHEBEIZ00  (W1,057031995) -~ FP95. 570,450
Lease liahilities 25 B3,551,520 - (38,308,243) 51,687,024 100,970, 300
Interest expense 16 - - {68,837,102) 68,837,102 -
PSE1,710.805  RO5S 883200  (P1,160,177,340) F120,524,126 900,940,791

January 1, Financing Cash Flows Moncash  Deceémber 31,

Pote 2023 Avallmarnts Payments Changas 2023

Loans payahie 16  ®1,085121351 #1.740,233.658 (#1,877.235.724] - RESE 119285
Lease linbilbmes 25 52,299 838 - [26,135,747) 57417 428 83,591,520
intorest puperize 16 = = |68, 308 BAaZ) 68,308,882 =
F1,087,421190 F1740,233.658 (PL971670.353) W13%5.726310  POAL,710.80%
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30, Contingencies

The Company, in the ordinary course of business, kas pending legal claims and assessments which are
in various stages of discussions, protests and appeals with relevant third parties. Management,
in consultation with its legal counsel, believes that the ultimate resolution of these legal claims and
assessments would not have a material impact on the Company's financial position and results of
operatons based upon an analysis of potential results. Thus, no provision for contingencies was
recopnized in 2024, 2023 and 20232,

3.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company s financial instruments consist of cash, trade and other recelvables [sxcluding advances
to afficers and employees), receivable from an insurance company, security depaosits, trade and other
payables (excluding statutory payables), loans payable, lease liabilities and cash bond deposits.

It is the Company's policy that no trading in financial iInstruments shall be undertaken. The main risks
arising from the Company's financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The BOD reviews and approves policies for managing these risks as summarized below,

Credit Risk
The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from the fallure of a counterparty to fulfill its financial

commitments to the Company under the prevailing contractual terms. Financial instruments that
potentially subject the Company to credit risk consist primarily of trade receivables and other financial
assats at amortized cost. The carrying amounts of these financial assets represant its maximum credit
EXPOSUre,

Trode Receivables. Management has established a credit policy under which each new customer Is
analyred Individually for creditworthiness before the Company's standard payment and delivery
terms, and conditions are offered. The Company’s credit policy includes available external ratings,
financial statements, credit agency information, industry information and, in some cases, bank
references. Credit limits are established for each customer and reviewsd on a regular basis. Any sales
on credit exceeding those limits require specific approval from upper level of management.
The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by transacting mainly with recognized and creditwirthy
customers that have undergone its credit evaluation and approval process. Historically, trade
receivables are substantially collected within one (1) year, Trade receivables are closely monitored
on aging of the account,

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, there were no significant credit concentrations. The Company
also requires collateral which are generally land and resl estate from its customers to minimize credit
risk.

Financial Assets Other thon Trode Receivobles. The Company’s other financial assets at amortized
cost are mostly composed of cash in banks, other receivables {excluding advances to officers and
employees), receivable from an insurance company and security deposits.

For cash in banks, the Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only with Banks that have
good credit standing and reputation in the Iocal and International banking industry. These instruments
are graded in the top category by an acceptable credit rating agency and, therefore, are considered
to be low credit risk investments.
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For recelvable from an Insurance company, management and its iegal counsel believe that the
ongoing litgation on the remaining claims will not result to sdditional allawance for ECL
{see Note 10).

For the other financial assets, credit risk is low since the Company only transacts with reputable
companies and Individuals with respect to this financial asset.

It is the Company’s policy to measure ECL on the above instruments on @ 12-manth basis, Howsver,
when thera has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime ECL. When determining if there has been a significant increase in credit risk,
the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost
or effort and that is relevant for the particular financial instrument being assessed such as, but nat
limited to, the following factors:

* Actual or expected external and internal credit rating downgrade;
=  Existing or forecasted adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions: and
*  Actual or expected significant adverse changes in the operating results of the borrower.

The Company also considers financial assets that are more than 120 days past due to be the latest
paint at which lifetime ECL should be recognized unless it can demonstrate that this does not
represent significant credit risk such as when non-payment arising from administrative oversight
rather than resulting from financial difficulty of the borrower,

The tables below show the credit quality by class of financial assets based on the Company's credit
rating system as at December 31:

2024
Simplitied Approach
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Cash in baniks B520.243 B4 B = W5E0,743, 840
Trade and other recevable® 933,480,534 184,409 058 137,224,718 1.458,114.320
Receivabis from an Ingurance company = 141 664,583 E 141,664 5583
security deposits 11925688 - = 12,920,684

P1,526,659,071  WS26.073.641  WI3T.224.728 P1.189.951.440

"L aChaliind ditwiriien & ffBrers and pmpd pees

2023
Simplified Approach
Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 1 Total
Caxh i banks 385,578,307 [ B B35 538 307
Trate and other recelvables* 1,134,384, 773 - 34,127,739 1,158 472,512
Recebvable from an insirance company = 141 BG4, 583 - 141 K84 587
Security deposits 11,008 088 = 13836658

151351768  PLALG64SE3  W34.177.735  B1635,044,090

*E rciurting avwrnees En RN 00T SRR

For trade and other receivables, “Stage 1” pertains to those receivables from custamers that always
pay an fime or even before the maturity date, "Stage 2" Includes receivables that are collected on
their due dates provided that they were reminded or followed up by the Company. Those receivahles
which are collected consistently beyond their due dates and require persistent effort from the
Company are included under “Stage 3°,
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Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Compary's trade recefvables
using @ provisson matrix as at December 11:

1024
Beyi Past Dug Artount
Leess than B0-50  B1-B0 91130 Ndane than weithe Fill
Current 30 dayn iy dayy 10 Tokal Prorvizion Toaal
Txpected cradit iy rate 0OoIs  O0E  OUK 071N LBEN 671N
Esnmated io7al gross
CRITYESE APESLNL 3T
etz i miliona) FE0L04  PEMAGOD  PIRTSR  MQA3E  MISSS  BMTLIS  FRACDAD FELTO  FlAS511
Tapnctied eredil ines
{1 iTiEne] OO 0,55 BOTT  BOAE MDA NL2G Fi17.78 FELT0  FITAAR
ozl
Days Fast Dug AT
LueE TR B0 BLE0 §1-130  More than weith Full
Cutvestt 30 days days dagy dna  1Mdepn Tots Proniuinm Totl
Expecied otada s rate o.oTN Qs OGNS DARY QAN & AEN
Estuminlsd latal ghasi
CArrying amoung an
diefault {m milkgei) PEA3EA  FRARTS  FRLIE WRR3S oy Pl BRGS0 450  #RI050
Capsitid crodib gy
fin milias) OO0 PUO1 RO10 RDOS  eODL 72 #1590 F54.90 WiRED

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to settle s obligations as they fall due.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the financial liabilittes of the Company based on
remaining contractual undiscounted cash flows as at December 31:

e
Wiithin & o 12 15 Later than
Montha Marths Years 5 Yeary Totsl
Trade and othor payables® ¥2,262,794,172 B LB B-  B1ZE2.794.173
Loani payabls 684,404,301 58,321 439 47,154,760 - 199,570,490
Lesie Rabifitoes 18,373,409 18,424,281 B1.041 464 - 117 841,159
Cash bond depoxits = 66,152, THO = = B5, 192,780
Future mierest on kong-term
loam payabls 3,836,235 1,523,754 1,371,525 - 7,131,504
P2.079,438.108  P144.B54.284 129,567,754 B-_ $3.253.930.106
*Eactisfeag sty poraises
201
Within 6 Eth 13 Ims Latet than
mamirs hignthy Y&ara 5 Yeir Total
Trade and other payables® #2016 703,947 - [ B B2016703 347
Loan payable B33.655.000 23 821 419 45,642 BSE - H9E, 119 788
Lesie liplvirtes L4575 411 14,452 R95 6%.585.536 - 98,753 Bd)
Cugh bond deposits = 60 306,912 == = &0, 306,917
Futurme interest on long-term
Ipans payabie 3,046, 405 1,080,067 11,226,256 - 17,352,728
l?‘ﬁllmlﬂ'ﬂ F102, 701,308 N0 554 644 B-  FO%13IE 714

"Estiudiog Hniuteey soyotini
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The Company manitors its risk to a shortage of funds through analyzing the maturity of its financial
labilites and cash flows from operations, The Company monitors its cash pasition by a system of
cash forecasting, wherein all expected collections, check disbursements and other payments are
determined on a timely basis to arrive at the projected cash position to cover jts obligations.

The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility.
The Company addresses liquidity concerns primarily through cash flows from operations.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rabe risk (s the rick that future cash Nows from a financial instrument [cash Mlow Interest rate

risk) or its falr value (fair value interest rate risk) will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Company's loans payable to local banks are subject to fived interest rates and are exposed to fair
value interest rate risk. The re-pricing of these instruments Is done on regular intervals. The Company
regularly monitors interest rate movements and on the basis of current and projected economic and
monetary data, decides on the best alternative to take. No sensitivity analysis is needed as
management has assessed that future interest rate changes are not expected to significantly affect
the Company's separate net income.

Einancial and Other Risks Relating to Livestock

The Company is exposed to various risks affecting the food industry such as food spoilage and
contamination, thus, it is regulated by environmental, health and food safety organizations.
The Company has processes and systems in place to monlior food safety risks |n &l stages of
manufacturing and processing to mitigate these risks. In addition, the livestock industry is exposed to
risks associated with supply and price volatility of its inventories and livestock,

To mitigate this risk, the Company regularly monitors the supply and price of commodities and enters
into supply agreements at a reasonable price,

Capital Management

The Company’s capital management objectives are to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services
commensurate with the level of risk.

The Company monitars capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity as presented in the
separate statements of financial position. Capital for the reporting periads is summarized as follows:

2024 2023
Total llabilites R3,570,777,743 #3,317.534.732
Total equity 2,339,464,133  1,936,682,515
Debt-to-equity ratio 153 171

The Company Is not subject to externally imposed restrictions.
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31, Fair Value Measurement

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's assets and
liabiliies measured at falr value and for which fair values are disclosed, and the corresponding fair
value hierarchy as at December 31:

1024 2023
Carrying Amounts Fair Yalues Carrying Amounis Fair Valu=i
Financial Assets at
Amortized Cost
Cavh FSES 037297 B5E5. 007,297 FI0Z 412 466 #3904 A5R
Trade and other mcewablas® LI75.631.580 1.275.631,580 1020041 476 L0 08T 176
Eecetvabile fram an insurance
Campany 10,203,810 10,203,810 70,203,810 70,203,810
__Security deposits 12428 684 12,838,680 12 528 G3E 12,923 683
#1,943,801,575 B1.5943.801,375 #1435 586,140 B1L495 586, 140
Financial Liabifides at
fmprtired Cost
Trade and other payables®* ¥2,252,794,173 P2262,794,173 B1016, 703,047 PILOLE 700,847
Loans payable T99,5970.450 199,970, 490 B9R. 118 285 BEE, 119 205
Lease fiadslites 100,974,301 100,570,301 83,591 580 83,581,530
Laih band deposity B6,152, 780 66,152,760 60,306,912 0,308, 912

F3,129.527 744 F1,230.927, Ta4 B31058,701.664 B3 058,721 664
*Extiindrig fdbdnices (6 effiers ond emplowers
**Eaciudfing siututary poyoinin

The following methods and assumptions were used in estimating the fair value of the Company's
financial assets and fiabifities:

Cash, Trade ond Other Receivables (Excluding Advances to Officers ond Employees), Trade and Other
Payabies (Excluding Statutory Poyobles) and Cosh Bond Deposits. The carrying amounts of these
financial assets and liabilites approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of these
financial instruments.

Recelvoble from on insuronce Company, Security Deposits, Lecse Liobiitnes, Loons Poyabie
Management believes that the differences between falr values and carrying amounts are not
significant.

There have been no transfers between the fair vaiue hierarchy in 2024 and 2023,
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33. Supplementary Information Reguired Under Revenue Regulations No. 15-2010 of the Bureau of
Internal Revenue [BIR)

The information for the taxable year 2024 required by the above regulation iz presented below

Dutput VAT
Output VAT declared by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024, and the revenues upan

which the same was based consist of

Gross Amaunt of
Revenues Dutput VAT

Exempt sales ®12,352 435,866
VATable sales 187,214,005 RF22 465681
Total 12,535 6459, 871 22,465,681
Less: Applied Input VAT 18,408 423
VAT payments 4,057,258

"™

The Company has exempt sales from the sale of animal feeds and live poultry pursuant to
Section 109 of the National Internal Revenue Code (NIRC), as amended by Republic Act No. 12066

Input VAT
The movements in input VAT claimed by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024
are shown balow.

Beginning balance R427, 404
Add: current year's purchases/payments for goods other

than capital goods 184 280 486
Lest input tax allocable to exempt sales 164,621,587
Total input VAT 20,085,303
Less applied against output VAT 18,408,423
Balance at the end of the year 1,676 880

All Other Local and Nattonal Taxes
The Company's local and national taxes for the year ended December 31, 2024 consist of:

Business permits and licenses F12,165269
Real property tax 6,145 449
Fringe benefit tax 3,450,245
Others 3,238,847

P24 999 810

The above local and national taxes were presented as part of "Taxes and Licenses” under
“Operating Expenses” in the separate statements of comprehensive Income.
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Withholding Taxes
Withholding taxes paid and accrued by the Company as at and for the year ended December 31, 2024
consist of:

Paid Accrued Total
Expanded withholding tax F116,052,445 B17,784.595  P133.837,040
Withholding tax on compensation 22 165 855 3,055,275 25.231.130

#138,218,300 #20,839.870 #159,058,170

Withholding taxes payable |s classified as "Statutory Payables™ under "Trade and Other Payables”
account in the separate statements of fnancial position.

Tax Asseisment and Cases

The Company has no pending tax assessment and cases from the BIR, in courts, or in other regulatory
bodies as at December 31, 2024,
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Vitarich Corporation

Maritap — 5an Jose Road, 5ta. Rosa |

Marilao, Bulacan

We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of Vitarich Corporation [the Company),
as at and for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, on which we have rendered our report dated
March 20, 20325.

In compliance with Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, we are stating that the Company has
4,084 stockholders owning one hundred (100) or more shares sach.

REYES TACANDONG & CO,

mamgﬁ
Partner
CPA Cerfificatn Mo. 57380
Ta identfication No. 201-897-18%-004
B0 Accreditation Na. 4TR2P-011; Valld untl june & 2035
BIR Accreditation Ng, OR-005144-012-2023
Valid urtil lanuary 24, 1026
ITR Mo, 10EG7EIRE
Bsued lanuary X, 25, Makat City

March 20, 2025
Makati City, Metro Manila
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF
RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

The Stackholders and the Board of Directors
Vitarich Corpaoration

Marilao - 5an lose Road, 5ta. Aosa |

Marilao, Bulacan

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the separate financial statements
of Vitarich Corporation (the Company) as at and for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
have issued our report thereon dated March 20, 2025. Our audits were made far the purpose of forming
an opinion on the basic separate financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying supplementary
schedule of Retained Earnings Avallable for Dividend Declaration as at December 31, 2024 are the
responsibility of the Company's management.

This schedule is presented for purposes of complying with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68
Part Il and are not part of the separate financial statements. This information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audits of the separate financial statements, including comparing such
information directly to the underhying accounting and other records used to prepare the separate financial
staterments or to the separate financlal statements themselves, In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated In all material respect in relation to the separate financlal statements taken as a whale.

REYES TacanDONG & Co.

Mehie r Mﬁé‘i}u
Fartner
CPA Certificate No, 373680
Tax identification No. 201-892-183-000
B0 Accraditation Mo, dTRIP-011; Vakd urdl bune 8 2026
IR Accreditstion Mo, D8-005]44-002-2023
Virlid wotd fanuary 24, 2036
PTR Mo, 10467135
Iwsued lnmuary 3, 2025, Makat Cloy

March 20, 2025
Makati City, Metro Manila
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PARENT COMPANY'S RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR

DIVIDEND DECLARATION

FOR THE REPORTING PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

VITARICH CORPORATION

Marilao - San Jose Road, 5ta. Rosa |

Marilao, Bulacan

Amount

Deficit as at the beginning of reporting period
Add: Category A: Items that are directly credited to unappropriated
retained sarnings
Transfer from revaluation surplus to retained earnings -
net of deferred income tax

[F216,530,997)

7,851,147

Dreficit, as adjusted
Add: Met income for the current year
Less: Category C.1: Unrealized income recognized in the profit or
loss during the reporting period - net of tax
Fair value changes on biological assets - livestock
Net gain on fair value changes of investment properties

275,757,288

{68,827,209)
{15,264,648)

{208,679 850)

Adjusted net income
Add/Less: Category F: Other items that should be excluded from the
determination of the amount of available for dividend
distribution
Unrealired fair value changes on biological assets - livestock
in 2023, realized in 2024 - net deferred income tax
Met movement of unrealized foreign exchange
- net of deferred income tax
Net movement on set-up of ROU assets and lease liabilities
- net of deferred income tax
Net movement of deferred tax assets not considered in the
reconciling items under the previous categories

(35,834,684)
113,433
93,275

(3,446,413)

191665431

(39,074,389)

Deficit as at the end u'!r-purttr‘ period

(P56,088,808)




VITARICH CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR FEE-RELATED INFORMATION

FOR THE REFORTING PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023

Total Audit Fees #3,750,000 #3,450,000
Man-audit services fees:

Transfer pricing services 500,000 -

Tax compllance review - 1,100,000

Total Non-audit Fees 500,000 1,100,000

Total Audit and Non-audit Fees R4, 250,000 #4, 550,000
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2024 SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
VITARICH CORPORATION

Contextual Information

Company Details

Name of Organization

Vitarich Corporation (PSE: VITA)

Location of Headquarters

Marilao-San Jose Road, Sta. Rosa |, Marilao, Bulacan

Location of Operations

Principal Office: Marilao-San Jose Road, Sta. Rosa |, Marilao,
Bulacan

Other offices:

Units 6 & 7, 16™ Floor, IBP Building, Exchange Road, Ortigas
Center, San Antonio, Pasig City

#8 C. Building, Maharlika Highway, San Fermin, Cauayan City,
Isabela

Zone 4, San Isidro, Poblacion, Magarao, Camarines Sur
Brgy. Mali-ao, Pavia, lloilo

Luzuriaga Ext., Reclamation Area, Brgy. 13, Bacolod City
Km. 14, Panacan, Davao City

Unit A, Warehouse 3, Neo Central Arcade, Cugman, Cagayan De
Oro City

Doors C, D and E, FMUFASCO Building, National Highway, Brgy.
Sinawal, Gen. Santos City

Feed Mill Plants owned and operated by VITA:

Brgy. Mali-ao, Pavia, lloilo
Km. 14, Panacan, Davao City

VITA has also operations with its Toll Mill Partner in 105 Barrio
Bagbaguin, Sta. Maria, Bulacan

Dressing Plants owned by VITA and operated by its subsidiary,
Barbatos Ventures Corporation (“BVC”):




Sta. Rosa |, Marilao, Bulacan
Purok 12 Quarry, Tugbok, Davao City

Report Boundary: Legal entities Except as otherwise reported and/or stated, the report covers
(e.g. subsidiaries) included in this | only VITA and the feed mill plants it operates and excludes: (a)
report* the operations in VITA’s dressing plants in Marilao, Bulacan and

Tugbok, Davao City; and (b) operations of BVC. Some disclosures
were made in general terms so as to avoid disclosing proprietary
or confidential information, business strategies, or even trade
secrets.

Business Model, including Primary | Please see Annex “A”
Activities, Brands, Products, and
Services

PROGINE LWVELINDOO  SOURIIMNG Livl)
- Tae e e wey M e g —— e T @ % 1 4 om0t F1® e e

e e hie ¢ ey Mg e o S b e gy b A @
e e e e — PUp—— -
S -— s s
- >
.

—— e —— — —— o — S—— - —
- - —— " —
— . ® o - O o -

Reporting Period January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024

Highest Ranking Person Atty. Mary Christine C. Dabu-Pepito (Assistant Corporate
responsible for this report Secretary/Compliance Officer/Corporate Information Officer)

*If you are a holding company, you could have an option whether to report on the holding company only
or include the subsidiaries. However, please consider the principle of materiality when defining your report
boundary.

Materiality Process

Explain how you applied the materiality principle (or the materiality process) in identifying your
material topics.!

The data and information necessary for the report were collated from the different departments of VITA.
Some of the information came from reports that are also submitted to government agencies like the
BIR, DOLE and DENR-EMB. Some were based on the results of engagement with different stakeholders
such as the employees, business partners, dealers, and customers. Based on these existing data, the
material topics for the report were analyzed using the Materiality Matrix. Per assessment, the following
are the topics material to Vitarich:

(a) Direct Economic Value Generated and Distributed

!'See GRI 102-46 (2016) for more guidance.


https://www.globalreporting.org/standards/media/1037/gri-102-general-disclosures-2016.pdf#page=34

(b) Climate Related Risks and Opportunities

) Proportion of Spending on Local Suppliers

(d) Resource Management except Ecosystems and Biodiversity as the Corporation does not operate
within or adjacent to protected areas and areas of high biodiversity value outside protected
areas

(e) Environmental Impact Management

(f) Environmental Compliance

(g) Employee Management

(h) Occupational Health and Safety

(i) Relationship with Community, except those pertaining to IPs

(j) Customer Management, except Customer Privacy

The topics that are not material were left in blank/unanswered.

Economic Performance
Direct Economic Value Generated and Distributed

Disclosure Amount Amount Amount Units
(2024) (2023) (Restated 2022)
Direct economic value 12,571,724,786 12,509,448,015.00 11,978,605,046.00 PhP

generated (revenue)
Direct economic value

distributed:
a. Operating costs | 10,998,780,719 11,555,586962.00 10,853,828,605.00 PhP
b. Employee 371,408,811 352,734,377.00 324,516,851.00 PhP
wages and
benefits
c. Paymentsto 701,467,146 544,145,841.00 576,235,796.00 Php

suppliers, other
operating costs

d. Dividends given Interest Interest payments Interest payments PhP
to stockholders | payments only — only — 75,423,301 only —39,673,099.00
and interest 78,590,474 (restated; previous (restated; previous
payments to disclosure: disclosure:
loan providers 75,823,288.00) 40,001,976.00)

e. Taxesgiven to 296,598,293.00 242,259,018.00 244,056,997.00 PhP
government

f. Investments to 396,606.00 0.00 0.00 PhP

community (e.g.
donations, CSR)




What is the impact and where does it
occur? What is the organization’s

stakeholders are

Which

Management Approach

involvement in the impact? affected?
VITA generated a total consolidated revenue| » Government ([The management continuously|
of Php12,571,724,786.00 in 2024, driven by| » Employees evaluates its strategies and modifies
its business operations, strategic initiatives,| > Creditors them as may be necessary to adapt to
and other contributing factors. This was| » Suppliers the changing landscapes, provide
higher than the total consolidated revenue in| » Community [solutions to challenges encountered,
2023, primarily due to a Php91.8 million fair| > Shareholders [and pioneer innovations. Organizational
value gain on biological assets. Revenue also| » Investors changes are also made from time to

surpassed 2022 levels, fueled by the
expansion of the Foods segment, which
recorded a 19% growth in sales volume.

VITA’s revenue allowed it to fund its
operating costs and pay its suppliers,
employees, creditors and the government
(taxes and licenses). Operating costs for 2024
were lower than in 2023, primarily due to a
decline in feed sales volume and lower raw
material costs. However, operating costs
were slightly higher than that in 2022, due to
expansion of the Foods segment, which saw a
19% increase in sales volume. This growth
resulted in higher manpower requirements
for internal farms, as well as increased
contract growing and dressing fees.

Interest payments for 2024 took into
consideration the accretion of interest to
right-of-use (“ROU") buildings. For
consistency, the interest payments for 2023
were restated to consider accretion of
interest to ROU buildings.

VITA’s CSR activities in 2024 consisted of]
Marilao river clean-up and tree planting
activity, donation drive to aid to employees
who were badly hit by typhoon Carina, relief
goods operation drive for the victims of
typhoons Kristine and Leon, outreach
program at BJMP SIDM female dorm, blood
letting activity in coordination with Red Cross
Philippines in Bulacan and lloilo, medical
missions and feeding program in lloilo, and
dressed chicken donation in lloilo.

time to make operations more efficient
and productive. Costs and market
volatility are closely monitored to
effectively manage the same. The
monthly results of operations as well as
the business outlook for the succeeding
months are reported to the Board of
Directors, who give insights to aid the
management achieve its targets. VITA
faithfully complies with its contractual
obligations to its stakeholders. VITA's
cashflow, including collections and
disbursements, are closely monitored
and managed. There are also internal
control systems and processes in place
to manage business operations and
finances.




VITA’s consolidated net income before tax in
2024 was at Php314,383,734.00.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Which

stakeholders are

Management Approach

to imported raw materials; (d) rising costs of
fuel; (e) increasing interest rates; and (f) low
selling price of chicken due to market
oversupply.

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

B3

s The availability of multiple sales
channels for VITA’s products
continue to present an opportunity,
to continuously innovate.

+* The innovations and strategies done

in 2024 to manage costs also

continue to present an opportunity|
to manage production costs without
affecting the quality of VITA's

products.

affected?
Financial, liquidity, and operational risks| » Suppliers VITA closely monitored its cash flow and
brought about by: (a) animal diseases like| > Employees |disbursements, continuously improved
African Swine Flu (ASF) or Avian Influenza| > Business its inventory levels, innovated strategies
(Al); (b) high operating costs brought about partners to manage costs and cash flow, and
by increasing prices of raw materials; (c)| » Customers [|constantly communicated and
increasing foreign exchange rates in relation| > Creditors negotiated with suppliers and with

creditors as regards debts and interest
rates.

Management Approach

In  addition to the foregoing
management approaches, VITA commits
to continue improving its operations and
business strategies to allow expansion
of its businesses.

Climate-related risks and opportunities?

Disclose the | Disclose the actual and
organization’s potential impacts® of
governance around | climate-related risks and
climate-related risks | opportunities on the

and opportunities

organization’s
businesses, strategy, and
financial planning where
such  information s
material

Disclose

organization identifies,
assesses, and manages
climate-related risks

Disclose the metrics
and targets used to
assess and manage
relevant climate-
related risks and
opportunities where
such information is
material

how the

2 Adopted from the Recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures. The TCFD Recommendations apply to non-
financial companies and financial-sector organizations, including banks, insurance companies, asset managers and asset owners.

3 For this disclosure, impact refers to the impact of climate-related issues on the company.



Recommended Disclosures

a) Describe the board’s
oversight of climate-
related risks and
opportunities

a) Describe the climate- | a) Describe the
related risks and organization’s
opportunities the processes for
organization has identifying and
identified over the assessing climate-
short, medium and related risks
long term

a) Disclose the
metrics used by
the organization
to assess climate-
related risks and
opportunities in
line with its
strategy and risk
management
process

The President and/or
department heads
report to the Board of
Directors how floods or
extreme weather
conditions affect or
impact VITA’s business
as well as the measures
undertaken/to be
undertaken to minimize
the impacts and/or
maximize the benefits.

VITA is exposed to the | VITA identifies and
following climate-related | assesses climate-
risks: related risks through
any or all of the
i. Physical Risks of | following methods: (a)
flooding and land | continuous analysis of
subsidence (Bulacan), | its business processes
typhoons and inland | and finding the factors
flooding (Isabela and | that could affect its
Bicol), coastal erosion and | processes and targeted
urban flooding (lloilo, | goals; (b) reviewing
Cebu, and Bacolod), heat | past negative
waves and urban | experiences or
drainage issues (Davao, | negative results and
CDO), extreme weather | finding out the root
events, and biosecurity | cause; and/or  (c)
and disease control. continuous  research
ii. Operational Risks such | and benchmarking with
as disruption of feed | other companies in the
ingredient supply, and | same industry.
transport disruptions.

iii. Credit and Liquidity
risks affecting VITA's
financial performance
and access to capital.

iv. Regulatory  risks
relative to the impact of
its emissions to air and
water quality as well as
plastic consumption’s
threat to marine life.

Risks that may occur over
the short-term period are
the physical risks of

VITA’s metrics in
assessing its climate-
related risk
management and
strategy are: (a) cost
efficiency of its
strategy; (b) quality
of feeds, animal
health, dressed
chicken and value-
added products; (c)
ability to meet
customers’ demands;
and (d) customer
satisfaction.




typhoons and inland
flooding. Those that may
occur over the short to
medium term period are
the physical risks of
flooding and land
subsidence, extreme
weather events,
biosecurity and disease
control, and disruptions
on transportation and
feed ingredient supply.
Those that may occur
over the medium term
are the physical risks of
coastal erosion and urban
flooding. The risks that
may occur over the long-
term period are heat
waves and urban
drainage issues as well as
air and water quality and
plastic consumption’s
threat to marine life.

VITA’s continued use of
solar energy in its lloilo
Feed Mill plant in its 2024
operations as well as its

other sustainability
upgrades in its
production/dressing

plant present an

opportunity for VITA to
counter the climate-
related risks. e. VITA also
allowed its employees to
plant within company
premises and share with
one another their
produce (Green
Sanctuary Program)
provides an avenue for
employees to contribute
to VITA’s sustainability
practices. In addition, the
climate-related risks
identified above present




opportunities to develop
climate-resilient feed
formulations and to
rehabilitate the riverbank
stability as well as soil and
air qualities in the areas
of its operations, as may
be necessary.

The development of
climate-resilient feed
formulations may be
done over the short-term
period while the
rehabilitation of
riverbank stability and soil
and air quality as well as
sustainability upgrades in
the plants can be done
over the long-term
period.

VITA launched its Sagip
Kalikasan initiative in
Bulacan in February 2025,
a program that uses
bamboo as a solution for
climate change
mitigation.

b) Describe
management’s role
in assessing and
managing climate-
related risks and
opportunities

b) Describe the impact
of climate-related
risks and
opportunities on the
organization’s
businesses, strategy
and financial
planning.

b) Describe the
organization’s
processes for

managing climate-
related risks

b) Describe the
targets used by
the organization

to manage
climate-related
risks and

opportunities
and performance
against targets

The management
regularly assesses
impacts of predictable
climate-related risks,
such as extreme rains,
extreme humidity, or
even flooding, to its
operations and makes

The climate-related risks
identified above are seen
to have the following
impacts:

a. Flooding and land
subsistence: high impact
on facilities and logistics,

To manage the climate-
related risks, VITA

monitors the
temperature in the
farms, increases

cooling systems in
farms, as may be
necessary, and/or re-

VITA’s target in
managing its climate-
related risk
management and
strategy is to
continue to deliver
on time the agreed
volume or agreed

8



the appropriate
adjustments  in  its
strategies. The
unpredictable climate-
related risks like
earthquake as well as
measures

undertaken/to be
undertaken to minimize
the adverse impacts are

discussed by the
management and
reported to the Board as
it bhappens. VITA's
strategies take into
account the climate-
related risks and

opportunities that are
material to it.

which  may increase
insurance and disruption
mitigation costs.

b. Typhoons and inland
flooding: high impact on
supply chain and
production, which will
likely cause business
interruption and repair
costs.

¢. Coastal erosion and
urban flooding: medium
impact on operations,
causing erosion-related
asset damage and urban
disruption.

d. Heat waves and urban
drainage issues: low to
medium impact on
workforce and
infrastructure, in addition
to causing heat stress in
animals, affecting their
health, growth, and
productivity. These risks
may likely reduce
productivity while
increasing cooling costs.
These may also cause
reduced overall
performance in poultry
and livestock and higher

feed conversion ratios,
impacting overall live
cost.

e. Air and water quality
and plastic consumption’s
threat to marine life: may
likely subject VITA to fines
or market penalties for
non-compliance.

f. Extreme weather event:
high impact on
production and logistics
and will likely to increase
costs for feeds and animal
health care. It may also
cause disruption in supply

formulates its feeds as
may be necessary to
adapt to maintain the
same quality while
adapting to the
environment. It also
has biosecurity
protocols in place. VITA
also benchmarks and

conducts  continuous
consultations and
research and
development to
maintain the quality of
feeds despite using
alternative raw
materials. Likewise,
VITA  ensures the

diversity of its supply
chain to address and
manage impacts of
climate-related  risks.
VITA also conducts
regular trainings on
biosecurity measures

to help its business
partners in terms of
productivity.

VITA’s lloilo Feed Mill
plant continued the use
of solar energy. It also
allowed the employees
to continue the Green
Sanctuary Program,
which helps absorbs
carbon emissions.

Apart from this, VITA
also regularly
maintains and
upgrades its equipment
to comply with DENR
standards as well as to
maintain and improve
operational

efficiencies.

reduced volume of
feeds and chicken to
its customers without
sacrificing  quality,
and without incurring
too much costs.




chains, causing feed
shortages, and impacting
animal health.

g. Biosecurity and disease
control: high impact on
livestock health and
revenue as VITA will likely
incur costs associated
with disease outbreaks
and loss of livestock.

h. Disruption of feed
ingredient supply: likely
to affect grains quality as
it may cause infestation,
thereby incurring higher
raw material costs
resulting in higher feed
costs.

i. Transport disruptions:
affect the timely delivery
of raw materials and
finished goods, leading to
stock shortages and
increased transportation
costs. These, in turn,
translate to higher raw
material costs, resulting
in higher feeds costs.
These may also result in
starvation in farms due to
delay in feeds delivery.

On the other hand, the
following are the
identified impacts of the
climate-related
opportunities  disclosed
above:

a. Continued use of solar
energy in the lloilo Feed
Mill plant resulted in
reducing the GHG
emissions in the plant.

b. Development of
climate-resilient feed
formulations may likely
improve performance of
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flock during the summer
season, reducing
mortality.

C. Rehabilitation of
riverbank stability, soil
and air quality in the
areas of operations may
likely reduce material
costs while enhancing
brand image and market
access. It may also open
up avenues to secure
government incentives.
d. Sustainability upgrades
in the plants will likely
result in long-term cost
savings and regulatory
compliance, thereby
avoiding unnecessary
costs due to penalties.

e. The continued
permission for employees
to plant within company
premises (Green
Sanctuary Program) helps
absorb carbon emissions,
which, in turn, helps
minimize VITA’s adverse
impacts on the
environment.

c) Describe the
resilience  of the
organization’s
strategy, taking into
consideration
different climate-
related scenarios
including a 2°C or
lower scenario

c) Describe how
processes for
identifying,
assessing, and

managing climate-
related risks are
integrated into the
organization’s
overall risk
management

VITA’s climate-related
risk management
continues to prove to be
resilient as evidenced by
its continued financial
and operational stability.

As can be seen above,
changes and
modifications are made
in  VITA’s  business
processes and feed
formulation to mitigate
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impacts of climate-
related risks and adapt
to constraints brought

about
related
events.

by

climate-
risks and

Procurement Practices
Proportion of spending on local suppliers

Disclosure

Quantity
(2024)

Quantity Units

(2023)

Percentage of procurement budget used for significant
locations of operations that is spent on local suppliers

96.27

Nationwide:

Luzon —42.98%

Visayas — | Visayas -
19.58% 12.29%
Mindanao — | Mindanao -
33.71% 31.52%

Nationwide: %

% 92.07%

Luzon —48.26%

What is the impact and where does it
occur? What is the organization’s
involvement in the impact?

Which stakeholders
are affected?

Management Approach

For the year 2024, 96.27% of VITA’s

» Suppliers

VITA manages its supply chain by

procurement budget was spent on local » Domestic increasing allocation of budget on
suppliers, 4.2% higher than that in 2023. companies local suppliers. Its procurement
These suppliers include only suppliers of raw| especially  the|policies and strategies were crafted,
and other trade materials and exclude MSMEs, andreviewed, revised and implemented
service providers such as consultants and farmers. in a manner consistent with the
contractors. Local sourcing of raw and other company’s vision of being the
trade materials had been favorable in 2024 backbone of every Filipino farmer’s|
since the price against imported raw success and mission of building
materials was relatively at par with the partnerships with its suppliers,
budget. In addition, VITA opted to source among others. Its procurement
locally given the higher risks involved for| policies and strategies are
importation. periodically reviewed in order to

continuously improve the company’s

buying plans, strategies and timings.

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders Management Approach

are affected?

R/
0.0

Operational risks include uncertainty|
in market supply, off specification with

In addition to the
foregoing:

In addition to the foregoing, VITA
streamlines its supplier base to

12



VITA’s acceptance standards, animal
diseases as well as weather
disturbance.

R/
0'0

Financial risks due to inflation in prices

and regulatory changes.

Y/
0'0

Legal, operational, financial and

reputational risks due to regulatory
changes, and delayed or non-payment
of suppliers.

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

R/
0’0

0/
0'0

R/
0'0

In terms of market opportunities,
there is an opportunity to partner
with local farmers to secure stable
supply chains and rendering support
to smallholder farmers by providing
technical assistance, training, and
market access.

The availability of long-term
contracts with suppliers will allow
better terms with local raw
materials suppliers.

The availability of reliable local
suppliers can ensure operational
efficiencies despite weather
conditions.

The availability of raw materials and
other input goods and services all
year round can minimize increase in
costs despite sudden or significant|
increase in prices of goods and
services.

YV VYV

Customers
Creditors
Shareholders
Investors

reduce costs and improve quality. It
accredits additional suppliers, or it re-
formulates feeds as may be necessary
without sacrificing the quality off
feeds.

It minimizes exposure to foreign
exchange rate volatility.

VITA also conducts regular trainings
on biosecurity measures to help its
business partner —farmers in terms of|
productivity.

VITA makes payment allocations to
suppliers, especially major raw
materials suppliers and ensure better|
raw materials cost and continuity of
operations.

As disclosed above, VITA closely
monitors and manages its cash flow|
and  disbursements to ensure
liquidity.

In line with UN SDG 2 (Zero Hunger),
VITA continuously increases the
availability of reliable local suppliers,
help in the livelihoods of the
community in the areas where it
operates, and strengthens its support
to local agriculture.

Anti-corruption

Training on Anti-corruption Policies and Procedures

Disclosure

Quantity Units

Percentage of employees to whom the organization’s anti-
corruption policies and procedures have been communicated to

%

Percentage of business partners to whom the organization’s
anti-corruption policies and procedures have been
communicated to

%

Percentage of directors and management that have received
anti-corruption training

%

Percentage of employees that have received anti-corruption
training

%
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What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Incidents of Corruption

Disclosure Quantity Units
Number of incidents in which directors were removed or #
disciplined for corruption
Number of incidents in which employees were dismissed or #
disciplined for corruption
Number of incidents when contracts with business partners H
were terminated due to incidents of corruption

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach
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ENVIRONMENT

Resource Management
Energy consumption within the organization:

Disclosure Quantity (2024) Quantity (2023) Units
Energy consumption | Visayas — 166,309 Visayas — 195,626 Kwh
(renewable sources)

Energy consumption | Visayas — 5,347 Visayas —4,464.97 GJ
(SFO%)
Energy consumption | Luzon —51,072.21 Luzon —44,041.90 Liters
(gasoline) Visayas — 4,717.56 Visayas —2,410.17
Mindanao — 16,523.26 Mindanao —9,907.69
Energy consumption | Visayas — 200 Visayas — 180 KG
(LPG)
Energy consumption | Luzon - 14,780 liters (for | Luzon—96,167.72 Liters
(diesel) forklift); 126,374.21 (for fleet) | Visayas —44,889.01 orGlJ
Visayas — 14,800 liters (for | Mindanao — 88,718.74
boiler & forklift); 60,752.68
liters (for fleet)
Mindanao — 333,742.41 liters
(for boilers); 115,889.11 liters
(for fleet)
Energy consumption | Luzon — 1,233 kwh (office); | Luzon — 1,287 (Marilao office only); | kWh
(electricity) 3,876,315 (dressing plant) 3,973,922
Luzon Warehouse — 153,712 Luzon Warehouse — 156,555
Visayas — 1,449,400 (ILECO), | Visayas — 1,304,800 (lloilo); 11,598
11,086 (Bacolod Satellite | (Bacolod Satellite Warehouse); 1,285
Warehouse) (Cebu Satellite Warehouse)
Mindanao - 2,970,069.20 | Mindanao — 3,787,487.85 (Davao);
(Panacan, Davao), 7,710 (CDO | 6,836 (CDO Satellite Warehouse)
Satellite Warehouse)
Reduction of energy consumption
Disclosure Quantity (2024) Quantity (2023) Units
Energy consumption Visayas — 29, 317 Visayas — 1,947 KWH
(renewable sources)
Energy reduction GJ
(SFO)
Energy reduction GJ
(gasoline)

4 Special fuel oil
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from VITA’s lloilo and Davao feed
mill plants as well as the electricity
consumption in the principal office
(Marilao, Bulacan) and satellite
warehouses in Luzon, Bacolod, and
CDO. The electricity consumption
disclosed for the lloilo feed mill
plant is separate and distinct from
the renewable source consumption
from the said plant. The data on
gasoline came from consumption
on VITA’s fleet. The reductions on
renewable sources consumption in
Visayas was primarily due to the
decrease in production volume, in
addition to the defective inverter|
that is due for replacement by the|
supplier. The decrease in electricity
consumption in the Marilao office
was due to typhoon Carina as there
was a week-long power|
interruption in the area due to the
said typhoon. The decrease in
electricity consumption in the Luzon
warehouse was due to the closure
of the external warehouse in
Bocaue, Bulacan. The decrease in
the electricity consumption in CDO

» Communities where
VITA operates.

Energy reduction Visayas — 20 GJ
(LPG)
Energy reduction Visayas —2.22 Liters
(diesel) Mindanao — 2,130.94
Energy reduction Luzon — 54 (Marilao office); | Visayas -327,800 (lloilo); 1,994 | kWh
(electricity) 97,607 (DP); 2,843 (Luzon | (Bacolod Satellite); 4,175 (Cebu
warehouse) Satellite Warehouse)
Visayas — 512 (Bacolod
Satellite)
Mindanao - 817,418.65
(Panacan, Davao)
What is the impact and where | Which stakeholders are Management Approach
does it occur? What is the affected?
organization’s involvement in the
impact?
The data above was primarily based| > Suppliers VITA complies with laws relating to

environment, energy consumption and
efficiency.

VITA continued using solar energy in its
lloilo feed mill plant and solar perimeter
lights in its Davao feed mill plant. The
proposed solar project in VITA’s Davao
feed mill plant is still in process, with the
project currently undergoing a review by,
the Engineering team. In addition, it
conducts regular preventive maintenance
of all its equipment.

In line with UN SDG 12 (Responsible
Production and Consumption), it
continuously improves its processes to
ensure operational efficiencies, which, in
turn, helps in the efficient energy|
consumption.
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was due to the additional
installation of air conditioning units
for AHC storage rooms.

The impact is on the environment as
the use of renewable sources off
energy decreases GHG emissions
while the use of non-renewable
sources results in emissions that
could be harmful to the
environment. There is also an
impact on the supply chain because
the use of non-renewable sources
could deplete these sources.

The use of solar energy in the lloilo
feed mill plant resulted in reduction
of VITA’s GHG emissions in 2024 by:
(a) 250,764.93 kg in terms of CO,
emissions; (b) 134.51 kg. in terms of]
NOx emissions; and (c) 2.82 kg. in
terms of SO, emissions. These
reductions were lower than those
avoided in 2023. It should be,
however, noted that VITA’s solar]
capacity is only around 10% of the
plant’s electrical power|
requirement versus the 15% to 20%
capacity in 2023. Thus, the
electricity consumption from ILECO
was still higher than that from solar
energy. The electricity supplied by
ILECO helps run the machineries
and utilities in the plant.

The use of solar lights in Davao
plant’s perimeter allowed the
Corporation to save a total of]
51,840 kw of energy in 2024.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

% Climate change brought
about by increase in air
emissions and pollutions due
to the use of non-renewable

sources of energy.
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+» Depletion or shortage of non-
renewable sources of energy.

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

+* The continued use of solar|
energy in the lloilo feed mill
plant gives the opportunity to
further increase efficient
consumption of energy.

< The positive impact on the
environment of the use of solar|
energy in the lloilo feed mill
plant presents an opportunity
to further lower VITA’s GHG
emissions in the Davao feed
mill plant.

%+ The solar project in Davao is
still an opportunity to further

improve VITA’s efficiencies.

Water consumption within the organization

Disclosure Quantity (2024) Quantity (2023) Units
Water Visayas — 3,902 (lloilo) Visayas — 4,317 (lloilo) Cubic
withdrawal Mindanao — 5,984 (Davao) Mindanao — 5,842 (Davao) meters
Water Visayas — 3,902 (lloilo); 135 | Luzon warehouse — 138.69 Cubic
consumption (Bacolod Satellite meters

Warehouse) Visayas — 4,317 (lloilo); 120 (Bacolod
Satellite Warehouse); 32 (Cebu Satellite
Mindanao — 5,984 (Davao); | Warehouse)
111 (cbo Satellite
Warehouse) Mindanao — 5,842 (Davao); 129 (CDO
Satellite Warehouse)
Water recycled Visayas—0 Visayas—0 Cubic
and reused Mindanao -0 Mindanao -0 meters

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

18




The data above were based on the

water consumption and/or
withdrawal in VITA’s satellite
warehouse in Luzon, feed mill plant]
and office in lloilo, satellite

warehouse in Bacolod, feed mill
plant and office in Davao, and
satellite warehouse in CDO. The
data were based on the
consumption reflected in VITA’S
water billings.

In lloilo, water consumption and
withdrawal in 2024 decreased by
415 cubic meters. The repair of the
steam lines contributed to the
decrease in water consumption.
The decrease resulted in a savings
of about P49K, more or less. On the]
other hand, the water consumption
in Bacolod satellite increased by 15
cubic meters.

In Davao, the slight increase in
water consumption and withdrawal
in 2024 by 142 cubic meters was
due to the product mix in
production. However, water|
consumption in CDO warehouse
slightly decreased by 18 cubic
meters in 2024.

In both the lloilo and Davao feed
mill plants, the water is used only
for steam generation.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Climate change
Depletion or
water

@
0‘0
@,
0’0

shortage of

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

% VITA could explore rainwater|

harvesting in the feed mill

» Communities where
VITA operates
» Government

VITA complies with all laws and
regulations pertaining to water and it
continuously improves the operational
efficiencies in order to maintain efficient
water consumption. It also conducts
regular preventive maintenance of its
equipment and replaces the same with
more efficient and more technologically
advanced equipment as may be
necessary.
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plants in order to further
reduce its water withdrawals.

Materials used by the organization

Mindanao decreased by 11,679,879
kg. and 380,525 kg., respectively,

Disclosure Quantity Quantity (2023) Units
(2024)
Materials used by weight or volume
e Renewable Luzon — Luzon — 105,856,129 kg
94,176,250 Visayas — 41,498,250
Visayas — Mindanao — 75,358,100
48,895,450
Mindanao -
74,977,575
e non-renewable Luzon — Luzon — 2,050,221 Kg
2,030,488 Visayas — 104,890.14
Visayas — Mindanao — 526,895
125,210
Mindanao - Plastic Packaging (Unaudited
599,820.60 data) — 661,529.40 (Feeds);
169,485.86 (Foods)
Plastic
Packaging
(Unaudited
data) -
636,374.36
(Feeds);
152,554.92
(Foods)
Percentage of recycled input materials used | 0 0 %
to manufacture the organization’s primary
products and services
What is the impact and where | Which stakeholders are Management Approach
does it occur? What is the affected?
organization’s involvement in the
impact?
The renewable materials disclosed Suppliers VITA complies with laws relative to
above are the raw materials used or Communities wherematerials consumption and conservation.
consumed by VITA for 2024. VITA operates It also shifted from the use of laminated
Renewable materials used and/or Government sack to a reusable woven sack for its feeds.
consumed in 2024 in Luzon and Customers Re-using the woven sacks helps reduce

waste and pollution. It continuously

improves its inventory management to
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while the renewable materials used
and/or consumed in 2024 in Visayas
increased by 7,397,200 kg. The
increase in renewable resources
used in Visayas in 2024 was due to
the 18% increase in production
volume while the decrease in
renewable sources consumption in
Luzon and Mindanao in 2024 was
due to a decrease in the production
volume in said areas. The non-
renewable materials are the energy
consumed. The  Corporation’s
plastic footprint for 2024, which
consist of plastic packaging
materials, are still unaudited.

The decrease in the non-renewable
materials used in 2024 by 19,733 kg.
in Luzon was due to a decrease in
production volume while the
increase of 20,319.86 kg. and
72,925.60 kg. in the non-renewable
materials used in 2024 in Visayas
and Mindanao, respectively, were
due to the increase in production
volume.

The impact is on the environment as
VITA, although on a minimal level
only, continues to contribute to
waste generation and pollution as a
necessary consequence of its
operations.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

The continuous demand for non-
renewable materials increases|
VITA’s contribution to pollution and
waste and it increases the
possibility of shortage of non-
renewable materials.

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

have higher recovery/conversion of
materials to finished products.

VITA has also taken steps to address waste
and pollution generated and contributed.
In compliance with the EPR Act, VITA
sought accreditation with an organization
that can help it develop, implement and
monitor its compliance with the EPR Act
and it had engaged an accredited waste
diverter in Mindanao. It is in the process of
accrediting a third-party auditor to audit
its disclosures in compliance with the said
law. VITA continuously reduces its plastic
waste through its accredited waste
diverter.

In line with UN SDG 12 [Responsible
Production and Consumption], VITA
continuously improves its processes to
ensure operational efficiencies, which, in
turn, helps in the efficient resource
management.
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Reduction in waste and pollution
contribution through the use of|
renewable, reusable and recyclable
materials in the production of|

feeds.

Ecosystems and biodiversity (whether in upland/watershed or coastal/marine)

Disclosure

Quantity Units

protected areas

Operational sites owned, leased, managed in, or adjacent to,
protected areas and areas of high biodiversity value outside

(identify all sites)

Habitats protected or restored

Ha

IUCN® Red List species and national conservation list species with
habitats in areas affected by operations

(list)

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

What are the Opportunity/ies

Which stakeholders are

Management Approach

Identified? affected?
Environmental impact management
Air Emissions
GHG
Disclosure Quantity (2024) Quantity Units
(2023)

3 International Union for Conservation of Nature




Direct (Scope 1) GHG Emissions

lloilo Feedmill — 39

Davao Feedmill (CO
emission only)

Boiler Yinchen A-48.1
Boiler Yinchen B—53.8
Boiler Devotion —40.8

lloilo Feedmill — 204 mg/Nm3

Davao Feedmill
emission only)

(co

Boiler 1A-129.0
Boiler 1B—-121.0
Boiler 2A —109.2

substances (ODS)

Boiler Enertech —59.5 Boiler 2B —89.3
Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG 0 0 Tonnes
Emissions COse
Emissions of ozone-depleting 0 0 Tonnes

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

The data above were based on the
emission testing conducted by a
DENR-EMB accredited third party
company on VITA’s Davao and lloilo
feed mill plants.

The decrease in the emissions in
lloilo feed mill plant by 165 mg/Nm3
was due to the rehabilitation of
boiler in March 2024 and the use of]
solar energy. The emissions in the
Davao feed mill also decreased by
202.2 mg/Nm3.

While VITA has neither indirect GHG
emissions nor ozone depleting
substances emissions, its feed mill
operations in lloilo and Davao
contribute to GHG emissions as a
necessary consequence of its
operations, albeit in a low level
only.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

R/

< Communities where
VITA operates

% Government

R/

*0

% Publicin general

VITA complies with all laws relative to the
environment, including the Clean Air Act.
It also regularly conducts preventive
maintenance on its equipment, regular|
repair of its facilities, including pollution
control facilities, to ensure not only good
operating conditions but also compliance
with the environmental laws and
regulations. VITA also ensures that its
operations are efficient in order to keep its|
emissions low against the DENR-EMB,
standards.

VITA rehabilitated its boiler equipment in
the lloilo feed mill plant in March 2024,
thus, increasing efficiency of the
equipment, and further reducing VITA’S
emissions in said plant. VITA continued its
use of solar energy in its lloilo feed mill
plant. It has also completed the
installation of and started using perimeter|
solar lights in its Davao feed mill plant. The
plan to use solar energy in its Davao feed
mill plant is still a work in progress.
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R/
0'0

Y/
0'0

Operational risks due to
climate change brought about

by the emissions and
continuous contribution to air|
pollution.

Health risks on the

communities where VITA
operates as well as the public
in general due to the
continuous GHG emissions.

What are the Opportunity/ies

Identified?

@,
0’0

0/
0'0

The continuous operation and
use of as well as the possibility]
of increase in capacity of the
solar energy in the lloilo feed
mill plant will mitigate and
reduce VITA’s GHG emissions.
The use of solar energy in the
Davao feed mill plant is an
opportunity that VITA can
explore to reduce its GHG
emissions.

The continuation of the Green
Sanctuary Program can also
benefit the environment as
plants can help reduce GHG
emissions.

It had also joined the lloilo province wide
clean up drive in its perimeter areas in
order to help lessen its GHG emissions.

In addition, by allowing the employees to
plant within its plant premises (Green
Sanctuary Program), VITA helps mitigate
its GHG emissions as plants help reduce
these emissions.

VITA has Pollution Control Officers
(“PCO”) who monitor and ensure
compliance with laws and regulations|
relating to the environment and its
conservation.

Air pollutants

5

6

Davao Feed mill
Boiler Yinchen A —
14.1

Boiler Yinchen B —

v

Boiler Devotion —

.0

Boiler Enertech —
25.0

Davao Feedmill
Boiler 1-A—33.2
Boiler 1-B — 44.6
Boiler 2-A—-21.3
Boiler 2-B—-24.5
Genset—343.3

Disclosure Quantity (2024) Quantity (2023) Units
NOy lloilo Feed mill — lloilo Feedmill — ave. concentration in
169 86.774 mg/Nm3
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SOx

lloilo Feed mill —
1,461

Davao Feed mill
Boiler Yinchen A -

lloilo Feedmill — 1
Davao Feedmill
Boiler 1-A—-8.3
Boiler 1-B — 25.5
Boiler 2-A—-32.4

ave. concentration in
mg/Nm3

1.8 Boiler 2-B—-5.6
Boiler Yinchen B —
1.6
Boiler Devotion —
10.2
Boiler Enertech —
2.7
Persistent organic pollutants 0 0 Kg
(POPs)
Volatile organic compounds 0 0 Kg
(VOCs)
Hazardous air pollutants 0 0 Kg
(HAPs)
Particulate matter (PM) lloilo Feed mill — lloilo Feedmill — 53 | ave. concentration in
123.6 Davao Feedmill mg/Nm3

Davao Feed mill
Boiler Yinchen A —
7.4

Boiler Yinchen B —
33

Boiler Devotion —
33

Boiler Enertech —
6.9

Boiler 1-A—11.9
Boiler 1-B—18.7
Boiler 2-A—29.8
Boiler 2-B-21.9

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the

organization’s involvement in the

impact?

affected?

Which stakeholders are

Management Approach

The data were based on the
emission testing conducted by a
DENR-EMB accredited third party
company on VITA’s lloilo and Davao
feed mill plants.

The increase in the NOyin the lloilo
feed mill plant in 2024 by 82.226
mg/Nm3, increase in the SOy in the
lloilo feed mill plant in 2024 by

Communities where
VITA operates
Government

Public in general

VITA complies with all laws relative to the
environment, including the Clean Air Act.
It  regularly conducts preventive
maintenance on its equipment, and
regular repair of its facilities, including
pollution control facilities, to ensure not
only good operating conditions but also
compliance with the environmental laws
and regulations. VITA also ensures that its
operations are efficient in order to keep its|
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1,460 mg/Nm3, and increase in the
particulate matter in the lloilo feed
mill plant in 2024 by 70.6 mg/Nm3
were primarily due to the lower|
efficiency of the boiler due to its old
age.

The decrease in the NOx in the
Davao feed mill plant in 2024 by
72.8 mg/Nm3, decrease in the SOyin
the Davao feed mill plant in 2024 by
55.5 mg/Nm3, and the slight
decrease in the particulate matterin
the Davao feed mill plant in 2024 by
2 mg/Nm3 were primarily due to
decrease in production volume in
2024.

While these pollutants/emissions
are low as against DENR thresholds,
they still contribute to GHG
emissions and air  pollution
generation.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

¢ Operational risks due to
climate change brought about
by contribution to air
pollution.
< Health risks on the
communities where VITA
operates as well as the public
in general due to the
continuous  air  pollution
contribution.

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

«* The continuous operation and
use of as well as the possibility,
of increase in capacity of the
solar energy in the lloilo feed
mill plant will mitigate and
reduce VITA’s air pollutant
emissions.

emissions low against the DENR-EMB
standards.

VITA’s continued use of solar energy in
2024 in its lloilo feed mill plant, which
helped avoided these emissions: (a)
250,764.93 kg CO>; (b) 134.51 NOy; and (c)
2.82 SO,. Moreover, by allowing the
employees to plant within its plant
premises (Green Sanctuary Program),
VITA helps mitigate its air pollutant
emissions as plants help reduce these
emissions. VITA has been using perimeter|
solar lights in its Davao feed mill since
2023.

VITA has PCOs who monitor and ensure
compliance with laws and regulations|
relating to the environment and its
conservation.

Further, in March 2024, VITA rehabilitated
its boiler equipment in its lloilo plant.
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+* The use of solar energy in the
Davao feed mill plant is an
opportunity that VITA can
explore to reduce its air
pollutant emissions.

The continuation of the Green
Sanctuary Program can also
benefit the environment as
plants can help reduce GHG

emissions.

Y/
0'0

Solid and Hazardous Wastes
Solid Waste

Disclosure Quantity (2024) Quantity (2023) Units
Total solid waste generated | Luzon —1,900/month Visayas — 1,600/month Kg

Visayas — 1,700/month Mindanao — 2,350/month
Mindanao — 2,350/month

Reusable Visayas — 250/month Visayas — 200/month Kg
Mindanao — 450/month Mindanao — 450/month

Recyclable Visayas — 250/month Visayas — 250/month Kg
Mindanao — 300/month Mindanao — 300/month

Composted Visayas — 200/month Visayas — 200/month Kg
Mindanao — 600/month Mindanao — 600/month

Incinerated Visayas —0 Visayas —0 Kg
Mindanao -0 Mindanao -0

Residuals/Landfilled Visayas — 1,000/month Visayas — 950/month Kg
Mindanao — 1,000/month | Mindanao — 1000/month

What is the impact and where

Which stakeholders are

Management Approach

VITA’s PCOs to the government. The|
data in Luzon came from MENRO,
the one collecting the garbage in
the Marilao, Bulacan office.

Total solid waste generated in

Visayas increased by 100 kg/month

does it occur? What is the affected?
organization’s involvement in the
impact?
The data above were based on the] » Employees VITA has a properly labelled Materials
monthly estimated solid waste] » Communities whereRecovery Facility in its lloilo and Davao
collected by third party solid waste VITA operates feed mill plants for the proper
collectors from the lloilo and Davao| » Publicin general segregation, storage, and disposal of these
feed mill plants as reported by] » Government wastes. It also hired a third-party solid

waste collector to properly dispose its
solid wastes.

VITA has PCOs who monitor compliance
with laws and regulations relating to the
environment and its conservation,

including waste segregation and proper|
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mainly due to the increase in
production.

While VITA has recyclable and
reusable solid wastes, about 50% of]
the estimated monthly solid wastes
generated still go into the landfills.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

R/

%+ Increase in pollution due to
increase in residual solid
wastes.

%+ Health risks on the employees
and communities where VITA
operates and the public in
general due to the increase in
solid waste pollution.

+* Regulatory and legal risks due

to non-compliance with the

EPR Act.

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?
+* The government’s completion
of the IRR of the EPR Act
presents an opportunity for|
VITA to comply and even go
beyond compliance with the
EPR Act by not only re-using
and recycling its solid wastes
but also in recovering its solid
wastes, thus, reducing its
residual solid wastes, which,
in turn would reduce the solid

wastes going into the landfills.

waste disposal. It also continuously
reiterated and strengthened its campaign
and practice for waste segregation and
proper waste disposal.

It collects sweepings (assorted wastes
collected through the process of
sweeping) to be reprocessed/included in
the formulation of feeds, reuses and
recycles all that may be reused or|
recycled, as the case may be, and keeps its|
residual solid wastes within the allowed
threshold. It regularly  evaluates
sweepings to make sure that it would not|
cause infections. VITA also provides the
employees with PPEs and biosecurity
measures in  place are  strictly
implemented.

In compliance with the EPR Act, VITA
engaged an accredited waste diverter in
Mindanao. In Marilao, VITA’s wastes go to
the LGU’s MRF. It is continuously
developing its program for the recovery of
its plastic wastes.

Hazardous Waste

Disclosure Quantity (2024) Quantity (2023) Units
Total weight of hazardous waste Visayas: Visayas:
generated
Used oil — 115 liters/year | Used oil — 250/year liters
Busted lamps — 5| Busted lamps —|or
kg/year 45/year kg
Mindanao: Mindanao:
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Busted lamps — 20 | Used oil — 0/year
kg/year Busted lamps -
20/year
Total weight of hazardous waste Visayas: 0 Visayas: 0
transported
Mindanao: 0 Mindanao: 0 liters

What is the impact and where

Which stakeholders are

Management Approach

generated for both plants are low or|
minimal only. Thus, there was no
need to transport the same.

The used oil generated in the lloilo
feed mill plant decreased in 2024 by
135 liters. In addition, busted lamps
in the lloilo feed mill plant
decreased by 40 kg.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Improper disposal may lead to
environmental risks as well as
health risks on the employees, the
communities where VITA operates
and the public in general. It may|
also lead into fire and pollution.

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

< The regular preventive
maintenance conducted on
VITA’s equipment to ensure
operational efficiencies also
helps in reducing hazardous

wastes, thereby reducing

environmental and health

does it occur? What is the affected?
organization’s involvement in the
impact?
The data above were based on the] » Employees VITA has a designated and properly
report that VITA’s PCOs in the lloilo] » Communities where|labelled Materials Recovery Facility to
and Davao feed mill plants VITA operates properly store used oil and busted lamps.
submitted to the DENR-EMB. The| » Publicin general It has PCOs in its lloilo and Davao feed mill
hazardous wastes that VITAl » Government plants to ensure that the proper waste

disposals prescribed under existing laws
and regulations are strictly followed.

It continuously improves its preventive
maintenance program/schedule in order|
to minimize used oil. VITA’s use of LED
lights instead of fluorescent ones proved
to be efficient in terms of energy use and
in terms of costs.

In addition to the foregoing, VITA
monitors the consumption of oils and
lamps so that the waste is kept within
threshold and that these hazardous
wastes are segregated from the non-
hazardous wastes. It participated in lloilo’s
province wide clean-up drive in March
2024.

It also strictly implements its “No
Smoking” policy and provides employees
with PPEs, which they are also required to
wear within the premises.
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risks. It also has the potential
to avoid fire and decrease in
contribution to pollution.

% Avoidance of fire and
decrease in contribution to
pollution.
Effluents
Disclosure Quantity (2024) Quantity (2023) Units

Total volume of water discharges

Visayas — 60/month

Visayas — 60/month

Cubic meters

Mindanao -0 Mindanao -0
Percent of wastewater recycled | Visayas—0 Visayas—0 %
Mindanao -0 Mindanao -0

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

The data were based on the water|
discharges and waste water
recycled in the lloilo and Davao feed
mill plants as reported to the DENR.
There was no water discharge in the
Davao feed mill plant since the
waste water goes into a separate
container, which eventually dries up
or evaporates. Thus, the same are
not discharged in the public
drainages. VITA’s water discharges
are minimal or very low as against
DENR standards. However, it still
impacts the environment,
particularly the water bodies.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Increase in water
contribution due to
waste water.

pollution
increase in

» Communities where
VITA operates
» Government

VITA monitors the final discharge of waste
water to ensure that its operations are
within the Clean Water Act and other
regulatory standards. It complies with the
proper waste water disposal prescribed
under the law and regulations. VITA has
waste water treatment facilities in its
dressing plants although it is not the one
operating the same. VITA has a PCO that|
monitors and ensures compliance with
laws and regulations relative to water use,
water discharge and proper waste water
disposal.
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What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

+* Presence of technologies that|
can help improve waste water|
treatment in the feed mills.

+* The proper disposal of waste

water as well as waste water

treatment present an
opportunity to mitigate and
decrease water pollution

contribution.

Environmental compliance

Non-compliance with Environmental Laws and Regulations

Disclosure Quantity Units
Total amount of monetary fines for non-compliance with 0 PhP
environmental laws and/or regulations
No. of non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with None #
environmental laws and/or regulations
No. of cases resolved through dispute resolution mechanism None #

What is the impact and where

Which stakeholders are

Management Approach

does it occur? What is the affected?
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

VITA was neither penalized norl » Government VITA strictly monitors compliance with

complained for violation or non-{ » Communities wherelenvironmental laws and regulations,

compliance with environmental VITA operates including securing all permits and licenses

laws and regulations in 2024. » Business partners |needed for the continued operation of its
» Customers business. It continuously upgrades and

Having complied with| > Employees regularly maintains its facilities to ensure

environmental laws and| > Investors efficiencies and maintain  pollution

regulations, VITA maintained its| » Shareholders contribution to a minimum.

contribution to pollution as al » Directors VITA incorporates in its contracts with

necessary consequence of its| » Officers suppliers and partners the obligation to

operations at a minimal level —
within DENR thresholds.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Legal, financial, operational and
environmental risks due to non-

compliance  with laws and

comply with all existing laws and
regulations. This includes the duty to
comply with said laws and regulations and
there are sanctions for breach of this
obligation.
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the In addition, in Mindanao, the company
submits a quarterly self-monitoring report

to the EMB.

regulations protecting

environment.

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

Business continuity and minimal

pollution contribution due to
compliance  with laws and
regulations protecting the

environment.

SOCIAL

Employee Management
Employee Hiring and Benefits
Employee data

Disclosure Quantity (2024) | Quantity (2023) | Units
Total number of employees® 695 672

a. Number of female employees 269 262 #

b. Number of male employees 426 410 #
Attrition rate’ 6.92% 0.62% Rate
Ratio of lowest paid employee against minimum wage | None None Ratio

Employee benefits
2024 2023
List of Benefits Y/N % of % of male % of female % of male
female employees | employees who | employees who
employees who availed for the availed for the
who availed for year year
availed for the year
the year
SSS Y 12.16% 6.67% 11.45% 6.10%
PhilHealth Y 1.85% 0.80% 3.05% 4.15%
Pag-ibig Y 20.94% 15.60% 21.37% 19.51%
Parental leaves Y 4.58% 1.01% 6.49% 2.44%

¢ Employees are individuals who are in an employment relationship with the organization, according to national law or its application (GRI

Standards 2016 Glossary)

7 Attrition are = (no. of new hires — no. of turnover)/(average of total no. of employees of previous year and total no. of employees of current

year)
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Vacation leaves 65.16% 35.89% 73.28% 65.85%
Sick leaves 53.58% 29.13% 53.44% 38.78%
Medical benefits (aside 41.24% 24.32% 16.41% 16.10%
from PhilHealth))

Housing assistance (aside 0 0 0 0
from Pag-ibig)

Retirement fund (aside 0% 0.11% 0 0.24%
from SSS)

Further education support 0% 0% 0 0
Company stock options 0% 0% 0 0
Telecommuting 43.79% 6.65% 37.40% 8.29%
Flexible-working Hours 14.9% 7.93% 17.56% 25.61%
(Others) Y 0 0 0 0
What is the impact and where does it occur? What Management Approach

is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

The data above includes only the regular and organic
employees of VITA. With operations in Luzon, Visayas
and Mindanao, it contributes to labor and
employment. It also helps promote local employment
in Bulacan, lloilo, Davao and all other provinces where
it holds its operations. The number of regular
employees increased in 2024 mainly due to the
growing operational requirements driven by the
addition of new products and the expansion in the
distribution of network. The attrition rate increased in
2024, where the topmost reason for leaving the
company was due to personal reasons followed by a
transfer to a company or location with a greener
pasteur.

VITA provides benefits on top of the government-
mandated benefits, such as providing them and/or
their qualified dependents medical benefits other|
than PhilHealth benefits, PPEs, uniform, rice
subsidy, seniority pay, transportation and meal
allowances when applicable, mortuary benefits,
hazard pay to qualified employees. It also engaged
the services of a physician who can conduct
physical examinations and check-ups to
employees and who goes to the office and plants
so that his/her services will be more accessible to
the employees. VITA likewise allowed
telecommuting and flexible working hours to its
employees. It ensures that safety measures are
not only in place but are also consistently and

What are the Risk/s Identified?

strictly implemented to prevent accidents and
illnesses from happening or spreading.

VITA recognizes that poor over-all well-being of the
employees, unsecured workplace, low morale on the
employees’ part, or uncompetitive compensation and
benefits package may result in higher turn-over rate of|
the employees, thereby increasing its attrition rate. An
increase in attrition rate may, in turn, affect VITA’s
productivity outputs.

VITA continuously engaged with its employees|
through webinars and seminars on wellness and
health, physical activities like Zumba and sports-
related activities, safety seminars and trainings,
emergency preparedness, and ensuring that the
workplace is safe. It also recognized employees’
services, milestones, and breakthroughs through

service awards.
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What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

There is still an opportunity for sustained engagement
with the employees to increase their involvement,
morale, and over-all well-being, and maintain a
harmonious working environment.

Availability of skilled workforce in the areas of
operation and continuous provision of competitive
compensation and benefits package to the employees
continue to present an opportunity for VITA to sustain
its employees’ jobs and continuously provide more
employment and livelihood to the residents in the
areas of operation.

In addition to the foregoing, VITA regularly checks
the laws and regulations on the minimum wage
and benefits set by the government as well as
industry standards and it benchmarks on similar
companies within the industry to evaluate the
need to update and increase its compensation and
benefit package to ensure that the same is
competitive, if not better, than the companies
within the industry.

Employee Training and Development

Disclosure Quantity Quantity Units
(2024) (2023)
Total training hours provided to employees
a. Female employees 4,489 6,922.67 Hours
b. Male employees 3,289.50 5,965.63 Hours
Average training hours provided to
employees
a. Female employees 5.71 9.60 hours/employee
b. Male employees 4.19 6.50 hours/employee

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

VITA’s training and development programs for its
employees, whether internal or external, contribute to
the employees’ personal and professional growth and
efficiency in the performance of their tasks.

In 2024, there was a total of 7,778.50 training hours
provided to employees. Some of these trainings were
conducted in-house and some were conducted by
third-party service providers and consultants.

Compliance trainings were conducted to maintain ISO,
FSMS, and HACCP certifications across the regions.,
Additionally, skills upgrading trainings and CPD

VITA maintains a training calendar per region
where Vitarich operates. Unless the relevant
department requests differently, the trainings
take place once a month. The majority of the
trainings are focused and specifically tailored to
the needs and demands of the departments and
personnel. Based on the manner in which the

training was delivered, VITA conducts a
comprehensive post-training evaluation and
feedback. In addition, it regularly assesses

employees’ work to gauge their development and
progress.

training credits were made available to PRC-licensed
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employees for further career development and
continuous learning. Personal development, soft skills,
and conflict management trainings were likewise
conducted to enhance collaboration and teamwork
across departments.

In 2024, a decrease of about 40% of overall training
hours for the year versus 2023 data was observed. The
focus for 2024 was more on leadership development
programs for key managers as well as upper
management. In addition, a decrease in training hours
was observed as virtual trainings were now limited due
to employees’ preference for onsite learning instead of|
virtual sessions for overall program effectiveness and
achievement of learning outcomes.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

Failure to give trainings and/or to send employees to
relevant trainings may result in career stagnancy of|
employees, demoralization and demotivation,
inefficiency, and non-growth of employees due to non-
upgrading of skills. This may likewise lead to an
increase in employee turnover. Less skilled and
demotivated employees may also result in non-
attainment of targets. Lack of knowledge transfer and
application may also affect succession planning and
manpower building. Another risk identified is the
failure of employees to return investment on trainings
due to their eventual resignation.

In addition to the above, VITA has a database of|
trainings already provided and trainings that may,
still be provided to the employees to ensure that
the trainings remain to be relevant and effective.
It also ensures that trainings attended by,
supervisors and up are cascaded to their teams
within three months from the end of the training
to ensure that all trainings benefit everyone in the
team.

It also ensures that most, if not all, the trainings
are industry-related. VITA also commits to
institutionalizing a continuous learning program

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

for its employees and has partnered with a
Learning Management System (LMS) provider,

Investing on employees’ trainings and development
will result in the professional and personal growth of|
the employees, which, in turn, may yield to higher
employee retention and better productivity results.
Faculty development of key members of the
organization to equip, mentor and coach the growing
number of employees. Cultivating a coaching and
learning culture may open doors for improved
productivity, spark innovation, and organizational
growth.

Disprz, to enhance the learning experience and
drive  further  professional growth and
development of VITA’s employees. The results of|
this partnership shall be realized further in 2025.
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Labor-Management Relations

Disclosure

Quantity

Units

% of employees covered with Collective Bargaining
Agreements

%

Number of consultations conducted with employees
concerning employee-related policies

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

Diversity and Equal Opportunity

Disclosure

Quantity

Units

% of female workers in the workforce

%

% of male workers in the workforce

%

vulnerable sector*

Number of employees from indigenous communities and/or

#

*Vulnerable sector includes, elderly, persons with disabilities, vulnerable women, refugees, migrants,
internally displaced persons, people living with HIV and other diseases, solo parents, and the poor or the

base of the pyramid (BOP; Class D and E).

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

Workplace Conditions, Labor Standards, and Human Rights

Occupational Health and Safety

Disclosure

Quantity (2024)

Quantity (2023) Units

Safe Man-Hours

Luzon —551,939.50
Visayas — 302,984

Luzon — 845,100 Man-hours
Visayas — 340,544
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Mindanao — 640,398 | Mindanao — 432,879
Total: 1,618,523
No. of work-related injuries Luzon-0 0 #
Visayas —0
Mindanao — 8
No. of work-related fatalities Luzon-0 0 #
Visayas —0
Mindanao -0
No. of work-related ill-health Luzon-0 0 #
Visayas -0
Mindanao -0
No. of safety drills Luzon-3 Luzon -2 #
Visayas — 2 Visayas - 2
Mindanao — 4 Mindanao — 3
What is the impact and where does it occur? What Management Approach
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?
Based on the data recorded by VITA’s Safety Officer,VITA has an existing Safety Policy, the

there was a total of 551,939.50 safe man-hours on its
plants. The decrease in the safe man-hours was
primarily due to the work-related injuries in 2024.

The 8 work-related injuries in 2024 happened in VITA's
Mindanao operations and these resulted in physical
injuries to the workers involved.

In addition, there were 3 safety drills held in Luzon — 2
fire drills and 1 emergency preparedness seminar/drill.
In Visayas, there were 2 safety drills conducted in 2024
— 1 fire drill and 1 earthquake drill. In Mindanao, there
were a total of 4 safety drills conducted — 2 fire drills,
1 earthquake drill, and 1 vehicular drill.

implementation of which is being monitored by a
Safety Officer in all of its plants and offices. It
promotes health and safety awareness to
employees through its Safety Officer. It strictly
implements all sanitary and biosecurity measures
in place. In addition, VITA provides safety-related
trainings and PPEs to its employees detailed in the
plants. The Safety Officers also regularly sent the
employees safety reminders by e-mails, especially
during long weekends.

VITA’s medical doctors and nurses are hands-on in
monitoring health concerns of employees. In place
are health/medical, hospitalization, and insurance
benefits for employees and legal dependents,

What are the Risk/s Identified?

subject to applicable policies and procedures. VITA
has also an emergency response team, first aiders,

Work-related hazards that may cause work-related
injuries, fatalities or ill-health include ergonomic
hazards (lifting and prolonged sitting), dust and
chemical exposure, computer radiation, moving
machines, and equipment inside the plant.

and fire brigade team in addition to the safety
officers.

VITA also regularly conducts a safety orientation
annually. The same is reiterated during tool box
meetings, routine safety inspections & addressing
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What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

The identified risks present an opportunity to
continuously engage with employees through
trainings to develop awareness and education to
certain safety procedures as well as inculcate in them
the importance of compliance with all safety
procedures as well as reporting hazards and
participating in health awareness and safety initiatives.

The consistency of e-mail and visual reminders,
enhancement of health and safety protocols, and
continuous and regular fire and earthquake drills can
help sustain the absence of work-related injuries, ill-
health and fatalities.

unsafe acts & conditions, and compliance with
safety rules. It also regularly checks its machines,
equipment, and facilities, adhering to the Hazard
Identification, Risk Assessment, and Control
(HIRAC) tool. It also implements appropriate
mitigations to address any identified hazard and
risk.

Labor Laws and Human Rights

Disclosure

Quantity Units

No. of legal actions or employee grievances involving
or child labor

forced

Do you have policies that explicitly disallows violations of labor laws and human rights (e.g. harassment,

bullying) in the workplace?

Topic Y/N

If Yes, cite reference in the company policy

Forced labor

Child labor

Human Rights

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

Supply Chain Management

Do you have a supplier accreditation policy? If yes, please attach the policy or link to the policy:
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Do you consider the following sustainability topics when accrediting suppliers?

Topic

Y/N

If Yes, cite reference in the supplier policy

Environmental performance

Forced labor

Child labor

Human rights

Bribery and corruption

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

Relationship with Community

Significant Impacts on Local Communities

Operations Location Vulnerable Does the | Collective or | Mitigating
with significant groups (if | particular individual measures (if
(positive or applicable)* operation rights that | negative) or
negative) have have been | enhancement
impacts on local impacts on | identified that | measures (if
communities indigenous | or particular | positive)
(exclude  CSR people concern for the
projects; this (Y/N)? community
has to be
business
operations)
Feed mill | lloilo N As  discussed | As mentioned
operations above, VITA | above, VITA
Davao N contributes to | regularly
local conducts
employment preventive

and
creation.
However, in the
pursuit of its
operations, it is
unfortunate
that it also
contributes to
pollution

job

maintenance of
its equipment to

minimize its
emissions. It
also ensures
that all wastes
are properly
segregated.

VITA also
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through its
GHG emissions,
air pollutants,
solid, water
and hazardous

complies with all
environmental
laws and
regulations.

creation, it also
contributes to
pollution
through its air
pollutants,
solid, water
and hazardous
wastes.

wastes.
Research and Nueva Ecija N While VITA’s R | VITA ensures
Development San Jose Del N & D farm | that all wastes
Farm Monte, operations are properly
Operations Bulacan contribute to | segregated.
local VITA also
employment complies with all
and job | environmental

laws and
regulations,
including safety
measures in
place.

*Vulnerable sector includes children and youth, elderly, persons with disabilities, vulnerable women,
refugees, migrants, internally displaced persons, people living with HIV and other diseases, solo parents,
and the poor or the base of the pyramid (BOP; Class D and E)

For operations that are affecting IPs, indicate the total number of Free and Prior Informed Consent (FPIC)
undergoing consultations and Certification Preconditions (CPs) secured and still operational and provide

a copy or link to the certificates if available:

Certificates

Quantity

Units

FPIC process is still undergoing

#

CP secured

#

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

Customer Management
Customer Satisfaction

Disclosure Score (2024)

Score (2023) Did a third party

conduct the customer
satisfaction study

(Y/N)?
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Customer satisfaction Feeds: July 2023 (Feeds
only):
N
Overall rating | Overall rating
(nationwide) — | (nationwide) —4/5
4.7/5
Product (color, | Product (color,
size, texture, | size, texture, odor,
odor, weight, | weight, price) -
price) -1 4/5.0
4.68/5.0
Performance Performance of
of feeds - |feeds—4/5
4.54/5
Sales services — | Sales services -—
4.8/5 4.30/5
Marketing Marketing services
services -1 -4.10/5
4.76/5
Foods: For Foods: Based
on the customer
Overall rating | satisfaction survey
(nationwide) — | conducted in
3.5/5 or very | Central Luzon,
satisfied overall rating s
3.73/5.0.

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

Based on the customer satisfaction survey conducted
for feeds, VITA’s over-all rating is 4.7/5, slightly higher
than that in 2023. On the other hand, the customer
satisfaction survey conducted for foods nationwide
showed that VITA’s over-all rating is 3/5. This,
however, may not necessarily be lower than the rating
in 2023 considering that the survey in 2023 was only
conducted in Central Luzon. However, in 2024, it was
conducted nationwide.

These surveys impact VITA’s operations considering
that quality products and excellent customer service

VITA regularly engages with its customers, the
manner and frequency of which depend on the
type of product and customer needs and
expectations. For feeds, VITA conducts annual or
bi-annual customer satisfaction surveys to assess
how VITA can improve its products, services, and
processes. For distributors, feedbacks are usually
given during the annual trade partners’ night and
quarterly business reviews. For key customers,
VITA conducts bi-annual business reviews with
them, where they also give feedback to VITA. It
continuously collects customers’ feedback

translate to customer satisfaction, which in turn,

through survey, reviews, and direct interactions
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contributes to VITA’s revenues. They create higher
demand for VITA’s products and services, thus,
necessitating additional manpower. It also contributes
to the growth of its business partners.

through regular customer visits. It personalizes its
interactions and anticipates certain needs which
can create a strong emotional connection with our
customers.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

VITA ensures that complaints are addressed the
soonest possible time and within a 24-hour cycle

Unsatisfied customers are less likely to return,
diminishing customer retention and repeat business,
which can be more expensive to replace than
maintaining existing relationships.

Higher operational costs and strain on customer
service resources when there is a high number of|
complaints, returns, and issues that need to be
resolved.

since delays or failure to resolve customer
complaints can escalate dissatisfaction. VITA
acknowledges and addresses issues as soon as
they arise and the same are treated with utmost
importance.

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Based on the survey, there is an opportunity to
improve VITA’s ability to meet due dates and be at par,
if not better, than the competitors. Aligning with the
timeliness that the clients set is crucial as it will
maintain positive relationships and build a reputation
for being reliable and professional.

There is still an opportunity for sustained and
continuous customer satisfaction surveys for both
feeds and foods to gauge and further improve VITA's
brand offering based on its customer needs and
expectations. In addition, there is still an opportunity
to streamline the feedback mechanism for both feeds
and foods products of VITA.

Health and Safety

Disclosure Quantity Quantity (2023) Units
(2024)
No. of substantiated complaints on product 2 0 #
or service health and safety*
No. of complaints addressed 2 0 #

*Substantiated complaints include complaints from

customers that went through the organization’s

formal communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to and

acted upon by government agencies.
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What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

For 2024, there were 2 valid complaints relative to the
safety of VITA’s foods segment products. They were
already resolved.

These complaints raised risks in the food safety and
food defense programs of VITA as well as gaps in the
food safety culture.

VITA takes into consideration the health and safety,
of its feeds for consumption of poultry and
livestock. It also requires its growers and breeders
to follow the best practices in growing and raising
poultry. It has Quality Assurance team that
ensures a secure and compliant food production
environment in all the dressing plant sites whether
it is owned or tolled. The team continuously

What are the Risk/s Identified?

provide trainings to production employees in both
food safety and food defense policies. Food safety

Failure to maintain the health and safety of its
products exposes VITA to legal, operational,
reputational and financial risks.

and defense measures such as sanitation and
hygiene as well as a more stringent security
protocol to avoid adulterations align with VITA’s

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

efforts to prevent intentional and unintentional
contamination. Moreover, both food safety and

Keeping and ensuring the products’ health and safety,
to avoid legal, operational, reputational and financial
risks.

The regular assessment and enhancement of VITA’s
HACCP plans, food safety programs, food defense, and
process monitoring and verification system ensures
that VITA’s products and services are healthy and safe.

food defense require detailed documentation and
traceability for products in case of contamination
or tampering.

VITA’s dressing plant operated by third parties and
VITA’s toll partners are NMIS accredited. Good
Manufacturing Practices and Food Safety Systems
are being implemented and safely and strictly
followed. Some of VITA's plants are HACCP-
certified, which is a testament that VITA’s
production process and food safety program are at
par with internally recognized standards.
Moreover, VITA's lloilo and Davao feed mill plants
are FSMS ISO 22000:2018 certified, meaning that
the food safety management systems in place in
these plants passed internationally recognized
standards. VITA’s dressed chicken are likewise
Halal certified, meaning that the products were
processed following Islamic law. Likewise,
established environmental monitoring and
product testing are being done to ensure and
verify the safety of the product. VITA continuously
holds trainings related to food safety to comply
and maintain with regulatory, statutory, and
customer specifications and requirements.

In 2024, VITA evaluated, reviewed, and filled in the
gaps in its HACCP plans, food safety programs, and
food defenses. It also improved strengthened its

process monitoring and verification system and
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employee training in order to have a more mature
food safety culture and ensure that the incidents
shall not happen again in the future.

Marketing and labelling

Disclosure Quantity Quantity (2023) Units
(2024)
No. of substantiated complaints on 2 1 #
marketing and labelling*
No. of complaints addressed 2 1 #

*Substantiated complaints include complaints from customers that went through the organization’s
formal communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to and

acted upon by government agencies.

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

For 2024, there were 2 complaints relative to
packaging of VITA’s Cook’s chicken. One of the
complaints pertained to the open seal in VITA’s Flavor
Origins packaging, which, upon investigation, was
probably due to the weak heat sealing on the
production line. The other complaint pertained to the
loose packaging of the vacuum-packed Cook’s Freshly,
Frozen products resulting in ice crystallization on the
product, which, upon investigation, was also due to
the weak heat sealing on the production line.

The complaints impacted both operations and finance.

VITA has Quality Assurance personnel to ensure
not only the health and safety of its products but
also the proper packaging and labeling of each
item. In 2024, VITA implemented and used its
improved woven sacks which has better print
quality and specification.

Further, prior to launching and using a particular
packaging for a product, internal surveys among
the employees are conducted to test run the
intended packaging. These surveys are signed-off
by the marketing, sales, quality assurance and R&D
departments.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

VITA commits to continuously enhance its quality,

Faded label prints may give an impression that VITA’s
products are old/expired. In addition, loose seals of]
the sacks expose the feeds to infestation. Both the
foregoing may negatively impact VITA’s branding and
sales.

Loose, or open, or easily opened seals expose VITA’s
Cook’s products to the following risks: contamination,
spoilage, ice crystallization, dehydration (freezer bun),
and customer dissatisfaction.

control by improving production line checks and
staff training to prevent packaging issues. It also
commits to proactively communicate with
customers about improvements.

VITA also commits to continue continuously
improve its quality checking and control of animal
feeds packaging materials prior to use, ensuring
that it meets the quality standards the company|
upholds.

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?
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Sustained and increased customer satisfaction
through the sustained and continued improvement of|
the packaging materials for both feeds and foods.

There is an opportunity to continuously improve its
packaging, emphasizing product freshness and quality.

Strengthening customer loyalty through transparent
updates and incentives will build long-term trust while
showcasing these proactive measures will enhance the
brand’s reputation and position it as a commitment to
excellence.

Organic marketing through the brand advocacy of|
satisfied customers on account of increased customer
engagement as well as customer reassurance and
quality assurance messaging of VITA.

Customer privacy

Disclosure Quantity Units
No. of substantiated complaints on customer privacy* #

No. of complaints addressed #

No. of customers, users and account holders whose #
information is used for secondary purposes

*Substantiated complaints include complaints from customers that went through the organization’s
formal communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to and
acted upon by government agencies.

What is the impact and where does it occur? What Management Approach
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach

Data Security

Disclosure Quantity Units
No. of data breaches, including leaks, thefts and losses 0 #
of data
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What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

For 2024, VITA did not experience data breach, leak,
theft or even loss. All data regarding its business
operations, trade secrets, employees, suppliers, and
customers are intact and secured. Since it was able to
keep its data secured, its business operations and
supply chain remained undisturbed and its business
operations and supply chain were not exposed to legal,
financial and operational risks.

VITA has an IT department in charge of
maintaining the integrity and security of data
stored electronically as well as the maintenance
and security of all computers used by the
employees. It has also developed a safe-keeping
system of all its contracts, records, and important
documents to protect the data in the said
contracts, records or documents. Only those that
have a “need” to access these documents may be

What are the Risk/s Identified?

allowed access to the said records, contracts, or|
documents and the information contained in

Breach of data security exposes VITA, its directors,
officers, and employees to legal, operational, financial
and reputational risks.

those records, contracts or documents must be
used only for a legitimate purpose. In 2024, VITA
also renewed existing endpoints, firewall, and SSL
to protect and secure data. It has also

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

implemented a single sign on application.

The development and implementation of the active
directory in Visayas and Mindanao operations will give
the same protection as the data in Luzon.

VITA still sees opportunities to increase its data
security through: (a) improved e-mail security; and (b)
use of additional security measures, such as two-factor
authentication, to prevent unauthorized access to
data.

LN SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

Product or Service Contribution to UN
Key products and services and its contribution to susta

SDGs

inable development.

Key Products and Societal Value / Potential Negative Management Approach
Services Contribution to UN SDGs | Impact of Contribution to Negative Impact

Animal Feeds SDG Goal 2: Zero Hunger | 1. Shortage of natural | As disclosed in the

resources. previous topics, VITA

Animal Health Care | 1. Continuous provision of continuously evaluates

healthy and safe feeds for | 2. Waste generation. its strategies and
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Chicken  (Dressed
and Value-Added
Products under the
flagship brand
“Cook’s"”)

animals and foods for
people.

2. Lifetime Profitable
Partnerships  with its
business partners,

suppliers, customers and
employees.

3. Higher allocation of
VITA’s procurement
budget to local suppliers.
4, Increased and
strengthened support to
local agriculture.

4. Continuation of the
Green Sanctuary Program.

SDG Goal 8: Decent Work
and Economic Growth

1. Continued economic

growth of VITA and
contribution to its
stakeholders’” economic
growth.

2. Job creation,
competitive compensation
packages, and career

growth opportunities.

3. Full, productive,
efficient, healthy and safe
workplace.

4. Continuation of the
Green Sanctuary program.
5. Higher allocation of
VITA’s procurement
budget to local suppliers.

SDG Goal 12: Responsible

Production and
Consumption

1. Efficient use and
management of natural
and non-natural
resources.

2. Compliance with
environmental laws and

3. Pollution

contribution.

4.  Contribution
Climate Change.

to

modifies them as may be
necessary to adapt to
the changing
landscapes, provide
solutions to challenges
encountered, and
pioneer innovations.
VITA operates within the
parameters of law,
regulations, its ECC and
it shall continue to look
for solutions to further
mitigate, manage, and
reduce its contributions
to pollution and climate
change as well as to

further reduce the
wastes it
generates/produces

from its operations. It
shall continue to
regularly maintain and
upgrade its equipment
and facilities.

VITA is continuously
improving and
innovating its operations
and processes to
manage its negative
impacts to the economy,
environment, and
society as well as to have
continuous LPPs with its
stakeholders.

VITA launched its Sagip
Kalikasan initiative in
Bulacan in February
2025, a program that
uses bamboo as a
solution for climate
change mitigation.
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regulations, including
compliance with EPR Act.
3. Continued use of Solar
Energy Project in lloilo
feed mill.

4. About 96.27% of
procurement budget was
spent on local suppliers.

5. Healthy and safe feeds
and food.

* None/Not Applicable is not an acceptable answer. For holding companies, the services and products of
its subsidiaries may be disclosed.
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ANNEX “A”
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